QAPP-002, REV. 6

FENIX & SCISSON, INC. LAS VEGAS BRANCH

INTRODUCTION

QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM PLAN

STATEMENT OF POLICY AND AUTHORITY

It is the policy of Fenix & Scisson, Inc., (F&S) Las Vegas Branch to establish and maintain a documented Quality Assurance Program. The purpose of the F&S Quality Assurance Program is to provide confidence that F&S will continually achieve satisfactory quality of performance in all areas of its operational activities through the application of effective management systems that assure conformance to programmatic objectives.

This Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP-002, Revision 6), describes the Fenix & Scisson, Inc., (F&S) Quality Assurance Program for the DOE Yucca Mountain Project (YMP). This plan is a revision to the F&S Quality Assurance Program Plan, QAPP-002, Rev. 5. The program is based upon and satisfies the applicable requirements of the Yucca Mountain Project Quality Assurance Plan, NNWSI/88-9, Rev. 2.

The Quality Assurance Program includes controls to verify conformance of all elements of the program including personnel, organization, work assignments, procedures, calibration requirements, documentation, nonconformances, and corrective action. Where project management plans are required, this Quality Assurance Program Plan shall be incorporated.

All F&S personnel involved in the performance of quality-related functions shall comply with the policies and requirements of this Quality Assurance Program Plan and procedures that implement the Quality Assurance Program. Each member of F&S Management is responsible to assure that all qualityrelated work performed under their cognizance is in compliance with the requirements of this Quality Assurance Program Plan.

Quality Assurance personnel have the responsibility to recognize and reveal problems pertaining to the quality of F&S programs, projects and activities; to initiate, recommend, or provide solutions to such problems; and to verify implementation of corrective action.

890²⁰¹⁰179 8902210179 890221 WASTE **PDR** PDC WM-11

1

QAPP-002, REV. 6

INTRODUCTION

The Manager of Quality Assurance is responsible for the establishment, implementation and verification of the Quality Assurance Program to assure compliance with the policies and requirements set forth herein. The Manager of Quality Assurance is responsible for keeping management informed as to the status of the F&S Quality Program.

Approved by:

Assurance Manager 001 6f

Date:

Approved by:

Vice President & General Manager

Date: 12-30-88

2

FENIX & SCISSON, INC. LAS VEGAS BRANCH QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM PLAN

SECTION I

A DESCRIPTION OF THE FENIX & SCISSON QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM PLAN FOR THE YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT

:

I

FENIX & SCISSON, INC. LAS VEGAS BRANCH

QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM PLAN

SECTION I

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TOTAL PAGES

TABLE OF CONTENTS1	
1.0	ORGANIZATION4
2.0	QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM7
3.0	SCIENTIFIC INVESTIGATION AND DESIGN CONTROL10
4.0	PROCUREMENT DOCUMENT CONTROL
5.0	INSTRUCTIONS, PROCEDURES, PLANS AND DRAWINGS1
6.0	DOCUMENT CONTROL2
7.0	CONTROL OF PURCHASED ITEMS AND SERVICES
8.0	IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL OF ITEMS, SAMPLES AND DATA2
9.0	CONTROL OF PROCESSES2
10.0	INSPECTION4
11.0	TEST CONTROL2
12.0	CONTROL OF MEASURING AND TEST EQUIPMENT2
13.0	HANDLING, SHIPPING, AND STORAGE1
14.0	INSPECTION, TEST, AND OPERATING STATUS1
15.0	CONTROL OF NONCONFORMING ITEMS4
16.0	CORRECTIVE ACTION1
17.0	QUALITY ASSURANCE RECORDS6
18.0	AUDITS

:

1.0 ORGANIZATION

- Fenix & Scisson, Inc. (F&S) is the AE for the Exploratory Shaft 1.1 Facility (ESF) for the Yucca Mountain Project. Responsibilities include field surveillance and inspection of drilling, mining, and sub-surface facilities construction. F&S is responsible for the establishment and execution of a Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP). F&S may delegate to others, such as contractors, agents or consultants, the work of establishing and executing the Quality Assurance (QA) program or any part thereof, but will retain the responsibility therefore. The delegation of the execution of the QAPP requirements will be documented. The organizational structure, lines of communication, authority and duties of persons and organizations affecting quality is clearly established in this doc-These activities affecting quality include both the perument. forming functions of attaining quality objectives and the QA functions. While the line organization is responsible for performing these activities properly, the QA organization will verify the proper performance of work through implementation of appropriate controls. The organizational structure is defined in Figure 1, shown in Section II. The responsibilities of all organizational elements depicted on organization charts relative to the Quality Program shall be described. The responsibilities and authority of key personnel follow.
- 1.1.1 <u>The Vice President and General Manager, Las Vegas Branch</u> has the overall responsibility for the assigned portion of the Yucca Mountain Project. In his absence, the responsibility is delegated to the Nevada Test Site Operations Manager and Assistant Manager.
- 1.1.2 <u>The Yucca Mountain Project Manager/Technical Project Officer (TPO)</u> is responsible to the YMPO Director to ensure that the Project activities for which F&S is responsible, Title I, II and III, are performed to this QAPP and implementing procedures that are consistent with NNWSI/88-9. This includes the drilling and subsurface design, cost estimation and inspection of the ESF. Responsibilities also include field surveillance and inspection of drilling, mining, and subsurface facilities construction.
- 1.1.3 <u>The Yucca Mountain Project Design Manager</u> has the responsibility for the development of the subsurface design of the ESF. This includes technical studies, Title I and Title II design, excluding cost estimation. This activity will result in a design package complete enough for an NTS Support Contractor and subcontractor to perform procurement and construct the underground facility.
- 1.1.4 <u>The Nevada Test Site Operations Manager and Assistant Manager</u> has the overall responsibility for Nevada Test Site activities including Technical Support, Geology/Hydrology, Drilling and Mining Support to the Yucca Mountain Project.
- 1.1.5 <u>The Drilling Manager</u> has the responsibility for providing field personnel necessary to support the Yucca Mountain Project drilling activities.

- 1.1.6 <u>The Mining Manager</u> has the responsibility for providing engineering and field personnel necessary to support Yucca Mountain Project mining and testing activities.
- 1.1.7 <u>The Manager of Geology/Hydrology</u> has the responsibility to provide Geology/Hydrology personnel as requested by the Yucca Mountain Project Manager and approved by DOE/YMPO to support investigations conducted by the U. S. Geological Survey (USGS). F&S Geology/Hydrology personnel perform support activities as directed by the USGS in accordance with their approved Quality Assurance and Implementing Procedures. Details of the F&S interface with USGS are described in the YMP Geology/Hydrology Organization Interface Procedure.
- 1.1.8 <u>The Manager of Technical Support</u> is responsible for providing all support to Yucca Mountain Project activities for records management and surveillance of geophysical logging and may provide a portion of the support for estimating, subcontract administration, reports, word processing, and other related technical services.
- 1.1.9 <u>The Manager of Administration</u> is responsible for providing support to Yucca Mountain Project activities for accounting and budgets, payroll, personnel relations, recruiting, training, procurement, and data processing systems.
- 1.1.10 <u>The Safety Specialist</u> is responsible for assuring all health and safety requirements as well as environmental considerations are incorporated in ESF underground design and facilities.
- 1.1.11 <u>The Manager of Quality Assurance</u> reports to the Vice President and General Manager and has been delegated the authority and execution responsibility for establishing, maintaining, directing and managing the F&S Quality Assurance Program and for assuring that the Quality Assurance Program is effectively executed within F&S, between F&S and DOE/YMPO, Participating Organizations, NTS Support Contractors, and F&S suppliers. Full-time Quality Assurance Representatives, under the direction of the Manager of QA, have responsibility for performing QA functions.
- 1.2 The QA functions are those of assuring that an appropriate QA Program is established and executed effectively and of verifying, such as by checking, auditing, surveillance and inspection, that activities that affect the quality functions have been performed correctly. Additionally, the Manager of QA may utilize Technical Specialists and Management Representatives to assist in auditing. Personnel performing QA functions have sufficient authority, access to work areas, and organizational freedom to identify quality problems; to initiate, recommend or provide solutions through designated channels; to verify implementation of solutions; and to assure that further processing, delivery, installation, or use is controlled until proper disposition of a nonconformance, deficiency, or unsatisfactory condition has occurred. This includes the ability to stop (or cause to be stopped) unsatisfactory work through established channels. Such persons have direct access

QAPP-002, REV. 6

to responsible management at a level where appropriate action can be effected and report to a management level at which this required authority and organizational freedom are provided, including sufficient independence from cost and schedule.

- 1.2.1 The Manager of Quality Assurance is responsible for directing and managing the overall F&S QA Program and has an appropriate organizational position, responsibilities, and authority to exercise proper control over the QA program. The Manager of Quality Assur-ance has appropriate management and QA knowledge and experience, and is at the same or higher organizational level as the highest line manager responsible for performing activities affecting quality and sufficiently independent from cost and schedule. The Manager of QA has responsibility for approval of QAPPs, changes thereto, and interpretations thereof, and implementing procedures and all changes thereto. The Manager of QA has effective communication channels with other senior management positions. The Manager of QA has the responsibility and authority to verify the adequacy and effectiveness of QA plans, requirements, and QA program implementation by F&S and its subordinate organizations. The Manager of QA, who retains overall authority and responsibility for the QA Programs, and personnel considered to be "full-time dedicated", is not assigned duties that would prevent full attention to Yucca Mountain Project QA responsibilities or that would conflict with the reporting and resolution of QA issues and problems related to the Yucca Mountain Project.
- 1.2.2 Should a dispute involving quality arising from a difference of opinion between QA personnel and others occur, this will be brought to the attention of the Manager of QA and the manager of the other organization. Should this not achieve a resolution, the matter shall be referred to F&S Vice President and General Manager for resolution. If the dispute can not be resolved within F&S, the dispute will be elevated to the YMPO Project Quality Manager (PQM).
- 1.3 This Quality Assurance Program Plan applies to all items and activities of all organizations affecting quality. The organization structures and responsibilities are clearly established in this plan and implementing procedures so that the results described below are obtained.
- 1.3.1 Quality is achieved and maintained by those who have been assigned responsibility for performing work.
- 1.3.2 Quality achievement is verified by persons or organizations not directly responsible for performing the work. Verification of conformance to established requirements (acceptance) is accomplished by the QA organization unless specifically exempted in this Quality Assurance Program Plan.
- 1.4 If more than one organization is involved in the execution of activities affecting quality, then the responsibility and authority of each organization will be established clearly and documented.

1-3

- 1.4.1 The external interfaces between organizations and the internal interfaces between organizational units and changes thereto are documented. All interface responsibilities will be defined and documented. The interfaces between F&S, and the other NTS Support Contractors, YMPO, and the Participating Organizations are briefly described below. Specific interfaces are described in Administrative Procedures and Implementing Procedures.
- 1.4.1.1 <u>Holmes & Narver (H&N)</u> F&S has a design interface with H&N on the ESF. F&S may use H&N for material testing and nondestructive testing services.
- 1.4.1.2 <u>Reynolds Electrical and Engineering Company (REECo)</u> F&S is responsible for inspection and surveillance of drilling, mining, and construction performed by REECo and its subcontractors. F&S may purchase equipment through REECo and utilizes their calibration facility for the calibration of measuring and test equipment.
- 1.4.1.3 <u>Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory (LLNL)</u> F&S receives direction through YMPO to support LLNL in site investigations.
- 1.4.1.4 <u>Los Alamos National Laboratory (LANL)</u> F&S receives direction through YMPO to support LANL in site investigations.
- 1.4.1.5 <u>Sandia National Laboratories (SNL)</u> F&S receives direction through YMPO to support SNL in site investigations.
- 1.4.1.6 <u>Science Applications International Corporation (SAIC)/T&MSS</u> is the integrating contractor for YMPO and provides broad technical, operational, and managerial support for Yucca Mountain Project activities. F&S interfaces with SAIC are through YMPO as described in Section 1.4.1.8.
- 1.4.1.7 <u>United States Geologic Survey (USGS)</u> F&S receives direction through YMPO to support USGS in site investigations. Additionally, F&S provides USGS with Geology/Hydrology personnel as described in Section 1.1.7.
- 1.4.1.8 <u>Yucca Mountain Project Office (YMPO)</u> YMPO manages and provides technical direction of the activities of F&S through the issuance of technical and programmatic guidance and QA programmatic guidance. F&S is responsible to YMPO for technical activities assigned in the Yucca Mountain Project Work Breakdown Structure Dictionary (WBS), and project-specific technical plans.
- 1.4.2 From an overall Yucca Mountain Project standpoint, the above interfaces are exchanges of technical requirements of work to be performed and liaison until completion of work. The Yucca Mountain Project Administrative Procedures (APs) provide the implementing interface controls utilized by F&S while its implementing procedures describe the methods of conducting inter-organizational interfaces.

1-4

ł

2.0 QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM

2.1 Extent of the Quality Assurance Program

F&S has developed a Quality Assurance Program Plan which provides the description of the F&S QA program and commits to the applicable Yucca Mountain Project QA requirements given in NNWSI/88-9. This Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP) includes consideration of the activities affecting quality and generated by the Quality Assurance Division with assistance from the technical staff. The QAPP provides instruction to implement and apply the QA requirements to the technical activities of the YMP. It is planned, implemented, and maintained in accordance with NNWSI/88-9 and is consistent with and addresses all of the applicable requirements of this Yucca Mountain Project QA Plan.

Management above or outside of the QA organization regularly receives information as to the scope, status, adequacy, compliance, etc. of the QA Program by means of audits, surveillances, weekly reports and quarterly reports. Management shall perform readiness reviews, as deemed appropriate. Readiness reviews shall apply to major scheduled/planned activities which could affect quality. Readiness reviews shall be used in verifying that specified prerequisites and programmatic requirements have been identified prior to starting a major activity.

The hierarchy of criteria applicable to F&S are in Figure 2, see Section II. Where deviations between the requirements of these documents exist, the requirements of NNWSI/88-9 shall prevail.

- 2.1.1 The QA criteria and specific requirements associated with these criteria have been adapted to the Yucca Mountain Project activities through NNWSI/88-9 and are addressed in QAPP-002. When a specific criteria is not applicable to F&S activities, it will be noted in the QAPP and recorded on the checklist required in Paragraph 2.1.2 below with justification.
- 2.1.2 The F&S Quality Assurance Program consists of QAPP-002 plus appropriate implementing procedures required to provide and implement control over activities affecting quality. The control is consistent with the importance of the activity. These procedures are developed by qualified personnel and reviewed and approved by Quality Assurance prior to implementation to assure they meet all the requirements of QAPP-002.

The QAPP is submitted to YMPO for review prior to implementation and includes a checklist based on NNWSI/88-9 which identifies how and where each of its requirements are addressed. YMPO comments will be resolved and YMPO approval will be obtained. Editorial changes to the QAPP and those which have no effect on the Quality Program will be issued without YMPO approval. These will be in the form of Change Notices in lieu of Revisions. Change Notices will be incorporated in the subsequent Revisions.

- 2.1.3 F&S Management will monitor QAPP-002 through internal audits to assess the adequacy of the program and assure its effective implementation.
- 2.1.4 As an NTS Support Contractor, F&S is not responsible for the acceptance of data or data interpretations for the use in licensing activities that were not generated under the controls of the Yucca Mountain Project QA Plan (QAP). When requested, F&S will provide Participating Organizations primary data or primary data interpretations and reports that were generated by F&S.
- 2.1.5 F&S does not have responsibility for the development of "Q" Lists.
- 2.1.6 F&S uses the Yucca Mountain Project approach to QA that recognizes the differences between items and activities that affect radiological health and safety and waste isolation, and those that do not. The approach is designed to ensure that each item and activity is assigned a QA level that is consistent with its potential impact or importance, or both, in terms of radiological health and safety, waste isolation, non-radiological health and safety, the U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) licensing requirements, the operability and maintainability of the repository, cost, and schedules. The Participating Organizations or YMPO will identify the appropriate Quality Assurance levels for all items and activities that affect quality associated with site characterization, facility and equipment construction, and facility operations. Once assigned, the QA level for a particular item or activity will be applied by F&S.
- 2.1.7 QAPP-002 which complies with the requirements of NNWSI/88-9 has been established by F&S consistent with the schedule for accomplishing the activities. QAPP-002 assures that procedures required to implement the requirement of NNWSI/88-9 are properly documented, controlled, and are mandated by the Vice President and General Manager in the policy statement. QAPP-002 will be applied throughout the life of the Yucca Mountain Project in accordance with established policies, procedures and instructions. QAPP-002 applies to all items and activities identified as QA Level I and II affecting quality. It also identifies the major organizations participating in the project and designated functions of these organizations. QAPP-002 provides control over activities that affect the quality of the identified structures, systems, and components to an extent consistent with their importance. The activities that affect quality shall be accomplished under suitably controlled conditions. Controlled conditions include the use of appropriate equipment, suitable environmental conditions for accomplishing the activity, and assurance that all prerequisites for the given activity have been satisfied. The program takes into account the need for special controls, processes, test equipment, tools, and skills to attain the required quality, and the need for verification of quality by inspection, test, peer review, or a combination of these. The program provides for indoctrination and, as necessary, training of personnel performing activities that affect quality to assure that suitable proficiency is achieved and maintained.

The YMPO will regularly assess the status and adequacy of the F&S QA Program by overview, surveillance and audit activities.

2.2 Application of Graded Quality Assurance

- 2.2.1 The purpose of a graded QA program is to select the QA requirements and measures to be applied to items and activities in the Repository Program consistent with their importance to safety, waste isolation and the achievement of U. S. Department of Energy (DOE) mission objectives. This will be accomplished by deliberate quality planning and selective application of QA requirements on the item or activity to be performed with varying degrees of QA applied, depending on item function, complexity, consequence of failure, reliability, replicability of results, and economic considerations. F&S will accept the identification of items and activities for graded QA as developed by the responsible Principal Investigators and will ensure that they are covered by an applicable QA Program.
- 2.2.2 The requirements specified in this section are to be used to apply the graded quality philosophy to all Yucca Mountain Project items and activities.
- 2.2.2.1 F&S does not have the responsibility for the selection of Quality Assurance levels. F&S recognizes three Quality Assurance levels and has established its QA Program in accordance with the levels defined below:

<u>OA Level I</u> - are those radiological health and safety related items and activities that are important to either safety or waste isolation and that are associated with the ability of a geologic nuclear waste repository to function in a manner that prevents or mitigates the consequences of a process or event that could cause undue risk to the radiological health and safety of the public. Items and activities important to safety are, those engineered structures, systems, components, and related activities essential to the prevention or mitigation of an accident that could result in a radiation dose either to the whole body or to any organ of 0.5 rem or greater either at or beyond the nearest boundary of the unrestricted area at any time until the completion of the permanent closure of the re-Items and activities important to waste isolation pository. are those barriers and related activities which must meet the criteria that address post-closure performance of the engineered and natural barriers to inhibit the release of radionuclides. The criteria for items or activities important to safety and waste isolation are found in 10 CFR 60, and 40 CFR 191.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

<u>OA Level II</u> - are those activities and items related to the systems, structures, and components which require a level of quality assurance sufficient to provide for reliability, maintainability, public and repository worker nonradiological health and safety, repository worker radiological health and safety and other operational factors that would have an impact on DOE and YMPO concerns, and the environment.

<u> $OA \ Level \ III$ </u> - are those activities and items not classified as QA Levels I and II.

- 2.2.2.2 <u>Application of Levels</u> F&S will apply QA Levels as assigned by the Participating Organization.
- 2.2.2.3 The requirements contained in this document apply to Quality Assurance Levels I and II items and activities unless otherwise noted herein. The requirements imposed for QA Level III items and activities are those managerial, administrative, scientific, engineering, commercial, and laboratory practices that are commonly used by Fenix & Scisson, Inc.

2.3 <u>QA Activities</u>

2.3.1 <u>Overview</u>

F&S shall perform overview of the QA activities of all organizations (including subcontractors doing supportive work) under their purview. This excludes other project participants (see Para. 7.5.2.1). Overview is to include the following as appropriate:

- o The review and approval of QAPPs.
- o Surveillance of activities affecting quality to verify compliance with requirements.
- o Performance of quality audits to verify the adequacy and compliance of QA programs.

2.3.2 <u>Review and Approval of QA Programs</u>

Procedures are to be established by F&S for the review of QA program documentation of those organizations under their purview for adequacy, completeness and relevance. The procedures shall identify the types of documents to be submitted for review and approval, assign responsibility for review, and identify the methods for documenting review and approval action. Reviews of QA program documentation shall be recorded on checklists or other forms that specify the criteria for acceptability and indicate conformance or nonconformance.

2.4 <u>Management Assessment</u>

- 2.4.1 <u>Frequency of Management Assessments</u> Management assessments will be conducted at least annually for determining (1) the effectiveness of the system and management controls that are established to achieve and assure quality, and (2) the adequacy of resources and personnel provided to the QA Program. Management is to verify that the QA Program is being effectively implemented and that personnel are trained to the QA requirements of the program.
- 2.4.2 <u>Performance of Management Assessment</u> Management assessments are performed by F&S in accordance with procedures for planning, organizing, performing, and documenting the management assessment conducted, including the analysis and reporting of the results and tracking of recommendations. Copies of management assessments are to be provided to the Project Manager, YMPO and the YMPO PQM. Management above or outside the QA Organization shall be responsible for the Management Assessment activity.
- 2.5 <u>Personnel Selection, Indoctrination, and Training Procedures</u>
- 2.5.1 <u>Establishment of Requirements</u> F&S has established requirements for the selection, indoctrination, and training of personnel performing or verifying activities that affect quality. The requirements establish position descriptions that set forth minimum personnel qualifications and provide for appropriate indoctrination or training or both, prior to initiation of activities that affect quality. In addition to the following requirements for indoctrination and training, personnel performing activities that specifically require certification by applicable codes and standards (e.g., lead auditors, inspectors, testers, etc), are certified in accordance with the detailed requirements specified in Appendix C, D or F, as applicable.
- 2.5.1.1 <u>Position Description</u> Minimum education and experience requirements are established and documented in position descriptions for each position involved in the performance of activities that affect quality.
- 2.5.1.2 <u>Personnel Qualification Evaluation</u> Personnel selected will have education and experience commensurate with the minimum requirements specified in the position description. Relevant education and experience will be verified. This verification will be documented. The initial capabilities of an individual will be based upon an evaluation of their education, experience, and training and compared to those established for the position. Evaluations will be documented by managers or supervisors responsible for the activities to be performed.

2.5.1.3 <u>Indoctrination</u> Prior to assigning personnel to perform activities affecting quality, they will be indoctrinated as to the purpose, scope, methods of implementation, and applicability of the following documents (including changes thereto), as a minimum, as they relate to the work to be accomplished.

Indoctrination may be accomplished by the use of a mandatory reading list, by group classroom presentations, by video presentation, or other instructional methods.

- o F&S QAPP
- o Implementing Procedures and Work Instructions (applicable to the individual's responsibilities)
- o Regulations
- o Project Level Documents
- 2.5.1.4 <u>Training</u> Prior to assigning personnel to perform quality affecting activities training if needed, will be conducted to gain the required proficiency. The training (in-depth instruction) will include the principles, techniques, and requirements of the activity. Such in-depth instructions may be internal or external class room sessions, classroom sessions supplemented by hands-on workshops, on-the-job training, other instructional methods, or combinations thereof.
- 2.5.1.5 <u>Proficiency Evaluation</u> After the initial personnel qualification evaluation, the job proficiency of personnel who perform activities affecting quality will be evaluated and documented at least annually. Proficiency evaluations may be performed in conjunction with periodic or day-to-day employee performance evaluations. Proficiency evaluations will be performed by managers or supervisors who have responsibility for the activities being performed or verified.
- 2.5.1.6 <u>Records</u> Records of personnel qualification evaluations, indoctrination, training, and proficiency evaluations will be retained as lifetime QA records. These records will include, as a minimum, the items listed below:
 - <u>Personnel Qualification Evaluation Records</u> Records of the verification and evaluation of a candidates education, experience, and training, compared to those for the position.
 - o <u>Indoctrination Records</u> Records of indoctrination which include the objective and content of the indoctrination, date or dates of indoctrination, and other applicable information.

2-6

QAPP-002, REV. 6

- o <u>Training Records</u> Records of training which include the objective and content of the training, name of the instructor, attendees, dates of attendance and results of proficiency evaluations (where applicable), and other applicable information.
- o <u>Proficiency Evaluation Records</u> Records of proficiency evaluation will include, as a minimum, the name of the evaluated employee, the evaluator, evaluation results, date of evaluation, and the activities covered by the evaluation.

3.0 <u>SCIENTIFIC INVESTIGATION CONTROL AND DESIGN CONTROL</u>

3.1 <u>Scientific Investigation Control</u>

F&S participation in Scientific Investigation is limited. F&S performs a support function for the Principal Investigators (PI). F&S prepares plans for specific investigations from criteria supplied by the PI with the approval of YMPO/NTSO. These plans are known as drilling programs or mining programs. These programs contain a description of the work to be performed, and the equipment required to perform the work. F&S also supplies personnel to work under the direction of PI personnel. F&S may also provide the services of support subcontractors when directed by the PI.

- 3.2 <u>Design Control</u>
- 3.2.1 <u>General</u>
- 3.2.1.1 The design process is defined, controlled and ver-<u>Definition</u> ified in accordance with established, approved procedures contained in the Project Control Manual utilized by the Design Organization. The term design refers to specifications, drawings, design criteria, and component performance requirements for the natural and engineered components of the repository system. Design information and design activities refer to data collection and analyses activities that are used in supporting design development and verification. This in-cludes general plans and detailed implementing procedures for data collection and analyses and related information such as test results and analysis. The data collection activities result from scientific investigations and produce design input. Data analysis includes the initial step of data reduction as well as broad level systems analyses (such as performance assessments) which integrate many other data and analyses of individual parameters.

It is the policy of the Yucca Mountain Project that a completed or final design of a facility or item evolves from a sequential order of design activities (or phases) wherein each phase becomes more detailed in nature than the preceding phase. It is recognized that the number and length of design phases required to produce a completed or final design of any particular item or facility may vary, among organizations responsible for design, according to the timeliness and availability of pertinent information and the complexity of the item or facility. It is also recognized that all Project design activities, although undertaken by different organizations, which may progress at different rates, are dependent on and require an interface with each other to produce a unified facility design.

- 3.2.1.2 <u>Quality Assurance Level Assignment</u> All design phases will be assigned a Quality Assurance Level prior to execution in accordance with the methods specified in the YMP Administrative Procedure Manual.
- 3.2.1.3 <u>Qualification of Personnel</u> Personnel performing design work will be indoctrinated, trained, and qualified in accordance with the requirements of Section 2 of this document. Instructions, procedures and drawings for design work will be in accordance with the requirements of Section 5 of this document.
- 3.2.1.4 <u>Peer Review</u> For design activities including design output documents which involve use of untried or state-of-the-art testing and analysis procedures and methods, or where detailed technical criteria and requirements do not exist or are being developed, a peer review will be conducted. The peer review will meet the requirements of Paragraph 3.4 of this section of the Quality Assurance Program Plan.
- 3.2.2 <u>Design Input</u>
- 3.2.2.1 Identification, Review and Approval of Input Applicable design input, such as site characterization data, criteria letters, design bases, performance and regulatory requirements, codes, standards, manufacturer's design data, and quality standards, will be identified, documented, and their selection reviewed and approved by F&S Design and the F&S QA organization. The purpose of the QA review is to assure that the documents are prepared, reviewed, and approved in accordance with documented procedures and quality assurance requirements. The design input shall be specified and approved on a timely basis and to the level of detail necessary to permit the design activity to be carried out in a correct manner and to provide a consistent basis for making design decisions, accomplishing design verification measures, and evaluating design changes.
- 3.2.2.2 <u>Changes to Design Input</u> Changes to approved design input, including the reason for the changes, will be identified, documented, approved, and controlled by the responsible design organization.
- 3.2.2.3 <u>Considerations for Design Input</u> Considerations for design inputs as they apply to specific items or systems are contained in Appendix B of this document.
- 3.2.3 <u>Design Analysis</u>
- 3.2.3.1 <u>Design Analysis Documents</u> Design analyses will be performed in a planned, controlled, and documented manner. Design analysis will be performed and documented in sufficient detail as to purpose, method, assumptions, design input, design calculations, references and units such that a technically qualified

person may review, understand, and verify the analysis without recourse to the originator. These documents will be legible and in a form suitable for reproduction, filing, and retrieval.

Calculations will be identifiable by subject (including structure, system, or component) originator, reviewer, and date.

3.2.3.2 Documentation of Design Analysis

Documentation of design analysis will include as a minimum the following:

- o Definition of the objective of the analysis.
- o Definition of design input and their sources.
- o A listing of applicable references.
- o Results of literature searches or other background data.
- o Identification of assumptions and indication of those which require verification as the design proceeds.
- o A logical sequenced list showing the design calculations.
- o Identification of any computer calculation, including computer type, program name, revision, input, output, evidence of program verification, and the bases of application to the specific problem.
- o Signatures and dates of review and approval by appropriate personnel including QA Personnel. The purpose of the QA review is to assure that the documentation is prepared, reviewed and approved in accordance with documented procedures and quality assurance requirements.
- 3.2.3.3 <u>Use of Computer Programs</u> Computer programs that are used to support a licence application will be documented and controlled as specified in Paragraph 3.3 of this Section and Appendix H of this QAPP.
- 3.2.4 Design Verification
- 3.2.4.1 <u>Identification and Documentation</u> Design control measures will be applied to verify the adequacy of design and verification will be performed in a timely manner. The responsible design organization will identify and document the verification method used, the results of the verification, and the verifier.
- 3.2.4.2 <u>Timing of Verification</u> Verification of the adequacy of design will be performed prior to release for procurement, construction, or release to another organization for use in other design activities. In those cases where this timing can not be

met, the portion or portions of design which have not been verified will be identified and controlled. In all cases, the verification will be completed prior to relying on the component, system, or structure to perform its function.

- 3.2.4.3 Extent of Verification The extent of the design verification required is a function of the importance to safety of the item under consideration, the complexity of the design, the degree of standardization, the state of the art, and the similarity with previously proven designs. Where the design has been subjected to a verification process in accordance with Paragraph 3.2.4 of this Section, the verification process need not be duplicated for identical designs. However, the applicability of standardized or previously proven designs, with respect to meeting pertinent design inputs, will be verified for each application. Known problems affecting the standardized or previously proven design and associated verification measures will be adequately documented and referenced in the files of subsequent application of the design.
- 3.2.4.4 <u>Changes to Verified Designs</u> Changes to previously verified designs will require verification including evaluation of the effects of those changes on the overall design.
- 3.2.4.5 <u>Personnel Performing Verification</u> Design verification will be performed in accordance with the requirements of Paragraph 3.2.4.6 of this Section by any competent, certified individual or individuals or certified group or groups other than those who performed the original design. This includes the following:
- 3.2.4.5.1 Individuals or groups from the originator's same organization.
- 3.2.4.5.2 Individuals or groups from other organizations contracted for this purpose.
- 3.2.4.5.3 The originator's supervisor providing all of the following requirements are met:
 - o The supervisor is the only individual in the organization competent to perform verification.
 - o The supervisor did not establish the design input used, specify a singular design approach, or rule out certain design considerations.
 - o The rationale for satisfying the two requirements above is documented and approved by management superior to the supervisor. The Manager of QA or his designee will also concur with this rationale.

3-4

- 3.2.4.6 <u>Methods of Design Verification</u> Design verification will be accomplished by any one or a combination of the following: design reviews, alternate calculations, qualification testing, or peer review.
- 3.2.4.6.1 <u>Design Reviews</u> Design reviews are detailed critical reviews to provide assurance that the design is correct and satisfactory. At a minimum, the items below will be considered during the review and the results of such deliberations will be documented.
 - o Were the design inputs correctly selected?
 - o Are assumptions necessary to perform the design activity adequately described and reasonable? Where necessary, are the assumptions identified for subsequent reverifications when the detailed design activities are completed?
 - o Was an appropriate design method used?
 - o Were the design inputs correctly incorporated into the design?
 - o Is the design output reasonable compared to design inputs?
 - Are the necessary design input and verification requirements for interfacing organizations specified in the design documents or in supporting procedures or instructions?
 - o Are computer programs used for analysis identified and verified in accordance with the methods specified in Paragraph 3.3 of this section.
- 3.2.4.6.2 <u>Alternate Calculations</u> Alternate calculations are a form of analysis which may be used to determine the adequacy of the original analyses. The use of alternate calculations will include a review of the appropriateness of assumptions, inputs and computer programs or other calculation method used.
- 3.2.4.6.3 Qualification Tests Qualification tests that involve actual physical testing of systems, structures, or components may be used to verify the adequacy of design. Where design adequacy is to be verified by qualification tests, the tests will be identified. The test configuration will be clearly defined and documented. Testing will demonstrate adequacy of performance under conditions that simulate the most adverse design conditions. Operating modes and environmental conditions in which the item must perform satisfactorily will be considered in determining the most adverse conditions. Where the test is intended to verify only specific design features, the other features of the design will be verified by other means. Test results will be documented and evaluated by the responsible design organization to assure that test requirements have been

QAPP-002, REV. 6

met. If qualification testing indicates that modifications to the item are necessary to obtain acceptable performance, the modification will be documented and the item modified and retested or otherwise verified to assure satisfactory performance. When tests are being performed on models or mockups, scaling laws will be established and verified. The results of model test work will be subject to error analysis, where applicable, prior to use in the final design work.

3.2.4.6.4 Peer Review

Peer review is an acceptable method of design verification when the design is beyond state-of-the-art and other methods of design verification are not feasible.

- 3.2.5 Design Change Control
- <u>Changes to Approved Designs</u> Changes to approved designs, in-cluding field changes, will be justified and subjected to de-3.2.5.1 sign control measures commensurate with those applied to the original design and approved by the same affected groups or organizations which reviewed and approved the original design documents; except where an organization which originally was responsible for approving a particular design document is no longer responsible, then the YMPO will designate a new responsible organization. The designated organization will have demonstrated competence in the specific design area of interest and have an adequate understanding of the requirements and intent of the original design. Errors and deficiencies in approved design and design information documents will be documented, and action taken to assure that all errors and deficiencies are corrected. Where a significant design change is necessary because of an incorrect design, the design process and verification procedure will be reviewed and modified as necessary.
- 3.2.6 Design Interface Control
- 3.2.6.1 <u>Identification and Responsibility</u> Internal and external design interfaces will be identified and controlled and design efforts will be coordinated among and within responsible design organizations. Interface controls will include the assignment of responsibility and the establishment of procedures among and within responsible design organizations for the review, approval, release, distribution, and revision of documents involving design interfaces.
- 3.2.6.2 <u>Information Transmitted Across Interfaces</u> Design information transmitted across interfaces will be documented and controlled. Transmittals shall identify the status of the design information or document provided and, where necessary, identify

incomplete items which require further evaluation, review, or approval. Where it is necessary to initially transmit design information orally or by other informal means, the transmittal will be confirmed promptly by a controlled document.

- 3.2.7 <u>Design Output Requirements</u>
- 3.2.7.1 <u>Design Output Documents</u> Design output documents will:
- 3.2.7.1.1 Relate to the design input by documentation in sufficient detail to permit design verification.
- 3.2.7.1.2 Identify assemblies or components or both that are part of the item being designed. When such an assembly or component part is a commercial grade item that, prior to its installation, is modified or selected by special inspection or testing or both, to requirements that are more restrictive than the Supplier's published product description, the component part will be represented as different from the commercial grade item in a manner traceable to a documented definition of the difference.
- 3.2.7.1.3 Show evidence that the required review and approval cycle has been achieved prior to release for procurement, construction, or release to another organization for use in other design activities. As a minimum, the review and approval cycle will include the participation of the technical and QA elements of both the responsible design organization and the WMPO or their designee. The purpose of the QA review is to assure that the documents are prepared, reviewed and approved in accordance with documented procedures and quality assurance requirements.
- 3.2.8 <u>Design Documents as QA Records</u> Design documentation, including design inputs, analyses, drawings, specifications, approved changes thereto, evidence of design verification and records confirming interface control will be collected, controlled, stored, and maintained as QA records in accordance with procedures which met the requirements of Section 17 of this document.
- 3.3 <u>Software Quality Assurance Requirements</u>
- 3.3.1 <u>Computer Software Documentation and Control</u>

For a geologic repository, computer software used to perform analysis in support of the license application shall be controlled to the same level of requirements as software used to perform direct design analysis. Auxiliary software used to support primary analysis software shall be controlled at a level commensurate with the complexity of that software.

Where commercial auxiliary software is used, all available documentation from the software supplier shall be obtained. It is recognized that source code is generally not available and controls are limited to unique version identification and user-related

manuals. Supplemental, detailed requirements for the development, maintenance, and security of computer software based on the life cycle model are contained in Appendix H of this QAPP.

- 3.3.1.1 Fenix & Scisson, Inc., shall prepare a description of their software design, test and configuration management system, and submit it to DOE/YMPO for review and approval. The description shall:
 - o Provide criteria for application of the requirements of this section based on the complexity and importance of the software used to perform analysis in support of the design of a geologic repository.
 - o Indicate the methods to be used to develop computer program requirements, to translate those requirements into a detailed design, and to implement that design in executable code.
 - Relate the types of documentation to be prepared, reviewed, and maintained during software design, code implementation, test, and use.
 - o Identify the methodology for establishing software baselines and baseline updates (changes) and for tracking changes throughout the life of the software.
 - o Specify the process to be used for verification and validation of the software developed or applied to geologic repository design analysis.
 - o Identify the procedure for reporting and documenting software discrepancies, including sources, evaluating impacts of discrepancies on previous calculations, and determining appropriate corrective action.
- 3.3.1.2 Software shall be placed under configuration management as each baseline element is approved. Software baseline elements shall be uniquely identified to assure positive control of all revisions; the identification of each code version shall be directly related to the associated documentation.
- 3.3.1.3 Changes to software shall be systematically evaluated, coordinated, and approved to assure that the impact of a change is carefully assessed prior to updating the baseline, required action is documented, and the information concerning approved changes is transmitted to all affected organizations. Changes to computer software shall be subject to the same level of approval, verification, and validation as the original software.
- 3.3.1.4 Computer programs developed and/or modified shall be documented in accordance with the applicable elements of NUREG-0856, Final Technical Position on Documentation of Computer Codes for High-Level Waste Management. This requirement may be met in part by

existing documentation if properly referenced and related to the NUREG-0856 requirements.

- 3.3.1.5 Testing of software, including new or modified software, shall be performed for those inputs and conditions necessary to exercise the software, identify boundary conditions and to provide a suitable benchmark or sample problem for installation. The goal of testing is to develop a set of test cases that have highest probability of detecting the most errors in order to identify under what conditions the software does not perform properly.
- 3.3.1.6 Verification and validation of computer software shall be performed prior to the use of such software to perform technical calculations in support of site-characterization, performance assessment analyses, and the design, analysis, and operation of repository structures, systems, and components. In those cases where this requirement cannot be met, the portion or portions of software which have not been verified and validated shall be identified and controlled. In all cases, the verification and validation of software shall be completed prior to relying on the software to support the license application.
- 3.3.1.7 Verification and validation procedures shall assure that the software adequately and correctly performs all intended functions and that the software does not perform any unintended function that either by itself or in combination with other functions can degrade the entire system.
- 3.3.1.8 Existing software shall be qualified for use. This qualification shall be based on the ability of the software to provide acceptable results for specific applications and compliance with the requirements of this section. Software that has not been developed in accordance with this QAPP may be qualified for use provided the software is verified and validated, a software baseline established, and applicable documentation prepared to support the software in accordance with the provisions of this section.
- 3.3.1.9 Methods for determining the applicability of requirements and managing interfaces involving the documentation, configuration management, change, qualification, verification, and validation are contained in the F&S Software QA Plan and Implementing Procedures.
- 3.3.2 Documentation of Computer Software

Documentation of scientific and engineering software shall include the following, as a minimum:

- o Software requirements specification;
- Software design and change documentation;
- o Description of mathematical models and numerical methods;
- o Software verification and validation documentation;
- o User documentation;
- o Code assessment and support;
- o Continuing documentation and code listings; and
- o Software summary.

This documentation is considered to be a QA Record and is subject to the requirements of Section 17.0 of this QAPP. Appendix H to the QAPP provides detailed requirements on the content of the documentation for this software and other computer software used on the Yucca Mountain Project.

3.3.3 <u>Software Configuration Management</u>

Fenix & Scisson, Inc., shall institute a software configuration management program appropriate to the projects it conducts and shall provide documentation of this program to the Records Management System (RMS). The minimum requirements for this configuration management program shall be: (1) the inclusion of a unique identification, including software version numbers whenever feasible, in the output; (2) listings of the software; and (3) a brief chronology of the software versions, including descriptions of the changes made between versions.

3.4 <u>Peer Reviews</u>

F&S shall institute a peer review process, when applicable, to provide adequate confidence in the work being reviewed. Peer reviews shall meet the requirements of NUREG-1297 "Peer Review for High-Level Nuclear Waste Repositories" (Feb. 1988). These requirements are contained in Appendix J of this QAPP.

3.5 <u>Technical Reviews</u>

When technical reviews are required, they shall be conducted in accordance with procedures that contain specific criteria for the performance of the technical review.

4.0 <u>PROCUREMENT DOCUMENT_CONTROL</u>

4.1.1 <u>Measures to Assure Adequate Quality</u>

Measures will be established to assure that applicable regulatory requirements, design or site investigations bases, and other requirements that are necessary to assure adequate quality are suitably included or referenced in the documents for procurement of material, equipment and services utilized on the Yucca Mountain Project. To the extent necessary, procurement documents will require subcontractors to provide a Quality Assurance (QA) Program that is consistent with the pertinent provisions of NNWSI/88-9 as required for the specified Quality Assurance Level. In lieu of requiring subcontractors to have a Quality Assurance Program, they may be required to work in accordance with the F&S QAPP and Procedures. The extent of F&S responsibility for procurements which involve REECo will be defined in Yucca Mountain Project Administrative Procedures.

4.2 Additional Requirements for QA Level I Activities

Procurement documents issued at all tiers of procurement will include provisions for the items listed below as deemed necessary by F&S:

- 4.2.1 <u>Content of Procurement Documents</u>
- 4.2.1.1 <u>Scope of Work</u>

A statement of the scope of work to be performed by the supplier will be in the procurement documents.

4.2.1.2 <u>Technical Requirements</u>

Technical requirements will be specified in the procurement documents. Where necessary, these requirements will be specified by reference to specific drawings, specifications, codes, standards, regulations, procedures, or instructions, including revisions thereto that describe the items of services to be furnished. The procurement documents will provide for identification of test, inspection, and acceptance requirements of the purchaser for monitoring and evaluating the supplier's performance.

4.2.1.3 <u>OA Requirements</u>

4.2.1.3.1 Procurement documents will require that the supplier have a documented QA Program that implements either portions or all of the requirements of NNWSI/88-9. Quality Assurance Program Plans and Documents of subcontractors for QA Level I purchases will be reviewed and approved by F&S. Those which do not adequately define QA requirements, as judged by the QA representative of F&S, will be corrected prior to initiation of activities specified by the purchase order or contract.

The extent of the program required will depend on the type and use of the item or service being procured. The procurement documents will require the supplier to incorporate appropriate QA Program requirements in subtier procurement documents. In lieu of requiring subcontractors to have a Quality Assurance Program, they may be required to work in accordance with the F&S QAPP and Procedures.

- 4.2.1.3.2 In developing QA requirements for test and other equipment, consideration should be given to whether proper performance of that equipment can be determined during or after its use (i.e., whether failure or malfunction of the equipment can be detected).
- 4.2.1.4 <u>Rights of Access</u>

At each tier of procurement, the procurement documents will provide for access to the suppliers' facilities and records for inspection or audit by the purchaser, appropriate YMPO personnel, or other YMPO authorized representatives. YMPO access to subtier contractor facilities will be arranged by F&S.

4.2.1.5 <u>Documentation Requirements</u>

The procurement documents at all tiers will identify the documentation required to be submitted to the purchaser. The time of submittal will also be established. If F&S requires the supplier to maintain specific QA records, then the retention times and disposition requirements will be specified in accordance with Section 17 of this document.

4.2.1.6 <u>Nonconformance</u>

The procurement documents will prescribe the F&S requirements for reporting and approving disposition of nonconformances.

4.2.1.7 <u>Spare and Replacement Parts</u>

The procurement documents will require the identification of appropriate spare and replacement parts or assemblies and the appropriate delineation of the technical and quality-related data that are required for ordering these parts or assemblies. The technical and quality requirements will be equal to or better than the original. If QA or technical requirements of the original item cannot be determined, then an engineering evaluation will be conducted by qualified individuals to establish the requirements. The evaluation will consider the interchangeability, function and safety of the item. The evaluation will be documented.

4.2.2 <u>Procurement Document Review</u>

A review of the procurement documents and changes thereto will be made to assure that documents transmitted to the prospective supplier or suppliers include appropriate provisions to assure that items or services will meet the specified requirements. The review will be performed prior to contract award. Procurement document reviews will be performed by personnel who have access to pertinent information and who have adequate understanding of the requirements and intent of the procurement documents. The review will include, as a minimum, the cognizant technical organization and QA organization. The review by the QA organization will assure that the following requirements are met:

- o QA Requirements are correctly stated, inspectable and controllable.
- o There are adequate acceptance and rejection criteria.
- o Procurement documents have been prepared, reviewed, and approved in accordance with this document.

4.2.3 Procurement Document Changes

Procurement document changes will be subject to the same degree of control as utilized in the preparation of the original documents. Changes that are made as a result of the bid evaluation or precontract negotiations will be incorporated into the procurement documents. The review of such changes and their effects will be completed and documented prior to contract award. Review of changes will include the following considerations:

- o Appropriate content will be included in procurement documents as required by Paragraph 4.2.1 of this section.
- Additional or modified design or site investigation criteria will be determined.
- Analysis of exceptions or changes requested or specified by the supplier and determination of the effects such changes may have on the intent of the procurement documents or quality of the item or service to be furnished.

4.2.4 <u>Distribution of Procurement Documents</u>

F&S will forward to the SAIC/T&MSS Project QA Department (QA Verification Division Manager) a copy of purchase documents, and changes thereto, as issued, when purchases involve Quality Assurance Level I items or services. Only those purchase documents which identify the vendor, describe the scope of work, and detail when work is to start are required to be submitted to the SAIC/T&MSS Project QA Department.

5.0 INSTRUCTIONS, PROCEDURES, PLANS AND DRAWINGS

5.1 <u>General</u>

Activities affecting quality will be prescribed by and performed in accordance with documented instructions, procedures, plans or drawings of a type appropriate to the circumstances. These documents will include or reference appropriate quantitative or qualitative acceptance criteria for determining that prescribed activities have been satisfactorily accomplished. Instructions and procedures will include a section which identifies the QA records which are generated during implementation of the document. If plans are used in lieu of procedures, then these plans shall also include or reference appropriate acceptance criteria and identify the QA records which are generated. These documents, including drawings, will be controlled as required in Section 6.0 of this document.

5.2 <u>Reviews</u>

An independent review of all instructions, procedures, plans and drawings shall be performed by F&S to assure technical adequacy and inclusion of appropriate quality requirements. These reviews shall be performed by individual(s) other than those who developed these documents. If applicable, the review shall consider whether or not the activities are repeatable, have the potential to impact the waste isolation capability of the site or interfere with other site characterization activities.

5.3 Distribution

F&S will maintain and provide the YMPO PQM and the SAIC/T&MSS Project Quality Assurance Department Manager with controlled distribution of all implementing procedures, plans and instructions used for QA Level I and II activities.

6.0 DOCUMENT CONTROL

6.1 <u>Document Preparation, Review, Approval, and Issuance</u>

6.1.1 <u>Methods</u>

The preparation, review, approval, and issuance of documents such as instructions, procedures, plans and drawings, including changes thereto, will be controlled through the implementation of methods that assure that only correct documents are used.

Document Control will be applied to the following:

- o Documents containing or specifying quality requirements.
- o Documents that prescribe activities affecting quality.
- 6.1.2 The document control system will be documented and F&S QA will provide the appropriate review, resolution of comments, and concurrence with respect to guality-related aspects of the documents.

6.1.3 <u>Implementation</u>

Implementation of document control will provide for the following:

- o Identification of documents to be controlled.
- o Identification of assignment of responsibility for pre-paring, reviewing, approving, and issuing documents.
- Review of documents for technical adequacy, completeness, correctness, and inclusion of appropriate quality requirements, prior to approval and issuance.
- A method for the removal or marking of obsolete or superseded documents to prevent inadvertent use.
- A method for assuring that the correct and applicable documents are available at the location where they are to be used.
- A master list or equivalent to identify the correct and updated revisions of documents.
- o Coordination of interface documents.

6.2 <u>Document_Changes</u>

6.2.1 <u>Minor Changes</u>

Minor changes to documents, such as inconsequential editorial corrections, will not require that the revised documents receive the

same review and approval as the original documents. To avoid possible omission of a required review, the type of minor changes that do not require such a review and approval and the persons who can authorize such a decision will be clearly delineated.

6.2.2 Major Changes

Changes to documents, other than those defined above as minor changes are considered as major changes and will be reviewed and approved by the same organizations that performed the original review and approval, unless other organizations are specifically designated by the organization responsible for the document. The reviewing organization will have access to pertinent background data or information upon which to base their approval and, if applicable, shall specifically consider whether or not the activities being changed are repeatable, have the potential to impact the waste isolation capability of the site or interfere with other site characterization activities.

6.3 <u>Distribution of Documents</u>

Document Control System

The document control system will assure that documents requiring verification are not released prior to verification or, if they must be released before verification, they are uniquely identified as such and controlled in accordance with Para. 6.1.3 of this QAPP. A master list or equivalent used to identify the correct, current and updated versions of documents will be submitted to the YMPO PQM and the SAIC/T&MSS Project Quality Assurance Department Manager. In the case of implementing procedures, this will be accomplished by incorporating in the manuals a table of contents showing the latest revisions.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

7.0 <u>CONTROL OF PURCHASED ITEMS AND SERVICES</u>

7.1 <u>General Requirements</u>

Measures will be established to ensure that purchased material, equipment, and services conform to the procurement documents. These measures will include provisions, as appropriate, for source evaluation and selection, objective evidence of quality furnished by the contractor or subcontractor, inspection at the contractor or subcontractor source, audit, and examination of products upon delivery. Where required by code, regulation, or contract requirement, documentary evidence that material and equipment conform to the procurement requirements will be available at the location where the material or equipment is to be used prior to installation or use of such material and equipment. This documentary evidence will be retained under the control of YMPO QA Records Management System (QARMS) and will be sufficient to identify the specific requirements, such as codes, standards, or specifications, that are to be met by the purchased material and equipment.

The extent of F&S responsibility for procurements which involve REECo will be defined in Yucca Mountain Project Administrative Procedures.

Specific requirements for the control of purchased items and services are listed below.

7.2 <u>Procurement Planning</u>

7.2.1 Procurement activities will be planned and documented to ensure a systematic approach to the procurement process. Procurement planning will result in the documented identification of procurement methods and organizational responsibilities. Appropriate Quality Assurance (QA) organization participation will be provided for evaluation and selection of suppliers, verification of suppliers activities and receiving inspections.

Planning will determine the following:

- o What is to be accomplished.
- o Who is to accomplish it.
- o How it is to be accomplished.
- o When it is to be accomplished.

7.2.2 <u>Procurement Timing</u>

To ensure interface compatibility and a uniform approach to the procurement process, planning will be accomplished as early as practicable and no later than at the start of those procurement activities that are required to be controlled.

7-1

7.2.3 <u>Procurement Methods</u>

Planning will result in the documented identification of the methods to be used in procurement activities, the sequence of actions and milestones that indicate the completion of these activities, and the preparation of applicable procedures prior to the initiation of each individual activity listed as follows.

Planning will provide for the integration of the following:

- 7.2.3.1 Procurement document preparation, review, and change control.
- 7.2.3.2 Selection of procurement sources.
- 7.2.3.3 Purchaser control of supplier performance.
- 7.2.3.4 Verification (surveillance, inspection, or audit) activities by purchaser, including notification for hold-and-witness points.
- 7.2.3.5 Control of nonconformances.
- 7.2.3.6 Corrective action.
- 7.2.3.7 Acceptance of item or service.
- 7.2.3.8 QA records.
- 7.3 <u>Source Evaluation and Selection</u>
- 7.3.1 <u>Selection of Suppliers</u>

The selection of suppliers will be based on evaluation of their capability to provide items or services in accordance with the requirements of the procurement documents before the award of contract.

7.3.2 <u>Source Evaluation and Selection Measures</u>

2

Procurement source evaluation and selection measures will be implemented by the purchaser and will provide for identification of the purchaser's organizational responsibilities for determining supplier capability.

7.3.3 <u>Measures for Evaluation and Selection of Procurement Sources</u>

Measures for evaluation and selection of procurement sources, and the results thereof, will be documented and will include one or more of the following items:

- Evaluation of the supplier's history of providing an identical or similar product that performs satisfactorily in actual use. The supplier's history shall reflect current capability.
- o Supplier's current quality records supported by documented qualitative and quantitative information that can be objectively evaluated.
- o Supplier's technical and quality capability as determined by a direct evaluation of their facilities and personnel and the implementation of his QA program.

7.4 <u>Bid Evaluation</u>

7.4.1 Extent of Conformance

Bid evaluation will determine the extent of conformance to the procurement documents. This evaluation will be performed by individuals or organizations designated to evaluate the following subjects, as applicable to the type of procurement:

- o Technical considerations.
- o QA requirements.
- o Supplier's personnel.
- o Supplier's production capabilities.
- o Supplier's past performance.
- o Alternates.
- o Exceptions.

7.4.2 <u>Resolution of Unacceptable Quality Assurance Conditions</u>

Before the award of the contract, the purchaser will resolve or obtain commitments to resolve unacceptable quality assurance conditions resulting from the bid evaluation.

7.5 <u>Supplier Performance Evaluation</u>

7.5.1 Interface Measures

The purchaser of items and services will establish measures to interface with the supplier. The measures will include the following:

 Documentation of the understanding between purchaser and supplier of the provisions and specifications of the procurement documents;

- o Requiring the supplier to identify planning techniques and processes to be utilized in fulfilling procurement document requirements.
- o Reviewing supplier documents that are generated or processed during activities fulfilling procurement document requirements.
- o Identifying and processing necessary change information. Measures to control changes in procurement documents will be established, implemented and documented in accordance with the requirements of this QA Plan.
- o Establishing methods of document information exchange between purchaser and supplier.

7.5.2 <u>Verification Measures</u>.

7.5.2.1 <u>Extent of Verification</u>

The purchaser of items will establish measures to verify supplier's performance, as deemed necessary by F&S. The measures will establish the extent of source surveillance and inspection activities.

When F&S utilizes a Participating Organization or NTS Support Contractor for Yucca Mountain Project activities for which they are responsible, F&S will initiate a request to YMPO to conduct a YMPO surveillance of the organization performing the work. The surveillance will be conducted to determine that the item or activity is being produced or performed in accordance with F&S requirements. These surveillances may utilize F&S personnel as technical advisors.

The extent of verification activities, including planning, will be a function of the relative importance, complexity, and quantity of the item or services procured and the supplier's quality performance. Verification activities will be accomplished by qualified personnel assigned to check, inspect, audit, or witness the supplier's activities. These verification activities will be conducted as early as practicable. However, the purchaser's verification activities will not relieve the supplier of his responsibilities for verification of quality achievement.

7.5.2.2 <u>Record of Verification Activities</u>

Activities performed to verify conformance to requirements of procurement documents will be recorded. Source surveillances and inspections, audits, receiving inspections, nonconformances, dispositions, waivers, and corrective actions will be documented. These completed documents will be considered QA records and will be controlled in accordance with Section 17.0 of the Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP).

The purchaser will ensure that this documentation is evaluated to determine the supplier's QA program effectiveness.

7.6 <u>Control of Documents Generated by Suppliers</u>

Documents that are generated by suppliers will be controlled, handled, and approved in accordance with documented procedures. Means will be implemented to ensure that the submittal of these documents is accomplished in accordance with the procurement document requirements. These measures will provide for the acquisition, processing, and recorded evaluation of technical, inspection, and test data against acceptance criteria.

7.7 <u>Acceptance_of_Item_or_Service</u>

7.7.1 <u>Methods for Acceptance</u>

Methods will be established for the acceptance of an item or service being furnished by the supplier. Prior to offering the item or service for acceptance, the supplier will verify that the item or service being furnished complies with the procurement requirements.

Purchaser methods used to accept an item or related service from a supplier will be either a supplier Certificate or Conformance, a source verification, a receiving inspection or post-installation test at the facility site, or a combination thereof. Requirements applicable to these methods of acceptance are listed below:

7.7.2 <u>Certificate of Conformance</u>

When a Certificate of Conformance is used, the following minimum criteria shall be met:

- o The certificate will identify the purchased material or equipment, such as by the purchase order number.
- o The certificate will identify the specific procurement requirements met by the purchased material or equipment, such as codes, standards, or other specifications. This may be accomplished by including a list of the specific requirements or by providing, at the point of receipt, a copy of the purchase order and the procurement specifications or drawings, together with a suitable certificate. The procurement requirements identified shall include approved changes, waivers, or deviations applicable to the subject material or equipment.
- o The certificate will identify any procurement requirements that have not been met, together with an explanation and the means by which to resolve the nonconformance.
- o The certificate will be attested to by a person who is responsible for this QA function and whose function and position are described in the purchaser's or supplier's QA program.
- o The certificate system, including the procedures to be followed in filling out a certificate and the administrative procedures for the review and approval of the certificates, will be described in the purchaser's or supplier's QA program.
- o Means will be provided to verify the validity of supplier certificates and the effectiveness of the certification system, such as during the performance of audits of the supplier or independent inspection or test of the items. Such verification will be conducted by the purchaser at intervals commensurate with the supplier's past quality performance.

7.7.3 <u>Source Verification</u>

If source verification is used, then it will be performed at intervals that are consistent with the importance and complexity of the item or service, and it will be implemented to monitor, witness, or observe activities. Source verification will be implemented in accordance with plans to perform inspections, examinations, or test at predetermined points. Upon purchaser acceptance of source verification, documented evidence of acceptance will be furnished to the receiving destination of the item, to the purchaser, and to the supplier.

7.7.4 <u>Receiving Inspection</u>

When receiving inspection is used, purchased items will be inspected as necessary to verify their conformance to specified requirements, by taking into account source verification and audit documentation and the demonstrated quality performance of the Receiving inspection will be performed in accordance supplier. with established procedures and inspection instructions to verify by objective evidence such features as proper configuration; identification; dimensional, physical, and other characteristics; freedom from shipping damage; and cleanliness. Receiving inspection will be coordinated with review of supplier documentation when procurement documents require such documentation to be furnished prior to receiving inspection. Receiving inspections associated with engineered items shall be planned, performed and documented in accordance with the requirements specified in Section 10.0, Para. 10.2.1, 10.4, 10.4.1, 10.6.1, 10.9 and 10.9.1 of this document. Personnel selected to receipt inspection activities shall have the experience or training commensurate with the scope, complexity, or special nature of the activities. When required, personnel shall also be indoctrinated as to the technical objectives and requirements of the applicable codes and standards and the QA program elements that are applicable.

7.7.5 <u>Post-Installation Testing</u>

When post-installation testing is used, post-installation test requirements and acceptance documentation will be established mutually by both the purchaser and the supplier.

7.8 <u>Acceptance of Services Only</u>

In certain cases involving procurement of services only, such as third-party inspections, engineering and consulting; and installation, repair, overhaul, or maintenance work, the purchaser will accept the service by any or any combination of the following methods:

- o Technical verification of data produced.
- o Surveillance, audit, or both, with regard to the activity.
- Review of objective evidence for conformance to the procurement document requirements such as certifications, stress reports, etc.

7.9 <u>Control of Supplier Nonconformances</u>

The purchaser and supplier will establish and document methods for disposition of items and services that do not meet procurement document requirements. These methods will include the following provisions:

- 7.9.1 Provisions for evaluation of nonconforming items.
- 7.9.2 Provisions for submittal of nonconformance notice to purchaser by supplier as directed by the purchaser. These submittals will include disposition (e.g., use-as-is or repair) and technical justification that are recommended by the supplier. Nonconformances to the procurement requirements or purchaser approved documents that consist of one or more of the items listed below will be submitted to the purchaser. Approval of the recommended disposition will be in accordance with documented procedures.
 - o Technical or material requirement is violated.
 - Requirement in supplier documents, which has been approved by the purchaser, is violated.
 - Nonconformance cannot be corrected by continuation of the original manufacturing process or by rework.
 - The item does not conform to the original requirement even though the item can be restored to a condition such that the capability of the item to function is unimpaired.
- 7.9.3 Provisions for purchaser disposition of supplier recommendation.
- 7.9.4 Provisions for verification of the implementation of the disposition.
- 7.9.5 Provisions for maintenance of records of nonconformances that are submitted by the Supplier.

7.10 <u>Commercial-Grade Items</u>

7.10.1 <u>Alternatives</u>

If a design requires commercial-grade items, then the following requirements are an acceptable alternative to other requirements of this section except as noted in paragraph 7.10.1.2 below and the requirements of Section 4.0 of this QAPP. If a scientific investigation requires commercial-grade items, they may be controlled by the use of the following requirements (except Para. 7.10.1.1) and Section 4.0 of this QAPP.

7.10.1.1 Identification of Commercial-Grade Items

Where the commercial-grade item is to be used as an integral part of the designed facility, it will be identified in an approved design or design output document. An alternate commercial-grade item may be supplied if the cognizant organization provides verification that the alternate commercialgrade item will perform the intended function and will meet the requirements applicable to both the replaced item and its application.

7.10.1.2 <u>Source Evaluation and Selection</u>

Source evaluation and selection will be in accordance with Paragraph 7.3, if it is determined necessary by the purchaser based on the complexity of the item and importance to safety.

7.10.1.3 <u>Purchase Order</u>

Commercial-grade items will be identified in the purchase order by the manufacturer's published product description (e.g., the catalog number).

7.10.1.4 Receipt of Commercial-Grade Item

2

After receipt of a commercial-grade item, the purchaser will determine that the following conditions have been met:

- o Damage was not sustained during shipment.
- o The item received was the item ordered.
- o Inspection, testing, or both, is accomplished by the purchaser, in accordance with written procedures, to ensure conformance with the manufacturer's published requirements. If applicable, acceptance of the item may be accomplished via the calibration program in accordance with the requirements of Section 12.0 of this QA Program Plan.
- o Documentation, as applicable to the item, was received and is acceptable.

8.0 IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL OF ITEMS, SAMPLES AND DATA

This section provides the requirements for the identification and control of items, samples and data and consists of three separate parts. The requirements for items are stated in part A of NNWSI/88-9, Section VIII; in part B for samples; and part C for data resulting from scientific investigations. Part A applies to activities related to the engineered items and does not apply to scientific investigations. Parts B and C apply to scientific investigation activities and do not apply to engineered items. At this time, identification and control of samples does not apply to F&S.

IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL OF ITEMS

8.1 <u>Identification</u> Identification requirements will be imposed, as appropriate, on suppliers and subcontractors, by inclusion in technical specifications and/or drawings.

Items shall be identified to assure that only correct and accepted items are used or installed. The identification shall be verified prior to installation or use. Identification shall be maintained either on the item, their containers, or in documents traceable to the item from receipt until installed.

Items of production (batch, lot, component, part) shall be identified from the initial receipt and fabrication of the items up to and including installation and use. This identification shall relate an item to an applicable design or other pertinent specifying document.

- 8.1.1 Physical identification shall be used to the maximum extent possible. Where physical identification on the item is either impracticable or insufficient, physical separation, procedural control, or other appropriate means shall be employed.
- 8.1.2 Identification markings, when used, shall be applied using materials and methods which provide a clear and legible identification and do not detrimentally affect the function or service life of the item. Markings shall be transferred to each part of an identified item when subdivided and shall not be obliterated or hidden by surface treatment or coatings unless other means of identification are substituted.
- 8.1.3 When specified by codes, standards or specification that include specific identification or traceability requirements (such as identification or traceability of the item to applicable specification and grade of material; heat, batch, lot, part or serial number; or specified inspection, test or other records) the program shall be designed to provide such identification and traceability control.

- 8.1.4 Where specified, items having limited calendar or operating life or cycles shall be identified and controlled to preclude use of items whose shelf life or operating life has expired.
- Control Provisions shall be made for the control of item 8.2 identification consistent with the planned duration and condition of storage, such as: (1) provisions for maintenance or replacement of markings and identification records due to damage during handling or aging; (2) protection of identification on items subject to excessive deterioration due to environmental exposure; (3) provisions for updating existing facility records.

Identification and Control of Data

8.3 Identification

> Data generated from a Yucca Mountain Project (YMP) scientific investigation shall be identified to assist in the determination of its correct use. Identification of such data shall be provided in all documents, information systems, or both, in which such data appear.

> The identification of Yucca Mountain Project data shall include a reference to the origin of the data (task, test, experiment, report, publication, etc.) and an indication of the Quality Assurance Level assigned to the activity which produced the data.

Control measures shall be established and implemented to assure that Yucca Mountain Project data are properly identified. These measures shall include verification of the identification of such data prior to release for use.

Where data are the results of the efforts of more than one organization, procedures describing the organizational responsibilities for that data shall be developed and implemented. The documentation resulting from the scientific investigation involving more than one organization shall be annotated to show which organization produced what portion of the data.

8.4

9.0 CONTROL OF PROCESSES

9.1 <u>General Requirements</u>

The requirements of this section apply to engineered items and scientific investigations for process control. The requirements for special processes apply to engineered items only. Measures will be established to ensure that processes that affect quality of items or services are controlled either by instruction, procedures, Special processes that control or or other appropriate means. verify quality, such as those used in welding, heat treating and nondestructive examination will be accomplished by qualified personnel using qualified procedures in accordance with applicable codes, standards, specifications, criteria and other special requirements. These requirements will be imposed, as appropriate, on suppliers and subcontractors by inclusion in technical specifications and/or drawings.

- 9.2 <u>Process Control</u> All processes shall be controlled by instructions, procedures, drawings, checklists, travelers, or other appropriate means. These means shall ensure that process parameters are controlled and that specified environmental conditions are maintained.
- 9.2.1 <u>Identification of Special Processes</u> It is the responsibility of Fenix & Scisson to identify which portions of its activities involve the use of special processes. A special process is a process in which the results are highly dependent on either the control of the process or the operator's skill, or both, and in which the specified quality cannot be readily determined by inspection or testing of the item.
- 9.2.1.1 <u>Qualification Requirements</u> The necessary requirements for qualifications of personnel, procedures, or equipment shall be specified or referenced in the procedures or instructions either for processes that are not covered by existing codes and standards or for processes where the quality requirements for an item or test exceed those of existing codes or standards.

Conditions necessary for accomplishment of the special process shall be included in procedures or instructions. These conditions shall include proper equipment, controlled parameters of the special process and calibration requirements.

9.2.2.2 <u>Applicable Codes and Standards</u> The requirements of applicable codes and standards, including acceptance criteria for the special process, shall be specified or referenced in the procedures on instructions.

9-1

9.2.2 <u>Qualification of Special Process Procedures</u>

<u>Program for Qualification</u> Procedures shall be qualified in accordance with applicable codes, standards or other specifications. The program for qualification of procedures shall be specified in documents prepared by F&S. F&S QA will provide appropriate reviews to assure compliance with these requirements.

9.2.3 <u>Qualification of Personnel Performing Special Processes</u>

- 9.2.3.1 <u>Training, Qualification, and Certification</u> Personnel shall be trained, qualified, and certified in accordance with written procedures. The training and qualification, and certification shall be the responsibility of the organization that is performing the work. These procedures shall be reviewed by F&S Quality Assurance (QA) for compliance with requirements.
- 9.2.3.2 <u>Procedures</u> Qualification shall utilize the actual working procedure, to the extent possible.
- 9.2.3.3 <u>Personnel Qualification Requirements</u> Qualification of personnel shall incorporate the personnel qualification requirements of the applicable codes, standards, or specifications.
- 9.2.4 Special Process Equipment

Special process equipment shall be checked out, qualified, and certified in accordance with specified requirements. These requirements shall implement the requirements of applicable codes, standards, and specifications. Equipment checkout, qualification, and certification shall be the responsibility of the organization performing the work. F&S QA shall review the procedures for qualification of equipment for compliance with requirements.

9.2.5 Special Process Records

Records shall be maintained for the currently qualified personnel, procedures, and equipment of each special process and the requirements for maintenance of these records shall be specified. Special process verification methods and criteria shall also be documented and retained.

10.0 INSPECTION

10.1 <u>General_Requirements</u>

Measures will be established by Fenix & Scisson to provide Drilling and Mining Inspection required to verify conformance of an item or activity to specified requirements. These measures will provide for: (1) inspections to be performed in accordance with written procedures by qualified personnel who did not perform the work being evaluated; (2) criteria for determining when inspections are required or how and when inspections are to be performed; (3) sampling methodology, if used; (4) the identification of mandatory hold points; and (5) identification of inspections requiring special expertise. The results of all inspection activities will be documented by the inspecting organization. The requirements of this section apply to engineered items and do not apply to scientific investigation activities.

10.2 <u>Personnel</u>

10.2.1 <u>Reporting Independence of Personnel</u>

Inspection will be performed by personnel who are part of the Yucca Mountain Project and do not report directly to the immediate supervisor(s) who is/are responsible for performing the activity being inspected. The work will not be performed by F&S; it will be performed by REECo or their subcontractor(s). Qualified individuals from outside of the QA organization will be utilized because special Mining and Drilling expertise is necessary. Inspection personnel shall have sufficient authority, access to work areas, and organizational freedom to (1) identify quality problems; (2) initiate, recommend, or provide solutions to quality problems through designated channels; (3) verify implementation of solutions; and (4) assure that further processing, delivery, installation or use is controlled until proper disposition of a nonconformance, deficiency, or unsatisfactory condition has F&S Quality Assurance shall overview and monitor the occurred. inspection activity.

10.2.2 <u>Qualification</u>

Each person who verifies conformance of work activities for purposes of acceptance will be qualified to perform the assigned inspections or tests. The qualification of personnel performing inspection activities will be certified in writing. Personnel selected to perform inspection activities will have the experience or training commensurate with the scope, complexity, or special nature of the activities. Personnel will also be indoctrinated as to the technical objectives and requirements of the applicable codes and standards and the QA elements that are to be employed. Specific requirements for qualification of inspection personnel are included in Appendix C.

10.3 Inspection Hold Points

Mandatory inspection or witness hold-points will be established as necessary. When such hold or witness points are established, work may not proceed without the specific consent of the responsible representative. These hold or witness points will be indicated in appropriate documents controlling the activity. Consent to waive any specified hold or witness point will be documented before work can be continued beyond the designated hold or witness point.

10.4 Inspection Planning

Planning for inspection activities will be accomplished and documented via inspection procedures, instructions, or checklists. Inspection procedures, instructions, or checklists shall provide for the following:

- o Identification of characteristics and activities to be inspected.
- o A description of the method of inspection.
- o Identification of the individuals or groups responsible for performing the inspection operation.
- o Acceptance and rejection criteria.
- o Identification of required procedures, drawings, and specifications and revisions.
- o Recording inspector or data recorder and the results of the inspection operation.
- o Specifying necessary measuring and test equipment including accuracy requirements.

10.4.1 <u>Sampling</u>

When sampling is used to verify acceptability of a group of items, the sampling procedures shall be based on recognized standard practices.

10.5 <u>In-process Inspection</u>

Inspection of items in-process or under construction will be performed for work activities where necessary to verify quality. If inspection of processed items is impossible or disadvantageous, indirect control by monitoring of processing methods, equipment, and personnel will be provided.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

10.5.1 Combined Inspection and Monitoring

Where a combination of inspection and process monitoring methods is used, it will be performed in a systematic manner to ensure that the specified requirements for control of the process and quality of the item are being achieved throughout the duration of the process. Both inspection and process monitoring will be provided when other techniques cannot provide adequate control.

10.5.2 <u>Controls</u>

Where required, controls will be established and documented for the coordination and sequencing of activities at established inspection points during successive stages of the conducted process or construction.

10.6 Final Inspection

Final inspection will include a records review of the results and resolution of nonconformances identified by prior inspections. The final inspection will be planned to reach a conclusion regarding conformance of the item to specified requirements.

10.6.1 <u>Inspection Requirements</u>

Completed items will be inspected for completeness, markings, calibration, adjustments, protection from damage, or other characteristics as required to verify the item's quality and conformance to specified requirements. If not previously examined, then quality records will be examined for adequacy and completeness.

10.6.2 <u>Acceptance</u>

The item's acceptance will be documented and approved by identified authorized personnel.

10.6.3 Modifications, Repairs, or Replacements

Modifications, repairs, or replacements of items performed subsequent to final inspection will require reinspection or retests, as appropriate, to verify acceptability.

10.7 <u>In-service Inspection</u>

F&S is not responsible for in-service inspection.

10.8 **Qualification Requirements**

Appendix C of this document defines the requirements for the qualification for the inspection personnel who perform inspection to verify conformance to specified requirements for the purpose of acceptance.

10.9 <u>Records</u>

The following are requirements for inspection records which will be retained in accordance with Section 17 of this QAPP.

10.10 Inspection Records

As a minimum, inspection records will identify the following:

- o Item or activity.
- o The date of the inspection.
- o Name of individual performing the inspection.
- o Name or names of personnel contacted during the inspection.
- o A description of the type of observation (method of inspection).
- o Inspection criteria including identification of drawing, specification, etc. (and applicable revision).
- o Equipment used during the inspection.
- o Evidence as to the acceptability of the results.
- o Acceptance Statement.
- o References to information on action taken in connection with conditions adverse to quality, nonconformances and/or actions taken to resolve any discrepancies.

10.10.1 <u>Personnel Qualification Records</u>

Records of personnel qualification will be established and maintained by the employer. The actual examinations used to qualify personnel will also be retained as part of the record files.

11.0 <u>TEST_CONTROL</u>

11.1 <u>General Discussion</u>

Tests required to verify conformance of an item to specified requirements and to demonstrate that items will perform satisfactorily in service will be planned and executed. Characteristics to be tested and test methods to be employed will be specified. The test procedures will be implemented by trained and appropriately qualified personnel. The requirements of this section apply to engineered items and do not apply to scientific investigation activities. Test control requirements will be imposed, as appropriate on suppliers and subcontractors by inclusion in Technical Specifications and/or drawings.

11.2 <u>Test Requirements</u>

Test requirements and acceptance or rejection criteria, including required levels of precision and accuracy, will be provided or approved by the organization responsible for the design of the items to be tested, unless otherwise designated. Required tests, including, as appropriate, prototype qualification tests, production tests, proof tests prior to installation, construction tests, pre-operational tests, and operational tests will be controlled. Test requirements and acceptance or rejection criteria will be based upon specified requirements contained in applicable design or other pertinent technical documents.

- 11.3 <u>Test Procedures</u>
- 11.3.1 <u>Test Instructions, Procedures and Drawings</u> Instructions, procedures, and drawings for tests shall be prepared in accordance with the requirements of Section 5 of this document. Test procedures or instructions shall contain criteria for determining when a test is required and how the test is performed.
- 11.3.2 <u>Test Prerequisites</u> Test procedures shall include or reference test objectives and provisions for assuring that prerequisites for the given test have been met, that adequate instrumentation is available and used, that necessary monitoring is performed, and that suitable environmental conditions are maintained. Prerequisites shall include the following, as applicable: (1) calibrated instrumentation, (2) appropriate equipment, (3) completeness of item to be tested, (4) trained or appropriately qualified personnel, (5) condition of test equipment and the item to be tested, (6) suitable and controlled environmental conditions, and (7) provisions for data acquisition and storage.

- 11.3.3 <u>Review of Procedures</u> Test plans and procedures shall be reviewed in accordance with the verification requirements defined in Paragraph 3.2.4 of Section 3 of this document. They shall prescribe mandatory inspection hold points (as required), methods of documenting test data and results, and methods of data analysis.
- 11.3.4 <u>Potential Sources of Error</u> The potential sources of uncertainty and error in test procedures which must be controlled and measured to assure that tests are well controlled shall be identified.
- 11.3.5 <u>Alternatives</u> In lieu of specifically prepared written test procedures, appropriate sections of related documents, such as American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) methods, Supplier manuals, equipment maintenance instructions, or approved drawings or travelers with acceptance criteria, can be used. Such documents shall include adequate instructions to assure the required quality of work.
- 11.4. <u>Test Results</u>

Test results shall be documented and their conformance with acceptance criteria evaluated by a responsible authority to assure that test requirements have been satisfied.

11.5. <u>Test_Records</u>

Test records shall, as a minimum, identify the following:

- o Item tested.
- o Date of test.
- o Tester or data recorder identification.
- o Type of observation.
- o Results and acceptability.
- o Action taken in connection with any deviations noted.
- o Person evaluating results.

11-2

12.0 CONTROL OF MEASURING AND TEST EQUIPMENT

12.1 <u>General</u>

12.1.1 Maintaining Accuracy of Equipment

Measures will be established to ensure that tools, gages, instruments, and other measuring and test equipment used in activities that affect quality are properly controlled, calibrated, and adjusted at specified periods to maintain accuracy within necessary limits.

12.1.2 Scope of Control Program

The scope of control of F&S Measuring and Test Equipment includes those items necessary to conduct Mining and Drilling Inspections. The methodology for accomplishing this follows: Standard F&S Measuring and Test Equipment will be calibrated by REECo. Quality Assurance will ensure that equipment is provided to REECo for calibration. If F&S utilizes an outside calibration lab, the applicable requirements of this document will be imposed. This will include all measuring and test equipment or systems used to calibrate, measure, gage, test or inspect either to control or acquire data to verify conformance to a specified requirement, or to establish characteristics or values not previously known.

12.1.3 <u>Description of Responsibilities</u>

The responsibilities of F&S and REECo will be described in an NNWSI Project Administrative Procedure for the establishment, implementation and assurance that the calibration program is effective.

12.2 <u>Purpose of Equipment</u>

Measuring and test equipment are devices or systems used to calibrate, measure, gage, test, or inspect either to control or to acquire data to verify conformance to a specified requirement, or to establish characteristics or values not previously known.

Specific Requirements for control of measuring and test equipment are listed below:

12.2.1 Selection

Selection of measuring and test equipment will be controlled to assure that such equipment is of proper type, range, and accuracy to accomplish the function of determining conformance to specified tolerance requirements. The type, range, and accuracy of a measuring device shall be documented in test and inspection documents. Each device will have a unique identification number. This number will be recorded on the data sheet, log, etc., along with the measurement taken, to ensure traceability of the measurement to the device that was used to take the measurement.

12.2.2 <u>Calibration</u>

Measuring and test equipment will be calibrated against certified equipment having known valid relationships to the National Bureau of Standards or other nationally recognized standards and will be calibrated, adjusted, and maintained at prescribed intervals. If no nationally recognized standards exist, the basis for calibration will be documented. Calibrating standards shall have equal or greater accuracy than equipment being calibrated. Calibrating standards with the same accuracy may be used if it can be shown to be adequate for the requirements and the basis of acceptance is documented and authorized by responsible management. The management authorized to perform this function shall be identified.

12.2.3 <u>Control</u>

The method and interval of calibration for each item will be defined, based on the type of equipment, stability characteristics, required accuracy, precision, intended use, degree of usage and other conditions that affect measurement control. Measuring and test equipment must be labeled, tagged, or otherwise documented in a fashion which indicates the due date of the next calibration and to provide traceability to calibration data. If measuring and test equipment is found to be out of calibration, an evaluation will be made and documented of the validity of previous results obtained and of the acceptability of items previously inspected, tested or data gathered since last calibration. Devices that are out of calibration will be tagged or segregated and will not be used until they have been recalibrated. If any measuring or test equipment is found to be out of calibration consistently, then it shall be repaired or replaced. A calibration will be performed when the accuracy of equipment is suspect.

12.2.4 <u>Commercial Devices</u>

Calibration and control measures are not required for rulers, tape measure, levels, and other devices, if normal commercial equipment provides adequate accuracy.

12.2.5 <u>Handling and Storage</u>

Measuring and test equipment will be handled properly and stored to maintain accuracy.

12.2.6 Records

Records will be maintained and equipment will be marked suitably to indicate calibration status. Calibration records will identify the calibration procedure (including revision) utilized to perform the calibration.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

13.0 <u>HANDLING. STORAGE AND SHIPPING</u>

13.1 <u>General Requirements</u>

Measures will be established to control the packaging, handling, storage, shipping, cleaning, and preservation of material and equipment to prevent damage, loss or deterioration. Handling, storage and shipping of items will be conducted in accordance with established work and inspection or instructions, drawings, specifications, shipment instructions, or other pertinent documents or procedures specified for use in conducting the activity. Specific requirements are listed below. Handling, storage and shipping requirements will be imposed, as appropriate, on suppliers and subcontractors by inclusion in Technical Specifications and/or drawings.

13.1.1 General Equipment and Protective Environments

When required for particular items, special equipment (e.g., containers, shock absorbers, and accelerometers) and special protective environments (e.g., and inert gas atmosphere, specific moisture content levels, and temperature levels) shall be specified and provided, and their existence shall be verified.

13.1.2 Specific Procedures

When they are required for critical, sensitive, perishable, or exceptionally expensive articles, specific procedures for handling, storage, packaging, shipping, and preservation shall be used.

13.1.3 Inspection and Testing of Special Tools and Equipment

Special handling tools and equipment shall be utilized and controlled as necessary to ensure safe and adequate handling. Special handling tools and equipment shall be inspected and tested in accordance with procedures and at specified time intervals to verify that the tools and equipment are maintained adequately.

13.1.4 Operators of Special Equipment

Operators of special handling and lifting equipment shall be experienced or trained to use the equipment.

13.1.5 Marking and Labeling

Instructions for marking and labeling for packaging, shipment, handling, and storage of items shall be established as necessary to adequately identify, maintain, and preserve the item, including indication of the presence of special environments or the need for special controls.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

14.0 INSPECTION, TEST AND OPERATING STATUS

14.1 <u>Indication of Status</u>

The requirements of this section apply to engineered items and do not apply to scientific investigations. The status of inspection and test activities will be identified either on the items or in documents traceable to the items where it is necessary to assure that required inspections and tests are performed and to assure that items which have not passed the required inspections and tests are not inadvertently installed, used, or operated. F&S is not responsible for indicating the operating status of systems and components at the facility.

14.2 <u>Methods of Indicating Status</u>

Status will be maintained through indicators, such as physical location and tags, markings, travelers, stamps, inspection records, or the other suitable means. Procedures describing status indicators and their use will contain actual examples of each type indicator.

14.3 Application and Removal of Status Indicators

The authority for application and removal of status indicating tags, markings, labels, and stamps will be specified in procedures governing inspection.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

15.0 <u>CONTROL OF NONCONFORMING ITEMS</u>

15.1 <u>General Requirements</u>

Measures will be established to control items that do not conform to requirements to prevent their inadvertent installation or use. These measures will include documented procedures for identification, documentation, evaluation, segregation (when practical), disposition, and notification to affected organizations. All personnel involved in Yucca Mountain Project activities are responsible for reporting nonconformances in accordance with their established nonconformance control procedures. These procedures will be consistent with the minimum requirements listed below.

- 15.1.1 Identification of nonconforming items will be made by marking, tagging or other methods that will not adversely affect the end use of the item. The identification will be legible, easily recognizable, and will contain a nonconformance report number. The nonconformance report number will be a sequential number preceded by an organizational acronym (e.g., F&S-N-0001). If tags are used, they will be securely attached to avoid loss during handling.
- 15.1.2 If identification of each nonconforming item is not practical, the container, package or segregated storage area, as appropriate, will be identified.

15.1.3 <u>Conditional Release</u>

Work on the nonconforming item will be stopped until completion of the action specified in the Nonconformance Report (NCR) disposition. If only a specific portion of the item is in nonconformance, then that specific area will be identified and work may proceed on the remaining areas. If work on a nonconforming item must be continued (conditional release) prior to implementation of the disposition, the Yucca Mountain Project Office (YMPO) will approve such continuance. Requests for conditional releases on nonconforming items will include documented justification that the following conditions are met:

- o The nonconforming item can be removed or corrected at a later date without damage to, or contamination of the associated permanent facility equipment or structures.
- o The nonconforming item remains accessible for inspection.

15-1

- The nonconforming item is evaluated and limitations(s) for use of the equipment or system is established.
- Traceability and identification of the nonconforming item are maintained.

15.1.4 Logging

F&S will maintain a nonconformance control log to track nonconforming items. This log will contain the following information:

- 15.1.4.1 The nonconformance report number.
- 15.1.4.2 A brief description of the nonconforming condition.
- 15.1.4.3 Identification of the person or organization responsible for determining and carrying out the nonconformance disposition.
- 15.1.4.4 The status of each nonconformance report (open or closed).
- 15.1.5 <u>Segregation</u>
- 15.1.5.1 When practical, nonconforming items will be segregated by placing them in a clearly identified and designated hold area until they are dispositioned properly.
- 15.1.5.2 When segregation is impractical or impossible because of physical conditions, such as size, weight, or access limitations, other precautions will be employed to preclude inadvertent use of a nonconforming item.
- 15.1.6 Disposition
- 15.1.6.1 Nonconforming characteristics will be reviewed and recommended dispositions of nonconforming items will be proposed and approved in accordance with documented procedures. Further processing, delivery, installation, or use of a nonconforming item will be controlled pending an evaluation and an approved disposition by authorized personnel. Distribution of nonconformance documentation will be to all affected organizations.
- 15.1.6.2 The responsibility and authority for the evaluation, disposition, and close-out of nonconforming items will be defined and documented. Those personnel assigned signature approval of the disposition will be identified. Quality Assurance (QA) responsibilities relating to nonconformances will be described.
- 15.1.6.3 Personnel performing evaluations to determine a disposition will have demonstrated competence in the specific area that they are evaluating, have an adequate understanding of the requirements and have access to pertinent background information.
- 15.1.6.4 The person or organization assigned the responsibility of dispositioning the NCR will ensure the following:
 - Nonconformance documentation adequately identifies and describes the nonconformance.

UNCONTROLLI

l

- Appropriate justification for the disposition has been documented. In the case of use-as-is or repair dispositions, technical justification is required. The as-built records, if such records are required, will reflect the accepted deviation.
- o The disposition has referenced any approved design documents, procedures, plans, work orders, etc., that are to be used for the correction of the nonconforming condition.
- The technical details for correction of the nonconforming condition are adequate for the recommended disposition.
- o If continuance has been requested, justification for the activity to continue has been documented and approved by the appropriate YMPO Branch Chief and the YMPO PQM.
- o The disposition complies with existing design documents, test plans or procedures, reports, and regulatory requirements.
- o If a change to reflect the as-built condition is appropriate, then the disposition addresses action to change the existing design documents, test plans or procedures, reports, etc. Any documents changed shall also be cross referenced on the NCR.
- o Disposition has identified and documented the correction as repair, rework, use-as-is, or reject/scrap.
- o Disposition has identified the people or organization responsible to implement the disposition.
- 15.1.6.5 In those cases where the responsible organization proposes a disposition of "repair", YMPO will approve the proposed disposition prior to implementation. In the case of proposed disposition of "use-as-is", the NCR will be forwarded to YMPO for approval after all actions necessary to support technical justification of the disposition have been completed. The appropriate YMPO Branch Chief and the YMPO PQM will approve NCR dispositions involving "repair" or "use-as-is" determinations and conditional release recommendations.
- 15.1.7 The action taken to correct the nonconforming item will be verified and documented. Repaired or reworked items will be re-examined in accordance with applicable procedures and with the original acceptance criteria, unless the nonconforming item disposition has established alternate acceptance criteria.
- 15.1.8 Internal interfaces between organizational units and external interfaces between NNWSI Project participants will be clearly described.

15.2 <u>Repetitive Nonconformances</u>

When repetitive or recurring nonconforming conditions are identified, an evaluation will be made as to whether or not further programmatic corrective action is warranted to preclude repetition. This corrective action will be beyond the scope of the action taken for the disposition on the existing NCRs and will be processed in accordance with corrective action procedures developed by F&S.

15.3 <u>Trending</u>

Nonconformance reports will be periodically analyzed by F&S to show quality trends and to help identify root causes of nonconformances. Results will be reported to upper management for review and assessment.

15.4 Distribution of Documents

Copies of nonconformance reports for items will be sent to the YMPO PQM and the SAIC/T&MSS Project QA Department (QA Engineering Division Manager) by the originating organization upon issuance and upon closure. The original nonconformance reports will be sent to the YMPO for approval when required by Paragraph 15.1.6.5 of this section.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

16.0 CORRECTIVE ACTION

16.1 The corrective action system will ensure that significant conditions adverse or potentially adverse to quality are identified promptly and corrected as soon as practical.

16.1.1 <u>Significant Adverse Conditions</u>

For significant conditions adverse to quality, the identification, cause, and corrective action taken to preclude recurrence shall be documented and reported to immediate management and upper levels of management for review and assessment. A significant condition adverse to quality is one which, if not corrected, could have a serious effect on safety or operability. Significant conditions include, but are not limited to breakdowns in the Quality Assurance program and repetitive nonconformances. Upon discovering or receiving notification that a significant condition adverse to quality or unusual occurrence exists, F&S shall ensure that:

- Immediate actions have been taken to remedy the specific condition(s).
- o Causative factors have been determined.
- o Controls have been reviewed, implemented, monitored and revised, if necessary.
- Affected managers at all levels have been notified of adverse conditions(s) and of lessons to be learned to improve conditions or avoid similar occurrences.

16.1.2 Follow-Up Action

F&S QA shall document concurrence of the adequacy of proposed corrective actions to assure that QA requirements will be satisfied. Follow-up action shall be taken by F&S QA to verify proper implementation of this corrective action and to close out the corrective action. The organization responsible for implementing the corrective action shall assure that the corrective action is completed in a timely manner.

- 16.1.3 Corrective action reports will be periodically analyzed by F&S QA to show quality trends. Results will be reported to upper management for review and assessment.
- 16.2 Copies of corrective action reports will be sent to the SAIC/T&MSS Project QA Department (QA Engineering Division Manager) by F&S upon issuance and closure.

WUNTROLLED

17.0 QUALITY ASSURANCE RECORDS

- 17.1 Records that furnish documentary evidence of quality will be specified, prepared, and maintained in accordance with NNWSI Project Administrative Procedures. This will include the requirements that all documents be legible, identifiable, and retrievable.
- 17.1.1 A document or other item is not considered to be a Quality Assurance Record until it satisfies the definition of a Quality Assurance Record as defined below.

The term records, used throughout this section is to be interpreted as Quality Assurance Records. Quality Assurance Records include individual documents that have been executed, completed, and approved and that furnish evidence of the quality and completeness of data (including raw data), and activities affecting quality; documents prepared and maintained to demonstrate implementation of quality assurance programs (e.g., audit, surveillance, and inspec-tion reports); procurement documents; other documents, such as plans, correspondence, documentation of telecons, specifications, technical data, books, maps, papers, photographs, and data sheets; magnetic media; and other materials that provide data and document quality regardless of the physical form or characteristic. A completed record is a document that will either receive no more entries or whose revision would normally consist of the reissue of the document; and is signed and dated by the originator and, as applicable, by personnel authorized to approve the document. Records will be distributed, handled and controlled in accordance with written procedures. All records (including superseded records) shall be retained for the Yucca Mountain Project.

- 17.1.2 A Record System will be established by F&S, at the earliest practicable time consistent with the schedule for accomplishing work activities.
- 17.1.2.1 The Record System will be defined, implemented, and enforced in accordance with written procedures, instructions, or other documentation prepared in accordance with Section 5.0 of this document. The records management activities to be performed by F&S when processing QA records are detailed in the Yucca Mountain Project Administrative Procedures Manual.
- 17.1.2.2 Sufficient records will be specified, prepared and maintained to furnish documented evidence of activities that affect quality. The records will include at least the following: operating logs, the results of reviews, inspections, tests, audits, monitoring of work performance, and materials analyses. Also, the records will include closely related data such as qualifications of personnel, procedures and equipment. A list of typical QA records is contained in Appendix E.

1

- 17.1.2.3 Requirements and responsibilities for record transmittal, distribution, retention, maintenance, and disposition of QA records will be established and documented.
- 17.1.3 The procedure that defines the implementation of the record system for F&S will identify measures to be implemented for the preservation and safekeeping of the records before storage and for the prevention of delays between record completion and storage at the Project Record Center.
- 17.1.4 For purposes of record retention, all Yucca Mountain Project records are classified as lifetime records and are to be retained for the life of the project.
- 17.2 <u>Generation of Records</u>
- 17.2.1 The applicable design specifications, procurement documents, implementing procedures, operational procedures, or other documents will specify the records to be generated, supplied, or maintained by or for F&S.
- 17.2.1.1 Documents that are designated to become records will be legible, identifiable, accurate, complete, reproducible, microfilmable and appropriate to the work accomplished.
- 17.2.1.2 Documents that are designated to become records will be completed in accordance with the methods specified in the Yucca Mountain Project Administrative Procedures Manual.
- 17.3 <u>Validation of Records</u>
- 17.3.1 Documents will be considered valid records only if stamped, initialed, or signed and dated by authorized personnel or otherwise authenticated in accordance with approved procedures. These records may be originals or reproduced copies. Authentication may take the form of a statement by the responsible individual, or organization. Handwritten signatures are not required if the document is clearly identified as a statement by the reporting individual or organization.
- 17.3.2 F&S will maintain a list which contains the signature and initials of the personnel authorized to authenticate records.
- 17.4 <u>Receipt of Records</u>
- 17.4.1 F&S will designate a person or organization to be responsible for receiving the records. The designee will be responsible for organizing and implementing a system of receipt control of records for permanent and temporary storage in accordance with approved procedures. The receipt control system will be structured to permit a current and accurate assessment of the status of records during the receiving process. As a minimum, the receipt control system will include the following:

17-2

- o A method for designating the required records.
- o A method for identifying the records received.
- o Procedures for receipt and inspection of incoming records.
- A method for submittal of completed records to the storage facility without unnecessary delay.
- 17.4.2 The individual or organization responsible for receiving records will provide protection from damage, deterioration, or loss during the time that the records are in their possession.
- 17.5 <u>Records Identification</u>
- 17.5.1 Records or indexing systems or both will provide sufficient information to permit identification between the record and the items or activities to which it applies. Records will be clearly identified by a unique number or other designation which is directly traceable to controlling programmatic information (e.g., project, contract number, test number, preparing organization, author, date, title, subject, etc.). This unique identification number or other designation will not be repeated anywhere in the Yucca Mountain Project. The Yucca Mountain Project Office (YMPO) or its designee will review and approve the records identification system of all its contractors and subcon-tractors to ensure consistency.
- 17.5.2 The records will be indexed and the indexing system or systems will include, as a minimum, the location of the record within the records system or systems.
- 17.6 <u>Permanent Storage Facility</u>

Records will be controlled from the time they are completed until the time they are stored in a permanent storage facility. Temporary storage, preservation, safekeeping, and retrievability of completed records will be in accordance with the requirements applicable to the permanent storage of records. The use of dual storage facilities is an acceptable alternative to a single fire-rated, environmentally controlled facility.

- 17.6.1 The records will be stored in a predetermined location or locations that meet the requirements of applicable standards, codes, and regulatory agencies.
- 17.6.2 Before the records are stored, a written storage procedure will be prepared and responsibility assigned for enforcing the requirements of that procedure. As a minimum, this procedure will include the following:

- o A description of the storage facility.
- o The filing system to be used.
- o The method for verifying that the records received are legible and are in agreement with the transmittal document.
- o The method of verifying that the records are those designated (see Paragraph 17.4.1 of this section).
- o The rules governing access to and control of the file.
- o The method for maintaining control of and accountability for records removed from the storage facility.
- o A method for filing supplemental information (see Paragraph 17.9 of this section).

17.7 <u>Preservation</u>

Records will be stored in a manner approved by F&S or other organizations responsible for storage. In order to preclude deterioration of the records, the following requirements will apply.

- o Provisions will be made in the storage arrangement to prevent damage from moisture, temperature, and pressure.
- Records will be firmly attached in binders or placed in folder or envelopes for storage in steel file cabinets or on shelving in containers.
- Provisions will be made for special processed records (e.g., radiographs, photographs, negatives, microfilm, magnetic material, etc.) to prevent damage from excessive light, stacking, electromagnetic fields, temperature, and humidity.

17.8 <u>Safekeeping</u>

- 17.8.1 Measures will be established to preclude the entry of unauthorized personnel in the storage area. These measures will guard against larceny and vandalism.
- 17.8.2 Measures will be taken to provide for replacement, restoration, for substitution of lost or damaged records. These measures will be accomplished within 90 days following determination that either a record has been lost or a record has been damaged to a degree it is no longer complete or legible.
- 17.9 <u>Corrected Information in Records</u>
- 17.9.1 Records may be corrected in accordance with written procedures that provide for appropriate review or approval by the originating organization.

- 17.9.2 The correction will include the date and the identification of the person authorized to issue such correction and will not obliterate the corrected data.
- 17.10 <u>Storage Facility</u>

F&S does not have the responsibility for the permanent records storage.

The following requirements apply to temporary record storage facilities:

- 17.10.1 Records will be stored in facilities constructed and maintained in a manner that minimizes the risk of damage or destruction from natural disasters, such as winds, floods, or fires; environmental conditions such as high and low temperatures and humidity; and infestation of insects, mold, or rodents.
- 17.10.2 F&S will utilize the alternate single facility. The following is an acceptable alternative to the criteria for a single facility:
 - o Two-hour fire rated Class B file containers that meet the requirements of NFPA 232-1975.
- 17.11 <u>Retrieval</u>
- 17.11.1 Storage systems will provide for retrieval of information in accordance with planned retrieval times based upon the record type. Final reports will contain a listing, by unique number or other designation, that enables prompt retrieval of all documents used to compile or evaluate the report. This listing will include, as a minimum, all referenced documents, peer review, or other review documents, computer codes, data sheets, procedures, and test plans. All documents referenced by final reports, except readily available references such as encyclopedias, dictionaries, engineers' handbooks, etc., will be retrievable from the Records Management System (RMS).
- 17.11.2 A list will be maintained that designates those personnel who will have access to the files.
- 17.11.3 Records maintained by F&S at their facility or other location (on an interim or other basis) will be accessible to the YMPO or its designated alternate.
- 17.12 Disposition
- 17.12.1 Records that are accumulated at various locations, prior to transfer, will be made accessible to the YMPO either directly or through the procuring organization.

- 17.12.2 The Custodian will inventory the submittals, acknowledge receipt, and process these records in accordance with this document or the procedures implementing this document.
- 17.13 Various regulatory agencies have requirements concerning records that are within the scope of this document. The most stringent requirements will be used to determine final dispositions.

18.0 AUDITS

- 18.1 Fenix & Scisson, Inc., activities will be subject to internal and external audits to assure that procedures and activities comply with the overall Quality Assurance program and to determine their The F&S Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP) effectiveness. includes a system of planned, periodic audits to provide an objective evaluation of the quality-related practices, procedures, instructions, activities, and items including the review of documents and records to ensure that the QA program is effective and properly implemented. The audits will be performed in accordance with written procedures using checklists by appropriately trained personnel who do not have direct responsibility for performing the activities being audited. Audit results will be doc-umented, reported to, and reviewed by responsible management. Tracking systems will be instituted for audit findings to assure that all findings are appropriately addressed and to identify quality trends. All deficiencies, nonconformances, and potential quality problems identified during the audit are to be documented and monitored until verification of effective corrective action is The audited organization shall describe in a formal report made. the corrective action to be taken to address findings, and shall submit the report to the auditing organization and their own responsible management. F&S will not conduct audits of other Participating Organizations or NTS Contractors; however, if invited, F&S will provide representatives to participate in YMPO audits. F&S will conduct internal (covering the entire QAPP on an annual basis) and external audits, if applicable, of activities under its direct control. These audits will be scheduled, planned, conducted, and reported as described in this document and NNWSI/88-9. External and internal audit schedules, and changes thereto, will be sent to the SAIC/T&MSS Project QA Department (QA Verification Division Manager). Audit schedules will identify the date of the audit, the activities to be audited, and the requirements to which the activities are to be audited.
- 18.2 Internal and External QA Audits will be scheduled in a manner that provides coverage and coordination with ongoing QA program activities. Audits will be scheduled at a frequency commensurate with the status and importance of the activity and shall be initiated early enough to assure effective QA. F&S shall perform or arrange for annual evaluations of suppliers. These evaluations shall be documented and shall take into account, where applicable, (1) review of supplier furnished documents and records such as certificates of conformance, nonconformance notices, and corrective actions; (2) results of previous source verifications, audits, and receiving inspections; (3) operating experience of identical or similar products furnished by the same supplier; and (4) results of audits from other sources, e.g., DOE/YMPO or NRC audits.

Applicable elements of F&S's QAPP will be audited at least annually or at least once during the life of the activity, whichever is scope of the audit will be established by: shorter. The considering the results of any previous audits, the nature and frequency of identified deficiencies, and any significant changes in personnel, organization, or in the QA Program. If more than one purchaser buys from a single supplier, a purchaser may either perform or arrange for an audit of the supplier on behalf of itself and other purchasers to reduce the number of external audits of the The scope of this audit shall satisfy the needs of all supplier. of the purchasers, and the audit report shall be distributed to all the purchasers for whom the audit was conducted. Nevertheless. each of the purchasers relying on the results of an audit performed on behalf of several purchasers remains individually responsible for the adequacy of the audit.

Elements of an external organization's QA program will be audited at least annually or once during the life of the activity, whichever is the shorter period, with the following exception: if the activity is less than four months in duration, an audit is not required to be performed unless an audit is necessary due to the complexity or importance of the activity being performed. The justification for not performing audits of suppliers whose activities are less than four months in duration shall be documented and approved by the Manager of QA prior to implementation of the activity. A copy of the documented justification shall be provided to the YMPO PQM.

F&S will develop and document an audit plan for each audit. This plan will identify the audit scope, requirements, audit personnel, activities to be audited, organizations to be audited, organizations to be notified, applicable documents, schedule, and checklists. F&S will select and assign auditors who are independent of any direct responsibility for the performance of the activities they are to audit. If the audit is to be an internal one, then the personnel who have direct responsibility for performing the activities to be audited will not be involved in the selection of the audit team. The Vice President and General Manager will select the Audit Team Leader for audits of the Quality Assurance Division. Audit personnel have sufficient authority and organizational freedom to make the audit process meaningful and effective. Appendix F defines the requirements for the qualification of audit personnel.

An audit team will be identified before the beginning of each audit. The team will consist of one or more auditors and will have an individual qualified as a lead auditor who organizes and directs the audit, coordinates the preparation and issuance of the audit report, and evaluates the responses. The audit team leader shall identify the technical specialists, if any, who will participate in the audit and include this information in the audit plan. Audit team members selected to participate in audits for technical consideration purposes shall have appropriate technical expertise or experience in the work being audited. Multidisciplinary audit

18-2

18.3

QAPP-002, REV. 6

teams shall be employed when activities to be audited involve more than a single technical area. The audit team leader will ensure that the audit team is prepared before the audit begins.

- 18.4 Audits will be performed in accordance with written procedures using checklists as early in the life of the activity as practical and will be continued at intervals consistent with the schedule for accomplishing the activity. Elements that have been selected for audit will be evaluated against specified requirements including a review of corrective actions taken on deficiencies in the area being audited that were identified during previous audits. Objec-tive evidence will be examined to the depth necessary to determine if these elements are adequate for effective control and to determine whether or not they are being implemented effectively. The audit results will be documented by audit personnel and will be reviewed by management having responsibility for the area being audited. Conditions that require prompt corrective action will be reported immediately to the management of the audited organization. Audit findings will be reviewed with the audited organization at a closing meeting.
- 18.5 The audit report, signed by the audit team leader, should be issued within 30 calendar days and will include the following information, as appropriate:
 - o Description of the audit scope.
 - o Identification of the auditors.

•:

- o Identification of persons contacted during audit activities.
- o Summary of audit results, including a statement of the effectiveness of the QA program elements that were audited.
- o Description of each reported adverse audit finding in sufficient detail to enable corrective action to be taken by the audited organization.
- 18.6 Management of the audited organization or activity will investigate adverse audit findings; determine root cause; schedule corrective action, including measures to prevent recurrence; and within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the audit report, notify the appropriate organizations in writing of action taken or planned. The adequacy of audit responses shall be evaluated by the auditing organization.
- 18.7 Follow-up action will be taken to determine whether or not corrective action has been accomplished as scheduled and will be verified by the auditing organization. An analysis of audit results will be performed by F&S QA to identify quality trends. The results will be reported to responsible management for review, assessment, and appropriate action.

18-3

18.8 As a minimum, audit records will include the following:

- o Identification of the organization or organizations, activities, or items audited and the individual or individuals contacted during the audit or audits.
- o Description of any deficiencies, nonconformances, and potential quality problems identified during the audit or audits.
- o Audit plans, audit reports, written replies, and the record of completion of corrective action, and close out of the audit.
- 18.9 Records of personnel qualifications for Auditors and Lead Auditors performing audits will be established and maintained by F&S. Records for each lead auditor will be maintained and updated annually.

18.10 <u>Surveillances</u>

The F&S Yucca Mountain Project Audit Program is supplemented by independent surveillance activities. The purpose of a surveillance is to monitor or observe items or activities to verify conformance to specified requirements. These surveillances will be conducted by F&S Quality Assurance, and will be either scheduled or implemented on a random basis.

Measures for the Surveillance of site investigations will be established and executed in accordance with procedures prepared by F&S. Surveillances are scheduled and conducted based on the activity's relative impact or importance, or both, to the Yucca Mountain Project. All deficiencies, nonconformances, and potential quality problems identified during surveillances will be documented and monitored until verification of effective corrective action is made.

- 18.10.1 Surveillances will be performed to written checklists or surveillance plans whenever practical. The documentation shall identify characteristics, methods, and acceptance criteria, shall provide for recording objective evidence of results, and accuracy of the equipment necessary to perform surveillance. The specification of acceptance criteria related to surveillances may be as simple as "to verify proper implementation of procedures" or "to verify conformance to requirements."
- 18.10.2 Surveillance Personnel do not report directly to the immediate supervisors who are responsible for the work being surveyed.
- 18.10.3 As a minimum, surveillance records will identify the following:

o Item or activity.

- o Date of the surveillance.
- o Name of the individual performing the surveillance.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

- Identification of the organization(s), activities or items surveilled, including the name or names of personnel contacted.
- Description of any deficiencies, nonconformances and potential quality problems identified during the surveillance. Nonconformances shall be handled in accordance with the requirements of Section 15 or 16, as applicable.
- o Surveillance Criteria
- o Equipment used during the surveillance.

o Results.

o Acceptance statement.

2

QAPP-002, REV. 6

FENIX & SCISSON, INC.

LAS VEGAS BRANCH

QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM PLAN

SECTION II

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TOTAL PAGES

	TABLE OF CONTENTS	1
FIGURE 1	F&S ORGANIZATION CHART	1
FIGURE 2	CRITERIA FOR QUALITY ASSURANCE	1
APPENDIX A -	TERMS AND DEFINITIONS	13
APPENDIX B -	DESIGN INPUTS	3
APPENDIX C -	REQUIREMENTS FOR THE QUALIFICATION OF INSPECTION AND TEST PERSONNEL:	5
APPENDIX D -	REQUIREMENTS FOR THE QUALIFICATION OF Non-destructive examination personnel	2
APPENDIX E -	LIST OF TYPICAL QA RECORDS	7
APPENDIX F -	REQUIREMENTS FOR THE QUALIFICATION OF QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM AUDIT PERSONNEL	4
APPENDIX G -	NOT REQUIRED FOR F&S	N/A
APPENDIX H -	REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPUTER SOFTWARE USED TO SUPPORT A HIGH-LEVEL NUCLEAR WASTE REPOSITORY LICENSE APPLICATION	11
APPENDIX I -	NOT REQUIRED FOR F&S	N/A
APPENDIX J -	REQUIREMENTS FOR PEER REVIEW	3
APPENDIX K -	NOT REQUIRED FOR F&S	N/A

QAPP-002, REV. 6



FENIX & SCISSON, INC.

UNCONTROLL

ORGANIZATION



QAPP-002, REV. 6



FENIX & SCISSON, INC.

CRITERIA FOR QUALITY ASSURANCE



FIGURE 2
QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX A

TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

<u>ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA</u>: Specified limits defined in codes, standards, or other required documents placed on characteristics of an item, process or service. Acceptance criteria related to surveillances may be as simple as verifying proper implementation of procedures or verifying conformance to requirements.

<u>ACCESSIBLE ENVIRONMENT</u>: 1) the atmosphere; 2) the land surface; 3) surface water; 4) oceans; and 5) the portion of the lithosphere that is outside the controlled areas.

ACTIVITIES THAT AFFECT QUALITY: Deeds, actions, work, or performance of a specific function or task. The Yucca Mountain Project QA Program applies to activities affecting the quality of all systems, structures, and components important to safety, and to the design and characterization of barriers important to waste isolation. These activities include: site characterization, facility and equipment construction, facility operation, performance confirmation, permanent closure, and decontamination and dismantling of surface facilities as they relate to items important to safety and barriers important to waste isolation. The QA Level I requirements of this QA Program apply to all activities affecting the quality of structures, systems, and components important to safety and engineered barriers important to waste isolation. These activities include: designing (including such activities as safety analyses, These activities laboratory testing of waste package materials to characterize their performance. and performance assessments), purchasing, fabricating, handling, shipping, storing, cleaning, erecting, installing, inspecting, testing, operating, maintaining, repairing, and modifying. These types of activities do not need to be identified as part of the Q list nor do they require QA level assignment. However, activities related to natural barriers important to waste isolation shall be identified and listed on a Q-list. These activities include: performance assessments, site characterization testing, and activities that may impact the waste isolation capability of the natural barrier. Examples are site characteri-zation activities such as exploratory shaft construction, borehole drilling, and other activities that could physically or chemically alter properties of the natural barriers in an adverse way.

<u>ACTIVITY:</u> Any time consuming effort (operation, task, function, or service) which influences or affects the achievement or verification of the objectives of the Yucca Mountain Project as depicted in the WBS Dictionary.

<u>AP-YMP ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE</u>: An implementing procedure which identifies the interface control methods which govern Project-wide systems and are implemented by all Project participants. Administrative procedures that implement QA requirements are identified with a "Q" suffix (i.e, AP 1.1Q).

APPENDIX A

<u>AUDIT</u>: A planned and documented activity performed to determine by investigation, examination, or evaluation of objective evidence the adequacy of and compliance with established procedures, codes, standards, instructions, drawings, and other applicable requirements, and the effectiveness of implementation. An audit should not be confused with surveillance or inspection activities performed for the sole purpose of process control or product acceptance.

<u>AUTHENTICATION</u> (QA RECORDS): Authentication is the act of attesting that the information contained within a document is accurate, complete, and appropriate to the work accomplished. Authentication is accomplished by one of the following methods: (1) a stamped, initialed, or signed and dated document; (2) a statement by the responsible individual or organization; or (3) issuing a document which is clearly identified as a statement by the reporting individual or organization. A document cannot become a Quality Assurance (QA) record until it has become authenticated.

<u>AUXILIARY SOFTWARE:</u> (1) Software that may be easily and exactly verified, and that performs a simple function such as conversion of units, change in data format, or plotting of data in support of primary analysis software. (2) A stream of commands or sequence of streams of commands executed to utilize system maintained software in which the system maintained software generates reportable results. Auxiliary software does not generate primary data.

<u>BARRIER</u>: Any material or structure that prevents or substantially delays the movements of water or radionuclides.

<u>BASELINE:</u> As used for computer software: (1) The stage of computer software at a completed and reviewed phase of the software life cycle; (2) Approved documentation generated within or as a result of completing a phase of the software life cycle.

<u>CERTIFICATE OF CONFORMANCE</u>: A document signed by an authorized individual that certifies the degree to which items or services meet specified requirements.

<u>CERTIFICATION</u>: The act of determining, verifying, and attesting in writing to the qualifications of personnel, processes, procedures, or items in accordance with specified requirements.

<u>CHARACTERISTIC</u>: Any property or attribute of an item, process, or service that is distinct, describable, and measurable.

<u>COMMERCIAL GRADE ITEM</u>: An item satisfying all of the following requirements: 1) The item is not subject to design or specification requirements that are unique to Mined Geologic Disposal Systems. 2) The item is to be ordered from the manufacturer/supplier on the basis of specifications set forth in the manufacturer's published product description, i.e., catalog. 3) The item is used in applications other than Mined Geologic Disposal Systems.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

I

<u>APPENDIX A</u>

<u>COMPUTER MODEL VALIDATION:</u> Assurance that a model as embodied in a computer code is a correct representation of the process or system for which it is intended (NUREG-0856). Usually accomplished by comparing code results to (1) physical data, or (2) a verified or validated code designed to perform the same type of analysis (e.g., benchmarking with a validated code). Peer review may be used for code validation if it is the only available means for validating a code.

<u>COMPUTER CODE VERIFICATION:</u> Assurance that a computer code correctly performs the operations specified in a numerical model (NUREG-0856). Usually accomplished by comparing code results to (1) a hand calculation, (2) an analytical solution or approximation, or (3) a verified code designed to perform the same type of analysis (benchmarking).

<u>CONDITION ADVERSE TO QUALITY</u>: An all-inclusive term used in reference to any of the following: failures, malfunctions, deficiencies, defective items, and nonconformances. A significant condition adverse to quality is one which, if not corrected, could have a serious effect on safety or operability.

<u>CONFIGURATION MANAGEMENT</u>: As used for computer software: (1) A system for orderly control of software, including methods used for labeling, changing, and storing software and its associated documentation. (2) The systematic evaluation, coordination, approval or disapproval, and implementation of all approved changes in an item of software after establishment of its configuration.

<u>CONSEQUENCE ANALYSIS:</u> A method by which the consequences of an event are calculated and expressed in some quantitative way, e.g., money loss, deaths, or quantities of radionuclides released to the accessible environment.

<u>CONTAINMENT</u>: The confinement of radioactive waste within a designated boundary.

<u>CONTAINMENT, PERIOD OF</u>: Known as the period during the first several hundred years following permanent closure of the geologic repository in which radiation and thermal levels are high and the uncertainties of ensuring repository performance are great. During this time, special emphasis is placed upon the ability to contain the wastes by waste packages within an engineered barrier system.

<u>CONTRACTOR</u>: An organization under contract to provide supplies, construction, or services.

<u>CONTROLLED AREA</u>: The surface location, which is to be marked by suitable monuments, that extend horizontally no more than 5 kilometers in any direction from the outer boundary of the underground facility and the underlying subsurface, which is an area that has been committed to use as a geologic repository and from which incompatible activities would be restricted following permanent closure. The controlled area is also known as the site.

APPENDIX A

<u>CONVERSION REPORT</u>: A written description of all modifications made to the original code or an externally available existing code after it is acquired.

<u>CORRECTIVE ACTION</u>: Measures taken to rectify conditions that are adverse to quality and, where necessary, to preclude repetition.

<u>CORROBORATIVE DATA</u>: Existing data used to support or substantiate other existing data.

<u>CREDIBLE EVENT OR CREDIBLE ACCIDENT:</u> An event or accident scenario which needs to be considered in the design of a geologic repository.

<u>DESIGN</u>: The act of developing designs for construction, documentation or of analyzing the performance of repository engineered structures, systems, components, and natural barriers. Design documentation includes, but is not limited to, drawings, specifications, test plans, design reports, test reports, system design descriptions, configuration status listings, design manuals, and manuals describing computer programs used for design or performance analysis.

<u>DESIGN INPUT</u>: Those criteria, parameters, bases, or other design requirements upon which the detailed final design is based.

<u>DESIGN OUTPUT</u>: Documents, such as drawings, specifications, and other documents, that define technical requirements of structures, systems, and components.

<u>DESIGN PROCESS</u>: Technical and management processes that commence with identification of design input and that lead to and include the issuance of design output documents.

<u>DEVIATION</u>: A departure from specified requirements.

<u>DISPOSITION</u>: The action taken to resolve a nonconforming condition and to restore acceptable conditions.

<u>DOCUMENT</u>: Any written or pictorial information describing, defining, specifying, reporting, or certifying activities, requirements, procedures, or results. A document is not considered to be Quality Assurance Record until it satisfies the definition of a Quality Assurance Record as defined in this Appendix.

<u>DOE</u>: U.S. Department of Energy or its duly authorized representatives.

ENGINEERED BARRIER SYSTEM: The waste package and the underground facility.

<u>ENGINEERED ITEM:</u> Any structure, system, or component identified in design documents as being a functional part of the completed facility.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX A

EXISTING DATA: Data developed prior to the implementation of a 10 CFR 60, Subpart G, QA program by DOE and its contractors, or data developed outside the DOE repository program, such as by oil companies, national laboratories, universities, or data published in technical or scientific publications. Existing data does not include information which is a accepted by the scientific and engineering community as established facts (e.g., engineering handbooks, density tables, gravitational laws, etc.).

EXTERNAL AUDIT: An audit of those portions of another organization's QA program that is neither under the direct control nor within the organizational structure for the auditing organization.

FINAL DESIGN: Approved design output documents and approved changes thereto.

<u>FUNCTIONAL CHARACTERISTICS</u>: Those attributes of a repository or its structures, systems, and components that determine its performance with respect to safety, reliability, operability, and other design criteria established in the OGR Program or other Federal regulatory documents.

<u>GEOLOGIC REPOSITORY</u>: A System that is either intended to be used for or may be used for the disposal of radioactive waste in excavated geologic media. A geologic repository includes the geologic repository operations area and the portion of the geologic setting that provides isolation of the radioactive waste.

<u>GEOLOGIC REPOSITORY OPERATIONS AREA</u>: A high-level radioactive waste facility that is part of a geologic repository, including both surface and subsurface areas, in which waste handling activities are conducted.

<u>IMPORTANT TO SAFETY</u>: As it applies to structures, systems, and components, those engineered structures, systems, and components that are essential to the prevention or mitigation of an accident that could result in a radiation dose to the whole body, or any organ, of 0.5 rem or greater at or beyond the nearest boundary of the unrestricted area at any time until the completion of permanent closure.

<u>IMPORTANT TO WASTE ISOLATION</u>: The barriers that must meet the criteria that address long-term performance of the engineered and natural barriers to prevent the release of radionuclides from the site to the accessible environment (i.e. for achieving the postclosure performance objectives in 10 CFR 60, Subpart E).

<u>INDOCTRINATION</u>: Instruction provided to personnel for familiarization with programmatic and work-oriented documents applicable to the assigned activity.

<u>INSPECTOR</u>: A person who performs inspection activities to verify whether or not an item or activity conforms to specified requirements.

<u>INSPECTION</u>: Examination or measurement to verify whether an item or activity conforms to specified requirements.

<u>APPENDIX A</u>

<u>INTERNAL AUDIT</u>: An audit of those portions of an organization's QA program that is retained under its direct control and within its organizational structure.

<u>ISOLATION</u>: Inhibiting the transport of radioactive materials so that amounts and concentrations of this material entering the accessible environment will be kept within prescribed limits.

<u>ITEM</u>: An all-inclusive term that is used in place of any of the following: appurtenance, assembly, component, equipment, material, module, part, structure, subassembly, subsystem, system, unit, and prototype hardware. This term includes magnetic media, and other materials that retain or support data.

<u>LIFETIME RECORDS</u>: Quality Assurance Records that furnish evidence of the quality and completeness of data, items, and activities affecting quality. All Yucca Mountain Project QA Records are classified as Lifetime Records.

<u>LOGGING ENGINEER</u>: Individual responsible for overseeing/supervising the F&S NTS Logging subcontractor in Log Data Acquisition for Drilled Holes.

<u>MATERIAL</u>: A term that includes items plus any hardware or geologic samples either used in or resulting from research and development or site investigations on the Yucca Mountain Project. Hardware and geologic specimens include but are not limited to test apparatus or equipment, special nuclear material, cores, geologic samples, water and gas samples, etc.

<u>MEASURING AND TEST EQUIPMENT (M&TE)</u>: Devices or systems used to calibrate, measure, gauge, test, or inspect, in order to control or to acquire data to verify conformance to a specified requirement, or to establish characteristics or values not previously known.

<u>MINING</u>: All subsurface excavation, including the surface shaft collars, headframe, and hoist.

<u>NONCONFORMANCE</u>: A deficiency in characteristics, documentation, operation or procedure that renders the quality of an item or activity unacceptable or indeterminate.

<u>NON-MECHANISTIC FAILURES:</u> Postulated failures which are not based on previously observed models or mechanisms but which are assumed to provide conservatism in safety assessments.

NTS: Nevada Test Site.

<u>NTS SUPPORT CONTRACTOR</u>: Organizations that are directly under contract to DOE/NV for activities at the NTS and other locations.

<u>OBJECTIVE EVIDENCE</u>: Any documented statement of fact, other information, or record, either quantitative or qualitative, that pertains to the quality of an item or activity, based on observations, measurements, or tests that can be verified.

<u>APPENDIX A</u>

<u>OBSERVATION</u>: The recognition of a weakness in a Quality Assurance program that if left uncorrected could result in a condition adverse to quality.

<u>OPERATIONS, PERIOD OF</u>: Includes the time during which emplacement of waste occurs; any subsequent period before permanent closure during which the emplaced wastes are retrievable; and permanent closure, which includes sealing of shafts.

<u>OVERVIEW</u>: An analysis and assessment by management of the scope, status, adequacy and effectiveness of Program quality achievement and assurance activities. Overview encompasses effectiveness, assessments, technical reviews, readiness reviews, audits, and surveillances, as appropriate.

<u>OWNER</u>: The person, group, company, agency, or corporation that has or will have title to the repository.

<u>PARTICIPATING ORGANIZATION</u>: This term applies to the following: (1) The government agencies external to the DOE, (2) national laboratories, and (3) organizations participating directly in Yucca Mountain Project activities.

<u>PEER:</u> A peer is a person having technical expertise in the subject matter to be reviewed (or a critical subset of the subject matter to be reviewed) to a degree at least equivalent to that needed for the original work.

<u>PEER REVIEW</u>: A documented, critical review performed by peers who are independent of the work being reviewed. The peer's independence from the work being reviewed means that the peer (a) was not involved as a participant, supervisor, technical reviewer, or advisor in the work being performed, and (b) to the extent practical, has sufficient freedom from funding considerations to assure the work is impartially reviewed.

A peer review is an in-depth critique of assumptions, calculations, extrapolations, alternate interpretations, methodology, and acceptance criteria employed, and of conclusions drawn in the original work. Peer reviews confirm the <u>adequacy</u> of work. In contrast to peer review, the term "technical review" refers to a review to verify compliance to predetermined requirements; industry standards; or common scientific, engineering, and industry practice.

<u>PEER REVIEW GROUP:</u> A peer review group is an assembly of peers representing an appropriate spectrum of knowledge and experience in the subject matter to be reviewed and should vary in size based on the subject matter and importance of the subject matter to safety or waste isolation.

<u>PEER REVIEW REPORT:</u> A documented in-depth report of the proceedings and findings of a peer review.

<u>PERFORMANCE ALLOCATION:</u> This term applies to the process of deriving subsystem and component performance goals from performance objectives. A systematic process of assigning confidence levels with their desired, associated performance goals for the mined geologic disposal systems, subsystems, and components.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

<u>APPENDIX A</u>

<u>PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT:</u> The process of quantitatively evaluating component and system behavior, relative to containment and isolation of radioactive waste, to determine compliance with the numerical criteria associated with 10 CFR Part 60.

<u>PERMANENT CLOSURE:</u> The sealing of shafts and boreholes. Permanent closure represents the end of active human intervention with respect to the engineered barrier system.

<u>PERFORMANCE CONFIRMATION</u>: The program of tests, experiments, and analyses that is conducted to evaluate the accuracy and adequacy of the information used to determine with reasonable assurance that the performance objectives for the period after permanent closure will be met.

<u>PRIMARY DATA</u>: Information that can be shown to have been acquired and controlled in a manner consistent with all applicable Quality Assurance Level I requirements and is necessary for the resolution of the NRC performance objectives of 10CFR60 in accordance with the Yucca Mountain Project Issues Resolution Strategy. This includes information that has been qualified and accepted in accordance with AP 5.9, "Acceptance of Data and Data Interpretations not Developed Under the Yucca Mountain Project Program."

<u>PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR (PI)</u>: The individual who has the technical responsibility for a particular technical task. This responsibility includes, but is not limited to, planning and cost control, the day-to-day technical direction and control of the item or activity and the assembly of a support team to accomplish the item or activity. This term may be synonymous with the task leader or project engineer depending upon the Yucca Mountain Project Participant.

<u>PROCEDURE</u>: A document that specifies or describes the way in which an activity is to be performed.

<u>PROCUREMENT DOCUMENT</u>: Purchase requisitions, purchase orders, letters of intent, work authorization letters, and drawings, contracts, specifications, instructions, or any document that provides a means by which to acquire possession or ownership of items, or right to the use of services by payment.

<u>PURCHASER</u>: The organization responsible for the establishment of procurement requirements and for the issuance or administration, or both, of procurement documents.

<u>Q-LIST</u>: A list of geologic repository engineered structures, systems, and components that have been determined to be important to safety, and engineered barriers important to waste isolation that must be covered under the QA requirements of 10 CFR 60, Subpart G.

<u>OUALIFICATION (OF DATA)</u>: A formal process intended to provide a desired level of confidence that data are suitable for their intended use.

<u>APPENDIX A</u>

<u>QUALIFICATION (PERSONNEL)</u>: The characteristics or abilities that are gained through education, training, or experience, which are measured against established requirements, such as standards or tests, that qualify an individual to perform a required function.

<u>QUALIFICATION TESTING:</u> Demonstration that an item meets design requirements.

<u>QUALIFIED DATA:</u> Data initially collected under a 10 CFR 60, Subpart G, quality assurance program or existing data qualified in accordance with Appendix G of NNWSI/88-9.

<u>OUALIFIED_PROCEDURE</u>: An approved procedure that has been demonstrated to meet the specified requirements for its intended purpose.

<u>QUALITY ACTIVITIES LIST:</u> A list of those major activities conducted during site characterization, construction, operation, or closure that relate to natural barriers important to waste isolation. These activities, which must be covered under the 10CFR60, Subpart G Quality Assurance Program, include data gathering, performance assessments, and those activities that could affect a natural barrier's ability to isolate waste.

<u>QUALITY ASSURANCE</u>: All those planned and systematic actions that are necessary to provide adequate confidence that the geologic repository and its subsystems or subcomponents will perform satisfactorily in-service. Quality Assurance includes quality control, which comprises those quality assurance actions related to the physical characteristics of a material, structure, component, or system that provide a means by which to control the quality of the material, structure, component, or system to predetermined requirements.

QUALITY ASSURANCE RECORD: An individual document or other item that has been executed, completed, and approved and that furnishes evidence of (1) the quality and completeness of data (including raw data), items, and activities affecting quality; (2) documents prepared and maintained to demonstrate implementation of Quality Assurance programs (e.g., audit, surveillance, and inspection reports); (3) procurement documents; (4) other documents such as plans, correspondence, documentation of telecons, specification, technical data, books, maps, papers, photographs, and data sheets; (5) items such as magnetic media; and (6) other materials that provide data and document quality regardless of the physical form or characteristic. A completed record is a document or item (and documentation) that will receive no more entries, whose revisions would normally consist of a reissue of the document (or documentation), and that is signed and dated by the originator and, as applicable, by approval personnel.

<u>OUALITY ASSURANCE LEVEL I:</u> Those radiological health and safety related items and activities that are important to either safety or waste isolation and that are associated with the ability of a geologic nuclear waste repository to function in a manner that prevents or mitigates the consequences of a process or event that could cause undue risk to the radiological

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX A

health and safety of the public. Items and activities important to safety are those engineered structures, systems, components, and related activities essential to the prevention or mitigation of an accident that could result in a radiation dose either to the whole body or to any organ of 0.5 rem or greater either at or beyond the nearest boundary of the unrestricted area at any time until the completion of the permanent closure of the repository. Items and activities important to waste isolation are those barriers and related activities which must meet the criteria that address post-closure performance of the engineered and natural barriers to inhibit the release of radionuclides. The criteria for items or activities important to safety and waste isolation are found in 10CFR60, and 40CFR191.

<u>QUALITY ASSURANCE LEVEL II</u>: Those activities and items related to the systems, structures, and components which require a level of quality assurance sufficient to provide for reliability, maintainability, public and repository worker nonradiological health and safety, repository worker radiological health and safety, and the other operational factors that would have an impact on DOE and YMPO concerns, and the environment.

<u>QUALITY ASSURANCE LEVEL III</u>: Those activities and items not classified as QA Levels I or II.

<u>QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM PLAN (QAPP)</u>: The document that describes the organization's Quality Assurance Program, the applicable QA requirements, and defines how compliance with the QA criteria will be accomplished.

<u>RADIOACTIVE_WASTE</u>: High-Level Waste (HLW) and other radioactive materials that are received for emplacement in a geologic repository.

<u>**READINESS REVIEW:**</u> An independent, systematic documented review to determine and inform management of the readiness to advance from one phase, process, or activity into another. Readiness Reviews are used to coordinate many elements and provide attention to detail, to assure that the project is ready to proceed to the comprehensive review of a total project or a particular segment of the project.

<u>RECEIVING</u>: Taking delivery of an item at a designated location.

<u>RELIABILITY ANALYSIS:</u> An analysis that estimates the reliability of a system or component.

<u>REPAIR</u>: The process of restoring a nonconforming characteristic to a condition such that the capability of an item to function reliably and safely is unimpaired, even though that item still does not conform to the original requirement.

<u>**REPOSITORY</u>:** See Geologic Repository Operations Area.</u>

<u>**RETRIEVAL</u>:** The act of intentionally removing radioactive waste from the underground location at which the waste had been emplaced previously for disposal.</u>

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX A

<u>REWORK</u>: The process by which a nonconforming item or activity is made to conform to the original requirements by completion or correction utilizing existing approved procedures.

<u>RIGHT OF ACCESS</u>: The right of a purchaser or designated representative to enter the premises of a Supplier for the purpose of inspection, surveillance, or Quality Assurance audit.

SCENARIO: An account or sequence of a projected course of action or event.

<u>SCIENTIFIC INVESTIGATION</u>: Any research, experiment, test, study, or activity that is performed for the purpose of investigating the natural barriers or the man-made aspects of the geologic repository, including the overall design of the facilities and the waste package. This will include, but will not be restricted to, all geologic, tectonic, seismologic, hydrologic, climatologic, geochemical, chemical, geophysical, physical, geomechanical, mechanical, meteorological, metallurgical, environmental, socioeconomic, and transportation studies of activities which are performed for, or in support of the investigation, exploration, site characterization, development of design bases, licensing, construction, operation, monitoring, performance evaluation and/or closure of the geologic repository.

<u>SCIENTIFIC NOTEBOOK:</u> A document which may be used to provide a written record of the results of scientific investigations and experiments when the work involves a high degree of professional judgement or trial and error methods, or both. These notebooks may be used in lieu of a technical procedure.

<u>SERVICE</u>: The performance of activities that include but are not limited to site characterization, design, fabrication, investigation, inspection, nondestructive examination, repair, or installation.

<u>SITE</u>: Location of the controlled area.

<u>SITE CHARACTERIZATION</u>: The program of exploration and research both in the laboratory and in the field that is undertaken to establish the geologic conditions and the ranges of parameters of a particular site that are relevant to the procedures under 10CFR Part 60. Site characterization includes borings, surface excavations, excavation or exploratory shafts, limited subsurface lateral excavations and borings, and in situ testing at depth as needed to determine the suitability of the site for a geologic repository. It does not include preliminary borings and geophysical testing needed to decide whether or not site characterization should be undertaken.

<u>SPECIAL PROCESS</u>: A process, the results of which are highly dependent on the control of the process or the skill of the operators, or both, and in which the specified quality cannot be readily determined by inspection or test of the product.

<u>SURVEILLANCE</u>: The act of monitoring or observing to verify whether or not an item or activity conforms to specified requirements.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX A

- 22

<u>TECHNICAL PROJECT OFFICER (TPO)</u>: The individual within each Yucca Mountain Project Participant's organization who has been assigned overall responsibility for the organization's scope of work as detailed in the Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) Dictionary.

<u>TECHNICAL REVIEW</u>: A documented traceable review performed by qualified personnel who are independent of those who performed the work but who have technical expertise at least equivalent to those who performed the original work. Technical reviews are in-depth, critical reviews, analyses and evaluation of documents, material or data that require technical verification and/or validation for applicability, correctness, adequacy and completeness.

<u>TESTING</u>: An element of verification that is used to determine the capability of an item to meet specified requirements by subjecting the item to a set of physical, chemical, environmental, or operating conditions.

<u>TRACEABILITY</u>: The ability to trace the history, application, or location of an item and like items or activities by means of recorded identification.

<u>TRAINING</u>: In-depth instruction provided to personnel to develop and demonstrate initial proficiency in the application of selected requirements, methods, and procedures, and to adapt to changes in technology, methods, or job responsibilities.

<u>UNDERGROUND FACILITY</u>: The underground structure, including openings, and backfill materials, but excluding shafts, boreholes, and their seals.

<u>UNRESTRICTED AREA:</u> Any area, to which access is not controlled to protect individuals from exposure to radiation and radioactive materials, and any area used for residential quarters.

<u>USE-AS-IS</u>: A disposition that is permitted for a nonconforming item or service when it can be established that the item is satisfactory for its intended use.

<u>VALIDATION</u> (QA RECORDS): Validation is the act of reviewing a document or document package to ensure it is complete, authenticated, reproducible, and microfilmable.

<u>VERIFICATION</u>: The act of reviewing, inspecting, testing, checking, auditing, or otherwise determining and documenting whether or not items, processes, services, or documents conform to specified requirements.

<u>WAIVER</u>: Documented authorization to depart from specified requirements.

<u>WASTE PACKAGE:</u> The waste form and any container, shielding, packing, and other absorbent materials immediately surrounding an individual waste container.

12 -

APPENDIX A

YMP: Yucca Mountain Project

<u>YMP PROJECT PARTICIPANTS</u>: An all inclusive term used to describe (generically) the various organizations involved in the Yucca Mountain Project. This term includes the YMPO, Participating Organizations, and NTS Support Contractors. These organizations are required to have a YMPO approved Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP) for the conduct of their activities.

<u>YMP PROJECT PERSONNEL</u>: All U.S. Department of Energy participating Organizations, and NTS Support Contractors personnel involved in Yucca Mountain Project activities.

<u>YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT OFFICE (YMPO)</u>: The organization to which the U.S. Department of Energy, Nevada Operations Office (DOE/NV), has assigned the responsibility of administering and coordinating the activities of various Participating Organizations and NTS Support Contractors associated with the Yucca Mountain Project.

<u>YUCCA MOUNTAIN PROJECT QUALITY ASSURANCE PLAN (QAP)</u>: The document that describes the planned, systematic quality assurance requirements that are applicable to the Yucca Mountain Project.

<u>YMP PROJECT WORK BREAKDOWN STRUCTURE (WBS) DICTIONARY:</u> A controlled document which establishes a product oriented frame work for organizing and defining work to be accomplished.

APPENDIX B

DESIGN INPUTS

Design inputs include many characteristics and functions of an item or system. These inputs vary depending on the application; however, it is desirable to consider the following listed inputs as they apply to specific items or systems of the repository:

- 1. Basic functions of each structure, and component.
- 2. Performance requirements such as capacity rating and system output.
- 3. Codes, standards, and regulatory requirements including the applicable issue, addenda, or both.
- 4. Design conditions such as pressure, temperature, fluid chemistry, and voltage.
- 5. Loads such as seismic, wind, thermal, and dynamic.
- 6. Environmental conditions anticipated during storage, construction, and operation such as pressure, temperature, humidity, and corrosiveness, site elevation, wind direction, nuclear radiation, electromagnetic radiation, and duration of exposure.
- 7. Interface requirements including definition of the functional and physical interfaces involving structures, systems, and components.
- 8. Material requirements including such items as compatibility, electrical insulation properties, protective coating, and corrosion resistance.
- 9. Mechanical requirements such as vibration, stress, shock, and reaction forces.
- 10. Structural requirements covering such items as equipment foundations and pipe supports.
- 11. Hydraulic requirements such as pump net positive suction heads (NPSH), allowable pressure drops, and allowable fluid velocities.
- 12. Chemistry requirements such as provisions for sampling and limitations on water chemistry.
- 13. Electrical requirements such as source of power, voltage, raceway requirements, electrical insulation, and motor requirements.

APPENDIX B

- 14. Layout and arrangement requirements.
- 15. Operational requirements under various conditions such as repository startup, normal repository operation, repository emergency operation, special or infrequent operation, system abnormal or emergency operation, repository decontamination, decommissioning, and dismantling.
- 16. Instrumentation and control requirements including indicating instruments, controls, and alarms required for operation, testing, and maintenance. Other requirements such as the type of instrument, installed spares, range of measurement, and location of indication are included.
- 17. Access and administrative control requirements for the exploratory shaft facility or future repository security.
- 18. Redundancy, diversity, and separation requirements of structures, systems, and components.
- 19. Failure effects requirements of structures, systems, and components including a definition of those events and accidents that they must be designed to withstand.
- 20. Test requirements including pre-operational and subsequent periodic in-service tests and the conditions under which they will be per-formed.
- 21. Accessibility, maintenance, and repair, and in-service inspection requirements for the exploratory shaft facility or future repository including the conditions under which these will be performed.
- 22. Personnel requirements and limitations including the qualification and number of personnel available for the exploratory shaft facility or future repository operation, maintenance, testing, inspection, and radiation exposures to the public and repository personnel.
- 23. Transportability requirements such as size and shipping weight, limitation, and Interstate Commerce Commission regulations.
- 24. Fire protection or resistance requirements.
- 25. Handling, storage, cleaning and shipping requirements.
- 26. Other requirements to prevent undue risk to the health and safety of the public.
- 27. Materials, processes, parts, and equipment suitable for application.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX B

- 28. Safety requirements for preventing injury to personnel including such items as radiation safety that restrict the use of dangerous materials, escape provisions from enclosures, and grounding of electrical systems.
- 29. Quality control and Quality Assurance requirements.
- 30. Reliability requirements of structures, systems, and components, including their interactions, which may impair functions that are important to safety.
- 31. Interface requirements between the exploratory shaft facility or future repository equipment and operation and maintenance personnel.
- 32. Requirements for criticality control and accountability of nuclear materials.

APPENDIX C

REQUIREMENTS FOR THE QUALIFICATION OF INSPECTION AND TEST PERSONNEL

1.0 <u>GENERAL</u>

The following are the requirements for the qualification of personnel who perform inspection and testing to verify conformance to specified requirements for the purpose of acceptability. The requirements for the qualification of personnel performing nondestructive examination are specified in Appendix D.

2.0 FUNCTIONAL QUALIFICATIONS

Three levels of qualification will be utilized depending on the complexity of the functions involved. The requirements for each level are not limiting with regard to organizational position or professional status but, rather, are limiting with regard to functional activities.

2.1 <u>LEVEL I PERSONNEL CAPABILITIES</u>

A Level I person will be capable of performing and documenting the results of inspections or tests that are required to be performed in accordance with document procedures, acceptance standards, and/or industry practices as defined in user's written procedures.

2.2 <u>LEVEL II PERSONNEL CAPABILITIES</u>

A Level II person will have all of the capabilities of a Level I person for the inspection or test category or class in question. Additionally, a Level II person will have demonstrated capabilities in planning inspections and tests; in setting up tests, including preparation and setup of related equipment, as appropriate; in supervising and certifying lower level personnel; and in evaluating the validity and acceptability of inspection and test results.

2.3 <u>LEVEL III PERSONNEL CAPABILITIES</u>

A Level III person will have all of the capabilities of a Level II person for the inspection, test category or class in question. In addition, the individual will also be capable of evaluating the adequacy of specific programs used to train and certify inspection and test personnel whose qualifications are covered by this section.

3.0 EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE QUALIFICATIONS

These education and experience requirements will be considered with recognition that other factors commensurate with the scope,

Ť

APPENDIX C

complexity, or special nature of the activity may provide reasonable assurance that a person can competently perform a particular task.

Other factors which may demonstrate capability in a given job are previous performance or satisfactory completion of capability testing. These factors and the basis for their equivalency will be documented.

3.1 LEVEL I EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS

- o Two years of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or
- o High school graduation and six months of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or
- Completion of college level work leading to an associate degree in a related discipline plus three months of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities.

3.2 LEVEL II EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS

- o One year satisfactory performance as a Level I in the corresponding inspection or test category or class; or
- o High school graduation plus three years of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or
- Completion of college work leading to an associate degree in a related discipline plus one year of related experience. in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or
- Graduation from a four-year college plus six months of related experience in equivalent inspection activities or testing activities.

3.3 LEVEL III EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS

o Six years satisfactory performance as a Level II in the corresponding inspection or test category or class; or high school graduation plus ten years of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or high school graduation plus eight years of experience in equivalent inspection of testing activities with at least two years associated with nuclear facilities; or, if not, at least sufficient training to be acquainted with the relevant quality assurance aspects of a nuclear facility; or

<u>APPENDIX C</u>

- o Completion of college level work leading to an associate degree and seven years of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities with at least two years of this experience associated with nuclear facilities or, if not, at least sufficient training to be acquainted with the relevant quality assurance aspects of a nuclear facility; or
- o Graduation from a four-year college plus five years related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities with at least two years of this experience associated with nuclear facilities or, if not, at least sufficient training to be acquainted with the relevant quality assurance aspects of a nuclear facility.

4.0 <u>CERTIFICATION</u>

4.1 **QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS**

The responsible organization will designate those inspection and test activities that require qualified inspection and test personnel and the minimum qualification requirements for such personnel. Further, the responsible organization will establish written procedures for the qualification of inspection and test personnel and for the assurance that only those personnel who meet the established requirements are permitted to perform inspection and test activities. If single inspection or test requires implementation by a team or a group, then personnel who do not meet the requirements of this section may be used in data-taking assignments or in repository or equipment operation, provided they are supervised or overseen by a qualified individual.

4.2 PERSONNEL SELECTION

Personnel selected to perform inspection and test activities will have the experience or training commensurate with the scope, complexity, or special nature of the activities.

4.3 <u>INDOCTRINATION</u>

Provisions will be made for the indoctrination of personnel as to the technical objectives and requirements of the applicable codes and standards and the elements of the Quality Assurance Program Plan and procedures that are to be employed.

4.4 <u>TRAINING</u>

The need for a formal training program will be determined, and such training activities will be conducted as required to qualify personnel who perform inspection and tests. On-the-job training will

APPENDIX C

be included also in the program, with emphasis on first-hand experience gained through actual performance of inspections and tests. Training will also be provided with regard to those changes to the QAPP and implementing procedures that affect previous training.

4.5 DETERMINATION OF INITIAL CAPABILITY

The capabilities of a candidate for certification will be initially determined by a suitable evaluation of the candidate's education, experience, training, and either test results or capability demonstration in accordance with the organization's personnel qualification procedure.

4.6 EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE

The job performance of inspection and test personnel will be reevaluated at periodic intervals not to exceed three years. Reevaluation will be by evidence of continued satisfactory performance or redetermination of capability. If during this evaluation, or at any other time, it is determined by the responsible organization that the capabilities of an individual are not in accordance with qualification requirements specified for the job, then that person will be removed from that activity until such time as the required capability has been demonstrated. Any person who has not performed inspection or testing activities in his qualified area for a period of one year will be reevaluated and a redetermination of their capability made in accordance with the organization qualification procedure.

4.7 <u>CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION</u>

The qualification of personnel will be certified in writing in an appropriate form, including the following information:

- o Employer's name.
- o Identification of person being certified.
- o Activities certified to perform.
- o Basis used for certification that includes such factors as;
 - Education, experience, and training (when necessary).
 - Test results (where applicable).
 - Results of capability demonstration.
- o Results of periodic evaluation.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX C

- o Results of physical examinations (when required).
- Signature of employer's designated representative who is responsible for such certifications.
- o Dates of certification and certification expiration.

4.8 PHYSICAL

The responsible organization will identify any special physical characteristics needed in the performance of each activity, including the need for initial and subsequent physical examinations.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX D

REQUIREMENTS FOR THE QUALIFICATIONS OF NON-DESTRUCTIVE EXAMINATION PERSONNEL

The requirements of this Appendix will be included in F&S specifications, drawings and work programs. This Appendix provides amplified requirements for the qualification of personnel who perform radiographic (RT), magnetic particle (MT), ultrasonic (UT), liquid penetrant (PT), eddy current (ET), neutron radiographic (NRT), and leak-testing (LT), which is hereinafter referred to as nondestructive examination (NDE), to verify conformance to specified requirements.

1.0 CERTIFICATION

1.1 APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS

The American Society of Nondestructive Testing Recommended Practice No. SNT-TC-1A, June 1980 edition, and its applicable supplements will apply as requirements to NDE personnel covered by this section.

1.2 PROGRAM

The responsible organization will establish written procedures for the control and administration of NDE personnel training, examination and certification.

1.3 <u>CERTIFICATE OF QUALIFICATION</u>

The qualification of personnel will be certified in writing in an appropriate form, including the following information:

- o Employer's name.
- o Identification of person being certified.
- o Activities certified to perform.
- o Basis used for certification that includes such factors as;
 - Education, experience and training (when necessary).
 - Test results (where applicable).
 - Results of capability demonstration.
- o Results of periodic evaluation.
- o Results of physical examinations (when required).

QAPP-002, REV. 6

••

APPENDIX D

- -- -----

..

. . .

• Signature of employer's designated representative who is responsible for such certification.

o Dates of certification and certification expiration.

1.4 PHYSICAL

The responsible organization will identify any special physical characteristics needed in the performance of each activity, including the need for initial and subsequent physical examinations.

UNCONTRULL

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX E

LIST OF TYPICAL QA RECORDS

The following is a list of typical QA records. The Yucca Mountain Project retention period is defined as lifetime. QA records will be submitted to the Project Records Center by the originating organization of the record.

1.0 SITE CHARACTERIZATION

- o Surveys of the underground facility excavations, shafts and boreholes referenced to readily identifiable surface features.
- o Description of the materials encountered.
- o Geologic maps and geologic cross section.
- o Locations and amounts of seepage.
- o Instrument locations, readings, analysis and reports for in situ testing.
- o Technical specifications.
- o Sample extraction location maps.
- o Site Characterization Report.
- o Environmental Assessment.
- o Peer review documentation.
- o Test plans and procedures, and results thereof.
- o Data reduction, evaluations, analysis and reports for;
 - Geomorphology.
 - Stratigraphy.
 - Tectonics.
 - Seismicity.
 - Geoengineering.
 - Hydrology.
 - Geochemistry.
 - Climatology and Meteorology.
- o Environmental Impact Statement.
- o Environmental Report.

<u>APPENDIX E</u>

2.0 <u>DESIGN RECORDS</u>

- o Applicable codes and standards used in design.
- o Design drawings.
- o Design calculations and records of checks.
- o Approved design change requests.
- o Design deviations.
- o Design reports.
- o Design verification data.
- o Design specifications and amendments.
- o Safety analysis report.
- o Stress reports for code items.
- o Systems descriptions.
- o Systems process and instrumentation diagrams.
- o Technical analysis, evaluations and reports.

3.0 **PROCUREMENT RECORDS**

- o Procurement specifications.
- o Purchase order including amendments.

4.0 <u>MANUFACTURING RECORDS</u>

- o Applicable code data reports.
- As-built drawings and records (Note: As-built drawings and records will correctly identify the installed condition of the item. The type of as-built drawings and records to be maintained will be specified).
- o Certificate of compliance.
- o Eddy-current examination final results.
- o Electrical control verification tests results.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX E

o Ferrite test results.

o Heat treatment records.

o Liquid penetrant examination final results.

o Location of weld filler material.

o Magnetic particle examination final results.

o Major defect repair records.

o Material properties records.

o Nonconformance reports.

o Performance test procedure and results records.

o Pipe and fitting location report.

o Pressure test (hydrostatic or pneumatic).

o Radiographs (for in-service inspection applications).

o Radiograph review records.

o Ultrasonic examination final results.

o Welding procedures.

5.0 INSTALLATION AND CONSTRUCTION RECORDS

5.1 <u>RECEIVING AND STORAGE - NONCONFORMANCE REPORTS</u>

5.2 <u>CIVIL</u>

o Concrete cylinder test reports and charts.

o Concrete design mix reports.

o Concrete placement records.

o Inspection reports for channel pressure tests.

• Material property reports on containment liner and accessories.

Material property reports on metal containment shell and accessories.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

. •

<u>APPENDIX E</u>

- o Material property reports on reinforcing steel splice sleeve material.
- Procedure for waste package vessel pressure proof test and leak rate tests and results.
- o Reports of high strength bolt torque testing.
- o Soil compaction test reports.
- o Location and description of structural support systems.
- o Details, methods of emplacement and location of seals used.

5.3 <u>WELDING</u>

- o Ferrite test results.
- o Heat treatment records.
- o Liquid penetrant test final results.
- o Material property records.
- o Magnetic particle test final results.
- o Major weld repair procedures and results.
- o Radiographs (for in-service inspection application).
- o Radiograph review records.
- o Weld location diagrams.
- o Weld procedures.

5.4 <u>MECHANICAL</u>

- o Cleaning procedures and results.
- o Code data reports.
- o Installed lifting and handling equipment procedures, inspection and test data.
- o Lubrication procedures.
- o Material properties records.

÷

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX E

	0	Pipe	and	fitting	location	reports.
--	---	------	-----	---------	----------	----------

o Pipe hanger and restraint data.

- o Pressure test results (hýdrostatic or pneumatic).
- o Safety valve response test procedures.

5.5 ELECTRICAL AND INSTRUMENTATION AND CONTROL

- o Cable pulling tension data.
- o Cable separation data.
- o Cable splicing procedures.
- o Cable terminating procedures.
- o Certified cable test reports.
- o Relay test procedures.
- Voltage breakdown test results on liquid insulation.

5.6 GENERAL

- o As-build drawings and records.
- Final inspection reports and releases.
- o Nonconformance reports.
- o Specifications and drawings.
- o Details of equipment, methods, progress and sequence of work.
- o Construction problems.
- o Anomalous conditions encountered.

6.0 <u>PRE-OPERATIONAL AND START-UP TEST RECORDS</u>

- Automatic emergency power source transfer procedures and results.
- o Final system adjustment data.
- o Pressure test results (hydrostatic or pneumatic).

QAPP-002, REV. 6

<u>APPENDIX E</u>

- o Instrument alternating current (AC) systems and inverters test procedures and reports.
- o Off-site power source energizing procedures and test reports.
- o On-site emergency power source energizing procedure and test reports.
- o Pre-operational test procedures and results.

7.0 OPERATION RECORDS

- Records and drawing changes that identify repository design modifications made to systems and equipment described in the Final Safety Analysis Report.
- o Radioactive waste inventory, emplacement location and transfer records.
- o Off-site environmental monitoring survey records.
- o Waste shipment records.
- o Repository radiation and contamination survey results.
- o Radiation exposure records for individuals entering radiation control areas.
- o Records of gaseous and liquid radioactive material released to the environment.
- Records of transient or operational cycles for those repository components designed for a limited number of transients or cycles.
- o Training and qualification records for members of the repository operating staff.
- o In-service inspection records.
- Records of reviews performed for changes made to procedures or equipment, or reviews of tests and experiments.
- o Meeting minutes of the Repository Nuclear Safety Committee and license nuclear review board.
- o Surveillance activities, inspections and calibrations required by the technical documents.
- o Records of repository tests and experiments.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX E

- o Changes made to Operating Procedures
- o Sealed source leak-test results.
- o Records of annual physical inventory of all sealed source material.
- Logs of repository operation.
- Records and logs of maintenance activities, inspection, repair and replacement of principal items of structures, systems and components.
- o Operational, shift supervisor and control-room logs.
- o Licensee event reports.
- o Fire protection records.
- o Nonconformance reports.
- o Repository equipment operations instructions.
- o Security plan and procedures.
- o Emergency plan and procedures.
- o Quality Assurance and Quality Control Manuals.
- o Records of activities required by the security plan and procedures.
- Applicable records noted in other sections of this appendix for any modification or new construction applicable to structures, systems or components.
- Evaluation of results of reportable safety concerns as required by regulations.
- o Annual environmental operating report.
- o Annual repository operating report.
- o Location and description of dewatering systems.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX F

REQUIREMENTS FOR THE QUALIFICATION OF QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM AUDIT PERSONNEL

1.0 <u>GENERAL</u>

This Appendix provides requirements for the qualification of Lead Auditors. A Lead Auditor organizes and directs audits, reports audit findings and evaluates corrective action. This Appendix also provides amplified requirements for the qualification of individuals, henceforth referred to as Auditors, who participate in an audit, such as technical specialists, management representatives, and auditors-in-training.

1.1 <u>QUALIFICATION OF AUDITORS</u>

F&S will establish the audit personnel qualifications and the requirements for the use of technical specialists to accomplish the auditing of Quality Assurance programs. Personnel selected for Quality Assurance auditing assignments will have experience or training commensurate with the scope, complexity or special nature of the activities to be audited. Auditors either will have or will be given appropriate training or orientation to develop their competence to perform required audits. The competence of personnel to perform the various auditing functions will be developed by one or more of the methods listed below.

1.1.1 ORIENTATION

Orientation to provide a working knowledge and understanding of this document and the auditing organization's procedures for implementing audits and reporting results.

1.1.2 <u>TRAINING PROGRAMS</u>

Training programs to provide general and specialized training in audit performance. General training will include fundamentals, objectives, characteristics, organization, performance and results of quality auditing. Specialized training will include methods of examining, questioning, evaluating and documenting specific audit items and methods of closing audit findings.

1.1.3 <u>ON-THE-JOB-TRAINING</u>

On-the-job-training, guidance and counseling under the direct supervision of a Lead Auditor. Such training will include planning, performing, reporting and follow-up action involved in conducting audits.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX F

1.2 QUALIFICATION OF LEAD AUDITORS

An individual will meet the requirements listed below before being designated a Lead Auditor:

1.2.1 <u>COMMUNICATION SKILLS</u>

The prospective Lead Auditor will have the capability to communicate effectively, both orally and in writing. These skills will be attested to in writing by the Lead Auditor's employer.

1.2.2 TRAINING

Prospective Lead Auditors will have training to the extent necessary to ensure their competence in auditing skills. Training in the following areas will be given based upon management evaluation of the particular needs of each prospective Lead Auditor:

- o Knowledge and understanding of this document, 10 CFR Part 60, and other nuclear and/or DOE related codes, standards, regulations and regulatory guides, as applicable to the Yucca Mountain Project.
- o General structure of Quality Assurance programs and applicable elements as defined in this document.
- o Auditing techniques of examining, questioning, evaluating and reporting; methods of identifying and following up on corrective action items; and closing out audit findings.
- Audit planning in the functions related to quality for the following activities: site characterization (scientific investigations), design, purchasing, fabrication, handling, shipping, storage, cleaning, erection, installation, inspection, testing, statistics, nondestructive examination, maintenance, repair, operation, modification of nuclear facilities or associated components, and safety aspects of the nuclear facility.
- o On-the-job-training to include applicable elements of the audit program.

1.2.3 AUDIT PARTICIPATION

The prospective Lead Auditor will have participated in a minimum of five Quality Assurance audits within a period of time not to exceed

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX F

three years prior to the date of qualification. One of the audits will be a nuclear Quality Assurance audit that will be made within the year prior to qualification.

1.2.4 EXAMINATION

The prospective Lead Auditor will pass an examination that will evaluate his comprehension of and ability to apply the body of knowledge identified in Paragraph 1.2.2 above. The test may be oral, written, practical, or any combination of the three types. If any portion of the examination is oral, written documentation of the oral examination questions/content will be maintained. The development and administration of the examination will be in accordance with Paragraph 1.4 of this section.

1.3 MAINTENANCE OF QUALIFICATION

1.3.1 MAINTENANCE OF PROFICIENCY

Lead Auditors will maintain their proficiency through regular and active participation in the audit process; review and study of codes, standards, procedures, instructions, and other documents related to quality assurance program and program auditing; and participation in training programs. Based on annual assessment, management may extend the qualification, require retraining, or require requalification. These evaluations will be documented.

1.3.2 REQUALIFICATION

Lead Auditors who fail to maintain their proficiency for a period of two years or more will require requalification. Requalification will include retraining in accordance with the requirements of Paragraph 1.2.2 of this section, reexamination in accordance with Paragraph 1.4.2, and participation as an Auditor in at least one nuclear Quality Assurance audit.

1.4 ADMINISTRATION

1.4.1 ORGANIZATIONAL RESPONSIBILITY

Training of auditors will be the responsibility of the employer. The responsible auditing organization will select and assign personnel who are independent of any direct responsibility for the performance of the activities that they will audit. The Lead Auditor will, prior to commencing the audit, concur that assigned personnel collectively have experience or training commensurate with the scope, complexity, or special nature of the activities to be audited.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX F

1.4.2 QUALIFICATION EXAMINATION

The development and administration of the examination for a Lead Auditor required by Paragraph 1.2.4 is the responsibility of the employer. The employer may delegate this activity to an independent certifying agency, but will retain responsibility for conformance to this document of the examination and its administration. Integrity of the examination will be maintained by the employer or certifying agency through appropriate confidentiality of files and, where applicable, proctoring of examinations. Copies of objective evidence regarding the type or types and content of the examination or examinations will be retained by the employer.

1.5 <u>CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATIONS</u>

Each Lead Auditor will be certified by his employer as being qualified to lead audits. As a minimum, this certification will document the following:

- o Employer's name
- o Lead Auditor's name.
- o Date of certification or recertification.
- o Basis of qualification (i.e., education, experience, communication skills, training, examination, etc.).
- o Signature of employer's designated representative who is responsible for such certification.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

I

APPENDIX H

REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPUTER SOFTWARE USED TO SUPPORT A HIGH-LEVEL NUCLEAR WASTE REPOSITORY LICENSE APPLICATION

This appendix provides detailed requirements for the development, maintenance, and security of computer software. It supplements Section III of this QAPP and shall be used in conjunction with that section.

1.0 OBJECTIVES

The purpose of this appendix is to establish requirements for the development, management, control, and documentation of software used to support the Yucca Mountain Project. The attainment of software quality is dependent on the control of the entire software development process, and is not assured solely by inspection and test of the end product. This appendix prescribes appropriate systematic practices that shall:

- o Reduce the likelihood of defects entering executable code during development.
- o Ensure that the end product answers the requirements of its intended application.
- o Reduce the likelihood that defects will be introduced into executable code during later maintenance and modification.

2.0 <u>APPLICABILITY</u>

The detailed requirements set forth in this appendix apply to computer software used to produce or manipulate data which is used directly in site characterization, and the design, analysis, performance assessment, and operation of repository structures, systems, and components. The extent to which these requirements apply is related to the nature, complexity, and importance of the software application. The application of specific requirements shall be prescribed in plan(s) for software Quality Assurance and in written policies and procedures.

3.0 TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Terms and definitions for Yucca Mountain Project software are contained in Appendix A to this QAPP.

4.0 <u>SOFTWARE LIFE CYCLE</u>

Organizations implementing software development activities shall adhere to a software life cycle model that requires that software development or acquisition proceed in a traceable, planned, and orderly manner. The relative emphasis placed on each phase of the software development cycle will depend on the nature and complexity of the software being developed.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX H

Each phase of the software development cycle shall provide specific attributes that shall be incorporated into verification and validation activities. The documentation for each phase of the software development cycle shall be reviewed and approved as specified in the software Quality Assurance Plan. An example of one such model is described below:

<u>Requirements</u>

<u>Desian</u>

Implementation

Test

Installation and Checkout

Operation_and Maintenance

1

4.1 <u>Software QA Plan</u>

The application of the software life cycle to the development and/or use of the software shall be as described in the Software Quality Assurance Plan.

- 4.1.1 A software QA plan shall be prepared for each software development/application effort at the start of the software life cycle. This plan may be prepared individually for each piece of software or may exist as a generic document to be applied to all software prepared within an organization. The software QA plan shall identify:
 - o The software products to which it applies.
 - The organizations responsible for software quality `and their tasks and responsibilities.
 - o Required documentation.
 - o The required software reviews.

The software QA Plan should reference any standards, conventions, techniques or methodologies which guide the software development and describe methods to assure compliance to the same.

4.1.2 Within the software QA Plan, software life cycle management shall be described. F&S shall present the specific software life cycle controls for their organization in their software QA Plan. The following life cycle elements shall apply, as appropriate, for the specific life cycle model defined, interpreted, and described in the F&S software QA Plan.
QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX H

4.1.2.1 <u>Requirements Phase</u>

During this phase requirements that pertain to functionality, performance, design constraints, attributes, and external interfaces of the completed software shall be specified, documented, and reviewed. These requirements shall possess the following characteristics:

- o A format and language that is understood by the programming organization and the user.
- o Enough detail to allow for objective verification.
- o Adequate definition to provide for the response of the software to the identified input data.
- o The information necessary to design the software without prescribing the software design itself.

4.1.2.2 Design Phase

During the design phase a software design based on the requirements shall be specified, documented, and systematically reviewed. The design shall specify the overall structure re-(control and data flow), and the reduction of the overall structure into physical solutions (algorithms, equations, control logic, and data structures). The design may necessitate the modification of the requirements documentation.

Design phase verification and validation activities during this phase shall consist of:

- o The generation of design-based test cases.
- o The review and analysis of the software design.
- o The verification of the software design.

4.1.2.3 <u>Implementation Phase</u>

During this phase the design shall be translated into a programming language and the implemented software shall be debugged. Only minor, if any, design issues shall be resolved at this phase.

Verification and validation activities during this phase shall consist of:

o The possible modification of test cases necessary due to design changes made during coding.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

<u>APPENDIX H</u>

o The examination of source code listings to assure adherence to coding standards and conventions.

4.1.2.4 <u>Testing Phase</u>

During the testing phase the design as implemented in code shall be exercised by executing the test cases. Failure to successfully execute the test cases may require the modification of the requirements, the design, the implementation, or the test plans and test cases.

Verification and validation activities during this phase shall consist of:

- o The evaluation of the completed software to assure adherence to the requirements.
- o The preparation of a report on the results of software verification and validation.

4.1.2.5 Installation and Checkout Phase

During this phase the software becomes part of a system incorporating other software components, the hardware, and production data. The process of integrating the software with other components may consist of installing hardware, installing the program, reformatting or creating databases, and verifying that all components have been included. Testing activities during this phase shall consist of the execution of test cases for installation and integration. Test cases from earlier phases shall be enhanced and used for installation testing.

4.1.2.6 <u>Operations and Maintenance Phase</u>

During the operations and maintenance phase the software has been approved for operational use. Further activity shall consist of maintenance of the software to remove latent errors (corrective maintenance), to respond to new or revised requirements (perfective maintenance), or to adapt the software to changes in the software environment (adaptive maintenance). Software modifications shall be approved, documented, tested (including regression testing as appropriate), and controlled in accordance with Paragraph 5.0.

5.0 SOFTWARE VERIFICATION AND VALIDATION

Verification and validation plans by the responsible project organization shall employ methods such as inspection, analysis, demonstration, and test to assure that the software adequately and correctly performs all intended functions, and that the software does not perform any function that either by itself or in combination with other functions can degrade the entire system.

I

1

I

APPENDIX H

Verification and validation activities shall be planned and performed relative to specific hardware configurations. The amount of verification and validation activity shall be determined by the type and complexity of the software. Prior to use for a licensing activity verification and validation of the final version of the software product shall be accomplished by an independent individual or organization, one who did not work on the original software. The results of all verification and validation activities shall be documented.

Verification and/or validation of computer software should be performed in two stages:

- 1. By the individual generating or modifying the software.
- 2. By an independent individual or organization, one who did not work on the original software.

The first stage should involve activities (i.e., iterations of tests and runs) to arrive at a final product. It is not required to document all of the activities performed to satisfy the software developer.

5.1 <u>Verification</u>

Verification activities shall be integrated into all applicable phases of the software life cycle and shall be performed to an extent proportional to the critical importance of the software. Software verification shall be performed to assure that the software requirements are implemented in the software design, and the software design is implemented in code. Appropriate methods such as inspection, analysis, test, or demonstration shall be applied to accomplish verification objectives.

5.2 <u>Validation</u>

Validation activities are performed to demonstrate that the model as embodied in the computer software is a correct representation of the process or system for which it is intended. This is accomplished by comparing software results against verified and traceable data obtained from laboratory experiments, field experiments or observations, or in situ testing. Specific sets of data used in the validation process shall be identified and justification shall be made for their use.

When data are not available from the sources mentioned above, alternative approaches used shall be documented. Alternative approaches may include peer review and comparisons with the results of similar analysis performed with verified software. The results of the validation shall be documented.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

1

I

ł

APPENDIX H

6.0 SOFTWARE CONFIGURATION MANAGEMENT

A software configuration management system shall be established to assure positive identification of software and control of all software baseline changes.

6.1 <u>Configuration Identification</u>

A configuration baseline shall be identified at the completion of each major phase of the software development cycle. Approved changes to a baseline shall be added periodically to the baseline as updates. A baseline plus updates shall specify the most recent software configuration. Updates shall be incorporated into subsequent baselines. Both baselines and updates shall be defined by their composition of software configuration items.

A labeling system for configuration items shall be implemented that:

- o Uniquely identifies each configuration item or version number.
- o Identifies changes to configuration items by revision.
- o Places the configuration item in a relationship with other configuration items.

6.2 <u>Configuration Change Control</u>

Changes to baseline software configuration items shall be formally documented. This documentation shall contain a description of the change, the identification of the originating organization, the rationale for the change, and the identification of affected baselines and software configuration items. The change should be formally evaluated by a qualified individual or organization with the ability to approve or disapprove the proposed change. Assurance shall be provided that only authorized changes are made to software baselines and software configuration items.

6.3 <u>Configuration Status Accounting</u>

The information that is needed to manage software configuration items shall be recorded and reported. This information shall include a listing of the approved configuration identification, the status of proposed changes to the configuration, the implementation status of approve changes, and all information to support the functions of configuration identification, and configuration control.

7.0 DOCUMENTATION

Minimum acceptable life cycle documentation of computer software developed or modified for use on the Yucca Mountain Project shall be specified in the software QA Plan. The documentation provided shall

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX H

describe the following as applicable. Additional documentation may also be identified in the software quality assurance plan for F&S.

7.1 <u>Software Requirements Specification</u>

A specific capability of software can be called a requirement only if its achievement can be verified by a prescribed method. Soft-ware requirements documentation shall outline the requirements that the proposed software must fulfill. The requirements shall address the following:

- o Functionality the functions the software are to perform.
- o Performance The time-related issues of software operation such as speed, recovery time, response time, etc.
- o Design constraints imposed on implementation any elements that will restrict design options.
- o Attributes non-time-related issues of software operation such as portability, correctness, security, maintainability, etc.
- o External Interfaces -interactions with other participants, hardware, and other software.

7.2 <u>Software Design Documentation</u>

Software design documentation is a document or series of documents that shall contain:

- o A description of the major components of the software design as they relate to the requirements of the software requirements specification.
- A technical description of the software with respect to control flow, data flow, control logic, and data structure.
- A description of the allowable and tolerable ranges for inputs and outputs.
- The design described in a manner that is easily traceable to the software requirements.
- Code assessments and support documentation and descriptions of mathematical models and numerical methods as required by NRC publication NUREG-0856.
- o Continuing documentation, code listings, and software summary forms as required by NUREG-0856.



QAPP-002, REV. 6

I

I

t

APPENDIX H

7.3 Software Implementation Documentation

Any design changes made to the requirement and design phase documents shall be assessed as to the impact on the design. The revised requirement and design phase documents shall be reviewed to the same level of review as the original documents. The results of this phase should be the basis for the software verification and validation plan(s).

7.4 Software Verification and Validation Documentation (Test)

Software verification and validation documentation shall include a plan that described the tasks and criteria for accomplishing the verification of the software in each phase, and the validation of the software. The documentation shall also specify the hardware and system software configuration pertinent to the software. The documentation shall be organized in a manner that allows traceability to both the software requirements and the software design. This documentation will also include a report on the results of the execution of the software verification and validation activities. This report shall include the results of all reviews, audits, and tests, and a summary of the status of the software.

7.5 <u>User Documentation</u>

User documentation shall be prepared in accordance with NUREG-0856 and shall include a description of:

- o Program considerations, options, and initialization procedures.
- o Anticipated error situations and how the user can correct them.
- o Internal and external data files, their input sequence, structures, units, and ranges.
- o Input and output options, defaults, and formats.
- o System interface features and limitations.
- o Information for obtaining user and maintenance support.
- o Sample problems.

8.0 <u>REVIEWS</u>

Reviews of software development activity shall be performed as each life cycle phase is completed to assure the completeness and integrity of each phase of development. The procedures used for reviews shall identify the participants and their specific responsibilities during the review and in the preparation and distribution of the review report.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

<u>APPENDIX H</u>

The documentation for all reviews shall contain a record of review comments, a plan, and timetable for the resolution of the review comments, and the personnel responsible for this resolution.

After review comments are resolved, the approved documents shall be updated and placed under configuration management.

8.1 <u>Software Requirements Review</u>

The review of software requirements shall be performed at the completion of the software requirements documentation. This review shall assure that the requirements are complete, verifiable, and consistent. The review shall also assure that there is sufficient detail available to complete the software design.

8.2 <u>Software Design Review</u>

The software design review will be held at the completion of the software design documentation. This review shall evaluate the technical adequacy of the design approach, and assure that the design answers all the requirements in the requirements documentation. The complexity of the software design may require the performance of two design reviews; one at the completion of the over-all software architecture, and the second at the completion of the total design.

8.3 <u>Software Implementation Review</u>

The software implementation review is an evaluation of the completed requirements, design, and implementation process prior to independent verification and validation.

8.4 Software Verification and Validation Review

The software verification and validation review is an evaluation of the adequacy of verification and validation plans or procedures and completed software verification and validation activities. The review results in an approval of verification and validation documentation.

9.0 DISCREPANCY REPORTING AND CORRECTIVE ACTION

A formal procedure of software discrepancy reporting and corrective action shall be established. This discrepancy reporting system shall be integrated with the configuration management system to assure formal processing of discrepancy resolutions.

Software discrepancy reporting and corrective action procedures shall assure that, as a minimum:

QAPP-002, REV. 6

ł

t

APPENDIX H

- o Defects are documented and corrected.
- o Defects are assessed for criticality and impacted as previous applications.
- o Corrections are reviewed and approved before changes to the software configuration are made.
- o Preventative and corrective actions provide for appropriate notification of affected organizations.

10.0 MEDIA CONTROL AND SECURITY

Physical media containing the images of software shall be physically protected to prevent their inadvertent damage or degradation.

11.0 ACQUIRED SOFTWARE

Procedures shall be established for controlling the transfer of computer software from an outside source to a user organization and from a user organization to an outside requesting organization.

Software transfer requests of the organization (or purchases) from an outside source shall include appropriate criteria to enable the software received to comply, as mush as possible, with the requirements of this QAPP and the needs of the organization's computer system. Those requirements not met by the software received shall be completed by the organization in the relative phase of the software life cycle that is incomplete or, if that is not possible, the reason shall be documented and maintained with the software and distributed to the users.

Configuration management change controls shall be established for documenting the conversion of software to be used on a computer system, and/or peripheral hardware, other than that for which it was Conversion includes all modifications and tests made to designed. input/output or the source code or additional software written to run the original software on the new system. Software conversion shall version of the specific be documented and maintained for the which it is installed. software and the computer system on Software conversion changes shall be evaluated and activities performed in accordance with the appropriate configuration management system elements.

12.0 COMPUTER SOFTWARE APPLICATIONS

F&S shall establish procedures for controlling the application of verified and/or validated computer software to technical calculations in support of site characterization or design, analysis, performance assessment, and operation of repository structures, systems, and components.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX H

F&S shall establish procedures for documenting and reviewing software application and analyses and assuring that all results are accurate and reproducible. Requirements shall be established for identifying or otherwise marking record copies of all analyses and supporting documentation. Supporting documentation includes computer output (results), code input data including data bases and original sources/references of and assumptions used to obtain such data, code design, user's and/or operation manuals, verification/validation test results and/or hand calculations.

Technical calculations using software shall be performed with applicable computer codes and with software operating procedures defined sufficiently to allow independent repetition of the entire computation.

Controls shall be established for generating and documenting software used to perform technical calculations. All auxiliary software used should be included in documentation of technical calculations performed and shall be included in independent review as part of the calculation.

All applications of computer software shall be independently reviewed and approved to assure that the software selected is applicable to the problem being solved and that all input data and assumptions are valid and traceable.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX J

REQUIREMENTS FOR PEER REVIEW

1.0 GENERAL

This appendix provides the requirements regarding the applicability of peer reviews, the structure of peer review groups, acceptability of peers, and the conduct and documentation of peer reviews.

2.0 <u>APPLICABILITY OF PEER REVIEW</u>

- 2.1 A peer review shall be used when the adequacy of information (e.g., data, interpretations, test results, design assumptions, etc.) or the suitability of procedures and methods essential to showing that the repository system meets or exceeds its performance requirements with respect to safety and waste isolation cannot otherwise be established through testing, alternate calculations or reference to previously established standards and practices.
- 2.2 In general, the following conditions are indicative of situations in which a peer review shall be considered:
 - a. Critical interpretations or decisions will be made in the face of significant uncertainty, including the planning for data collection, research, or exploratory testing.
 - b. Decisions or interpretations having significant impact on performance assessment conclusions will be made.
 - c. Novel or beyond the state-of-the-art testing, plans and procedures, or analyses are or will be utilized.
 - d. Detailed technical criteria or standard industry procedures do not exist or are being developed.
 - e. Results of tests are not reproducible or repeatable.
 - f. Data or interpretations are ambiguous.
 - g. Data adequacy is questionable--such as, data may not have been collected in conformance with an established QA program.
- 2.3 A peer review shall be used when the adequacy of a critical body of information can be established by alternate means, but there is disagreement within the cognizant technical community regarding the applicability or appropriateness of the alternate means.

3.0 <u>STRUCTURE OF PEER REVIEW_GROUP</u>

3.1 The number of peers comprising a peer review group shall vary commensurate with the following:

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX J

- a. The complexity of the work to be reviewed.
- b. Its importance to establishing that safety or waste isolation performance goals are met.
- c. The number of technical disciplines involved.
- d. The degree to which uncertainties in the data or technical approach exist.
- e. The extent to which differing viewpoints are strongly held within the applicable technical and scientific community concerning the issues under review.
- 3.2 The collective technical expertise and qualifications of peer review group members shall span the technical issues and areas involved in the work to be reviewed, including any differing bodies of scientific thought. The potential for technical or organizational partiality shall be minimized by selecting peers to provide a balanced peer review group. Technical areas more central to the work to be reviewed shall receive proportionally more representation in the peer review group.

4.0 ACCEPTABILITY OF PEERS

- 4.1 The technical qualification of the peer reviewers, in their review areas, shall be at least equivalent to that needed for the original work under review and shall be the primary consideration in the selection of peer reviewers. Each peer shall have recognized and verifiable technical credentials in the technical area that the peer has been selected to review.
- 4.2 Members of the peer review group shall be independent of the original work to be reviewed. Independence in this case means that the peer was not involved as a participant, supervisor, technical reviewer, or advisor in the work being reviewed, and to the extent practical, has sufficient freedom from funding considerations to assure the work is impartially reviewed. In some cases (i.e. finding considerations) it may be difficult to meet the independence criteria without reducing the technical quality of the peer review. When the independence criteria cannot be met, a documented rationale shall be included in the peer review report.

5.0 <u>PEER REVIEW PROCESS</u>

5.1 Since the peer review process may vary from case to case, a peer review plan shall be prepared prior to initiating a peer review. The peer review plan shall describe the work to be reviewed, the size and spectrum of the peer review group., and the suggested method and schedule necessary to produce a peer review report.

QAPP-002, REV. 6

APPENDIX J

T

- 5.2 The peer review group shall evaluate and report on:
 - a. Validity of assumptions.
 - b. Alternate interpretations.
 - c. Uncertainty of results and consequences if incorrect.
 - d. Appropriateness and limitations of methodology and procedures.
 - e. Adequacy of application.
 - f. Accuracy of calculations.
 - g. Validity of conclusions.
 - h. Adequacy of requirements and criteria.

Documentation shall be prepared to indicate the results of meetings, deliberations, and activities of the peer review process.

6.0 PEER REVIEW REPORT

- 6.1 A report documenting the results of the peer review shall be prepared and issued under the direction of the peer review group chairperson and shall be signed by each peer review group member. The peer review report shall include the following:
 - a. A clear description of the work or issue that was peer reviewed.
 - b. Conclusions reached by the peer review process.
 - c. Individual statements by peer review group members reflecting dissenting views or additional comments, as appropriate.
 - d. Listing of the peers and the technical qualification and evidence of independence for each peer, including potential technical and/or organizational partiality.
- Note: Additional guidance related to this subject can be found in NUREG-1297, "PEER REVIEW FOR HIGH LEVEL NUCLEAR WASTE REPOSITORIES" (FEBRUARY, 1988).

GA COMPLIANCE RE	VIEW CHI	ECKLIST	<u></u>			1	N-QA 12/88	030
WMPO/QASC File No.						Page	of	244
Organization Fenix & Scisson Inc. QA Document's Tille, No.	Revision <u>F</u>	15 Quality	Assurance Progi	rom Plai	- OV	PP-DD Revis		2
Date Received 12/30/88 Reviewed By K.M. Lu	NUEDTON	lin	Zet Da	to Davies		intere il vileo	<u>1961</u>	<u> </u>
Review Comments: 1.1 Yes XI No Date Comments Returned to Org.	4	Comment	· Pecolvert Rv		1/1	Hereu Trijar		
	T		i nosulvou uy	<u> </u>	<u>~/~</u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	TRev	view
		Review	/ Results		rganiza	lion's Resolution	Dis	500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	ACL	Rej.
SECTION I				111	ł		T '	
ORGANIZATION				x'				
1.0 QUALITY ASSURANCE RESPONSIBILITIES OF PROJECT PARTICIPANTS				[]]			'	
(1) The Nevada Muclear Neste Storage Investigations (NANSI) Project [Participants shall be responsible for the establishment and execution of a Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP). (2) The participants may delegate to Z others, such as contractors, egents, or consultants, the work of establishing 3 and executing the Quality Assurance (QA) program, or any part thereof, but shall retain the responsibility therefore. (3) The delegation of execution of the QA Program Plan requirements shall be documented. (4) The organizational structure, lines of communication, authority and duties of persons and oryanizations performing activities affecting quality shall be clearly established and delineated in writing. (5) These activities affecting quality include both the performing functions of staining quality objectives and the QA functions. (6) While the line organization is responsible for performing	.1 .1 .1 .1 .1 .1							
these activities properly, the GA organization shall varify the proper performance of work through implementation of appropriate GA controls. 2.0 GA FUNCTIONS (7) The GA functions are those of assuring that an appropriate GA program is established and executed effectively and of verifying, such as by checking, auditing, surveillance and inspection, that activities that affect the quality functions have been performed correctly. (8) The persons and organizations per- forming GA functions shall have sufficient authority, access to work areas, and organizational freedom to identify quality problems; to initiate, recommend, or provide solutions through designated channels; to verify	.Z .Z		•					



N-QA-030 12/88

							Page 7	of 7	मम
			Review	Results	0	rgani	ization's Resolution	Revi Dis	iew po.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsal Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
implementation of the solutions; and to assure that further processing, delivery, installation, or use is controlled until proper disposition of a nonconformance, deficiency, or unsatisfactory condition has occurred. (9)This includes the ability to stop (or cause to be stopped) unsatisfactory work through established channels. (10)Such persons or organizations shall have direct access to responsible management at a level where appropriate action can be effected and shall report to a management level at which this required authority and organizational freedom are provided, including sufficient independence from cost and achedule.	9 10	1,Z 1,Z			X				
2.1 DEDICATED GA POSITIONS									
(13) The person responsible for directing and managing the overall NAMSI Project Participant QA program shall be identified and have appropriate organ- izational position, responsibilities, and authority to exercise proper control over the QA program. (12) This person shall have appropriate management and QA knowledge and experience and shall be at the same or higher organization level as the highest line manager responsible for performing activities affecting quality and sufficiently independent from cost and schedule. (13) Personnel in this position shall have responsibility for approval of (1)	 Z 3	1.2.1 1.2.1							
QAPPs, changes thereto, and interpretations thereof and (2) implementing procedures and all changes thereto. (14)This position shall have effective communication channels with other senior management positions. (15)Personnel in this position shall have the responsibility and authority to verify the adequacy and effectiveness of QA plans, requirements, and QA program implemen- tation by that organization and its subordinate organizations. (16)Pull-time dedicated QA positions are to be established by the Maste Hanagement Project Office (MMPO), Participating Organizations, and the Newada Tests Site (MTS)	14 15 16	1.2.1 1.2.1 1.1.11			·				

N-QA 030 12/88

.

			Review	Results		Organ	nization's Resolution	Re	viev
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	-	Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Ī
Support Contractors. (17)The management position that retains overall authority and responsibility for the GA Programs as well as personnel considered to be "full-time dedicated" shall not be assigned duties that would prevent full attention to NRMSI Project GA responsibilities or that would con- flict with the reporting and resolution of GA issues and problems related to the NRMSI Project.	17	1.2.1			** *				
2.2 NUTHORITY (19) Authority for the resolution of disputes involving quality arising from a difference of opinion between QA personnel and others shall be identified. (19) This authority shall include the ability of QA personnel to elevate the resolution of disputes to progressively higher organization levels through established channels including the WEFO PQH, if the dispute cannot be resolved within the organization.	18 19	1.2.2 1.2.2		•					
2.3 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE (20) Because of the many variables involved, such as the number of personnel, the type of activity being performed, and the location or locations at which the activities are to be performed, the organizational structure for executing the QA program may take various forms provided that the persons and organizations assigned the QA functions have the required authority and organi- sational freedom. (21) the QA responsibilities of all organizational elements depicted on organization charts shall be described.	20 21	. . Thru 1,1.11 . . Thru . .11		۰.					

1

N-QA 030 12/88

			······				Page <u>4</u>	of 3	मम
			Røview	Results		Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No ·	Comments	Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
					X				
					ila	ł			
					[]				i i
3.0 QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM PLAN						{		ł	
(22)A Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP) shall apply to all items and activities of an organization affecting quality. (23)The organizational structure and the responsibility of assignments shall be clearly established such that certain results, as described below, are obtained.	72 23	1.3 1.3							
3.1 ACHIEVENENT AND HAINTENANCE OF QUALITY								1	
(24)Quality is achieved and maintained by those who have been assigned responsibility for performing work.	24	1.3.1							
3.2 VERIFICATION									
(25)Quality achievement is verified by persons or organizations not directly responsible for performing the work, (26)Verification of conformance to established requirements (acceptance) is accomplished by individuals or groups within the QA organization unless specifically exempted elsewhere in this document.	2 <i>5</i> 26	1.3.2 1.3.2							
4.0 HULTIPLE ORGANIZATIONS									
(27) If more than one organization is involved in the execution of activities affecting quality, then the responsibility and authority of each organization shall be established clearly and documented.	27	1.4							
					N	X			

N-QA 030 12/88

		T					Page <u>5</u>	01 3	तत
			Review	Results	C	Irgani	zation's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
<section-header><text><text></text></text></section-header>	28 29 30 31 32 33	1.4.1 1.4.1 1.4.1 1.4.2 1.4.2	Para. No		X		Reason		<u>Rej</u>

-

.

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page 6	of Z	44
		Review	w Results	c	Irgani	ization's Resolution	Rev	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NWWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat. Para	lo. Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej	Reason	Acı.	Rej
SECTION II GUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM 1.0 EXTENT OF THE QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM (1) The Quality Assurance (QA) Program for the NMMSI Project consists of the NMMSI Quality Assurance Plan (QAP), the QA Program Plans of the Names Hana- symmet Project Office (NMPO), the Participating Organizations, and the Newsda test Site (NTS) Support Contractors, and the QA and technical procedures required to implement these documents. (2) The NMMSI Project Office will submit this QAP and the NMPO QAPE to the OCHMH Director, Office of Quality Assurance for approval. (3)Pending receipt of this approval, QA plans may be issued by NMPO for interim use. (4)When any QA plan is issued for interim use, the transmittal record shall be appropriately marked to indicate that it is for interim use. (5)Final QA plans will include a signature block for approval by the Director, Office of Quality Assurance.	1 9MP 2 9MP 3 9MP 4 9MP 5 9MP			X				
(6)Each NAMSI Project Participant shall develop a Quality Assurance Program Plan which shall provide the description of the organization's QA program and indicate the commitment to the applicable NAMSI Project QA require- ments given herein. (7)Each Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP) shall incl- ude consideration of the technical aspects of the activities affecting quality and shall be generated by the respective QA organization with assistance from the technical staff. (8)The QAPP shall provide instruction to implement and apply the QA requirements to the technical activities of the NAMSI Project. (9)It shall be planned, implemented, and maintained in accordance with this document and be consistent with and address all of the applicable requirements of this NAMSI QA Plan. (10)Management above or outside of the QA organization	6 2.1 7 2.1 8 2.1 9 2.1 10 2.1							

N-QA 030 12/88

		·····				Page _7	of 7	244
			Review	Results	Organizat	ion's Resolution	De	5170.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat Paral No	Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Ace	Re
shall regularly receive information as to the scope, status, sdequecy, compliance, etc. of the QA Program. (11)Management shall perform readiness reviews, as deemed appropriate. (12)Readiness reviews shall apply to major scheduled/planned activities which could affect quality. (13)Readiness reviews shall be used in verifying that specified prerequisites and programmatic requirements have been identified prior to starting a major activity. (14)The hierarchy of criteria applicable to the Project are shown in Figure 1 of the Introduction of this document. (15)With the exception of the CFR, where deviations between the requirements of the higher-tier documents referenced in that Figure and this QAP exist, the requirements of this document shall prevail.	 2 3 4 5	2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1		Controlle	Kee X			
1.1 GA CRITERIA (16)The QA Criteria and apecific requirements associated with these criteria have been adapted to the NMNSI Project activities through this QA plan and shell be addressed in the QAPPs of the NMPO, the Participating Organi- tations, and MTS Support Contractors. (17)Mhen a specific criteria is not applicable to an organization's activities, it shall be noted in the QAPP and recorded on the checklist required in paragraph 1.2 below with justification of its exception.	16 17	2.1.1 2.1.1						
1.2 CONTENTS OF THE GAPP (18) The Quality Assurance Program of each organization shall consist of the GAPP plus appropriate implementing procedures required to provide and implement control over activities affecting quality. (19) The control shall be consistent with the importance of the activity. (20) These procedures shall be developed by qualified personnel and be reviewed and approved by the cognizant GA organization prior to implementation to assure that they meet all the req- uirements of their GAPP.	18 19 20	z.1.2 z.1.2		** u				

.

•

				Page 8	of 244
		Review Results	Organizati	ion's Resolution	Review Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, N	Unsat. – D. Para. No. – Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı. Rej
(21) The GAPP of each Participating Organization and NTS Support Contractor shall be submitted to the NHPO for review prior to implementation and shall include a checklist based on this NHMESI GAP which identifies how and where each requirement of this document is addressed. (22) The NHPO is also required to complete a checklist based on NHMESI/88-9 (formerly NVO-196-17) for the preparation of the NHPO GAPP. (23) The GAPP of each Project Participating Organization and NTS Support Contractor shall be reviewed, comments resolved, and the document approved by the NHPO within a timely manner.	21 Z.1.7 ZZ YNPO 23 Z.1.7		<u>III</u> X		
1.3 QAPP VERIFICATION (24)Assurance that the QA requirements have been adequately addressed and effectively implemented will be provided by the NEPO with support from the SAIC/TGHSS Project QA Department during the review and approval of each organ- ization's QAPP, monitoring and surveillance operations, and sudits of acti- vities. (25)The Participating Organizations' and NTS Support Contractors' munagement shall also monitor their respective QAPPs through internal sudits to assess the adequacy of their program and assure its effective implementation.	24 4MP0 25 2.1.3				
1.4 USE OF DATA NOT GENERATED UNDER GA CONTROLS (26) The QA program for the NNMSI Project provides for the acceptance of existing data for use in licensing activities that were not generated under the controls of a QA Program which meets the requirements of 10 CFR 60, Subpart G. (27) Specific methods for acceptance of this information are contained in NNMSI Project Administrative Procedure 5.9Q. (28) This procedure shall meet the requirements of NUREG - 1298 "Qualification of Existing Data for High-Level Nuclear Neste Repositories" (February, 1960). (29) These requirements are contained in Appendix G to this QA Plan. (30) Once accepted, this existing data is classified as "primary data" for licensing purposes.	26 27 28 29 30	Fis is not responsible for acceptance of da not generated ur QA controls.	tg vder		

N-QA 030 12/88

	·-·						Page 9	ol <u>2</u>	<u>. भ</u> य
			Review	Results		Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev	view 300.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
1.5 HETHODOLOGY FOR FORMULATING THE "Q" LIST AND QUALITY ACTIVITIES LIST (31) The MEPO shall prepare the appropriate NEMISI AP or APs for determining the items and activities to be placed on the Project Q-List and Quality Activities List. (32) Procedure(s) shall meet the requirements of NUREG - 1318, Technical Position on Items and Activities in the High-Lavel Maste Geologic Repository Program Subject to Quality Assurance Requirements" (April, 1988).	31 32	ч МРО Ч МРО		· · ·	× 14u				
These requirements are contained in Appendix I to this QA Plan. 1.6 APPROACH TO QA (33) The NAMSI Project uses an approach to QA that recognizes the differences between items and activities that affect radiological health and safety and waste isolation and those that do not. (34) The approach is designed to ensure that each item or activity is assigned a QA level that is consistent with its potential impact or importance, or both, in terms of radiological health and safety, waste isolation, nonradiological health and safety, the U.S. Huclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) licensing requirements, the operability and maintainability of the repository, costs, and schedules. (35) The Participating Organisations or WHO shall identify the appropriate quality assurance levels for all items and activities that affect quality associated with site characterization, facility and equipment construction, facility operations, performance confirmation, permenent closure, and decontamination and dismantling of surface facilities. (36)Once assigned, the QA level for a particular item or activity shall be applied by all NAMSI project participants involved in the activity.	33 34 35 36	2.1.6 2.1.6 2.1.6 2.1.6							

N-QA 030 12/88

		l					Page <u>10</u>	of Z	रमम
			Review	Results	c	rgani	zation's Resolution	Hev Dis	new Spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rei
				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1ml		1	1	
					X				
					1				
•			-					1	
1.7 APPLICATION OF QA									
(37)A QAPP that complies with the requirements of this document,	37							1	
NMHSI/88-9 (formerly NVO-196-17), shall be established by each NMHSI Participant at the applicate erabicable birs evaluate with the statistic	30	4,1,7							
accomplishing the activities. (38)Each QAPP shall assure that procedures	38	2,1:7							
required to implement the requirements of this document are properly documen-	39	2,1.7							
ted, controlled, and mandated through a policy statement or equivalent document signed by a responsible official. (39)The QAPP shall be applied	40	2,1,7							
throughout the life of the NHHSI Project in accordance with the established	41	2.1.7						[
and activities affecting quality. It also shall identify the major organiza-	42	7.1.7							
tions participating in the project and the designated functions of these	43	2.1.7							
the quality of the identified structures, systems, and components to an extent	44	2.1.7							
consistent with their importance. (42) The activities that affect quality shall		217							
be accomplished under suitably controlled conditions. (43)Controlled conditions include the use of appropriate equipment, suitable environmental	45	2.1.7							
conditions for accomplishing the activity, and assurance that all								ł	1.
prerequisites for the given activity have been satisfied. (44)The program shall take into account the need for special controls, processes, test] {				
equipment, tools, and skills to attain the required quality, and the need for									
verification of quality by inspection, test, peer review, or a combination of these. (45) The program shall provide for indeptrimation and as perseasery									
training of personnel performing activities that affect quality to assure that									
suitable proficiency is achieved and maintained.									
(46) The WHPO shall regularly assess the status and adequacy of the QA	46	2.1.7							
Programs of the Participating Organizations and NTS Support Contractors by means of overview, surveillance, and audit activities.								1	

						-	
·	1	Daviana Doortho		<u> </u>	Page <u>II</u>	of <u>2</u> Rev	(44 //ew
	6-1			xgan	ization's Resolution	Dis	SPO .
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Para. No.	Para. No Comments	Acc	Rej	Reason	Aci	Rej
2.1 SCORE 2.1 SCORE 2.1 SCORE 2.1 SCORE 2.1 SCORE 2.1 SCORE 2.1 SCORE 2.1 SCORE 4.1 EXTENT OF APPLICATION 4.1 DETENT OF APPLICATION 4.1 The requirements of this section are applicable (as defined herein) to 5.1 score and activities that affect quality during seologic repository site 5.1 score and activities that affect quality during seologic repository site 5.1 score and activities that affect quality during seologic repository site 5.1 score and activities that affect quality during seologic repository site 5.1 score performance confirmation, personnet closure, decominission 5.1 dismantling of surface facilities (40) The proparation of 5.1 sensings. In addition, procursment of administrative items (1.e., office 5.1 scores that be in consonance with the 0.4 requirements agecified herein. 5.1 they be necessary to exampt certain MMSI items and activities from 6.5 5.2 scores shall be in consonance of the sepolection of graded 0.4. (50) The pro- 5.2 scores shall be approved by the MED PROFEME	N/L YMPO YMPO YMPO YMPO YMPO	The requirements for Graded QA are the responsibility of th Principle Investigato	e si				
(53) The purpose of a graded QA program is to select the QA requirements and measures to be applied to items and activities in the Repository Program consistent with their importance to safety, waste isolation, and the achievement of U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) mission objectives. (54) This will be accomplished by deliberate quality planning and selective application of QA requirements on the item or activity to be performed, with varying degrees of QA applied depending on item function, complexity, consequence of failure, reliability, replicability of results, and economic considerations.	2.2. 2.2.]						

				Page 12	of Z	44
	·	Review Results	Organizatio	on's Resolution	Revi	iew DO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
Assurance Level and assigned QA requirements shall be documented. (62) The assigned Quality Assurance Levels and QA requirements must be submitted to the MMPO for review, resolution of comments, and approval prior to implementation or use. This review and approval shall be performed by the MMPO PQM and appropriate MMPO Branch Chiefs.	62 N/A	See Previous Page.	X III I			
2.2.2 SELECTION OF SPECIFIC QA LEVELS						
(63) This approach incorporates three quality assurance levels (QA level) of which one will be assigned to each technical task that affects the quality of the NAMSI Project. (64) The definition, application, and assignment to each of the three QA levels are described in the following discussion.	63 z.z.z.1 64 z.z.z.1					
2.2.2.1 (65)QA Level I - are those radiological health and safety related itums and activities that are important to either safety or waste isolation and that are associated with the ability of a geologic nuclear waste repository to function in a manner that prevents or mitigates the consequences of a process or event that could cause undue risk to the radiological health and safety of the public.	65 2.2.2.1					
(66)Items and activities important to safety are those engineered structures, systems, components, and related activities essential to the prevention or mitigation of an accident that could result in a statistic dose wither to the whole body or to any organ of 0.5 rem or greater either at or beyond the nearest boundary of the unrestricted area at any time until the completion of the permanent closure of the repository. (67)Items and activities important to waste isolation are those barriers and related activities which must meet the criteria that address post-closure performance of the engineered and natural barriers to inhibit the release of radionuclides. (60)The criteria for items or activities important to safety and waste isolation are found in IOCTR60, and 40CTR191.	66 2.2.2.1 67 2.2.2.1 68 2.1.2.1					

4

								Page <u>13</u>	of	244
			Review	Results		0	Organi	zation's Resolution	fte Di	view spo.
 Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No	Commen	is	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
2.1.3 DETERMINATION OF THE DEGREE TO WHICH APPLICATION IS NECESSARY (55) This approach involves (1) identifying those items and activities whose failure could cause undue risks to the public and facility personnel or	55	2.2.1			;	XIV				
excended interruption of facility operation with critical economic losses, or both, and (2) ensuring that these items and activities are covered by a commensurate QA program. (56)Alternatively, an item whose failure or maifunction could result only in operational inconvenience or negligible economic loss may deserve only a quality inspection by the purchaser upon the delivery of the item. (57)Between these two extremes, there are varying degrees of QA to achieve the desired confidence in the quality of the completed line of activity.	56	z,z, Z,2,								
2.1.4 FLEXIBILITY OF GA REQUIREMENT SELECTION (58) The graded approach set forth here provides flexibility in the selection of the quality assurance requirements to be applied to an item or activity that is commensurate with the relative importance of the role or function assigned to the item or activity.	58	2,2,1								•
2.2 REQUIREMENTS						.				
(59)The requirements specified in this section are to be used to apply the graded quality philosophy to all NMMCI Project items and activities.	59	2,2,2								
2.2.1 SELECTION OF QUALITY ASSURANCE LEVEL AND QA REQUIREMENTS			FHS does	not have	the.					
(60)The appropriate Quality Assurance Level for any item or activity shall be determined by the application of decision criteria as provided by the NAMSI Administrative Procedures. (61)The basis for the selection of the Quality	(0 61	N/A N/A	respons) Selection but will assigned particu	bility for of QA accept by the nating Or	Levels the levels	V				

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							Page <u>14</u>	of Z	44
			Review	Results		Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rei
2.2.2.2 OA Level II -(59)are those activities and items related to the systems, structures, and components which require a level of quality assurance sufficient to provide for reliability, maintainability, public and repository worker nonradiological health and safety, repository worker rediological health and safety, repository worker rediological health and safety and other operational factors that would have an impact on DC and WEO concerns, and the environment. 2.2.3 OA Level III -(70)are those activities and items not classified as OA levels I or II. 2.3.1 OA LEVEL III -(70)are those activities and items not classified as OA levels I or II. 2.3.3 APPLICATION OF LEVELS 2.3.1 OA LEVEL I OA Level I is the most stringent level of quality assurance. (72) It is to be applied to those items and activities thet may affect the ability of the repository to meet the preciouse and postclosure performance objectives for the NRC and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for protecting public health and safety from radiological hearerds. (73)(A Level I activities which are on the U-List will provide the primary data input to the protecting public bealth and safety from radiological hearerds. (73)(A Level I activities which are on the U-List will provide the primary data input to the protecting public bealth and safety from radiological hearerds. (73)(A Level I activities which are on the U-List will provide the primary data input to the protecting public bealth and safety from radiological hearerds. (73)(A Level I activities, including site characterization, scientific in activities, and edimentific on protecting adoption facility and equipment design, procurement, and consumption and dismantling of surface facilities when they are specifically concerned with the protection of the public's health and safety with respect to a radiological hearerd.	69 70 71-89	z.z.z. z.z.z. N/A	FtS is for the GA Lev apply assigne Partic Organi	not responsible. Selection c els. FtS will GA Levels c ipating zations	e f s				

N-QA 030 12/88

.

						Page 15	of Z	<u> ५५</u>
		Review R	esuits	C	rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev Dis	ięw po.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
.				X 14	/			
(75)To keep radionuclides out of man's environment, a high level radio- active waste repository will utilize engineered systems, structures, and compo- nents to contain the waste and ensure the short-term safety. (76)The repos- itory also will utilize the natural barriers to afford long-term isolation. (77)Within this context, QA Level I must be applied for near-term safety as well as long term isolation as per the following:		See item	, 7 1					
o Where items and activities could affect the precioeure radiological health and safety of the general public. Specifically, this means items and activities that could cause, or result in, an accident that could result in a radiation dose, either to the whole body or to any organ, of 0.5 rems or greater, either at or beyond the nearest boundary of the unrestricted area, at any time until the permanent closure of the repository.			-					
o Where items and activities will provide primary data which will be relied on for performance assessment of the repository system. This data are the field and laboratory data and subsequent analyses that provide the basis for determining and demonstrating that the natural and the engineered systems of the repository are capable of meeting the performance objectives for wasts containment and isolation. This includes all experiments and research which have a significant impact to site-characterization or are an essential part of the data base that directly support the final design of the repository and waste package performance.				•				
o Where activities could adversely impact the waste isolation capabilities of the engineered and natural barriers.								
o Where items are relied on to meet the postclosure performance objectives of the engineered barriers of the repository system.				\mathbb{N}				

Page 16 of 244 Review **Review Results** Organization's Resolution Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para. No. | Para. No. -Comments Acc. Rei. Reason Acı. Rei $\boldsymbol{ imes}$ See item 71 o Where items and activities that, having failed, could cause a failure of a QA level I item, or irretrievable loss of QA level I data. o The design phase that involves the preparation of detailed design documents (such as drawings, specifications, and analyses) will be assigned a GA Level of I. One of the purposes of this design phase is to define itume that will be procured and/or constructed as a result of the design activity. The definition of items includes a detailed description of their function and interrelationalships. As the design phase proceeds, and the QA level for items is identified and approved, design, procurement, and construction activities shall be governed by the GA level assigned to the item. 2.2.3 OA LEVEL II (78)QA Level II is the second highest level of quality assurance. (79)QA Level II controls and documentation shall be applied to the MRMSI Project activities, and items that are specifically concerned with nonradiological operation of the exploratory shaft facilities and repository, and the radiological safety of the repository worker. (80) The high-level waste (HLM) repository will utilize engineered systems, structures, and components which mist be designed, constructed, fabricated, tested, and operated to meet the performance objectives during the operational phase and to minimize the nonradiological hazard to the public and repository worker and the radiological hazard to the repository worker. (81) Additionally, activities that have a major impact on project costs or schedules that could delay the achievament of DOE/Office of Civilian Radioactive Waste Hanagement (OCRNH) milestones must be appropriately controlled.

N-QA 030 12/88

N-QA 030 12/88

	· ·	Review	Results	c	Irganiz	ation's Resolution	Di	iv n hsp
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsal Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	
?)Therefore, Quality Assurance Level II must be applied to activities and ms as follows:		See ito	em 71	ku X 				
o Where items and activities that are essential to the design, construction, and operation of the repository or of the exploratory shaft facility, and could have a major impact on the non-radiological bealth and safety of the public and repository worker.								
o Where items and activities which having failed or which are performed inadequately would cause repository workers to be exposed to redia- tion or radioactive contamination levels in excess of the limits expressed in 10CFW20.						;		
o Where items and activities could affect the retrievability of waste up to the time of repository closure.								
o Where items and activities that involve the nonradiological operational reliability and maintainability of engineered systems, structures, or components.								
a The design phase that involves the comparative technical analysis of alternatives/methods/equipment to determine which alternative/method/equipment is preferred, shall be assigned a QA Level of II prior to execution. Where a particular item can be identified and defined during this phase, a separate QA Level assignment may be made for that item. Once the QA Level for such an item is identified and approved, design procurement and construction activities shall be governed by the QA Level assigned to the item.								

-

N-QA 030 12/88

		Page <u>18</u>	of <u>744</u>
	Review Results	Organization's Resolution	Review Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Unsat Para. No. Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej. Reason	Acı. Rej
 Where items and activities that, having failed, could result in a major cost overrun, Where items and activities that, if failed, could result in a major schedule slippage. 	See item 71	X Ku	
(03)Quality Assurance Level II activities may have as much importance as Quality Assurance Level I activities; however, except when used to support a Quality Assurance Level I activity as indicated in the following, they do not provide primary information in the licensing efforts. (04) In most cases, activities controlled in accordance with a Quality Assurance Level II program cannot be used subsequently to directly support Quality Assurance Level I activities unless it can be substantiated that quality assurance requirements equivalent to those which would have been applied to a Quality Assurance Level I activity were implemented or that a technical justification process is applied in accordance with NAMNSI AP 5.90 "Acceptance of Data and Data Interpretations Not Developed Under the NAMNSI Project QA Program."			
2.2.3.3 QA LEVEL III (85)QA Level III is the least stringent level of Quality Assurance. (86)Level III Quality Assurance items and activities are such that they have no major function in the characterization of the site and design of the repository, but they require good practices for the intended use. (87)Design phases which are purely preliminary and are conducted to define the range of alternatives/methods/equipment which are felt to be worthy of more detailed study shall be assigned a QA level of III prior to execution. (88)Those activities controlled in accordance with a Quality Assurance Level III program cannot subsequently be used to directly support Quality Assurance Level 1 activities.			

.

•

GA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST . Page 19 of 244 Т

			Review	Results		Irgani	ization's Resolution	Dis	190.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
(89) In some cases, data or data interpretations generated as a result of activities controlled in accordance with QA Level II or III programs, or activities performed prior to the complete implementation of the NAMESI Project Quality Assurance Plan may be used in the licensing process as background or corroborative information.	ଂଟ୍ୟ	See item71			X				
2.2.4 GENERAL (90) The requirements contained in this document apply to Quality Assurance Lawels I and II items and activities unless otherwise noted herein. (91) The requirements imposed for QA Lawel III items and activities are those managerial, administrative, scientific, engineering, commercial, and laboratory practices that are commonly used by the organizations participating in the NNMSI Project. 3.0 QA ACTIVITIES	90 91	2,2,2.3 2,2,2,3							
3.1 OVERVIEW (92)Each NAMASI Project Participant shall perform overview of the QA activities of all organizations (including subcontractors doing supportive work) under their purview. (93)Overview is to include the following as appropriate: • The review and approval of QAPPs. • Surveillance of activities affecting quality to verify compliance with requirements. • Performence of quality sudits to verify the adequacy and compliance of QA programe.	92 93	2,3,1 2,3,1		• •					-

.

.

-

·						Page <u>20</u>	of 2	44
		Review	/ Results	0	rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
J.2 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF QA PROGRAMS (94)Procedures are to be established by each NNMSI Project Participant for the review of QA program documentation of those organizations under their	14 2.3.2			X				
purview for adequacy, completeness and relevance. (95) The procedures shall identify the types of documents to be submitted for review and approval, assign responsibility for review, and identify the methods for documenting review and approval action. (96) Reviews of QA program documentation shall be recorded on checklists or other forms that specify the criteria for acceptability and indicate conformance or nonconformance.	75 2,3.2 96 2,3.2							
4.0 HANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT 4.1 FREQUENCY OF HANAGEMENT ASSESSMENTS								
(97) Management assessments are to be conducted at least annually for determining (1) the effectiveness of the system and management controls that are established to achieve and assure quality, and (2) the adequacy of resources and personnel provided to the QA program. (96) Hanegement is to verify that the QA program is being effectively implemented and that personnel are trained to the QA requirements of the program.	17 2.4.1 18 2.4.1			•				
4.2 PERFORMANCE OF MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENTS								
(99)Hanagement assessments are to be performed by the MMPO and each MMMSI C Project Participant. (100)Each organization is to develop its internal procedures for planning, organizing, performing, and documenting the manage- ment assessment conducted, including the analysis and reporting of the results	19 Z.4.Z 20 Z.4.Z		.					

QA COMPLIA	NCE REV	lew Che	CKLIST					N-QA 12/88	030
:		1					Page 21_	of 2	<u>. ५५</u>
			Review	Results	c	Irgani	zation's Resolution	Rev De	11 <u>9</u> W 5120.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rei
and the tracking of recommendations. (101)Copies of all management assessments are to be provided to the Project Manager, NARO and the NARO PCM. (102)The Project Manager, NARO will make appropriate submittals of management assessment reports to OCRNM. (103)Management above or outside the QA organization shall be responsible for the management assessment activity. 5.0 PERSONNEL SELECTION, INDOCTRIMATION, AND TRAINING PROCEDURES 5.1 ESTABLISHEENT OF REQUIREMENTS	101 102 103	2,4,2 4MP0 2,4,2			X				
(104)All NHMS1 Project participants shall establish requirements for the selection, indoctrination, and training of personnel performing or verifying activities that affect quality. (105) The requirements shall establish position descriptions that set forth minimum personnel qualifications and provide for appropriate indoctrination or training or both, prior to initiation of activities that affect quality. (106) In addition to the following requirements for indoctrination and training, personnel performing activities that specifically require certification by applicable codes and standards (e.g., lead auditors, inspectors, testers, nondestructive examiners, etc.) shall be certified in accordance with the detailed requirements specified in Appendix C, D, or F, as applicable. 5.1.1 POSITION DESCRIPTION (107) Hinimum education and experience requirements shall be established	104 105 106	z,5,1 z,5,1 z,5,1		-					
and documented in position descriptions for each position involved in the performance of activities that affect quality.	107	21311,		• •					

N-QA 030 12/88

		r					Page 22	of 2	प्प
			Review	Results	0	rgani	ization's Resolution	Hev Dis	4)0.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act.	Rej
					<u>III</u>			-	
					X	•			
					/				
5.1.2 PERSONNEL QUALIFICATION EVALUATION									
(100) Personnel selected shall have education and experience commensurate	108	2,5,1.2							
with the minimum requirements specified in the position description. (109)Relevant education and experience shall be verified. (110)This	109	Z.5.1.Z.							
verification shall be documented. (111) The initial capabilities of an	110	z.5.1.Z							
individual shall be based upon an evaluation of their education, experience, and training and compared to those established for the position.	- //]	2,5,1,2							
(112)Evaluations shall be documented by managers or supervisors responsible for the activities to be performed.	172	z.5.1.z							Í.
5.1.3 INDOCTRINATION	i								
(1984/Tior to assigning personnel to perform activities affecting quality,	113	z.5.1.3							
implementation, and applicability of the following documents (including	114	z.51.3							
changes thereto), as a minimum, as they relate to the work to be accompliahed. (114)Indoctrination may be accompliahed by the use of a mandatory reading	•								
list, by group classroom presentations, by video presentation, or other instructional methods									
o QAPP's									
 Implementing Procedures and Work Instructions (applicable to the individual's responsibilities) 									
e Regulations									
o Project level Documents									
				.					

						Page <u>23</u>	of _	रतत
			Review	Results	Organiza	tion's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
5.1.4 TRAINING (115)Prior to assigning personnel to perform quality affecting activities training, if needed, shall be conducted to gain the required proficiency. (116)The training (in-depth instruction) shall include the principles, techniques, and requirements of the activity. (117)Such in-depth instruction may be internal or external classroom sessions, classroom sessions supplemented by hands-on workshops, on-the-job training, other instructional	15 16 17	Z <i>,5,</i> 1,4 Z, <i>5</i> ,1,4 Z, <i>5</i> ,1,4			X Kar 			
5.1.5 PROFICIENCY EVALUATION								
(118) After the initial personnel qualification evaluation, the job proficiency of personnel who perform activities affecting quality shall be evaluated and documented at least annually. (119) Proficiency evaluations may be performed in conjunction with periodic or day-to-day employee performance evaluations. (120) Proficiency evaluations shall be performed by managers or supervisors who have responsibility for the activities being performed or verified.	18 19 20	2,5,1.5 2,5,1.5 2,5,1,5		 U				
5.1.6 RECORDS								
(121)Records of personnel qualification evaluations, indoctrination, training, and proficiency evaluations shall be retained as lifetime QA records. (122)These records shall include, as a minimum, the items listed below.	2 22	2,5.1.6 2,5.1,6						
								

•

			· · ·			Page 24	of Z	मम
		Review	Results	c	rgani	zation's Resolution	Fiev Dis	iew ibo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej	Reason	Acı.	Rej
		-		X				
				lle	ſ			
				1/				
5.1.6.1 Personnel Qualification Evaluation Records								
(123)Records of the verification and evaluation of a candidate's 2 education, experience, and training, compared to those required for the position.	3 Z. <i>S</i> .I.6							
5.1.6.2 Indoctrination Records								
(124)Records of indoctrination which include the objective and content of JZ the indoctrination, date or dates of indoctrination, and other applicable information.	4 2.5.1.6							
5.1.6.3 Training Records								
(125)Records of training which include the objective(s) and content of the 22 training, name of the instructor, attendees, dates of attendance, and result of proficiency evaluations (where applicable), and other applicable information.	7 2.5.1.6							
5.1.6.4 Proficiency Evaluation Records								·
$\{126\}$ Records of proficiency evaluation shall include, as a minimum, the 126 name of the evaluated employee, the evaluator, evaluation results, date of evaluation, and the activities covered by the evaluation.	2,5,1,6		ſ					
			44 BH					
			<u> </u>	ĮĮ/			<u> </u>	I
N-QA 030 12/88

-

······································	1	()		1		Page <u>2.5</u>	of _	244 view
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	rgan Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rei
<section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header>	N/A	F&S par scientifi Is limit prepare Specific from Cr by the Investi the app YMP/Nt	ticipation in ic investigation ed. Fts plans for investigation iteriq Supplies Principle gator with proval of so.					· ·

.

ι

N-QA 030 12/88

		Review	Results	0)rganiza	ation's Resolution	D	154)×
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act	
				X				
rformed shall also be provided. (8) This discussion shall identify all of the	see							
ctors and concerns that are important for the planning or the performance of	jtem l							
a scientific investigation including identification, explanation, and								
stification for areas where scientific notebooks are to be used.								
1.1.2 Description of previous work								
(9)A description of any previous work which will be used in support of the								
ientific investigation, including the identification of the Quality								
surance Levels, or Quality Assurance (QA) controls, under which that					1			1
evidus work was performed. (10) Note: This requirement does not apply to udy plans.								
1.2 PLANNING DOCUMENTS								
(11) The scientific investigation planning document shall contain a level						•		
detail which would enable an independent reviewer to determine the	1			- 11	1			
propriate QA Level to be applied to the investigation. (12)For Site								1
aracterization activities, the purpose and key milestones of study plans is								
quirements of Appendix K of this GA Plan.								
2 ASSIGNMENT OF QUALITY ASSURANCE LEVELS								
2.1 ASSIGNENT								
(14)Once a scientific investigation planning document, as specified in							1	
ragraph 1.1.1 of this section has been developed, the Quality Assurance								
weis for all of the items and activities which are associated with that					11			
re, may be assigned. (D) it way on necessary in some cases to assign (NALLY surance fevels to the items and activities within a plan that was prepared			- +4					
rlier.								
		ļ		<u> </u>				
		l			L	Territoria de la composición de la comp		-

1

1

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>27</u>	0	<u>रपप</u>
		Review	Results		rganiza	lion's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
(16) Therefore, the Quality Assurance Level assignments are not a part of the flaming documents themselves, even though they would normally accompany those lanning documents and go through the same review and approval process. 1.1.2 CONFORMANCE (19) Scientific investigation planning documents shall be prepared and fusibily Assurance Levels shall be assigned in accordance with the methods precified in the Newade Nuclear Neste Storage Investigations (NRNSI) Project Municipative Procedures Hanual. 1.1 REVIEW MO APPROVAL PROCESS 1.1 RESPONSIBILITY 1.1 Responsible Participating Organization shall conduct a technical review of the scientific investigation planning document. (19) This review for the scientific investigation planning document. (19) This review for the scientific investigation planning document. (19) This review for the scientific investigation planning document. (19) This review for the scientific investigation planning document. (19) This review for the scientific investigation planning document. (19) This review for the scientific investigation planning document. (19) This review for the scientific investigation planning document. (19) This review for the scientific inducidual, and if the need is individually documented and approved in advance with the concurrence of the QA manager of the originating organization. (2) The results of this technical review, and the originating organization. (2) The results of this technical review, shall be documented, and shall become a part of the QA records.	See Iten I	Para No	Comments			Reason		Rej
			· .					

N-QA-030 12/88

Review Requirements per NNWSUBB-B Rev. 2 Review Results Organization's Resolution Review Resolution 1.3.1 WATE HowedBest PROJECT OFFICE NOVED Sat Unsat Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Acc. Rej.		·					Page 28	of 7	सम्
Review Requirements per NNWSU88-9 Rev. 2 Set - Para. No. Unsal Para. No. Comments Acc. Rej. Reuson Acc. Rej. 1.3.2 WATE NAMAGENET PROJECT OFFICE REVIEW (2)The MeD Project Quality Manager and the appropriate MeD Rauch Chief fabilit proview and approve the solentific investigation planning document prior to implementation. (2)The MeD CHI shall return the planning document prior to implementation. SEC. Hern. 1.3.1 PER REVIEW (2)The MeD CHI shall return the planning document prior to implementation. SEC. Hern. 1.3.1 PER REVIEW (2)The MeD CHI shall return the planning document will be conducted when demonstration and approved by CEMM prior to implementation. SEC. Hern. 1.3.1 PER REVIEW (2)The MeD CHI shall also be preferent will be conducted when demonstration ball also be preferent will be conducted when demonstration charts present to that presentation and malizits Hern. 1.4 SCIDITIFIC INVESTIGNIANIALISIS DOCEMENTS Controlled, and documented is onficient detail as to perpresent addies and septement condected amore, and while so that a trabinality domestion. Input, referenced, and writy the malysis without concernes to the originator. Hern. (2)The detail be legible attributed in a financial to for preview, understand, and writy the malysis without concernes to the attribute to preview. understand, and verify the malysis without to introduction ball be identifiable by mbject, originator, reviewer and date. Hern.			Review	Results	C	Irgan	ization's Resolution	Rey	/iew 5120.
 1.1.2 HATTE HAMAZIBERT PROJECT OFFICE REVIEM 1.217The MED Project Quality Heasure and the appropriate NEO Branch Chief for trajopations the solution phasing document to the review and approval be considered in provide and approval options that also be reviewed and approval prior to propress review of the solutific investigation planning document will be controlled when documents the NML Project Quality of the NML Project of the Solution planning document will be controlled when documents prior to the solutific investigation planning document will be controlled when documents prior to the solution planning document will be controlled when documents in approximations documents in approximation detail as planned, controlled, and documents a shall be proformed in approximation document in the provide of the provide solution in the provide solution in the provide solution is provide to the document of the information. Approximation documents a shall be legible and in a form multiple to review and date. 	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
	<section-header><text><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></text></section-header>	See Hem 1							

N-QA 030 12/88

		Review	Results		Organi	ization's Resolution	Rey	×vii HS₽
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	lieason -	Acı.	
				X	1		·	•
				leu	1			
4.2 DOCUMENTATION OF INTERPRETATION/ANALYSIS								
29) Documentation of interpretation/analysis shall include the following:	see	C.						
 Definition of the objective of the interpretation/analysis. 	i. airt	, ,						
o Definition of input and their sources.								
o A listing of applicable references.					·			
o Results of literature searches or other background data			•					
o Identification of assumptions								
o Identification of any computer calculation, including computer type,								
program name, revision, input, output, evidence of program verification, and the bases of application to the specific problem.								
o Signatures and dates of review and approval by appropriate personnel.								
					l I			
1.5 USE OF COMPUTER PROGRAMS				.				
(30)Computer programs that are used to support a license application shall documented and controlled as specified in Section III, Subsection 3.0 and					:			
pendix H of this QA Plan. (31) The documentation and control measures shall								
sition on Documentation of Computer Codes for High-Level Naste Management."								
			•• •*					
				N N				

-

QA COMPLIANCE REV	IEW CHE	ECKLIST					N-QA 12/88	03 0
	1					Page <u>30</u>	of 2	रमम
	Review Results			0	rganiza	ation's Resolution	Dispo	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
1.1 THE USE OF SCIENTIFIC NOTEBOOKS VERSUS THE USE OF TECHNICAL HAPLEMENTING PROCEDURES JAIN THE USE OF TECHNICAL HAPLEMENTING PROCEDURES JAIN THE ARE NOW METHODS which can be used for the quality assurance, double and control of scientific work. (3)These are the scientific notabook system and the technical implementing procedure system. (34)The scientific notabook system vill generally be used by qualified arrow methods, or developing the methodology by which an activity vill be accompliabled. (35)Mem the scientific notabook system is used, the study plan error methods, or developing the methodology by which an activity vill be accompliabled. (35)Mem the scientific notabook system is used, the study plan for scientific investigation planning document shall be the controlling document shall be the controlling document shall be the controlling the methodology by which and the study plan procedure for accomplishing the work. (36)Alternatively, the technical implementing procedure system vill generally be used when any finde personnel are performing repetitive work which does not include the performance of the work. (37)Detailed technical implementing procedures is required when it is not possible to deviate from a prescribed sequence of postible to deviate from a prescribed sequence of statistic investigation possible to deviate from a prescribed sequence of postible to deviate from a prescribed sequence of the technical implementing procedures as detailed in Fars. 1.6.2. (39)Logbooks or appropriate forms or both are used to preform the work. (30)Hodifications may be made to these procedures as detailed in fars. 1.6.2. (39)Logbooks or appropriate forms or both work books are used to avoid any and the technical implementing procedure, and to maintain absolute correly over all other aspects of t	See Item 1			X Ka		······································		

	e review che	CKLIST				12/88	030
					Page 31	ol 🤉	रतत
		Review	Results	Orgai	vization's Resolution	Rev	/iew 500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc. Rej	Reason	Acı.	Rej
 1.1.1 TECRNICAL DEPLEMENTING PROCEDURES (40)Detailed technical implementing procedures together with appropriate logbooks and other supporting documents, shall be used whenever the work is repetitive. (41)Such technical implementing procedures shall be developed in avoided for compliance with the requirements of this section of the QA Plan. (42)Hodifications may be made to the technical aspects of technical implementing procedures by the individual utilizing the procedures (43)If the change or modification is not within the acope of the study plan or existific investigation plan, and the investigation is not repeatable, or the change or modification is not within the scope of the study plan or existific investigation plan, and the investigation activities, approval shall be orbited from an appropriately qualified reviewer. (41)Requirements and acceptance or rejection criteris, including required levels of precision and accuracy, shall be provided or approved by the organization responsible for the scientific investigation, unless otherwise designated. (5)Technical procedures utilized for acientific investigations shall provide criteries. Anguirements, objectives, methods and characteristics to be tested or observed. Acceptance limits, if applicable, contained in applicable documents, including precision and accuracy. 	See Item			X			

N 04 030

N-QA	030
12/88	

				······			Page <u>32</u>	of 7	<u>र.स</u> स
			Review	Results	0	rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev De	spo.
	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sal Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
o	Prerequisites such as calibrated instrumentation, adequate and appropriate equipment and instrumentation, suitable and controlled environmental conditions, and provisions for data collection and storage. For activities of long duration, specific provisions shall be established and documented for instrumentation whose calibration interval is shorter than the expected duration of the activity. Such provisions are to be designed to ensure validity of data throughout the scientific investigation. Nandatory verification points.	See Item I			X qu	,			
0	Acceptance and rejection criteria, including required levels of precision and accuracy (NOTE: "Accept/reject criteria" means those features or characteristics of a procedure that make it possible to determine whether the work has been, or is being, performed in such a way that it produces the intended results. A data acquisition task produces output that, in itself, cannot be characterized as acceptable or unacceptable. However, the task of acquiring the data is acceptable if all specified prerequisites were met and the work was accomplished in the specified manner. In that instance, the "accept/reject criteria" are simply the conditions and methods stated in the procedure.)								
o	Hethods of documenting or recording data and results, including precision and accuracy.								
۰	Hethods of data reduction.								
0	Provision for ensuring that prerequisites have been met.								

N-QA 030 12/88

		~~···		I		Tayo	Re	:vie
	Sat _	Heview	Results		Argani T	ization's Resolution	<u>D</u>	45Ø
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Para No.	Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	ı.
				TX				<u> </u>
				In	1			
				[]		· ·	· ·	
							1	
o Special training or qualification requirements for personnel	See							
performing the scientific investigation.	item						1	
o Personnel responsibilities.								
.6.2.] [46) Procedures shall be complete to the extent that mathem multipled							·	
dividual may, at a later date, reproduce the results.								
6.2.2 (A7) The potential sources of unsurbindu and source is back-last				11				
mplementation procedures which must be controlled and measured to assure that				11				
Hentific investigations are well controlled shall be identified.			-					
ncertainties or error, and to ensure adequate controlled to minimize such							ł	
uplicitly in test procedures.								
.6.2.3 (49)For instrumentation and/or equipment used in data collection								
maideration shall be given to whether failure or malfunction of the					[
nstrumentation during scientific investigation will be detectable, either wring data collection or by examination of the data. (50)Where ability to					· ·			
etect such failure or malfunction is questionable, procedures will include				11	ì			
ny special provisions for equipment/instrumentation configuration, nstallation, and use that can further reduce risk of undetectable failure or								
ilfunction.				1			1	
6.2.4 (51) Any procedural deviations or nonconformances, encountered during					[
tivities shall be documented, reported, and evaluated for significance.								
				- 17				
			.,			}		
				- N/			1	

QA COMPLIANCI	e review che	CKLIST				N-QA 12/88	030
		Review	Results	Org	Page <u>34</u>	of 7	2 <u>44</u>
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc. Re	j. Reason	Act	Rey
				X			
1.6.3 SCIENTIFIC NOTEBOOKS							
(52) Scientific notebooks along with other appropriate documents may be used to document scientific investigations and experiments. (53) In such cases, this documentation shall be sufficient such that another qualified scientist can use the notebook to retrace the investigation and confirm the results, or repeat the experiment and achieve the same results without recourse to the PI.	See rtem l						
1.6.4 FORMAT FOR DOCUMENTATION							
(54)Documentation of scientific work i.e. experiments and research shall be performed using bound logbooks or notebooks to provide written record of the experiment or research.					ç I		
1,6.4.1 Initial Entries							
(55) Where appropriate, and prior to initiation of the experiment or research, the following entries, as a minimum, shall be made							
o fitle of the experiment or research.							[·
 Name of the qualified individual or individuals performing the experiment or research. 							
o Description of the experiment's objective or objectives and the proposed approach or procedure for achieving these objectives. This may be accomplished by reference to the appropriate study plan or other scientific investigation planning document which controls the work.							

N-QA 030 12/88

					Page <u>35</u>	of Z	त्रत
		Review Results	C	Irgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsat Para, No Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
 Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Equipment and materials to be employed during the experiment or research, including any necessary design or fabrication of experimental equipment and any needed characterization of starting material. Calibration requirements. Dated signature of the individual or individuals making the initial entries. Special training or qualification requirements. Documentation of suitable and controlled environmental conditions, if applicable. Required levels of precision and accuracy shall be identified. The potential sources of uncertainty and error in acientific investigations are well controlled shall be identified. (56) The initial entries described above are considered to be a "general" procedure and shall be entered into the scientific notabook prior to beginning an investigation. (57) Hodifications may be made by the individual performing the investigation. (57) Hodifications may be made by the individual performing the study plan or scientific investigation plan, and the investigation is not repeatable, or the change could potentially impact the wast isolation activities, approval shall be obtained from an appropriately qualified 	Para No. See Item I	Para No. – Comments	ACC	Rej	Reason	Act	<u>Rej</u>
reviewer.]						

.

WA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CRECKLIST	QA	COMPLIANC	E REVIEW	CHECKLIST
--------------------------------	----	-----------	----------	-----------

						Page _36_	of 🕻	544
		Review Results			rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev	new Spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X	, .			
				1/4	ľ			
				1/			1	
1.6.4.2 In-process Entries								
(59)Entries to be made during the experiment or research, daily or as Appropriate, shall be sufficiently detailed so that another competent	See							
experimenter/researcher could repeat the experiment or research, and shall include:	Item I							
 Date and name of individual making the entry. 								
 Provisions for assuring prerequisites have been met. 								{
o Description of the experiment or research attempted, including detailed step-by-step process followed; either by reference to								
implementing procedure or by actual entry into the notebook.								
 Description of any conditions which may adversely affect the results of the experiment or research. 								
o Identification of samples used and any additional equipment and								.
materials not included as part of the initial entries prescribed by Paragraph 1.6.4.1 of this section.								
o All data taken and a brief description of the results, to include				['\				
notation of any unaccepted results.								
o Any deviations from the planned experiment or research.		1					l	
o Any interim conclusions reached, as appropriate.					,			
				N	Y			

QA	COM	PLIANCE	REVIEW	CHECKLIST

N-QA	030
12/88	

						Page 37	of ≩	त्त्रम
	Review Results			Organization's Resolution			Rev Dr	116W 500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Paral No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
				X Jan				
1.6.4.3 Final Entries	See							
(60)The final entries in the record shall have, as a minimum, the signature of the experimenter and the signature of a competent technical reviewer.	iteml							
1.6.4.4 Final Results								
(61)Final results and a summary of the outcome of the experiment or research shall be documented (e.g. in a technical report). (62)This shall include a discussion of whether the experiment's objectives as outlined in the initial entries (Paragraph 1.6.4.1) were achieved. (63)This documentation shall become part of the QA records of the activity.								
1.7 CHANGE CONTROL								
(64)All changes in scientific investigation planning documents shall go through the same review and approval process as specified in Paragraph 1.3 of this section. (65)The Participating Organization shall be responsible for evaluating the impacts of such changes on the associated Quality Assurance level assignments.								
1.8 INTERFACE CONTROL								
1.8.1 COORDINATION					ļ			
(66)Internal and external scientific investigation interfaces shall be identified and scientific investigation efforts shall be coordinated among and within Participating Organizations. (67)Interface controls shall include the assignment of responsibility and the establishment of procedures among and					2 · ·			

-

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page 38	of 2	रम्म
	Review Results			C	Organization's Resolution			/iew 500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat. – Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
<text><section-header><text><section-header><section-header><text></text></section-header></section-header></text></section-header></text>	See item 1							·
o [dentification of characteristics and activities to be verified.								

N QA	03(
12/00	

						Page <u>39</u>	of 🛓	244
	Review Results				Organization's Resolution			view ISDO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/BB-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Act.	. Re
				X				· [
					ł		1	
							1	
							[
• A description of the method of verification.	See							
a Identification of the later that a second second second	ITemi				1			
 identification of the individuals of groups responsible for performing the verification. 		8						1
						1		
 Acceptance and rejection criteria. 								
a Identification of manipulation devices and such first					1			
(including revisions).]	
					[
 Recording identification of the verifier and the results of the verification. 			-					
1.9.2 VERIFICATION HOLD POINTS								
(77) Mandatory verification hold-points shall be setablished as necessary								
(78)When such hold points are established, work may not proceed without the				11			1	
specific consent of the responsible representative. (79) These hold points								
shall be indicated in appropriate documents controlling the activity.					•			Ι.
(R0) Consent to waive any specified hold point shall be documented before work								
can be concluded beyond the designeted noid point.							ł	
1.9.3 REPORTING INDEPENDENCE OF PERSONNEL				1.1				
(81)Verification shall be performed by personnel who do not report								
directly to the immediate supervisor(s) who is/are responsible for performing								
OA organization, they shall have sufficient authority, access to work areas.	I				1		1	
and organizational freedom to (1) identify quality problems; (2) initiate,					1		l	
recommend, or provide solutions to quality problems through designated			• 		1		1	
channels; (3) verify implementation of solutions; and (4) assure that further					Λ			
							1	

ŝ

_

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>40</u>	of 7	त्तत् ।
		Review	Results	Organization's Resolution			Rev Dis	iew ipo,
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
processing, delivery, installation or use is controlled until proper disposition of a nonconformance, deficiency, or unsatisfactory condition has occurred. (83) When these persons or organizations who perform the verification activities are not part of the formal QA organization (i.e., part of line management), then the quality assurance organization shall overview and monitor the verification activity.	See item l			X				
1.10 SURVEILLANCE OF SCIENTIFIC INVESTIGATIONS AND EXPERIMENTS								ļĮ
1.10.1 LOGISTICS OF SURVEILLANCE								
(84) The GA organization within the Participating Organization shall perform surveillances of all scientific investigations, as may be deemed appropriate for the purposes and the complexity of the work. (85) The GA surveillance team for a scientific investigation shall consist of one or more qualified technical individuals and one or more GA personnel. (86) The timing and the number of surveillances shall be determined by the GA surveillance team that is formed for this work. (87) Surveillances will be performed in accordance with the requirements specified in Section XVIII of this document.								
1.10.2 SURVEILLANCE TEAH								
(88)The technical member or members of the QA surveillance team shall be familiar with the plan for the scientific investigation.								
1.11 REPORTS, CONCLUSIONS, AND RECOMMENDATIONS								
(89) The Participating Organization shall have implementing procedures for the technical review and approval of the results of scientific investigations. (90) These procedures shall include the NEPO in the review and approval cycle of the Final report.			••					

N QA 030 12/88

	·····			Page 41 of 24	<u>44</u>
		Review Results	Organizatio	n's Resolution Disp	ew 10.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason Aci	Rei
			ia		I
	1				
1.12 CLOSE-OUT VERIFICATION					
(91) The Participating Organization shall perform a close-out verification	See				
upon the completion of any scientific investigation to assure that the QA records for, that investigation are adequate and complete. (92)This will be	Item				
done because it may be a considerable period of time after the work is completed and before the investigation is used in the licensing process					
(93) Close-out verifications shall be performed by a team consisting of					
qualitied technical personnel as well as QA personnel,					
2.0 DESIGN CONTROL		,			
2.1 GENERAL					
2.1.1 DEFINITION					
(94) The design shall be defined, controlled, and verified. (95) The term	94 3.2.1.1				•
design reters to specifications, drawings, design criteria, and component performance requirements for the natural and engineered components of the	95 3.2.1.1				
repository system. (96)Design information and design activities refer to data collection and analyses activities that are used in supporting design	96 3.2.1.1				
development and verification. (97)This includes general plans and detailed implementing procedures for data collection and analyses and related	97 3.2.1.1				
information such as test results and analysis. (98) The data collection	98 3.2.1.1				
(99)Data analysis includes the initial step of data reduction as well as broad	99 3.2.1.1				
level systems analyses (such as performance assessments) which integrate many other data and analyses of individual parameters.		., 			

,

Page 42 of 744 Review Organization's Resolution **Review Results** Dispo Unsat -Sat -Acc. Rei. Reason Aci. Rej **Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2** Para. No. Para No. -Comments X (100) It is the policy of the MMMSI Project that a completed or final design 100 3.2.1.1 101 3.2.1.1 of a facility or item evolves from a sequential order of design activities (or phases) wherein each phase becomes more detailed in nature than the preceding phase. (101) It is recognized that the number and length of design phases 102 3.2.1.1 required to produce a completed or final design of any particular item or facility may vary, among organizations responsible for design, according to the timeliness and availability of pertinent information and the complexity of the item or facility. (102)It is also recognized that all Project design activities, although undertaken by different organizations, which may progress at different rates, are dependent on and require an interface with each other to produce a unified facility design. 2.1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE LEVEL ASSIGNMENT 103 3.2.1.2 (103) All design phases shall be assigned a Quality Assurance Level prior to execution in accordance with the methods specified in the NMMSI Project Administrative Procedure's Hanual. 2.1.3 QUALIFICATION OF PERSONNEL 104 3.2.1.3 (104)Personnel performing design work shall be indoctrinated, trained, and qualified in accordance with the requirements of Section II of this document. 105 3.2.1.3 (105) Instructions, procedures and drawings for design work shall be in accordance with the requirements of Section V of this document.

						Page <u>43</u>	of	244
		Review Results			Organization's Resolution			view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act	Ber
1.1.1 PER PETIEN 100 1.0.60 For design activities including design output documents which involve for document explained activities and requirements do not explained activities and requirements activities and requirements. 100 1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	8 3.2.1.4 7 3.2.1.4 7 3.2.1.4 9 3.2.2.1 9 3.2.2.1 9 3.2.2.1			<i>in</i>				

							Page <u>44</u>	of 7	244
		Review Results				Orgai	nization's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para	NO.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rej	Reason	Acı.	Rej
					X	1		1	-
					fler	1			
2.2.2 CHANGES TO DESIGN INPUT								1	
(111) Changes to approved design input, including the reason for the changes, shall be identified, documented, approved, and controlled by the responsible design organization.	11 3,2,2	.z							
2.2.3 CONSIDERATIONS FOR DESIGN INPUT									
(112)Considerations for design inputs as they apply to specific items or systems are contained in Appendix B of this document.	12 3.2.7	:.3							
2.3 DESIGN MALTSIS									
2.3.1 DESIGN MULTISIS DOCUMENTS									
(113) Design analyses shall be performed in a planned, controlled, and	13 3.2.7	5.1							
sufficient detail as to purpose, method, assumptions, design input,	14 3.2.2	씨							
references, and units such that a technically qualified person may review, understand, and verify the analysis without recourse to the originator. (115)These documents shall be legible and in a form suitable for reproduction, filing, and retrieval. Calculations shall be identifiable by subject (including structure, system, or component) originator, reviewer, and date.	3.2.3	».I							
2.3.2 DOCUMENTATION OF DESIGN ANALYSES									1
(116)Documentation of design analysis shall include the following:	16 3,2,3	، کا							
 Definition of the objective of the analysis. 				. •		/			
o Definition of design input and their sources.					N	1_			

QA COMPLIANCI	e review Ch	ECKLIST				t	N-QA 12/88	030
				,		Page <u>45</u>	of Z	<u>44</u>
		Review Re:	sults	0	rganiza	tion's Resolution	Dis	100.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No	Unsat - Para No (Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X				
				ia				
 A listing of applicable references. 								
0 Results of literature searches or other hackground data								
								f
 Identification of assumptions and indication of those which require verification as the design proceeds. 			,					
 Identification of any computer calculation, including computer type, program name, revision, input, output, evidence of program verification, and the bases of application to the specific problem. 								
o Signatures and dates of review and approval by appropriate personnel including GA Personnel. The purpose of the GA review is to assure that the documentation is prepared, reviewed and approved is accordance with documented procedures and quality assurance requirements.								
2.3.3 USE OF CONFUTER PROGRAMS								
(117)Computer programm that are used to support a license application shall be documented and controlled as specified in Section III, Subparagraph 3.0 and Appendix H of this GA Plan.	117 3.2.3.3							•
2.4 DESIGN VERIFICATION								
2.4.1 IDENTIFICATION AND DOCUMENTATION								
(118)Design control measures shall be applied to verify the adequacy of design and verification shall be performed in a timely manner. (119)The responsible design organization shall identify and document the verification method used, the results of the verification, and the verifier.	118 3.2,4.1 119 3,2,4.	l						

.

			Douise	Deculto			instituti	Rev	/iew
		Sat	Neview	Results		rgan T	Zations Resolution	[Di	5120
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Para. No.	Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Açı.	Re
					X				
					Juni	1			
		1							
		ļ							l
4.2 TIMING OF VERIFICATION						ĺ			
(120)Verification of the adequacy of design shall be performed prior to	051	3.7.4.7						I	
lease for procurement, manufacture, construction, or release to another	121	37.47							
is timing can not be met, the portion or portions of design which have not	127	312111							
en verified shall be identified and controlled. (122) In all cases, the		3, 2, 7, 2						l	
rification shall be completed prior to relying on the component, system, or								!	
								l	
4.3 EXTENT OF VERIFICATION									
(123) The extent of the design verification required is a function of the	123	3.2.4.3							
portance to safety of the item under consideration, the complexity of the	174	37.43						1	
imilarity with previously proven designs. (124)Where the design has been	175	2 7 4.3							
abjected to a verification process in accordance with Paragraph 2.4 of this	123	2212							
resigns. (125)However, the applicability of standardized or previously proven	126	3, 2, 7, 2				ł			
signs, with respect to meeting pertiment design inputs, shall be verified	127	3,2.4.3						1	Ī
r each application. (126)Known problems affecting the standardized or eviously proven designs and their effects on other features shall be								1	
nsidered, (127)The original design and associated verification measures									
hall be adequately documented and referenced in the files of subsequent								[
4.4 CHANGES TO VERIFIED DESIGNS									1
(128)Changes to previously verified designs shall require verification	170	27 44		ě				[
ncluding evaluation of the effects of those changes on the overall design.	140	J.L		+ f					
· '		1				ł	1	I	-

N-QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>47</u>	of I	244
1			Review	Results	C	rgan	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew DO.
	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
					X				
:								·	
	2.4.5 PERSONNEL PERFORMING VERIFICATION								
	(129) Design verification shall be performed in accordance with the J2 requirements of Paragraph 2.4.6 of this Section by any competent, certified J3 individual or individuals or certified group or groups other than those who performed the original design. (130) This includes the following:	3.2.4.5 03.2.4.5							
	2.4.5.1 (131) Individuals or groups from the originator's same organization.	1 3.2.4.5.							
	2.4.5.2 (132) Individuals or groups from other organizations contracted for [33] this purpose.	23,2.4.5.7							
	2.4.5.3 (133)The originator's supervisor providing all of the following 3 requirements are mat:	33.2.45	×						
	o The supervisor is the only individual in the organization competent to perform verification.								
	o The supervisor did not establish the design input used, specify a singular design approach, or rule out certain design considerations.								ŀ
1	o The rationale for satisfying the two requirements above is documented and approved by management superior to the supervisor. The QA manager shall also concur with this rationale.								
	2.4.6 METHODS OF DESIGN VERIFICATION								
	(134)Design verification shall be accomplished by any one or a combination [3] of the following: design reviews, alternate calculations, qualification testing, or peer review.	1 3.2.4.6							
	·	1			<u> </u>				

.

11

					Page <u>48</u>	of <u>Z</u>	44
		Review Results	C	Drgan	vation's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew po.
Review Requirements per NWWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsat. – Para. No. – Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rei
Review Requirements per NNWSU/88-9 Rev. 2 2.4.6.1 Design Reviews (135)Design reviews are detailed critical reviews to provide assurance that the design is correct and satisfactory. (136)At a minimum, the itame below shall be considered during the review and the results of such deliberations shall be documented. • Mare the design inputs correctly selected? • Mare the design inputs correctly selected? • Mare the design method used? • Mas an appropriate design method used? • Mare the design inputs correctly incorporated into the design? • Mare the design inputs correctly incorporated into the design?	Sat - Para No. 3.2.4.6.1 3.2.4.6.1	Unsat Para. No Comments	ACC	Rej	Reason	Acı.	He)
 Are the necessary design input and verification requirements for interfacing organizations specified in the design documents or in supporting procedures or instructions? Are computer programs used for analysis identified and verified in accordance with the methods specified in paragraph 3.0 of this Section. 							
			0	ł			

N-QA 030 12/88

						_	Page 49	of 2	44
			Review	Results	(Organi	zation's Resolution	Rev Dis	new Spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Act.	Rej
2.4.6.2 Alternate Calculations (137) Alternate Calculations are a form of analysis which may be used to determine the sequency of the original analyses. (138) the use of alternate calculations shall include a review of the appropriateness of assumptions, inputs and computer programe or other calculation method used. 2.4.6.3 Qualification Tests 1139) Qualification tests that involve actual physical testing of systems, structures, or components may be used to verify the adequacy of design. (140) Where design adequacy is to be verified by qualification tests, the tests shall be identified. (141) The test configuration shall be clearly defined and documented. (142) Testing shall demonstrate adequacy of performance under conditions that simulate the most adverse design conditions. (143) Operating modes and environmental conditions in which the item must perform satisfactorily shall be considered in determining the most adverse conditions. (144) Here the test is intended to verify only specific design features, the other features of the design shall be verified by other means. (145) Test results shall be documented and evaluated by the responsible design organization to assure that test modifications to the item are necessary to obtain acceptable performance, the modification shall be documented and the item modified and retested or otherwise verified to assure satisfactory performance. (149) Then tests are being performance on models or mochupe, scaling laws shall be aubject to error analysis, where applicable, prior to use in the final design work.	137 138 139 140 141 142 143 144 145 144 145 146 147 148	3,2,4,6,2 3,2,4,6,3 3,2,4,6,3 3,2,4,6,3 3,2,4,6,3 3,2,4,6,3 3,2,4,6,3 3,2,4,6,3 3,2,4,6,3 3,2,4,6,3							
				*	V				

N	QA	030
12	/68	

				Page <u>50</u>	of <u>2</u>	244
		Review Results	Organizat	ion's Resolution	Rev Dis	/iew 500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat. – Para. No. – Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Re
			<i>i</i>			
2.4.6.4 Peer Review						
(149)Peer review is an acceptable method of design verification when the design is beyond state-of-the-art and other methods of design verification are not feasible.	149 3.2.4.6.4					
2.5 DESIGN CHANGE CONTROL						
2.5.1 CHANGES TO APPROVED DESIGNS						
(150)Changes to approved designs, including field changes, shall be justified and subjected to design control measures commensurate with those applied to the original design and approved by the same affected groups or organizations which reviewed and approved the original design documents; except where an organization which originally was responsible for approving a particular design document is no longer responsible, then the NEO shall designate a new responsible organization. (151)The designated organization shall have demonstrated competence in the specific design area of interest and have an adequate understanding of the requirements and intent of the original design. (152)Errors and deficiencies in approved design and design information documents shall be documented, and action taken to assure that all errors and deficiencies are corrected. (153)Where a significant design change is necessary because of an incorrect design, the design process and verification procedure shall be reviewed and modified as necessary.	50 3.2.5. 51 3.2.5. 52 3.2.5. 53 3.2.5.					

							Page <u>51</u>	of Z	ग्रम
			Review	/ Results		Orga	nization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Ac	c. Fiel	Reason	Acı.	Rej
2.6 DESIGN INTERFACE CONTROL									
2.6.1 IDENTIFICATION AND RESPONSIBILITY									1
(154) Internal and external design interfaces shall be identified and controlled and design efforts shall be coordinated among and within responsible design organizations. (155) Interface controls shall include the assignment of responsibility and the establishment of procedures among and within responsible design organizations for the review, approval, release, distribution, and revision of documents involving design interfaces.	154 155	3,2,6,1 3,2,6,1							
2.6.2 INFORMATION TRANSHITTED ACROSS INTERFACES				-					.
(156)Design information transmitted across interfaces shall be documented and controlled. (157)Transmittale shall identify the status of the design information or document provided and, where necessary, identify incomplete items which require further evaluation, review, or approval. (150)Where it is necessary to initially transmit design information orally or by other informal means, the transmittal shall be confirmed promptly by a controlled document.	156 157 158	3,2,6,2 3,2,6,2 3,2,6,2							
2.7 DESIGN OUTPUT REQUIREMENTS 2.7.1 DESIGN OUTPUT DOCUMENTS	159	No Number			•				 -
Design output documents shall:									
2.7.1.1 (160)Relate to the design input by documentation in sufficient detail to permit design verification.	160	32.7.1,1			J				
								<u> </u>	

			Review	Results	0	rganiz	ation's Resolution	Di	951 1
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sal Para. No.	Unsat Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	ı.
7.1.2 (161)Identify assemblies or components or both that are part of the we being designed. (162)When such an assembly or component part is a commar- al grade item that, prior to its installation, is modified or selected by	161 162	3.2.7.1.2 3.2.7.1.2							
wial inspection or testing or both, to requirements that are more strictive than the Supplier's published product description, the component it shall be represented as different from the commercial grade item in a over traceable to a documented definition of the difference.									
7.1.3 (163) Show evidence that the required review and approval cycle has en achieved prior to release for procurement, construction, or release to other organization for use in other design activities. (164) As a minimum, a review and approval cycle shall include the participation of the technical d A elements of both the responsible design organization and the WEFO. 65) The purpose of the QA review is to assure that the documents are epared, reviewed and approved in accordance with documented procedures and ality assurance requirements.	163 164 165	3,7,7,1,3 3,2,7,1,3 3,7,1,3							
2.8 DESIGN DOCLMENTS AS QA RECORDS (166)Design documentation, including design inputs, analyses, drawings, orifications, approved changes thereto, evidence of design verification and ords confirming interface control shall be collected, controlled, stored, i maintained as QA records in accordance with procedures which meet the puirements of Section XVII of this document.	166	3,2.8			•				
						/			

)

							Page <u>5.3</u>	of 7	र्पम
			Review	Results	6)rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para. No.	Unsal Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
3.0 SOFTWARE CHALITY ACCIDANCE DEVILIDENCE					X in				
(167) For a geologic repository, computer software used to perform analysis in support of the license application shall be controlled to the same level of requirements as software used to perform direct design analysis. (168) Auxiliary software used to support primary analysis software shall be controlled at a level communicate with the complexity of that software.	167 168	3.3.1 3.3.1							
(169) Where commercial auxiliary software is used, all available documentation from the software supplier shall be obtained. (170) It is recognized that source code is generally not available and controls are limited to unique version identification and user-related manuals. (171) Supplemental, detailed requirements for the development, maintenance, and security of computer software based on the life cycle model are contained in Appendix H to this (A Plan.	169 170 171	3,3,1 3,3,1 3,3,1							
3.1.1 (172)Each organization participating in the NAMSI Project shall prepare a description of their software design, test and configuration management system, and submit it to the next higher program organizational level for review and approval. (173)The description shall:	172 173	3.3.1.1 33.1.1							•
 Provide criteria for application of the requirements of this section based on the complexity and importance of the software used to perform analysis in support of the design of a geologic repository. 									
 Indicate the methods to be used to develop computer program requirements, to translate those requirements into a detailed design, and to implement that design in executable code. 						(

N-QA 030 **QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST** 12/88 Page 54 of 244 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para, No. -Comments Acc. Rei Reason Acı. Rej X o Relate the types of documentation to be prepared, reviewed, and meintained during software design, code implementation, test, and use. Identify the methodology for establishing software baselines and baseline updates (changes) and for tracking changes throughout the life of the software. o Specify the process to be used for verification and validation of the software developed or applied to geologic repository design analysis. Identify the procedure for reporting and documenting software discrepancies, including sources, evaluating impacts of discrepancies on previous calculations, and determining appropriate corrective action. 3.1.2 (174)Software shall be placed under configuration management as each 174 3.3.1.2 baseline element is approved. (175)Software baseline elements shall be 175 3.3.1.2 uniquely identified to assure positive control of all revisions; the identification of each code version shall be directly related to the associated documentation. 3.1.3 (176) Changes to software shall be systematically evaluated, coordinated, 176 3.3.1.3 and approved to assure that the impact of a change is carefully assessed prior to updating the baseline, required action is documented, and the information 177 33.1.3 concerning approved changes is transmitted to all affected organizations. (177) Changes to computer software shall be subject to the same level of approval, verification, and validation as the original software.

.

1

							Page <u>55</u>	of 2	त्रम
			Review	Results	C)rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı,	Rej
3.1.4 (170) Computer programs developed and/or modified shall be documented	in 178	3.3./.4			ja 				
Position on Documentation of Computer Codes for High-Level Maste Hanageme (179)This requirement may be met in part by existing documentation if prope referenced and related to the NUREG-0856 requirements.	ical int. 179 sely	3.3.1.4							
3.1.5 (180) Testing of software, including new or modified software, shall performed for those inputs and conditions necessary to exercise the softwa identify boundary conditions and to provide a suitable benchmark or sam problem for installation. (181) The goal of testing is to develop a set of t cases that have highest probability of detecting the most errors in order identify under what conditions the software does not perform properly.	be 80 kre, 81 ple 8 est to	3,3,1 <i>.5</i> 3,3,1 <i>.5</i>					- -		
3.1.6 (182) Verification and validation of computer software shall be perfor prior to the use of such software to perform technical calculations in supp of site-characterization, performance assessment analyses, and the desi analysis, and operation of repository structures, systems, and componen (183) In those cases where this requirement cannot be met, the portion portions of software which have not been verified and validated shall identified and controlled. (184) In all cases, the verification and validat of software shall be completed prior to relying on the software to support license application.	mad 182, port 183, gn, 183, ta. 184, or 184, ion 164,	3.3.1.6 3.3.1.6 3.3.1.6							
3.1.7 (185) Verification and validation procedures shall assure that software adequately and correctly performs all intended functions and that software does not perform any unintended function that either by itself or combination with other functions can degrade the entire system.	the 185 in	3,3,1.7							

۰.

N-QA	030
12/88	

							Page 56	of 2	44
		L	Review Results			Organization's Resolution			view SIXO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	ACI.	Rej
					X Jui I				
3.1.8 (186)Existing software shall be qualified for use. (187)This qualification shall be based on the ability of the software to provide acceptable results for specific applications and compliance with the requirements of this section. (188)Software that has not been developed in accordance with this QA Plan may be qualified for use provided the software is verified and validated, a software baseline established, and applicable documentation prepared to support the software in accordance with the provisions of this section.	186 187 188	3,3,1.8 3,3,1.8 3,3,1.8							
3.1.9 (189)Methods for determining the applicability of requirements and managing interfaces involving the documentation, configuration management, change, qualification, verification, and validation of software, shall be described in each organizations software QA Plan and procedures.	189	3,3,1,9							
(190)Documentation of scientific and engineering software shall include the following, as a minimum:	190	3,3.2					- - v		
o Software requirements specification;									·
o Software design and change documentation;									
o Description of mathematical models and numerical methods;									
o Software verification and validation documentation;									
o User documentation;				,					
o Code assessment and support;				" <u>-</u>					
						1	· · ·		

N-QA 030 12/88

								Page <u>57</u>	of 3	<u>44</u>
		Review Results				Organization's Resolution			n Bevie Disp	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments		Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act	Rej
 Continuing documentation and code listings; and Software summary. (191) This documentation is considered to be a GA Record and is subject to the 	191	2 2 7			÷	X				
requirements of Section XVII of this GA Plan. (192)Appendix H to this GA Plan provides detailed requirements on the content of the documentation for this software and other computer software used on the NAMNSI Project.	191 192	3, 3, 2 3, 3, 2			,					
3.3 SOFTWARE CONFIGURATION HANAGEMENT				_						
(193)All Participating Organizations and NTS Support Contractors shall institute a software configuration management program appropriate to the projects they conduct and shall provide documentation of this program to the Records Hanagement System (RMS). (194) The minimum requirements for this configuration management program shall be: (1) the inclusion of a unique identification, including software version numbers whenever feasible, in the output; (2) listings of the software; and (3) a brief chronology of the software versions, including descriptions of the changes made between versions.	193 194	3,3,3 3,3,3		-						
4.0 PEER NEVLEWS					ŀ				ļ	
(195)All Participating Organizations and NTS Support Contractors shall institute a peer review process, when applicable, to provide adequate confidence in the work being reviewed. (196)Peer reviews shall meet the requirements of MUREG-1297 "Peer Review for High-Level Muclear Maste Repositories" (Feb. 1988). These requirements are contained in Appendix J to this QA Plan.	195 196	3.4 3.4								

QA COMPLIANCE RE	/IEW CHI	ECKLIST			······	N-QA 12/88	030
		Review	/ Results	Or	Page <u>58</u>	of 7	<u>44</u> iew
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc, F	Reason	Acı.	Rep
5.0 TECHNICAL REVIEWS (197)When technical reviews are required, they shall be conducted in recordance with procedures that contain specific criterie for the performance of the technical review. 197	3.5			X			

.

							-	-
	Page <u>59</u>					of <u>Z</u> Rev	<u>44</u>	
	Review Results			0	Organization's Resolution			ю.
Review Requirements per NWWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Re)
				X				
				110				
SECTION IV								
PROCUREMENT CONTROL								
1.0 REQUIREMENTS								
1.1 HEASURES TO ASSURE ADEQUATE QUALITY								
(1)Measures shall be established to ensure that applicable regulatory requirements, design or site investigation bases, and other requirements that are necessary to assure adequate quality are suitably included or referenced in the documents for procurement of material, equipment, and services utilized on the Nevada Muclear Maste Storage Investigations (NMMSI) Project. (2) To the extent necessary, procurement documents of Participating Organizations and Nevada Test Site (NTS) Support Contractors, shall require sub-tier contractors to provide a Quality Assurance (QA) program that is consistent with the pert- iment provisions of this NMMSI Quality Assurance Plan as required for the specified Quality Assurance Level.	4.1.1 4.1.1							
1.2 NHFO PROCURED SERVICES (3)Waste Management Project Office (WHPO) initiated procuraments for	UNGO			•				
services shall be controlled through the use of the Federal Acquisition 3 Regulations (FAR) and Department of Energy Acquisition Regulations (DEAR). 4 (4) When the NEPO procures services from contractors or requests services from national laboratories and supporting Federal agencies, the NEPO shall propare work agreements, memors of understanding, interagency agreements, management agreements, or other suitable documents.	чиро Чмро		-					
	7				¥ .	F	I	I

						Page 60	of Z	सम
· ·		Review Results			Organization's Resolution			new apo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsat Para. No Cor	nments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	AGI.	Rei
				X				
2.0 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR QA LEVEL I ACTIVITIES								
2.1 CONTENT OF PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTS			1					
(5)Procurement documents issued at all tiers of procurement shall include provisions for the items listed below, as deemed necessary by the purchaser:	5 4.2							
2.1.1 SCOPE OF WORK								
(6) A statement of the scope of the work to be performed by the supplier shall be in the procurement documents.	6 4.2.1.1							
2.1.2 TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS								
(7)Technical requirements shall be specified in the procurement documents. (8)Where necessary, these requirements shall be specified by reference to specific drawings, specifications, codes, standards, regulations, procedures, or instructions, including revisions thereto that describe the itams or services to be furnished. (9)The procurement documents shall provide for identification of test, inspection, and acceptance requirements of the purchaser for monitoring and evaluating the supplier's performance.	7 4.2.1.2 8 4.2.1.2 9 4.2.1.2							
2.1.3 QA REQUIREMENTS			ŀ	·				
2.1.3.1 (10)Procurement documents shall require that the supplier have a documented QA program that implements either portions or all of the requirements of this document. (11)Quality Assurance Program Plans (QAPPs) and documents of subcontractors for Quality Assurance Level I purchases shall be reviewed and approved by the procuring Project participant. (12)Those which do not adequately define QA requirements, as judged by the QA representative of the Project participant, shall be corrected prior to initiation of activities	10 4,2,1.3. 11 4,2,1.3. 12 4,2,1.3.			~				

.
	QA COMPLIANO	ce rev	NEW CHE	CKLIST				8	1 QA 2/88	030	
								Page 61	of 2	ग्तन	
			Review Results					Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej		
specified by required sha procured. (incorporate	the purchase order or contract. (13) The extent of the program 11 depend upon the type and use of the item or service being 14) The procurement documents shall require the supplier to	13 14	4.2.1,3.1 4.2.1.3,1			X jai					
documents. 2.1.3.2 (15) consideration can be dete tion of the	In developing QA requirements in subtier procurement should be given to whether proper performance of that equipment mained during or after its use (i.e., whether failure or malfunc- quipment can be detected).	15	4,2,1,3,2								
2.1.4 RIGHTS (16)At ex for access to the purchase representative arranged by th	OF ACCESS ach tier of procurament, the procurament documents shall provide be the suppliers' facilities and records for inspection or audit by sr, appropriate NAPO personnel, or other NAPO authorized as. (17)NAPO access to subtier contractor facilities shall be ne contracting organization.	16 17	4.2.1.4 4.2.1.4			-		·			
2.1.5 DOCUMEN (18) The documentation submittal sha supplier to disposition r this QA Plan.	WATION REQUIREMENTS procurement documents at all tiers shall identify the required to be submitted to the purchaser. (19)The time of all also be established. (20)If the purchaser requires the maintain specific QA records, then the retention times and requirements shall be specified in accordance with Section XVII of	18 19 20	4.2.1.5 4.2.1.5 4.2.15								
2.1.6 HONCONF (21)The p for reporting	ONMANCE rocurement documents shall prescribe the purchaser's requirements and approving disposition of nonconformances.	21	4,2,1.6								

	Page <u>CZ</u> of <u>244</u>
Review Results	Organization's Resolution Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Sat Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej. Reason Acı. Re
	X
	la
2.1.7 SPARE AND REPLACEMENT PARTS	
(22) The procurement documents shall require the identification of appro- 22 4.7.1.7	
tion of the technical and quality related data that are required for ordering 234.7.1.7	
these parts or assemblies. (23) The technical and quality requirements shall be 244.7.1.7	
equal to or better than the original. (24) If (A or technical requirements of 7.5 4.7.1.7	
by conducted by qualified individuals to establish the requirements. (25) The $7(21)7$	
evaluation shall consider the interchangeability, function and safety of the	
item. (26) The evaluation shall be documented.	
2.2 PROCUREMENT DOCUMENT REVIEW	
(27) A review of the procurement documents and changes thereto shall be 27 4.2.2	
suppliers include appropriate provisions to assure that items or services will 2.8 4.2.2	
meet the specified requirements. (28) The review shall be performed and 29 4.2.2	
documented prior to contract award. (29) Procurement document reviews shall be	
adequate understanding of the requirements and intent of the procurement 31 4.7.2	
documents. (30) The review shall include, as a minimum, the cognizant technical	
organization and QA organization. (31)The review by the QA organization shall	
 QA requirements are correctly stated, inspectable, and controllable. 	
o There are adequate acceptance and rejection criteria.	
o Procurement documents have been prepared, reviewed, and approved in	

N-QA-030 **QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST** 12/88 Page 63 of 244 Review **Review Results** Organization's Resolution Dispo Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para. No. -Comments Acc. Rei. Reason Acı. Rei $\overline{\lambda}$ 111 2.3 PROCUREMENT DOCUMENT CHANGES (32) Procurement document changes shall be subject to the same degree of 32 4.2.3 control as utilized in the preparation of the original documents. (33) Changes 33 4.2.3 that are made as a result of the bid evaluation or precontract negotiations shall be incorporated into the procurement documents. (34) The review of such changes and their effects shall be completed and documented prior to contract 35 4.2.3 award. (35) Review of changes shall include the following considerations: Appropriate content shall be included in procurement documents as a required by Paragraph 2.1 of this Section. o Additional or modified design or site investigation criteria shall be determined. o Analysis of exceptions or changes requested or specified by the supplier and determination of the effects such changes may have on the intent of the procurement documents or quality of the item or service to be furnished. 2.4 DISTRIBUTION OF PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTS (36) Participating Organizations and NTS Support Contractors shall forward 36 4.2.4 to the SAIC/TEMSS Project QA Department (QA Verification Division Hanager), 37 4.2.4 a copy of purchase documents, and changes thereto, as issued, when purchases involve Quality Assurance Level I items or services. (37)Only those purchase documents which identify the vendor, describe the scope of work, and detail when work is to start are required to be submitted to the SAIC/TEMSS Project QA Department.

GA COMPLIANCE	e reviev	N CHE	CKLIST				N 1	1-QA 12/88	030	
							Page <u>64</u>	of <u>2</u>	<u>.44</u>	
			Review	Results	0	rganiza	tion's Resolution	Review Dispo		
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	S Pa	at - ra. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej	
SECTION V INSTRUCTIONS, PROCEDURES, PLANS AND DRAMINGS I.O GENERAL (1)Activities affecting quality shall be prescribed by and performed in accordance with documented instructions, procedures, or drawings, of a type appropriate to the circumstances except as noted in paragraph 3.0 of this section. (2)These documents shall include or reference appropriate quantitatives or qualitative acceptance criteria for determining that prescribed ectivities have been satisfactorily accomplished. (3)Instructions and procedures shall include a section which identifies the QA records which are generated during implementation of the document. (4)If plans are used in are generated during implementation of the document. (4)If plans are used in are generated during implementation of the document. (4)If plans are used in are generated during implementation of the document. (4)If plans are used in are generated during implementation of the document. (4)If plans are used in are generated. (5)These documents, including drawings, shall be controlled as required in Section VI of this document.	5 5 5 5 5 5 5				X					
2.0 REVIENS (6) An independent review of all instructions, procedures, plans and drawings shall be performed by the originating organization to assure technical adequacy and inclusion of appropriate quality requirements. (7) If applicable, this review shall consider whether the activities are not repeatable, have the potential to impact the waste isolation capability of the site or interfere with other site characterization activities.	65 75	.2			·					

.

·					Page <u>65</u>	of 2	244
		Review Results		Organization's Resolution			view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat. – Para. No. – Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
3.0 INSTRUCTIONS FOR SCIENTIFIC NOTEBOORS			X 1/4				
(8) The Participating Organizations shall propere instructions for the control of scientific notebooks, plans and the other documentation that will be used in scientific investigations. (9) When scientific notebooks are used to document scientific investigations, the requirements of Section III, paragraph 1.6 shall prevail over the requirements of this Section. (10) Scientific notebooks shall be collected, controlled, stored, and maintained as GA records in accordance with procedures which meet the requirements of Section XVII of this document.	8 N/A N/A N/A N/A	F\$S does not use Scientific notebook	S				
4.0 DISTRIBUTION						·	
(11)Each Participating Organization and Nevada Test Site (NTS) Support Contractor shall maintain and provide the NEFO FOM and the SAIC/TEMSS Project Quality Assurance Department Hanager with controlled distribution of all implementing procedures, plans and instructions used for QA Level I and II activities.	1 5,3						
		<u> </u>	V	1			

QA	CO	MPLI/	ANCE	REVIEW	CHECKL	JST
----	----	-------	------	--------	--------	-----

-

N	QA	030
12	2/00	

						Page 66	of Z	44	
		Review Results				Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Sat Unsat Para, No. Para, No Comments			Rej.	Reason	Act	Rei	
				X					
				111					
· ·									
SECTION VI									
DOCLMENT CONTINUE									
1.0 DOCUMENT PREPARATION, REVIEW, APPROVAL, AND ISSUANCE	· ·						}		
1.1 HETHODS									
(1) The preparation, review, approval, and issuance of documents such as instructions, procedures, plans and drawings, including changes thereto, shall be controlled through the implementation of methods that assure that only 2 correct documents are used. (2) Document control shall be applied to the following:	(.1.1 (.1.1.1								
o Documents containing or specifying quality requirements.									
 Documents that prescribe activities affecting quality. 	· ·]		
(3) The document control system shall be documented, and the QA	3 6.1.2							-	
1.2 IMPLEMENTATION						·	ł		
(4) Implementation of document control shall provide for the following:	6.1.3								
 Identification of documents to be controlled. 							Į		
					ł				
							1	1	

N-QA-030 12/88

						Page 67	of 2	44
		Review	Results	c	Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
 Identification of assignment of responsibility for preparing, reviewing, approving, and issuing documents. Review of documents for technical adequacy, completeness, correctness, and inclusion of appropriate quality requirements, prior to approval and issuance. A method for the removal or marking of obsolete or superseded documents to prevent inadvertent use. A method for assuring that the correct and applicable documents are available at the location where they are to be used. A methor fist or equivalent to identify the correct and updated revisions of documents. 								
o Coordination of interface documents.								
2.0 DOCUMENT CHANGES 2.1 HAJOR CHANGES								
(5) Changes to documents, other than those defined below as minor changes are considered as major changes and shall be reviewed and approved by the same organizations that performed the original review and approval, unless other organizations are specifically designated by the organization responsible for the document. (6) The reviewing organization shall have access to pertinent background data or information upon which to base their approval and, if applicable, shall specifically consider whether the changes are not repeatable, have the potential to impact the waste isolation capability of the site or interfere with other site characterization activities.	6.2.2 6.2.2							

QA	COMPLIANCE	REVIEW	CHECKLIST

N-QA 030 12/88

		Review Results			Organization's Resolution			Bevie Dispi	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rej	Reason	Aci	T ₁
2.2 HINOR CHANGES									
(7) Minor changes to documents, such as inconsequential editorial correc- tions, shall not require that the revised documents receive the same review and approval as the original documents. (8) To avoid a possible omission of a equired review, the type of minor changes that do not require such a review and approval and the persons who can authorize such a decision shall be learly delineated.	7 8	6.z.1 6.z.1							
3.0 DISTRIBUTION OF DOCUMENTS									
3.1 DOCUMENT CONTROL SYSTEM									
(9) The document control system shall assure that documents requiring erification are not released prior to verification or, if they must be eleased before verification, they are uniquely identified as such and ontrolled in accordance with Paragraph 1.2 of this section. A master list or quivalent used to identify the correct, current and updated versions of ocuments shall be submitted to the WHFO PGM and the SAIC/TSHSS Project mality Assurance Department Manager.	9	6.3							
					ŀ				
·									

						Page 69	of Z	44
		Review	Results		Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Ace	. Rej	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X	1			
					1			
Section VII				1/				
CONTROL OF PURCHASED ITEMS AND SERVICES			•					
1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS								
(1)Measures shall be established to ensure that purchased material, equipment, and services conform to the procurement documents. (2)These measures shall include provisions, as appropriate, for source evaluation and selection, objective evidence of quality furnished by the contractor or subcon- tractor, inspection at the contractor or subcontractor source, audit, and examination of products upon delivery. (3)Mears required by code, regulation, or contract requirement, documentary evidence that material and equipment conform to the procurement requirements shall be available at the location where the material or equipment is to be used prior to installation or use of such material and equipment. (4)This documentary evidence shall be retained under the control of the Maste Management Project Office (MBCO) QA Records Management System (QANMS) and shall be sufficient to identify the specific requirements, such as codes, standards, or specifications, that are to be met by the purchased material and equipment. Specific requirements for the control of purchased items and services are listed below.	7,1							
1.1 PROCUREMENT PLANNING				ſ	ļ			
1.1.1 GENERAL				{				
(5)Procurement activities shall be planned and documented to ensure a systematic approach to the procurement process. (6)Procurement planning shall result in the documented identification of procurement methods and organizational responsibilities. (7)Appropriate Quality Assurance (QA)	7.2.1 7.2.1 7.2.1							

)

N-QA 030 12/88

								Page <u>70</u>	of]	244
		Review Results				Organization's Resolution				view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat. Para.	NO.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	4	cc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
						X 111				
organization participation shall be provided for evaluation and selection of suppliers, verification of suppliers activities and receiving inspections. (8)Planning shall determine the following:	8 7.2									
o What is to be accomplished.										
• Who is to accomplish it.									1	
• How it is to be accomplished.									.	
1.1.2 PROCUREMENT TIMING										
SITO ensure interface compatibility and a uniform approach to the procurement process, planning shall be accomplished as early as practicable and no later than at the start of those procurement activities that are required to be controlled.	9 7.2.	z								
1.1.3 PROCUREMENT METHODS										
(10)Planning shall result in the documented identification of the methods to be used in procurement activities, the sequence of actions and milestones that indicate the completion of these activities, and the preparation of applicable procedures prior to the initiation of each individual activity listed below. (11)Planning shall provide for the integration of the following:	10 7.2. 11 7.2	3 3			•					
 Procurement document preparation, review, and change control. 										
o Selection of procurement sources.				. -						
 Purchaser control of supplier performance. 						V				

•

N-QA 030 12/88

		Page <u>21_</u>						सम
		Review Results O				zation's Resolution	Rev Dis	Hew HOO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X				
			•	and the second se				
•								
 Verification (surveillance, inspection, or audit) activities by purchaser, including notification for hold-and-witness points. 							1	
o Control of nonconformances.								
o Corrective action.								
o Acceptance of item or service.								
o QA records.								
1.2 SOURCE EVALUATION AND SELECTION							1	
1.2.1 SELECTION OF SUPPLIERS								
(12) The selection of suppliers shall be based on evaluation of their capability to provide items or services in accordance with the requirements of the procurement documents before the award of contract.	12 7.3.1							
1.2.2 SOURCE EVALUATION AND SELECTION MEASURES								
(13)Procurement source evaluation and selection measures shall be imple- mented by the purchaser and shall provide for identification of the purchaser's organizational responsibilities for determining supplier capability.	13 7.3.2							
			•• •• •					
•	1	1				l		

.

• 1

.

						Page 72	of	<u> २.म.म</u>
		Review	Results	0	rgani	zation's Resolution	Re D	view ispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act	. Rej
 1.2.3 MEASURES FOR EVALUATION AND SELECTION OF PROCUREMENT SOURCES (14)Measures for evaluation and selection of procurement sources, and the results thereof, shall be documented and shall include one or more of the following items: Evaluation of the supplier's history of providing an identical or similar product that performs satisfactorily in actual use. The supplier's history shall reflect current capability. Supplier's current quality assurance records supported by documented qualitative and quantitative information that can be objectively evaluated. Supplier's technical and quality capability as determined by a direct evaluation of their facilities and personnel and the implementation of his QA program. 	14 7,3,3			X				
 1.3 BID EVALUATION 1.3.1 EXTENT OF CONFORMANCE (15)Bid evaluation shall determine the extent of conformance to the procurement documents. (16)This evaluation shall be performed by individuals or organizations designated to evaluate the following subjects, as applicable to the type of procurement:	5 7.4.1 6 7.4.1		v 4					

QA COMPLIANCE RE		CKLIST				1	N-QA 12/88	030
	1					Page 73	of <u>2</u>	44
		Review	Results	0	Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sal - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act	Rej
				X				
				pa				
				[] []				
• Supplier's personnel.							ľ	
o Supplier's production capabilities.								
9 Supplier's past performance.	1							
							1	
o Alternates.	1							
o Exceptions.								
1.3.2 RESOLUTION OF UNACCEPTABLE QUALITY ASSURANCE CONDITIONS						·		
(17) Before the award of the contract, the purchaser shall resolve or [7]	7.4.2							
resulting from the bid evaluation.							1	
1.4 SUPPLIER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION								
1.4.1 INTERFACE MEASURES	1							1.1
(18) The purchaser of items and services shall establish measures to inter-	7,5.1							
face with the supplier. (19) The measures shall include the following: [9]	7.5.1							
 Documentation of the understanding between purchaser and supplier of the provisions and specifications of the procurement documents. 								
o Requiring the supplier to identify planning techniques and processes								
to be utilized in fulfilling procurement document requirements.								
			•- مە					
	<u> </u>			<u> </u>				

QA	COMF	PLIANCE	REVIEW	CHECKLIST

N-QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>74</u>	ofZ	तते
			Review	Results	C)rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew i>o.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
 Reviewing supplier documents that are generated or processed during activities fulfilling procurement document requirements. Identifying and processing necessary change information. Measures to control changes in procurement documents shall be established, implemented and documented in accordance with the requirements of this QA Plan. Establishing methods of document information exchange between purchaser and supplier. 1.4.1 VERIFICATION MEASURES 1.4.2.1 EXTENT OF VERIFICATION (20) The purchaser of items and services shall establish measures to verify supplier's performance, as deemed necessary by the purchaser. The measures shall establish the extent of source surveillance and inspection activities. NOTE: (21)Men a Participating Organization, or Mevada Test Site (MTS) Support Contractor, utilizes another Participating Organization performing the work. The surveillance shall be conducted to MEFO to conduct a MEFO surveillance shall be conducted to determine that the item or activity is being produced or performed in accordance with the user organization's requirements. These surveillances may utilize MTS Support Contractor or Participating Organization performing the work. The surveillance shall be conducted to determine the the item or activity is being produced or performed in accordance with the user organization's requirements. These surveillances may utilize MTS Support Contractor or Participating Organization performing the work. 	20 21	7, <i>5</i> ,2,1 7, <i>5</i> ,2,1	•						
					N/		}		

÷

e,

•

			Page <u>75</u>						<u>44</u>
			Review Results			Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew DO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Aci	Rej.	Reason	Acr.	Rei
(22) The extent of verification activities, including planning, shall be a function of the relative importance, complexity, and quantity of the item or services procured and the supplier's quality performance. (23) Verification activities shall be accomplished by qualified personnel assigned to check, inspect, audit, or witness the suppliers' activities. (24) These verification activities shall be conducted as early as practicable. (25) However, the purchaser's verification activities shall not relieve the supplier of their responsibilities for verification of quality achievement.	22 23 24 25	7,5,2,1 7,5,2,1 7,5,2,1 7,5,2,1			:				
1.4.2.2 Record of Verification Activities (26)Activities performed to verify conformance to requirements of procure- ment documents shall be recorded. (27)Source surveillances and inspections, sudits, receiving inspections, nonconformances, dispositions, waivers, and corrective actions shall be documented. (20)These completed documents shall be considered QA records and shall be controlled in accordance with Section XVII of this Quality Assurance Plan (QAP). (29)The purchaser shall ensure that this documentation is evaluated to determine the supplier's QA program effectiveness.	26 27 28 29	7,5,2,2 7,5,2,2 7,5,2,2 7,5,2,2							•
1.5 CONTROL OF DOCUMENTS GENERATED BY SUPPLIERS (30)Documents that are generated by suppliers shall be controlled, handled, and approved in accordance with documented procedures. (31)Heans shall be implemented to ensure that the submittal of these documents is accomplished in accordance with the procurement document requirements. (32)These measures shall provide for the acquisition, processing, and recorded evaluation of technical, inspection, and test data against acceptance criteria.	30 31 32	7.6 7.6 7.6		.					

		Review Results			Organization's Resolution			Revie	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rei	Reason	Aci	T
					$-\overline{Y}$			1	ŀ
					jui				
•									
1.6 ACCEPTANCE OF ITEM OR SERVICE									
6.1 METHODS FOR ACCEPTANCE							•		
(33)Hethods shall be established for the acceptance of an item or service	23	7.7.1		·					
ing furnished by the supplier. (34)Prior to offering the item or service for ceptance, the supplier shall verify that the item or service being furnished	34	7.7.1						1	
mplies with the procurement requirements. (35)Purchaser mathods used to	35	7.7.1							
Cept an item of related service from a supplier shall be either a supplier rificate of conformance, a source verification, a receiving inspection or									
ost-installation test at the facility site, or a combination thereof.									
derivative apprication to chase machines of acceptance are listed below.									
6.1.1 Certificate of Conformance									
(36)When a certificate of conformance is used, the following minimum iteria shall be met:	· 36	7.7.Z		· .					
o The certificate shall identify the purchased material or equipment, such as by the purchase order number.									
o The certificate shall identify the specific procurement requirements									
met by the purchased material or equipment, such as codes, standards,					•				
list of the specific requirements or by providing at the point of									
receipt, a copy of the purchase order and the procurement apecifi- cations or drawings, together with a suitable certificate. The pro-									
curement requirements identified shall include any approved changes,									
waivers, or deviations applicable to the subject material or equip- ment.									
								1	

12/08 Page 77 of 244 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para, No. -Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Aci Rej X ///w o The certificate shall identify any procurement requirements that have not been met, together with an explanation and the means by which to resolve the nonconformances. o The certificate shall be attested to by a person who is responsible for this QA function and whose function and position are described in the purchaser's or supplier's QA program. 6 The certificate system, including the procedures to be followed in filling out a certificate and the administrative procedures for the review and approval of the certificates, shall be described in the purchaser's or supplier's QP. program. Heans shall be provided to verify the validity of supplier ~ certificates and the effectiveness of the certification system, such as during the performance of audits of the supplier or independent inspection or test of the items. Such verification shall be conducted by the purchaser at intervals commensurate with the supplier's past quality performance. 1.6.1.2 Source verification (37) If source verification is used, then it shall be performed at 37 7.7.3 intervals that are consistent with the importance and complexity of the item 38 7.7.3 or service, and it shall be implemented to monitor, witness, or observe 39 7.7.3 activities. (38) Source verification shall be implemented in accordance with plans to perform inspections, examinations, or tests at predetermined points. (39)Upon purchaser acceptance of source verification, documented evidence of acceptance shall be furnished to the receiving destination of the item, to the purchaser, and to the supplier.

QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST

N-QA 030

N-QA 030 **QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST** 12/88 Page 78 of 744 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para, No. -Comments Acc. Rei Reason Acr. Rej 14 1.6.1.3 Receiving inspection (40) When receiving inspection is used, purchased items shall be inspected 40 7.7.4 as necessary to verify their conformance to specified requirements, by taking 41 7.7.4 42 7.7.4 43 7.7.4 43 7.7.4 into account source verification and audit documentation and the demonstrated quality performance of the supplier. (41)Receiving inspection shall be performed in accordance with established procedures and inspection instructions to verify by objective evidence such features as proper configuration; identification; dimensional, physical, and other characteristics; freedom from shipping damage; and cleanliness. (42)Receiving inspection shall be coordinated with review of supplier documentation when 457.7.4 procurement documents require such documentation to be furnished prior to receiving inspection. (43)Receiving inspections associated with engineered items shall be planned, performed, and documented in accordance with the requirements specified in Section X, Para. 2.1, 4.0, 4.1, 6.1, 9.0 and 9.1 of this document. (44)Personnel selected to receipt inspection activities shall have the experience or training commensurate with the scope, complexity, or special nature of the activities. (45) When required, personnel shall also be indoctrinated as to the technical objectives and requirements of the applicable codes and standards and the QA program elements that are applicable.

46 7.7.5

1.6.1.4 Post-Installation testing

(46)When post-installation testing is used, post-installation test requirements and acceptance documentation shall be established mutually by both the purchaser and the supplier.

QA COMPLIANCE R	EVIEW CH	ECKLIST					N-QA 12/88	030
		Review	v Results		rganiza	Page <u>79</u> Ition's Resolution	of Rev	2 <u>44</u> view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Act.	Rej
 1.7 ACCEPTANCE OF SERVICES ONLY 1.7.1 PROCURDENT OF SERVICES ONLY (47) In certain cases involving procurement of services only, such as third party inspections, engineering, and consulting; and installation, repair, overhaul, or maintenance work, the purchaser shall accept the service by any or any combination of the following methods: Technical verification of data produced. Surveillance, sudit, or both, with regard to the activity. Review of objective evidence for conformance to the procurement document requirements such as certifications, stress reports, etc. 	7 7.8							
1.8 CONTROL OF SUPPLIER NONCONFORMANCES								
1.8.1 HETHODS								
(48)The purchaser and supplier shall establish and document methods for disposition of items and services that do not meet procurament document requirements. These methods shall include the following provisions:	18 7.9							
1.9.1.1 Evaluation								
(49)Provisions for evaluation of nonconforming items.	9 7.9.1							
			~					

)

•

							Page <u>80</u>	of 2	<u> भ</u> भ
			Review Results			Irgani	zation's Resolution	Rev	vew spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rei
 1.8.1.2 Submittal (50)Provisions for submittal of nonconformance notice to purchaser by supplier as directed by the purchaser. (51)These submittals shall include supplier recommended disposition (e.g., use as-is or repair) and technical justification. (52)Monconformances to the procurement requirements or purchaser approved documents, which consist of one or more of the items listed twilow shall be submitted to the purchaser. (53)Approval of the recommended disposition shall be in accordance with documented procedures: Technical or material requirement is violated. Requirement in supplier documents, which has been approved by the purchaser, is violated. Monconformance cannot be corrected by continuation of the original manufacturing process or by rework. The item does not conform to the original requirement even though the item can be restored to a condition such that the capability of the item to function is unimpaired. 	50 51 52 53	7.9.2 7.9.2 7.9.2 7.9.2		·					
(54)Provisions for purchaser disposition of supplier recommendation.	54	7.9.3							
1.8.1.4 Verification									
(55)Provisions for verification of the implementation of the disposition.	55	7.9.4			J/				

N QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>81</u>	of <u>2</u>	रसम
			Review	Results	C	rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	/IQW 5100.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rei
•					X 141				
1.0.1.5 Records maintenance									
(56)Provisions for maintenance of records of nonconformances that are submitted by the Supplier.	56	7.9.5							
2.0 COMMERCIAL-GRADE ITEMS									
2.1 ALTERNATIVES									
(57) If a design requires connercial-grade items, then the following requirements are an acceptable alternative to other requirements of this section, except as noted in Paragraph 2.1.2 below and the requirements of Section IV of this QAP. (58) If a scientific investigation requires connercial-grade items they may be controlled by the use of the following requirements (except Paragraph 2.1.1) and Section IV of this QAP.	57 58	7, 10, 7, 10, 1							
2.1.1 IDENTIFICATION OF CONCERCIAL-GRADE ITEMS						1			
(59) Where the connercial-grade item is to be used as an integral part of the designed facility, it shall be identified in an approved design or design out-put document. (60) An alternate commercial-grade item may be supplied if the cognizant organization provides verification that the alternate commercial-grade item will perform the intended function and will meet the requirements applicable to both the replaced item and its application.	59 60	7,10,1,1 7,10,1,1			•				
2.1.2 SOURCE EVALUATION AND SELECTION									
(61)Source evaluation and selection shall be in accordance with Paragraph 1.2, if it is determined necessary by the purchaser based on the complexity of the item and importance to safety.	61	7,10,1,2							

•

					Page <u>82</u>	of	<u>244</u>	
		Reviev	v Results		Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc	Rej	Reason	Aci	He
				X Ince I				
2.1.3 PURCHASE ORDER								
(62)Commercial-grade items shall be identified in the purchase order by the manufacturer's published product description (e.g., the catalog number).	6Z 7,10.1.3							
2.1.4 RECEIPT OF CONNERCIAL-GRADE ITEM								
(63)After receipt of a commercial-grade item, the purchaser shall determine that the following conditions have been met:	,3 7 <i>,1</i> 21.4							
o Damage was not sustained during shipment.								
o The item received was the item ordered.					ľ	i		
o Inspection, testing, or both, is accomplished by the purchaser, in accordance with written procedures, to ensure conformance with the manufacturer's published requirements. If applicable, acceptance of the item may be accomplished via the calibration program in accordance with the requirements of Section XII of this QA Plan.			i					
o Documentation, as applicable to the item, was received and is acceptable.								

đ

N-QA 030 12/08

							Page <u>83</u>	of 7	44
		Review Results				Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat. Para.	Ño.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
					X				
SECTION VIII									
IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL OF ITEMS, SMELLES AND DATA						ļ			
INTRODUCTION									
This section provides the requirements for the identification and control of items, samples and data and consists of three separate parts. (1)The requirements for items are stated in part A; in part B for samples; and, part C for data resulting from scientific investigations. (2)Part A applies to activities related to the engineered items and does not apply to scientific investigations. (3)Parts B and C apply to scientific investigation activities and do not apply to engineered items.	1 8.0 z 8.0 3 8.0)							
PART A - IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL OF ITEMS									
1.0 IDENTIFICATION] .
(4) Itoms shall be identified to assure that only correct and accepted itoms are used or installed. (5) The identification shall be verified prior to installation or use. (6) Identification shall be maintained either on the item, their containers, or in documents traceable to the item from receipt until installed.	4 8.1 5 8.1 6 8.1				•				
1.1 GENERAL									
(7)Items of production (batch, lot, component, part) shall be identified from the initial receipt and fabrication of the items up to and including installation and use. (8)This identification shall relate an item to an	7 8. 8 8.			. "					

	QA COMPLIANCE R	EVIEW CH		·····	·····		N-QA	030
·					ć	D 0//	12/88	
		Review Results				ation's Resolution	Bevi Dis	100.
	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
1					X			
\								
ľ								
li				-				•
								•
				-				
				·				

N-QA 030 12/88

		······						Page <u>85</u>	of <u>7</u>	रसम
		Review Results					Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Ac	c. Re		Reason	Acı.	Rej
					X	u u				
1.1.1 (9) Physical identification shall be used to the maximum extent possible. (10) Mhere physical identification on the item is either impracticable or insufficient, physical separation, procedural control, or other appropriate means shall be employed.	9 10	8,1,1 8,1,1								
1.1.2 (11) Identification markings, when used, shall be applied using materials and methods which provide a clear and legible identification and do not detrimentally affect the function or service life of the item. (12) Markings shall be transferred to each part of an identified item when subdivided and shall not be obliterated or hidden by surface treatment or coatings unless other means of identification are substituted.	11 12	8,1.Z 8,1.Z								
1.1.3 (13)When specified by codes, standards or specification that include anogific identification or traceability requirements (such as identification or traceability of the item to applicable specification and grade of material; heat, batch, lot, part or serial number; or specified inspection, test or other records) the program shall be designed to provide such identification and traceability control.	13	8,1,3								
1.1.4 (14)Where specified, items having limited calendar or operating life or cycles shall be identified and controlled to preclude use of items whose shelf life or operating life has expired. 2.0 CONTROL	14	81.4			•					
(15)Provisions shall be made for the control of item identification consistent with the planned duration and condition of storage, such as: (1) provisions for maintenance or replacement of markings and identification records due to damage during handling or aging; (2) protection of identification on items subject to excessive deterioration due to environmental exposure; (3) provisions for updating existing facility records.	15	8.2								

			Page <u>&6</u>	01 244
		Review Results	Organization's Resolution	Dispo
	Sat -	Unsat -		
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Para. No.	Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej. Reason	Act. Rej
PART E - IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL OF SMPLES If (16)Procedures shall be developed and implemented to assure that samples are identified and controlled in a manner consistent with their intended use. If (17)Such procedures shall define the responsibilities (including interface to the spectrol of collection, identification, handling, storage, transportation and the generation of records. If IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	No t Applicable	F\$S does not have the responsibility for identification and control of samples		
1.1 GENERAL				
(21) Samples shall be identified by placing the identification directly on	1			
the sample, on their container or on records traceable thereto. (22) If it is		1		
impractical to place the identification on the sample, methods shall be				
described and implemented to assure that samples are not mixed with like	[.			
samples and that the correct identification of samples is verified and				
documented prior to release for use.	1			
	1	1 · ·		
	- F	1		
	ł)		

.

_

N	QA	030

12/88

Page <u>87</u> of 2									
		Review	Results	Organization's Resolution			Rev Dis	tio tio	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej	
				X					
				1110	{				
1.1.1 (23)Procedures shall be developed and implemented to assure that sample collection methods, techniques and related equipment produce the intended sample. (24)Sample handling methods shall be developed, documented and utilized to assure that all samples meet the technical objectives dictated by the scientific investigation, for which the samples are collected.	see item 16								
i.1.2 (25)Storage methodology shall be developed and implemented to assure that samples are maintained in predetermined physical conditions commensurate with their intended purpose. (26)Samples intended for long term storage shall receive appropriate treatment to assure that they do not degrade during storage. (27) <u>Long term</u> is not defined herein and shall be defined by the responsible organization depending on the sensitivity of the sample to storage conditions.									
1.1.3 (28)Transportation methods shall be described and effected by procedures prescribing appropriate containers, handling and any other environmental or safety considerations for the sample(s). (29)Where multiple organizations are involved, appropriate procedures shall define responsibilities and documentation methods to be used.									
1.1.4 (30)Controls shall be developed and implemented to assure that sample identification is verified and maintained when handled, transported or transferred from one organization's responsibility to another.									
1.1.5 (31)Heasures shall be taken to maintain sample identification while in storage. (32)These measures shall be consistent with the planned duration and conditions of storage and shall describe actions to be taken where samples may have a maximum life expectancy while in storage. (33)Physical segregation of samples to preclude mixing with like samples shall be used to the maximum degree practical.			*						

QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST N Page 28 Page 28 Review Results Organization's Resolution Sat - Unsat - Page 28 Sat - Unsat - Para No Comments Acc. Rej. Reason							N-QA 12/88	030
						Page <u>88</u>	ol <u>7</u>	<u> २.स.स</u>
		Review	Results		rganiza	tion's Resolution	Rev Dis	100.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci:	Rej
 1.1.6 (34) Where samples are controlled by more than one organization, procedures describing the organizational responsibilities shall be developed and implemented. 1.1.7 (35) The NEPO will develop and implement an Administrative Procedure (AP) describing the ultimate curation of all types of samples including liquids, gases and solids. (36) The AP will, as a minimum, address the transportation, handling, storage, retrievability of samples and the generation and retention of records. (37) All records generated as a result of testing of samples shall be handled in accordance with Section XVII. PART C - IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL OF DATA 	sce item 16							
(30)Data generated from a Nevada Nuclear Waste Storage Investigation (NEWSI) scientific investigation shall be identified to assist in the determination of its correct use. (39)Identification of such data shall be provided in all documents, information systems, or both, in which such data appear.	8 8.3 89 8.3							
1.1 GENERAL			•	.				
(40) The identification of NNMSI Project data shall include a reference to the origin of the data (task, test, experiment, report, publication, etc.) and an indication of the Quality Assurance Level assigned to the activity which produced the data.	10 8.3							
1.1.1 (41)Control measures shall be established and implemented to assure that NAMSI Project data are properly identified. (42)These measures shall include verification of the identification of such data prior to release for use.	11 8,4 2 8,4		·					

.

N-QA 030

	REVIEW CHI	ECKLIST				N-QA 12/88	03
		Review	/ Results	Ornapiza	Page 89	of	<u>244</u> //ew
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc. Rej	Reason	Aci:	14
1.1.2 (43)Where data are the results of the efforts of more than one organ- ization, procedures describing the organizational responsibilities for that data shall be developed and implemented. (44)The documentation resulting from the scientific investigation involving more than one organization shall be annotated to show which organization produced what portion of the data.	43 8.4 44 8.4			ine I			

.

•

			Review	Results		Organ	ization's Resolution	Di Di
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Aci
					X			
						1		
SECTION IX								
CONTROL OF PROCESSES								
1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS								
(1) The requirements of this section apply to engineered items and scien- fic investigations for <u>process</u> control. (2) The requirements for appriat	1	9.1						
cesses apply to engineered items only. (3) Heasures shall be established to use that processes that affect quality of items or comission and established	Z	9.1				1		
her by instruction, procedures, or other appropriate means. (4) Special	3	9.1		-				
cesses that control or verify quality, such as those used in welding, heat ating, and nondestructive examination shall be accomplished by qualified	4	9,1						
sonnel using qualified procedures in accordance with applicable codes, ndards, specifications, criteria, and other special requirements.								
2.0 PROCESS CONTROL						·		
2.1 HETHOD								
(5)All processes shall be controlled by instructions, procedures,	5	9.Z			.			
all ensure that process parameters are controlled and that specified	6	9.z.						
ronmental conditions are maintained.								
				·· *			1	
					10	1	1	

QA COMPLIANCE RE	VIEW CHI	ECKLIST				N : QA 12/88	030
	1		***		Page <u>9/</u>	of	<u>.44</u>
		Reviev	v Results	Organization's Resolution			5100.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
1.1 DEMTIFICATION OF SPECIAL PROCESSES 3.1.1 DEMTIFICATION OF SPECIAL PROCESSES (1) It is the responsibility of the Participating Organization and Newdar for the Special processes is a process in which the results are highly dependent on either the control of the processes or the operator's skill, or both, and in which the aresults are highly dependent on either the control of the processes or the operator's skill, or both, and in which the aresults are highly dependent on either the control of the processes or the operator's skill, or both, and in which the aresults are highly dependent on either the control of the processes or the operator's skill, or both, and in which the aresults are highly dependent on either the control of the processes or the operator's skill, or both, and in which the aresults are highly dependent on either the control of the processes or the operator's skill, or both, and in which the aresults are highly dependent on either the control of the processes or processes where the qualifications of personnel, proceedures, or a second the special process and standards are the operator or an item or test are not covered by existing codes and standards are the operator or an item or test are to to processes where the quality requirements for an item or test are to be operator and item or test are to be operator and item or test are to be operator and the processes where the quality requirements for an item or test are to be processes and are the processes and colliberation of the special process shall include for the processes of the special process and colliberation or processes and colliberation are to be processes and colliberation are to be processes and colliberation are to be procesed are to be procesed are to be processes and colliberation are to	9.2.1 9.2.1 9.2.1.1 9.2.1.1 9.2.1.1			The			
			.	V			

)

GA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST								
			Pa	age 97. of 244				
		Review Results	Organization's Re	solution Dispo.				
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej. Rea	ison Aci, Rej				
	ć							
2.2.4 APPLICABLE CODES NO STANDARDS								
(12) The requirements of applicable codes and standards, including acceptance criteris for the special process, shall be specified or referenced	12 9.2.1.2							
in the procedures of instructions.	-							
				.				
		· •						
	1			1 1				

.

ł

N QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>93</u>	of 3	244
		Review Results				Organization's Resolution			view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rej	Reason	Acı.	Rei
					X	1			
			l.		iu	ł			
2.3 QUALIFICATION OF SPECIAL PROCESS PROCEDURES									
2.3.1 PROGRAM FOR QUALIFICATION									
(13)Procedures shall be qualified in accordance with applicable codes,	13	9.2.2							
standards or other specifications. (14) The program for qualification of pro- cedures shall be specified in documents prevared by the compirant technical	14	9.2.2							
organization. (15) The responsible QA organization shall provide appropriate	15	9.2.2]		1	
reviews to assure compliance with these requirements.						Į			
2.4 QUALIFICATION OF PERSONNEL PERFORMING SPECIAL PROCESSES									
2.4.1 TRAINING, QUALIFICATION, AND CERTIFICATION									ł
(16)Personnel shall be trained, qualified, and certified in accordance	16	9.2.3.1				Į			1
with written procedures. (17)The training and qualification, and certification shall be the responsibility of the organization that is certorming the work.	17	9.2.3.1							
(18) These procedures shall be reviewed by the responsible Quality Assurance (QA) organization for compliance with requirements.	18	9.2.3.1							
2.4.2 PROCEDURS								Í.	
(19)Qualification shall utilize the actual working procedure, to the extent possible.	19	9.2.3.2			•				
2.4.3 PERSONNEL QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS						1			
(20)Qualification of personnel shall incorporate the personnel qualification requirements of the applicable codes, standards, or specifications.	ەر	9.2.3.2							

ı

QA	COMPL	LIANCE	REVIEW	CHECKL	IST
----	-------	--------	--------	--------	-----

N-QA	030
12/88	

						Page <u>94</u>	of 3	ग्रम
		Review Results			Organization's Resolution			view spo.
Review Requirements per NWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
1.1 SPECIAL PROCESS EQUIPMENT (2))Special process equipment shell be checked out, qualified, and certified in accordance with specified requirements. (2)These responsibles the responsibility of the organization parforming the work. (24)The responsible of organization shell be the procedures for qualification of equipment for copliance with requirements of a qualification of equipment for copliance with requirements of the currently qualified personnel, forcedures, and equipment of each special process and the requirements for mathematics of these records shell be ageified. (26)Special process verification methods and criteria shell also be documented and retained.	1 9.2.4 9.2.4 3 9.2.4 4 9.2.4 5 9.2.5 6 9.2.5							

4

N-QA-030 12/88

						Page <u>95</u>	of ?	44
	Review Results			6	Organization's Resolution			iew po.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc,	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
SECTION X INSPECTION								
1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS								
(1)Heasures shall be established by or for the Participating Organizations 1 and Nevada Test Site (NTS) Support Contractors to provide inspections required to verify conformance of an item or activity to specified requirements. 2 (2)These measures shall provide for: (1) inspections to be performed in accor- dance with written procedures by qualified personnel who did not perform the work being evaluated; (2) criteris for determining when inspections are required or how and when inspections are to be performed; (3) sampling methodology, if used; (4) the identification of mandatory hold points; and (5) identification of inspections requiring special expertise. (3)The results of all inspection activities shall be documented by the inspecting organization. (4)The requirements of this section apply to engineered items and do not apply to scientific investigation activities.	10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1							
2.0 PERSONNEL					ļ			
2.1 REPORTING INDEPENDENCE OF PERSONNEL								
(5) Inspections shall be performed by personnel who do not report directly 5 to the immediate supervisor(s) who is/are responsible for performing the 6 activity being inspected. (6) If these personnel are not part of the formal QA 6 organization, they shall have sufficient authority, access to work areas, and organizational freedom to (1) identify quality problems; (2) initiate, recommend, or provide solutions to quality problems through designated channels; (3) verify implementation of solutions; and (4) assure that further	0.2. 10.2.		. <u>-</u>					

N-QA	030
12/88	

							Page <u>96</u>	of 3	र मम
		Review Results			Review Results Organization's Resolu		zation's Resolution	n Dispo.	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act	Rej
processing, delivery, installation or use is controlled until proper disposition of a nonconformance, deficiency, or unsatisfactory condition has occurred. (7) When these persons or organizations who perform the inspection activities are not part of the formal QA organization (i.e., part of line management), then the quality assurance organization shall overview and monitor the inspection activity.	7	10.2.1							
2.2 QUALIFICATION									
(0)Each person who verifies conformance of work activities for purposes of acceptance shall be qualified to perform the assigned inspections or tests. (9)The qualification of personnel performing inspection and test activities shall be certified in writing. (10)Personnel selected to perform inspection and test activities shall have the experience or training commensurate with the scope, complexity, or special nature of the activities. (11)Personnel shall also be indoctrinated as to the technical objectives and requirements of the applicable codes and standards and the GA program elements that are to be employed.	8 9 10 11	10.2.2 10.2.2 10.2.2 10.2.2							
3.0 INSPECTION HOLD FOINTS (12)Handatory inspection or witness hold-points shall be established as necessary. (13)When such hold or witness points are established, work may not proceed without the specific consent of the responsible representative. (14)These hold or witness points shall be indicated in appropriate documents controlling the activity. (15)Consent to waive any specified hold or witness point shall be documented before work can be continued beyond the designated hold or witness point.	12 13 14 15	10:3 10:3 10:3 10:3							
N-QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>97</u>	of 7	44
		Review	Results	G	rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				$\neg X$,			
				140				
4.0 Inspection planning								
(16)Planning for inspection activities shall be accompliabed and 16 documented via inspection procedures, instructions, or checklists. (17) Inspection procedures, instructions, or checklists shall provide for the following:	10.4 10,4							
 Identification of characteristics and activities to be inspected. 								
o A description of the method of inspection.								
o Identification of the individuale or groups responsible for performing the inspection operation.								
o Acceptance and rejection criteria.								
o Identification of required procedures, drawings, and specifications and revisions.		:						
o Recording inspector or data recorder and the results of the inspection operation.								Ċ
o Specifying necessary measuring and test equipment including accuracy requirements.								
4.1 SMPLING								
(10)When sampling is used to verify acceptability of a group of items, the sampling procedures shall be based on recognized standard practices.	10,4.1			V				

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>98</u>	of Z	44
		Review R	esults	c	rgan	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew 1XO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X				
5.0 IN-PROCESS INSPECTION								
(19) Inspection of items in-process or under construction shall be 19 performed for work activities where necessary to verify quality. (20) If 19 inspection of processed items is impossible or disadvantageous, indirect 20 control by monitoring of processing methods, equipment, and personnel shall be provided.	10,5 10,5							
5.1 CONBINED INSPECTION AND HONITORING								
(21) Where a combination of inspection and process monitoring methods is Zj used, it shall be performed in a systematic memory to ensure that the Z2, specified requirements for control of the process and quality of the item are being achieved throughout the duration of the process. (22) Both inspection and process monitoring shall be provided when other techniques cannot provide adequate control.	10.5.1 10.5.1							
5.2 CONTROLS]	
(23)Mhere required, controls shall be established and documented for the 23 coordination and sequencing of activities at established inspection points during successive stages of the conducted process or construction.	10,5.2			•				
6.0 FINAL INSPECTION						1.		
(24)Final inspection shall include a records review of the results and 74 resolution of nonconformances identified by prior inspections. (25)The final 2.5 inspection shall be planned to reach a conclusion regarding conformance of the item to specified requirements.	10.6 10.6				2			

		r	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	·····			Page <u>47</u>		<u>र पप</u>
			Review	Results	6	Organi	ization's Resolution	Rev De	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Re
					X				
					In	1			
6.1 INSPECTION REQUIREMENTS									
(26)Completed items shall be inspected for completeness, markings, calibration, adjustments, protection from damage, or other characteristics as required to verify the item's quality and conformance to specified requirements. (27)If not previously examined, then quality records shall be examined for adequacy and completeness.	26 27	10.6.1 10.6.1							
6.2 ACCEPTANCE	1							ļ	
(28) The item's acceptance shall be documented and approved by identified authorized personnel.	28	10,6.Z							
6.3 HODIFICATIONS, REPAIRS, OR REPLACEMENTS						ŀ			
(29)Modifications, repairs, or replacements of items performed subsequent to final inspection shall require reinspection or retests, as appropriate, to verify acceptability.	29	10.6.3							
7.0 IN-SERVICE INSPECTION									
(30)Required in-service inspection of structures, systems, or components shall be planned and executed by or for the organization responsible for operation. 7.1 METHODS	30	N/4	FLS is n for in- inspect	ot responsible service tion.			· ·		
(31) Inspection methods shall be established and executed to verify that the characteristics of an item continue to remain within specific limits. (32) Inspection methods shall include evaluation of performance capability of essential emergency and safety systems and equipment, verification of calibration and integrity of instruments and instrument systems, and verification of maintenance, as appropriate.	31 32	N/A N/A							

QA COMPLIANCE F	EVIEW CHI	ECKLIST				N 1	N- QA 12/88	030
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			Page <u>100</u>	of 7	<u>.44</u>
		Review	Results	0	rganizat	tion's Resolution	Dis	фо.
Review Requirements per NWVSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
8.0 QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS Appendix C of this document defines the requirements for the qualification of inspection and test personnel who perform inspection and testing to verify conformance to specified requirements for the purpose of acceptance. Appendix D defines the requirements for qualification of nondestructive examination personnel. 9.0 RECORDS (33) The following are the requirements for inspection records which shall be retained in accordance with Section XVII of this QAP.	33 10.9			Ken				
9.1 INSPECTION RECORDS								
(34)As a minimum, inspection records shall identify the following:	10.10							
o The date of the inspection.				· · · ·				
o Name of individual performing the inspection.								
o Name or names of personnel contacted during the inspection.								
 A description of the type of observation (method of inspection). 								

. .

N QA 030 12/00 70 72 **GA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST** 755 01 224 Page 101 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Unsat -Sat ~ Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. | Para, No. -Acc. Rej. Comments Reason Acı. Rej X ll W o Inspection criteria including identification of drawing, specification, etc. (and applicable revision). Equipment used during the inspection. 0 Evidence as to the acceptability of the results. 0 Acceptance statement. o References to information on action taken in connection with 0 conditions adverse to quality, nonconformances and/or actions taken to resolve any discrepancies. 9.2 PERSONNEL QUALIFICATION RECORDS (35)Records of personnel qualification shall be established and maintained 35 10.10.1 by the employer. (36) The actual examinations used to qualify personnel shall 36 10.10.1 also be retained as part of the record files.

•

٠

.

N-QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>/02</u>	of 2	44
			Review	Results		Orga	nization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsal Paral No	Comments	Acc	Re	i. Reason	Acı.	Rej
SECTION XI TEST CONTROL	1 2 34	11. 11. 11. 11. 11.		-					
2.0 TEST REQUIREMENTS (5) Test requirements and acceptance or rejection criteria, including required levels of precision and accuracy, shall be provided or approved by the organization responsible for the design of the item to be tested, unless otherwise designated. (6) Required tests, including, as appropriate, prototype qualification tests, pre-operational tests, proof tests prior to installation, construction tests, pre-operational tests, and operational tests shall be controlled. (7) Test requirements and acceptance or rejection criteria shall be based upon specified requirements contained in applicable design or other pertinent technical documents.	567	. Z. . Z. . Z.							

N-QA-030 12/88

					Page <u>/03</u>	of Z	ग्न
		Review	w Results	Org	janization's Resolution	Heve Dist	₩ Ю.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Paral N	Unsat - D. Para. No	Comments	Acc. R	lej Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X			
3.0 TEST PROCEDURES							
3.1 TEST INSTRUCTIONS, PROCEDURES AND DRAWINGS							
(8) Instructions, procedures, and drawings for tests shall be prepared in accordance with the requirements of Section V of this document. (9) Test procedures or instructions shall contain criteria for determining when a test is required and how the test is performed.	8 .3, 9 .3,						
3.2 TEST PREREQUISITES							
(10)Test procedures shall include or reference test objectives and pro- visions for assuring that prerequisites for the given test have been met, that adequate instrumentation is available and used, that necessary monitoring is performed, and that suitable environmental conditions are maintained. (11)Prerequisites shall include the following, as applicable: (1) calibrated instrumentation, (2) appropriate equipment, (3) completeness of item to be tested, (4) trained or appropriately qualified personnel, (5) condition of test equipment and the item to be tested, (6) suitable and controlled environmental conditions, and (7) provisions for data acquisition and storage.	10 .3.2 .3.2						
3 REVIEW OF PROCEDURES							
(12)Test plans and procedures shall be reviewed in accordance with the verification requirements defined in Paragraph 2.4 of Section III of this document. (13)They shall prescribe mandatory inspection hold points (as required), methods of documenting test data and results, and methods of data analysis.	12 .3. 13 .3.						

						Page <u>104</u>	of Z	44
		Review	Results	C	rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
			<u> </u>	X				
				In	1			
					ļ .			
3.4 POTENTIAL SOURCES OF ERROR								
(14) The potential sources of uncertainty and error in test procedures // which must be controlled and measured to assure that tests are well controlled shall be identified.	11.3.4							
3.5 ALTERNATIVES								
(15) In lieu of specifically prepared written test procedures, appropriate [15] sections of related documents, such as American Society for Testing and [16] Materials (ASTM) methods, Supplier manuals, equipment maintenance instructions, or approved drawings or travelers with acceptance criteria, can be used. (16) Such documents shall include adequate instructions to assure the required quality of work.	11.3.5 11.3.5							
4.0 TEST RESULTS						i		
(17)Test results shall be documented and their conformance with acceptance [7] criteris evaluated by a responsible authority to assure that test requirements have been satisfied.	11.4							
5.0 TEST RECORDS								
(18)Test records shall, as a minimum, identify the following:	11.5							
o Item tested.					Į			
o Date of test.			·····	N				

.

•

QA COMPLIANO	CHE REVIEW CHE	CKLIST				N 1	N-QA 12/88	030
						Page <u>105</u>	of <u>2</u>	<u>. 4</u> 4
· ·		Review	Results	c)rganiz:	ation's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew 300.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
							1	
				Ru			1	
• Tester or data recorder identification.							'	
• Type of observation.								
• Results and acceptability.								
o Action taken in connection with any deviations noted.								
o Person evaluating results.								
							t t	
							'	1
							ļ '	
· ·								
								ŀ
							'	[
		i		- IV	1 1		1 '	

N-QA 030

N QA 030 **QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST** 12/68 Page 100 of 244 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NWWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Acc. Rej. Para. No. Para. No. -Comments Reason Aci Rej Х SECTION XII CONTROL OF HEASURING AND TEST EQUIPMENT 1.0 GENERAL 1.1 HAINTAINING ACCURACY OF EQUIPHENT 12.1.1 (1) Measures shall be established to ensure that tools, gages, instruments, and other measuring and test equipment used in activities that affect quality are properly controlled, calibrated, and adjusted at specified periods to maintain accuracy within necessary limits. 1.2 SCOPE OF CONTROL PROGRAM (2) The Quality Assurance Program Plans (QAPPs) of the Participating 12.1.2 Ζ Organizations and Nevada Test Site (NTS) Support Contractors shall define the 3 12.1.2 scope and methodology of their program for the control of measuring and test equipment. (3) This shall include all measuring and test equipment or systems used to calibrate, measure, gage, test, or inspect either to control or to acquire data to verify conformance to a specified requirement, or to establish characteristics or values not previously known. 1.3 DESCRIPTION OF RESPONSIBILITIES (4) The responsibilities of all organizations shall be described for the 4 12.1.3 establishment, implementation and assurance that the calibration program is effective.

N-QA 030 12/88

		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					Page <u>107</u>	of 3	244
			Review	Results		Drgani	ization's Resolution	Rey	view Spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
					X				
2.0 PURPOSE OF EQUIPMENT									
(5)Heasuring and test equipment are devices or systems used to calibrate, measure, gage, test, or inspect either to control or to acquire data to verify conformance to a specified requirement, or to establish characteristics or values not previously known.	5	12.2				1			
(6)Specific requirements for control of measuring and test equipment are listed below: 2.1 SELECTION	6	12,2				l			
(7)Selection of measuring and test equipment shall be controlled to assure that such equipment is of proper type, range, and accuracy, to accomplish the function of determining conformance to specified tolerance requirements. The type, range, and accuracy of a measuring device shall be documented in test and inspection documents. (8)Each device shall have a unique identifi- cation number. (9)This number shall be recorded on the data sheet, log, etc., along with the measurement taken, to ensure traceability to the measurement of the device that was used to take the measurement.	7 8 9	2.2.] 2.2. 2.2.							
2.2 CALIBRATION									
(10)Measuring and test equipment shall be calibrated against certified equipment having known valid relationships to the Netional Bureau of Standards or other nationally recognized standards and shall be calibrated, adjusted, and maintained at prescribed intervals. (11) If no nationally recognized standards exist, the basis for calibration shall be documented. (12)Calibrating standards shall have equal or greater accuracy than equipment being calibrated. Calibrating standards with the same accuracy may be used if it can be shown to be adequate for the requirements and the basis of acceptance is documented and authorized by responsible management. (13)The management authorized to perform this function shall be identified.	10 11 12 13	12,2,2 12,2,2 12,2,2 12,2,2		. _					

N-QA 030 12/88

·····							Page <u>/08</u>	of 7	244
			Review	Results		Orgai	nization's Resolution	Rev De	/iew 5p0,
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	S Pa	at ra. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc	Rej	Reason	Acı.	Rej
•									
2.3 CONTROL									
(14) The method and interval of calibration for each item shall be defined, hased on the type of equipment, stability characteristics, required accuracy, precision, intended use, degree of usage, and other conditions that affect measurement control. (15) Heasuring and test equipment must be labeled, tagged, or otherwise documented in a fashion which indicates the due date of the next calibration and to provide traceability to calibration data. (16) If measuring and test equipment is found to be out of calibration, an evaluation shall be made and documented of the validity of previous results obtained and of the acceptability of items previously inspected, tested or data gathered since the last calibration. (17) Devices that are out of calibration shall be tagged or segregated and shall not be used until they have been recalibrated. (18) If any measuring or test equipment is found to be out of calibration consistently, then it shall be repaired or replaced. (19) A calibration shall be performed when the accuracy of equipment is support.	14 12 15 12 16 12 17 12 18 12 19 12	.2,3 ,2.3 .2.3 .2.3 .2.3 .2.3 .2.3			;			-	
2.4 COMBRCIAL DEVICES									
(20)Calibration and control measures are not required for rulers, tape measure, levels, and other such devices, if normal commercial equipment provides adequate accuracy.	20 21	.2.4							
2.5 KANDLING AND STORAGE									
(21)Heasuring and test equipment shall be handled properly and stored to meintain accuracy.	21 12	.2,5		.					

QA	COMPLIANCE	REVIEW	CHECKLIST
----	------------	--------	-----------

•

N-QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>109</u>	of ქ	244
			Review	· Results		Drgania	zation's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Re
					\overline{X}				
					Klu	4.			
					()				
2.6 RECORDS									
(22)Records shall be maintained and equipment shall be marked suitably to	77	12.7.6							
indicate calibration status. (23) Calibration records shall identify the calibration procedure (including revision) utilized to perform the calibration.	23	12.26							ļ
								l	
•									I
									Ì
					11				
					. [] .				
					- 187			{	
		I			. IV	1		1	

1

•

N-QA 030 12/88

.

				·····		Page //A	01.7	<u>uu</u>
		Review	Results	0	rgania	zation's Resolution	Rev	new ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act.	Rej
				X Juan I				
SECTION XIII								
MANDLING, SHIPPING, AND STORAGE								
1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS								
(1)Measures shall be established to control the pschaging, handling, I storage, shipping, cleaning, and preservation of material and equipment to prevent damage, loss, or deterioration. (2)Mandling, storage, and shipping of items shall be conducted in accordance with established work and inspection instructions, drawings, specifications, shipment instructions, or other pertinent documents or procedures specified for use in conducting the activity. Specific requirements are listed below.	13.1 13,1							
1.1 SPECIAL EQUIPMENT AND PROTECTIVE ENVIRONMENTS					1	:	ł	
(3) When required for particular items, special equipment (e.g., 3 containers, shock absorbers, and accelerometers) and special protective 3 environments (e.g., an inert gas atmosphere, specific moisture content levels, and temperature levels) shall be specified and provided, and their existence shall be verified.	13.1.1			•				
1.2 SPECIFIC PROCEDURES								
(4) When they are required for critical, sensitive, perishable, or exceptionally expensive articles, specific procedures for handling, storage, packaging, shipping, and preservation shall be used.	13.1.2		.					

N-QA	030
12/88	

						Page <u>///</u>	of 🦼	<u> 244</u>
		Review	Results	c	Irganiz	ation's Resolution	Rev	/iew 500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				Kal				
1.3 INSPECTION AND TESTING OF SPECIAL TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT								
(5) Special handling tools and equipment shall be utilized and controlled 5 as necessary to ensure safe and adequate handling. (6) Special handling tools and equipment shall be inspected and tested in accordance with procedures and at specified time intervals to verify that the tools and equipment are maintained adequately.	13.1.3 13.1.3							
1.4 OPERATORS OF SPECIAL EQUIPMENT								
(7)Operators of special handling and lifting equipment shall be 7 experienced or trained to use the equipment.	13.1.4							
1.5 HARKING AND LABELING							ļ	
(8) Instructions for marking and labeling for packaging, shipment, Andling, and storage of items shall be established as necessary to adequately identify, maintain, and preserve the item, including indication of the presence of special environments or the need for special controls.	13.1.5		л <i>.</i> с					

.

.

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>112.</u>	of Z	44
		Review	w Results		Organization's Resolution			view spo
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para N	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
SECTION XIV INSPECTION, TEST, AND OPERATING STATUS 1.0 INDICATION OF STATUS (1)The requirements of this section apply to engineered items and do not apply to scientific investigations. (2)The status of inspection and test artivities shall be identified either on the items or in documents treceable to the items where it is necessary to assure that required inspections and tests are performed and to assure that items which have not passed the required inspections and tests are not inadventently installed, used, or operated. (3)Status indicators shall also provide for indicating the operating status of systems and components of the facility, such as by tagging valves and switches, to prevent insdvertent operation.	1 14.1 2 14.1 3 14.1 1 14.2			ian I				
2.0 HETHODS OF INDICATING STATUS (4)Status shall be maintained through indicators, such as physical location and tags, markings, travelers, stamps, inspections records, or other suitable means. (5)Procedures describing status indicators and their use shall contain current actual examples of each type indicator.	5 14.2							
3.0 APPLICATION AND REMOVAL OF STATUS INDICATORS (6)The authority for application and removal of status indicating tags, markings, labels, and stamps shall be specified in procedures governing inspection, test, and operating status.	14.3							

۰

Ł

N-QA 030 12/88

			Review	Results		Organization's Resolution				
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat. Para	- No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej	
SECTION XV CONTROL OF NONCONFORMING ITEMS 1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS (1)Heasures shall be established to control items that do not conform to requirements to prevent their inadvertent installation or use. (2)These measures shall include documented procedures for identification, documenta- tion, evaluation, segregation (when practical), disposition, and notification to affected organizations. (3)All personnel involved in Nevada Nuclear Waste Storage Investigations (NAMSI) Project activities are responsible for reporting nonconformances in accordance with their established nonconformance control procedures. (4)These procedures shall be consistent with the minimum requirements listed below.	15.1 2 15.1 3 15.1 4 15.1				X					
1.1 IDENTIFICATION 1.1. IDENTIFICATION (5) Identification of nonconforming items shall be made by marking, tagging, or other methods that shall not adversely affect the end use of the item. (6) The identification shall be legible, easily recognizable, and shall contain the nonconformance report number. (7) The nonconformance report number shall be a sequential number preceded by an organizational acronym (e.g, LLNL-1, USG3-6, etc). (0) If tags are used, they shall be securely attached to avoid loss during handling.	5 5.1 6 5.1 7 5.1 8 5.1	,/ ,/ ,1		-•			Υ.			

L

			·····			Page <u>114</u>	of 7	<u>. मम</u>
	:	Review	w_Results	c	Jrgan	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı,	Rej
1.1.2 EXCEPTIONS				X				
(9) If identification of each nonconforming item is not practical, the container, package, or segregated storage area, as appropriate, shall be identified.	15.1.2							
1.1.3 CONDITIONAL RELEASE								
(10) Work on the nonconforming item shall be stopped until completion of [0] the action specified in the Wonconformance Report (NCR) disposition. (11) If [] only a specific portion of the item is in nonconformance, then that specific [] area shall be identified and work may proceed on the remaining areas. (12) If [] work on a nonconforming item must be continued (conditional release) prior to [] implementation of the disposition, the Waste Hanagement Project Office (NBPO) shall approve such continuance. (13) Requests for conditional releases on nonconforming items shall include documented justification that the following conditions are met:	15,1,3 15,1,3 15,1,3 15,1,3							
o The nonconforming item can be removed or corrected at a later date without damage to, or contamination of the associated permanent facility equipment or structures.								-
o The nonconforming item remains accessible for inspection.				ŀ		1	1	
o The nonconforming item is evaluated and limitation(s) for use of the equipment or system is established.								
o Traceability and identification of the nonconforming item are maintaine								

4

12/00

			·		-		12/88
						Page <u> 15</u>	of
		Reviev	0	Irganiza	tion's Resolution	ľ	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sal Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	A
				X			
1.2.1 MUNULINFURMANCE CONTROL LOG							
(14)Each NHMSI Project participant shall maintain a nonconformance control log to track nonconforming items. (15)This log shall contain the following	14 15.1.4						
information:	15.1.4	× .					
o The monconformance report number.							
• A brief description of the nonconforming condition.							
o Identification of the person or organization responsible for determining and carrying out the nonconformance disposition.							
o The status of each monconformance report (open or closed).							
1.3 SEGREGATION							
1.3.1 HOLD AREA							
(16)When practical, nonconforming items shall be segregated by placing	16 15.1.5.1						
them in a clearly identified and designated hold area until they are dispositioned properly.				<u> </u>			
.3.2 ALTEPNATIVE							
(17) When segregation is impractical or impossible because of obvious	17 15157						
conditions, such as size, weight, or access limitations, other presentions	11 151.5.4						
THE AN ANTION OF PROVIDE THOUSE CERT AND OF A HONGUNING FLEM.		11	·· •				
			• .				

٠

•

				Page <u>116</u>	of <u>244</u>
		Review Results	Organi	zation's Resolution	Review Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Aci Rej
<section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header>	18 15,1.6.1 19 15,1.6.1 20 15,1.6.1 20 15,1.6.1 22 15,1.6.2 23 15,1.6.2				

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page 117	of 2	2 <i>44</i>
		Review	Results	C)rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sal Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X				
				100				ł
							1	
(24) The person or organization assigned the responsibility of 24 dispositioning the NCR shall ensure the following:	15,1.6,4							
 Nonconformance documentation adequately identifies and describes the nonconformance. 								
 Appropriate justification for the disposition has been documented. In the case of use-as-is or repair dispositions, technical justifi- cation is required. The as-built records, if such records are required, shall reflect the accepted deviation. 								
o The disposition has referenced any approved design documents, procedures, plans, work orders, etc., that are to be used for the correction of the monconforming condition.								
 The technical details for correction of the nonconforming condition are adequate for the recommended disposition. 								
o If continuance has been requested, justification for the activity to continue has been documented and approved by the appropriate WEPO Branch Chief and the WEPO PGM.								
o The disposition complies with existing design documents, test plans or procedures, reports, and regulatory requirements.								
o If a change to reflect the as-built condition is appropriate, then the disposition addresses action to change the existing design documents, test plans or procedures, reports, etc. Any documents changed shall also be cross referenced on the MCR.								

•

N-QA-030 **QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST** 12/88 Page 118 of 244 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para. No. Acc. Rej. Para. No. -Comments Reason Act. Rej Disposition has identified and documented the correction as repair, • rework, use-as-is, or reject/scrap. o Disposition has identified the people or organization responsible to implement the disposition. 1.4.5 NHPO APPROVAL (25) In those cases where the responsible organization proposes a 25 15,1.4.5 disposition of "repair", NEPO shall approve the proposed disposition prior to 26 15.1.6.5 implementation." (26) In the case of a proposed disposition of "use-as-is", the NCR shall be forwarded to WHEO for approval after all actions necessary to 27 15.1.6.5 support technical justification of the disposition have been completed. (27) The appropriate NHPO Branch Chief and the NHPO PGH shall approve NCR dispositions involving "repair" or "use-as-is" determinations and conditional release recommendations, 1.4.6 CORRECTIVE ACTION (28) The action taken to correct the nonconforming item shall be verified 28 15.1.7 and documented. (29) Repaired or reworked items shall be reexamined in 29 15.1.7 accordance with applicable procedures and with the original acceptance criteria, unless the monconforming item disposition has established alternate acceptance criteria. 1.4.7 INTERFACES (30) Internal interfaces between organizational units and external 30 15.1.8 interfaces between NNWSI Project participants shall be clearly described.

.

1

•

	<u> </u>					Page <u>119</u>	of	244
		Review	Results		Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev Dr	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No	Unsat - D. Para, No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
2.0 REPETITIVE NONCONFORMANCES (31)When repetitive or recurring nonconforming conditions are identified, an evaluation shall be made as to whether or not further programmatic corrective action is warranted to preclude repetition. (32)This corrective action shall be beyond the scope of the action taken for the disposition on the existing NCRs and shall be processed in accordance with corrective action procedures developed by each NMNSI Project participant. 3.0 TRENDING (33)Monconformence reports shall be periodically analyzed by the QA organization to show quality trends and to help identify root causes of nonconformances. (34)Results shall be reported to upper management for review and assessment.	31 <i>I.S.</i> Z 32 <i>I.S.</i> Z 33 <i>I.S.</i> 3 34 <i>I.S.</i> 3							
4.0 DISTRIBUTION OF DOCIMENTS (35)Copies of nonconformance reports for items shall be sent to the NHPO FOM and the SAIC/TEMSS Project QA Department (QA Engineering Division Hanager) by the originating organization upon issuance and upon closure. (36)The original nonconformance reports shall be sent to the NHPO for approval as required by Paragraph 1.4.5 of this section.	35 <i>15.</i> 4 36 15.4		-					

N-QA	030
12/88	

						Page 120	of 7	तत
		Review	Results	C	rgan	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
			:	X				
SECTION XVI								
CORRECTIVE ACTION								
1.0 GENERAL								
(1)A corrective action system is to be defined in the Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP) of each Nevada Muclear Maste Storage Investigations 2 (NAMSI) Project Participant and MIS Support Contractor. (2)This system shall ensure that conditions adverse or potentially adverse to quality are identified promptly and corrected as soon as practical.	16.1 16.1							
1.1 SIGNIFICANT NOVERSE CONDITIONS								
(3) For significant conditions adverse to quality the identification, cause, and corrective action taken to preclude recurrence shall be documented and reported to immediate management and upper levels of management for review and assessment. (4) A significant condition adverse to quality is one which, if not corrected, could have a serious effect on safety or operability. (5) Significant conditions include, but are not limited to breakdowns in the Quality Assurance program and repetitive nonconformances. (6) Upon discovering or receiving notification that a significant condition adverse to quality or unusual occurrence exists, each NNNSI Project Participant shall ensure that:	16.1.1 16.1.1 16.1.1 16.1.1 16.1.1							
o Immediate actions have been taken to remedy the specific condition(s).								
o Causative factors have been determined.			······	V				

QA	COMP	LIANCE	REVIEW	CHECKLIST
----	------	--------	--------	-----------

							Page <u>121</u>	of Z	44
			Review	Results		Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	new ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat, - Para, No	Comments	Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
 Controls have been reviewed, implemented, monitored and revised, if necessary. Affected managers at all levels have been notified of adverse condition(s) and of lessons to be learned to improve conditions or avoid similar occurrences. 									
1.2 FOLLOW-UP ACTION (7) The QA organization shall document concurrence of the adequacy of proposed corrective actions to assure that QA requirements will be satisfied. (0)Follow-up action shall be taken by the QA organization to varify proper imp- legentation of this corrective action and to close out the corrective action. (9) The organization responsible for implementing the corrective action shall assure that the corrective action is completed in a timely manner.	7 8 9	16.1.2 16.1.2 16.1.2							
1.3 CORRECTIVE ACTION (10)Corrective action reports shall be periodically analyzed by the QA organization to show quality trends. (11)Results shall be reported to upper management for review and assessment.	10 11	16.1.3 16.1.3							
2.0 DISTRIBUTION OF DOCUMENTS (12)Copies of corrective action reports shall be sent to the SAIC/TEHSS Project QA Department (QA Engineering Division Hanager) by the originating organization upon issuance and closure. (13)Those that document significant conditions adverse to quality shall be reported to the appropriate OCRNM Associate Director.	12 13	16.2 YNP0		ە د. 		/			

÷

N-QA 030 12/88

						•.	Page 122	of 3	244
			Review	Results		Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev	spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc	Rej	Reason	Aci	Rej
					X Jul				
SECTION XVII	ĺ								
QUALITY ASSURANCE RECORDS									
1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS									
(1)Records that furnish documentary evidence of quality shall be specified, prepared, and meintained in accordance with NEWESI Administrative Procedures which shall meet the requirements of this Section. (2)This shall include the requirements that all documents be legible, identifiable, and retrievable.	1 Z	17.1 17.]							
1.1 DEFINITION									
(3)A document or other item is not considered to be a Quality Assurance Record until it satisfies the definition of a Quality Assurance Record as defined below. (4)The term records, used throughout this Section is to be interpreted as Quality Assurance Records. (5)Quality Assurance Records include (1) individual documents that have been executed, completed, and approved and that furnish evidence of the quality and completeness of data (including raw data), and activities affecting quality; (2) documents prepared and maintained to demonstrate implementation of quality assurance programs (e.g., audit, surveillance, and inspection reports); (3) procursment documents; (4) other documents, such as plans, correspondence, documentation of telecons, specifications, technical data, books, maps, papers, photographs, and data sheets; (5) magnetic media; and (6) other materials that provide data and document quality, regardless of the physical form or characteristic. (6)A completed record is a document that will either receive no more entries or	シュレック	17.1.1 17.1.1 17.1.1 17.1.1							

.

٠

....

.

	·····				_	Page 123	of 2	244
· · ·		Review	w Results		Organi	ization's Resolution	Rev De	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. N	Unsat D. Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
whose revision would normally consist of the reissue of the document; and is signed and dated by the originator and, as applicable, by personnel authorised to approve the document. (7)Records shall be distributed, handled and controlled in accordance with written procedures. (8)All records (including superceded records) shall be retained for the NAMSI Project.	7 7.1.1 8 7.1.1			X				
1.2 ESTABLISHING A RECORD SYSTEM								
(9)A record system or systems shall be established by each NAMSI Project participant at the earliest practicable time consistent with the schedule for accomplishing work activities.	9 17.1.2							
1.2.1 RECORDS HANAGEMENT								
(10) The record system shall be defined, implemented, and enforced in accordance with written procedures, instructions, or other documentation prepared in accordance with Section V of this document. (11) The records management activities to be performed by the NMMSI Project Participating Organizations, Nevada Tust Site (NTS) Support Contractors, and the Naste Hanagement Project Office (NMPO) when processing QA records are detailed in the NMMSI Project Administrative Procedures Hanual.	10 7,1,2 7,1,2							
(12)The NAPO shall prepare a NAMSI Project Information Hanagement System Plan and shall submit the plan to OCRNM for review and approval. (13)The records management plan shall:	12 YMPO 13 YMPO							
o Identify the types of records to be generated, purchased, or maintained, including all records referenced in pertinent final reports and other documents.			-					

.

4

				Page 124 of 244
		Review Results	Organization	i's Resolution Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason Aci Re
 Identify the methods to be used to comply with all applicable records requirements, including those to be used to control in-process records. Identify and define the responsibilities of pertinent organizations, including the QA organization. (14)Consistent with applicable regulatory requirements, the NHPO shall establish requirements concerning record types and retention that shall include duration, location, and assigned responsibility. 1.2.2 MINIMAN RECORDS 	14 Y NPO	Para NO Comments	X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	Heason Aci He
(15)Sufficient records shall be specified, prepared, and maintained to furnish documented evidence of activities that affect quality. (16)The records shall include at least the following: operating logs, the results of reviews, inspections, tests, audits, monitoring of work performance, and materials analyses. (17)Also, the records shall include closely related data such as qualifications of personnel, procedures, and equipment. A list of typical QA records is contained in Appendix E. 1.2.3 CONTROL OF RECORDS	15 7,1,2,2 16 7,1,2,2 17 7,1,2,2			
(18)Requirements and responsibilities for record transmittal, distribution, retention, meintenance, and disposition of QA records shall be established and documented.	18 12.1 % 18 17.1.2.3			

.

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page 125	of 2	प्प
		Review	Results		rgani	ization's Resolution	Dis	фо.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sac - Para No	Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rei
1.3 PRESERVATION OF RECORDS (19) The procedure that defines the implementation of the record system for each organization shall identify measures to be implemented for the preservation and safe-keeping of the records before storage and for the prevention of delays between record completion and storage at the Project Record Center. 1.4 RETENTION CLASSIFICATION (20) For purposes of record retention all MAKEL Project records are classify and an another in the storage and an all storage are classify.	19 17.1.3			X				
(20)FOR purposes of record recention, all MMKSI Project records are classi- fied as lifetime records and are required to be retained for the life of the Project. 2.0 GENERATION OF RECORDS	20 17.1.4							
2.1 RECORDS SPECIFICATION								ŀ
(21) The applicable design specifications, procurement documents, implemen- ting procedures, operational procedures, or other documents shall specify the records to be generated, supplied, or maintained by or for the NMEO. 2.1.1 QUALITY OF RECORDS	21 12,2.1							
(22)Documents that are designated to become records shall be legible, identifiable, accurate, complete, reproducible, microfilmable, and appropriate to the work accomplished.	22 17.2.1.		•					

N-QA 030 12/88

		Rev	view Results		. 0	rganiz	ation's Resolution	Re	=:: :VI HSI
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para N	Unsat - O. Para. No.	- Comments		Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	
					X			1	
					μŴ				
					1				
2.1.2 COMPLETION OF RECORDS									
(23) Documents that are designated to become records shall be completed in	73 173 1	,							
accordance with the methods specified in the NAMSI Project Administrative Procedures Manual.	-> [7.2,],	4							
3.0 VALIDATION OF RECORDS									
3.1 HETHODS OL ALIDATION									
(24)Documents shall be considered valid records only if stamped, initialed, or signed and dated by authorized personnal, or otherwise	24 17.3.		-						
authenticated in accordance with approved procedures. (25) These records may be priningle or reproduced cooles. (26) Authentication may take the form of a	25 17,3,								
statement by the responsible individual or organization. (27) Handwritten	27 17.3								
statement by the reporting individual or organization.		'		i					
J.2 MURENTICATION LIST									
(28)Each organization shall maintain a list which contains the signature and initials of the personnel authorized to authenticate records.	28 17.3.	2							
4.0 RECEIPT OF RECORDS									
					\mathbf{M}				

Page 127_ of 24 Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Acc. Rei Control Control Control Control of resolution Distribution Distribution Acc. Rei Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Acc. No. Para. No Comments Acc. Rei Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Acc. No. Para. No Comments Acc. Rei Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Acc. No. Para. No Comments Acc. Rei Review Requirements and excepts of resociets shall be responsible for resociets shall be responsible for resociets assessment of the status of resociet, (3) The designes shall be responsed and implementing 30 17, 4, 1 a system of rescipt control of present and excurse a sessment of the status of records compared and excurse assessment of the status of records dering the resolving process. (3) Revie Bookers. The Acc. Rei A method for designating the resolved. a No Comments Acc. Revie Acc. Revie	QA COMPL	IANCE REV	VIEW CHE	ECKLIST					N-QA 12/88	030
Beview Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Sat Para. No. Unsat Para. No. Comments Acc. Rei Reason Acc. I (29)Each organisation that is responsible for the receipt of records shall designate a person or organisation to be responsible for receiving the a system of receipt control of records for permanent and taporary storage in accordance with approved procedures. (31)Each receipt control system shall be structured to permit a current and accords and inform, the receipt control system shall include the following: 31 17.4/. 17.4/. • A method for designating the required records. (32)Each organization to be receipt control a system of receipt control of receipt control system shall be structured to permit a current and accords accurate assessment of the status of records during the receiving process. (32)As a minimum, the receipt control system shall include the following: 32 0 17.4/. • A method for designating the required records. (32) How and inspection of incoming records. (34) How and a status of records during the receiving process. (32)As a minimum, the receipt control system shall include the following: (34) How and a status of records during the receiving process. (35) How and a status of records during the received. (37) How and a status of records during the received. (37) How and a status of records during the received. (37) How and a status of records during the received. (37) How and a status of records during the received. (36) How and a status of records during the received. (37) How and a status of records during the received. (37) How and a status of records during the received. (36) How and a status				Review	Results		raani	Page 127	of Z	<u>44</u> new
4.1 RECEIPT CONTROL (29)Each organization that is responsible for the receipt of records shall 29 17. 9.1 designate a person or organization to be responsible for receiving the receipt control of records for permanent and temporary storage in 31 30 17. 9.1 a system of receipt control of records for opermanent and temporary storage in 31 31 17. 9.1 a scoordances with approved procedures. (31)Each receipt control of the status of structured to permit a current and accurate assessment of the status of records during the receipting process. 32 17. 9.1 • A method for identifying the records.	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc	Rei	Reason	Aci	Rei
4.1 RECEIPT CONTROL. (29)Each organization that is responsible for the receipt of records shall 29 [7.4.1] designate a person or organization to be responsible for receiving the records. (30)The designes shall be responsible for receiving the 30 [7.4.1] a system of receipt control of records for permanent and temporary storage in 31 [7.4.1] a system of receipt control of records for permanent and temporary storage in 31 [7.4.1] structured to permit a current and accurate assessment of the status of records during the receiving process. (32)As a minimum, the receipt control 32 [7.4.1] • A method for designating the required records. • Procedures for receipt and impercipes.		<u></u>				X			-	
(29)Each organization that is responsible for the receipt of records shall 29 17.9.1 designate a person or organization to be responsible for recoiving the records. (30)The designee shall be responsible for organizing and implementing 30 17.9.1 a system of receipt control of records for permanent and temporary storage in accordance with approved procedures. (31)Each receipt control system shall be structured to permit a current and accurate assessment of the status of records during the receiving processes. (32)As a minimum, the receipt control system shall include the following: 31 17.9.1 o A method for designating the required records.	4.1 RECEIPT CONTROL									
• A method for designating the required records. ••••• A method for identifying the records received. • Procedures for receipt and inspection of incoming records.	(29)Each organization that is responsible for the receipt of records shall designate a person or organization to be responsible for receiving the records. (30)The designee shall be responsible for organizing and implementing a system of receipt control of records for permanent and temporary storage in accordance with approved procedures. (31)Each receipt control system shall be structured to permit a current and accurate assessment of the status of records during the receiving process. (32)As a minimum, the receipt control system shall include the following:	29 30 31 32	17,4,1 17,4,1 17,4,1 17,4,1							
o Procedures for receipt and inspection of incoming records.	• A method for designating the required records.									
	o Procedures for receipt and inspection of incoming records.									
 A method for submittal of completed records to the storage facility without unnecessary delay. 	 A method for submittal of completed records to the storage facility without unnecessary delay. 									
4.2 PROTECTION OF RECORDS	4.2 PROTECTION OF RECORDS									
(33) The individual or organization responsible for receiving records shall provide protection from damage, deterioration, or loss during the time that the records are in their possession.	(33)The individual or organization responsible for receiving records shall provide protection from damage, deterioration, or loss during the time that the records are in their possession.	33	17.4.2							
	· ·									
					••••					

N-QA 030 **GA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST** 12/88 Page 128 of 244 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para, No. -Comments Acc. Rei. Reason Rei Acı. 5.0 RECORDS IDENTIFICATION 5.1 IDENTIFICATION DESIGNATION (34) Records or indexing systems, or both, shall provide sufficient infor-34 17,5.1 mation to permit identification between the record and the items or activities 35 17.5.1 to which it applies. (35)Records shall be clearly identified by a unique number or other designation which is directly traceable to controlling 36 17.5.1 programmatic information (e.g., project, contract number, task number, 37 17.5.1 preparing organization, author, date, title, subject, etc.). (36) This unique identification number or other designation shall not be repeated anywhere in the Nevada Nuclear Maste Storage Investigations (NMMSI) Project. (37) The Maste Management Project Office (WHPO) or its designee shall review and approve the records identification system of all its contractors and subcontractors to ensure consistency. 5.2 INDEXING SYSTEM (38) The records shall be indexed and the indexing system or systeme shall 38 7.5.2 include, , as a minimum, the location of the record within the records system or systems. 6.0 PERMANENT STORAGE FACILITY (39)Records shall be controlled from the time they are complete until the 39 17.6 time they are stored in a permanent storage facility. (40) Temporary storage, 40 17.6 preservation, safe keeping, and retrievability of completed records shall be in accordance with the requirements applicable to the permanent storage of 41 17.6 records. (41)The use of dual storage facilities is an acceptable alternative to a single fire-rated, environmentally controlled facility.

							Page 129_	of 7	244
		1	Review	Results		Drgan	ization's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Act.	Rej
					\overline{X}]			
					1au	1			
					11			l	
6.1 STORAGE LOCATION									l.
(42) The records shall be stored in a predetermined location or locations that meets the requirements of applicable standards, codes, and regulatory agencies.	42	17.6.1							
6.2 STORAGE PROCEDURE									
(43)Before the records are stored, a written storage procedure shall be prepared and responsibility assigned for enforcing the requirements of that procedure. (44)As a minimum, this procedure shall include the following:	43 44	17.6.Z 17.6.Z							
o A description of the storage facility.									
o The filing system to be used.									
 The method for verifying that the records received are legible and are in agreement with the transmittal document. 									
 The method of verifying that the records are those designated (see Paragraph 4.1 of this section). 									
o The rules gowerning access to and control of the files.							·		
o The mothod for maintaining control of and accountability for records removed from the storage facility.									
 A method for filing supplemental information (see Paragraph 9.0 of this section). 									

N-QA	030
12/88	

						Page <u>130</u>	of 3	44	
	<u> </u>	Review	Results		Organization's Resolution				
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsal Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej	
				X					
				In	1				
				- 17					
7.0 PERSEDUATION									
organizations responsible for storage. (46) In order to preclude deterioration	7.7								
of the records, the following requirements shall apply: 10	17.7								
 Provisions shall be made in the storage arrangement to prevent damage from moisture, temperature, and pressure. 									
o Necords shall be firmly attached in binders or placed in folders or envelopes for storage in steel file cabinets or on shelving in containers.									
o Provisions shall be made for special processed records (e.g, radiographs, photographs, negatives, microfilm, megnetic material, etc.) to prevent damage from excessive light, stacking, electromagnetic fields, temperature, and humidity.									
8.0 SAFEKEEP THG									
0.1 HEASURES TO PRECLUDE ENTRY				.\					
(47)Heasures shall be established to proclude the entry of unauthorized 47 Fersonnel in the storage area. (48)These measures shall guard against larceny 48 and vandalism.	17.8.1								
			** w						
	1		•			I		<u> </u>	

GA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST N-QA 030 12/88 Page [3] of 2.44 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para. No. -Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Aci. Rej X 1/w 8.2 REPLACEMENT, RESTORATION, OR SUBSTITUTION (49) Heasures shall be taken to provide for replacement, restoration, or 49 17.8.2 substitution of lost or damaged records. These measures shall be accomplished within 90 days following determination that either a record has been lost or a record has been damaged to a degree that it is no longer complete or legible. 9.0 CORRECTED INFORMATION IN RECORDS 9.1 HETHOD (50)Records may be corrected in accordance with written procedures that 50 17.9.1 provide for appropriate review or approval by the originating organization. 9.2 IDENTIFICATION (51) The correction shall include the date and the identification of the 51 17.9.2 person authorized to issue such correction and shall not obliterate the corrected data. 10.0 STORAGE FACILITY (52) The following requirements apply to both permanent and temporary 52 17.10 record storage facilities.

N QA 030 12/88

					Page <u>137.</u>	ol <u>2</u>	44
		Review Results	c	rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	16W DO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Açı.	He)
10.1 CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF FACILITY (53)Records shall be stored in facilities constructed and maintained in a 55 manuer that minimizes the risk of damage or destruction from natural disasters, such as winds, floods, or fires; environmental conditions such as high and low temperatures and humidity; and infestation of insects, mold, or rodents.	8 7.10.	, .	X 141				
10.2 HETHODS							
(54)The two satisfactory methods of providing storage facilities are 50 (1) single and (2) dual; these are detailed in the following sections.	1 17.10.2						
10.2.1 SINGLE FACILITY							
(55)Design and construction of a single record storage facility shall meet 54 the following criteria:	- N/A	F4S will meet the requirements for the					
o It shall have reinforced concrete, concrete block, masonry, or equal construction.		alternative single					ľ
o It shall have a floor and roof with drainage control and if a floor drain is provided, then a check valve (or equivalent device) shall be included.			ŀ				
o It shall have doors, structures and frames, and hardware that shall be designed to comply with the requirements of a minimum two hour fire rating.							
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	LV				
N QA 030 12/88

.

							Page <u>[33</u>	of _	<u>24</u> 4
			Review	/ Results	c)rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev Dr	viev
	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	R
					-X				
					1110	1			
	•						1		
•	Sealant shall be applied over walls as a moisture or condensate barrier.								
¢ :	Surface seelant shall be placed on the floor to provide a hard wearing surface to minimize concrete dusting.								
•	It shall have foundation sealant and provisions for drainage.								
•	It shall have forced-sir circulation with a filtration system.								
. <u>.</u> 0 1	It shall have a fire protection system.								
• (• (Only those penetrations used exclusively for fire protection, communication, lighting, or temperature and humidity control are allowed. All such penetrations shall be sealed or dampered to comply with the minimum two-hour fire protection rating.								
_ o 1 i	the construction details shall be reviewed for adequacy of protection of contents by a person who is competent in the technical field of fire protection and fire extinguishing.								
	If the facility is located within a building or structure, then the environment and construction of that building can provide a portion or all of these criteria.								

N-QA-030 12/88

...

						Page <u>134</u>	ol	2 <u>44</u>
		Review	v Results	6	Organi	ization's Resolution	Rev	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X 1111				
10.2.2 ALTERNATE SINGLE FACILITIES								
(56)The following are acceptable alternatives to the criteria for a single 50 facility:	17.10.Z							
o Two-hour fire rated vault that meets National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 232-1975.								
 Two-hour fire rated Class B file containers that meet the requirements of NFPA 232-1975. 								
o Two-hour fire rated file room that meets the requirements of NEPA 232-1975 with the following additional provisions.								
- An early-warning fire detection and automatic fire suppression capability with electronic supervision at a constantly attended central station.								
- Records storage in fully enclosed matal cabinets.								.
 Adequate access and aisle ways. 								
 Work that is not associated directly with record storage or retrieval shall be prohibited in the file room. 				ľ				
 Smoking, eating, or drinking shall be prohibited in the file room. 								
- Two-hour fire rated dampers or doors in all boundary penetrations.								

		Review Results				Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat 'Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	14
				<u> </u>	X IIII				
10.2.3 DUAL FACILITIES								1	
(57) If storage at dual facilities for each record is provided, then the facilities shall be at locations sufficiently remote from each other to eliminate the chance of exposure to a simultaneous hazard. (58) Neither facility is required to satisfy the requirements of Paragraphs 10.2.1 or 10.2.2 but shall meet the other requirements of this document.	57 58	N /4 N/4	F4S uses Storage	9 single facility					
11.0 RETRIEVAL									
11.1 PROVISIONS									
(59)Storage systems shall provide for retrieval of information in accordance with planned retrieval times based upon the record type. (60)Final reports shall contain a listing, by unique number or other designation, that enables prompt retrieval of all documents used to compile or evaluate the report. (61)This listing shall include, as a minimum, all referenced documents, peer review or other review documents, computer codes, data sheets, procedures, and test plans. (62)All documents referenced by final reports, except readily available references such as encyclopedias, dictionaries, engineers handbook, etc., shall be retrievable from the Records Hanagament System (RMS).	59 60 61 62	7, . 7, . 7, . 7, .							
11.2 PERSONNEL (63)A list shall be maintained that designates those personnel who shall have access to the files.	63	17.11.2				l			

۰.

QA COMPLIANCE	QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST N QA 030 12/80									
						Page <u>136</u>	of 3	44		
	Review Results				Organization's Res			vew ipo.		
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej	Reason	Acı.	Rei		
11.3 ACCESSIBILITY (64)Records maintained by a Participating Organization or Nevada Test Site (NTS) Support Contractor at their facility or other location (on an interim or other basis) shall be accessible to the NEPO or its designated alternate. 12.0 DISPOSITION 12.1 ACCESSIBILITY AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS (65)Records that are accumulated at various locations, prior to transfer, shall be made accessible to the NEPO either directly or through the procuring organization.	64 7, .3 65 7,12,1			X 1/20						
12.2 CUSTODIAN (66) The custodian shall inventory the submittals, acknowledge receipt, and process these records in accordance with this document or the procedures implementing this document. 12.3 REQUIREMENTS OF RECULATORY AGENCIES	66 17,12,7							•		
(67)Various regulatory agencies have requirements concerning records that are within the scope of this document. (68)The most stringent requirements shall be used to determine final dispositions.	(7 7.13 (8 7.13		·· •							

ł

N-QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>137</u>	ol	रमम
			Review	Results	c	Jrgani	ization's Resolution	Rev	/iew 5po.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	[Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
· · ·					X		······		
					Un	1			
COLLEGE ATALA									
NUDITS									
1.V GENERAL REQUINEMENTS									
(1)All Nevada Nuclear Waste Storage Investigations (NAMSI) Project activi- ties will be subject to planned and acheduled internal and external audits to	1	18.1							
assure that procedures and activities comply with the overall Quality Assur-	2	18.]							
ance (QA) program and to determine their effectiveness. (2)Each NHMSI Project participant shall include in their Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP) a	3	1811							
system of planned, periodic audits to provide an objective evaluation of the	4	18.1							
including the review of documents and records to ensure that the QA program is	5	181							
effective and properly implemented. (3)The sudits shall be performed in accordance with written procedures using checklists by appropriately trained	6	18.1							
personnel who do not have direct responsibility for performing the activities		18.1							
bying audited. (4)Audit results shall be documented, reported to, and reviewed by responsible management. (5)Tracking systems shall be instituted for audit						l			·
findings to assure that all findings are appropriately addressed and to identify quality trands. (6) all deficiencies, conconformances, and potential									
quality problems identified during the audit are to be documented and					·				
monitored until verification of effective corrective action is made. (7)The audited organization shall describe in a formal report the corrective action									
to be taken to address findings, and shall submit the report to the auditing			ĺ						
organization and their own responsible management.									
(8)Followup action, including varification of corrective action or reaudit	8	18.1					1		
OL SPECIILO ALCAS, SHWAL DE PELLOLMOG.						1			
			1				4		

Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Sat. Para. 1.1 NINISI PROJECT AUDITS	at – ra. No.	Review Unsat - Para No	Results Comments	C Acc. X)rgan Rej.	ization's Resolution Reason	Dis Aci.	500
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Sat. Para. 1.1 NNNSI PROJECT AUDITS	at. – ra. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	
1.1 NHISI PROJECT AUDITS				X			1	1.4
(9) The NMSI Project and t program will be executed at the Project level by the Maste Management Project Office (NMPO) and at the activity level by individual Participating Organizations and NTS Support Contractors. 1.1.1 NMPO ANDITS (10) The SAIC/TEMSS Project QA Department shall develop a schedule defining the NMPO sudits planned for each fiscal year. (11) This schedule shall be approved and issued by the NMPO as an annual planning document. (12) As a minimum, NMPO shall audit all NMMSI Project participants' OMPF. (14) Additional audits shall cover the entire scope of the participants' OMPF. (14) Additional audits may be conducted when a unique need arises or when an audit is request- ed by a Participating Organization or NTS Support Contractor. (15) Partic- ipating Organizations and NTS Support Contractors. (15) Partic- ipating Organizations or NTS Support Contractors to conduct audits of each other. (17) Representatives of the Participating Organizations, or NTS Support Contractors, or both may be invited to participate in a NMPO sudit when the audited organization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities are of mutual interest. (18) Copies of audit dorganization's activities and basis.	11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11		-					

•

						-	Page <u>1.39</u>	of]	44
			Review	v Results	c	Irgani	ization's Resolution	Rev	new po.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acc	Rej
1.1.2 PARTICIPATING ORGANIZATION AND MTS SUPPORT CONTRACTOR AUDITS (20)Each Participating Organization and MTS Support Contractor shall conduct internal (covering their entire QAPP, on an annual basis) and external (direct subcontractor) audits of activities under its direct control, but they will not conduct audits of each other. (21)These audits will be scheduled, planned, conducted, and reported as described in their respective QAPPs and this Quality Assurance Plan (QAP). (22)External and internal audit schedules, dates, and changes thereto, shall be sent to the SAIC/THMSS Project QA Department (QA Verification Division Manager). (23)Audit schedules shall identify the date of the audit, the activities to be audited, and the requirements to which the activities are to be audited.	20 21 22 23	18.1 18.1 18.1			<i>ju</i>				
(24) Internal and external QA audits, shall be scheduled in a manner that shall provide coverage and coordination with ongoing QA program activities. (25) Audits shall be scheduled at a frequency commensurate with the status and importance of the activity and shall be initiated early enough to assure effective QA. (26) Each NAMASI Project Participant shall perform or arrange for annual evaluations of suppliers. (27) This evaluation shall be documented and shall take into account, where applicable, (1) review of supplier furnished documents and records such as certificates of conformance, nonconformance notices, and corrective actions; (2) results of previous source verifications, audits, and receiving inspections; (3) operating experience of identical or similar products furnished by the same supplier; and (4) results of audits from other sources, e.g.; customer, ASNE, or NRC audits.	24 25 26 27	18,2 18,2 18,2 18,2		• *					

N-QA-030 12/88

			Review	Posults)eas-	Page <u>140.</u>	of	2 <u>44</u>
	Beview Beruizemente and MIM/CHOB O that O	Sat -	Unsat -			n yan	A source second to the source of the source		40. 1
	neview nequirements per NWW51/88-9 Hev. 2	Para. No.	Para. No	Comments	<u>Acc</u> .	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
1.2.1 (28 least shorter results deficie the QA	INTERNAL AUDITS)Applicable elements of an organization's GAPP shall be sudited at 2 annually or at least once during the life of the activity, whichever is 2 . (29)The scope of the audit shall be established by: considering the 2 of any previous audits, the nature and frequency of identified ncies, and any significant changes in personnel, organization, or in program.	B 18.2 9 18.2							
. 1.2.2 (30 least shorter four m audit i perform	EXTERNAL AUDITS EXTERNAL AUDITS Science during the life of the activity, whichever is the period, with the following exception: (31) If the activity is less than onths in duration, an audit is not required to be performed unless an a necessary due to the complexity or importance of the activity being ed.	0 18,2							
(32)The are le respons the do Office	justification for not performing audits of vendors whose activities se than four months in duration shall be documented and approved by the ible QA Manager prior to implementation of the activity. (33)A copy of cumented justification shall be provided to the Yucca Hountain Project PQM.	2 18.2 3 18.2							
1.2.3 (34 may ei and ot (35)The	JOINT AUDITS If more than one purchaser buys from a single supplier, a purchaser ther perform or arrange for an mudit of the supplier on behalf of itself her purchasers to reduce the number of external audits of the supplier. scope of this audit shall satisfy the needs of all of the purchasers,	.4 18.2 .5 18.2							

							Page <u>141</u>	of 3	244
	•		Review	Results		rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev	view spo
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
and the audit report shall be distributed to all the purchasers for whom the audit was conducted. (36)Nevertheless, each of the purchasers relying on the results of an audit performed on behalf of several purchasers remains individually responsible for the adequacy of the audit. 1.3 PREPARATION	36	18.2							
Preparation for an audit shall include the items listed below. 1.3.1 AUDIT PLAN (37) The auditing organization shall develop and document an audit plan for each audit. (30) This plan shall identify the audit scope, requirements, audit personnel, activities to be audited, organizations to be notified, applicable documents, achedule, and written procedures or checklists.	37 38	18.3 18.3							
(J9)The suditing organization shall select and assign auditors who are independent of any direct responsibility for the performance of the activities that they are to audit. (40)If the audit is to be an internal one, then the personnel who have direct responsibility for performing the activities to be audited shall not be involved in the selection of the audit team. (41)Audit personnel shall have sufficient authority and organizational freedom to make the audit process meaningful and effective. Appendix F defines the requirements for the qualification of QA audit personnel.	39 40 41	18.3 18.3 18.3	- -						

							Page <u>142</u>	of 2	तत
		<u>-</u>	Review	Results	(Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
1.3.3 SELECTION OF AUDIT TEAM (42)An audit team shall be identified before the beginning of each audit. (43)This team shall contain one or more auditors and shall have an individual qualified as a lead auditor who organizes and directs the audit, coordinates the preparation and issuance of the audit report, and evaluates the responses. (44)The audit team leader shall identify the technical specialists, if any, who will participate in the audit and include this information in the audit plan. (45)Audit team members selected to participate in audits for technical consideration purposes shall have appropriate technical expertise or experience in the work being audited. (46)Hultidisciplinary audit teams shall be employed when activities to be audited involve more than a single technical area. (47)The audit team leader shall ensure that the audit team is prepared	42 43 44 45 46 47	18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3							
before the audit begins.			. *						
(48)Audits shall be performed in accordance with written procedures using checklists as early in the life of the activity as practical and shall be continued at intervals consistent with the schedule for accomplishing the activity. (49)Elements that have been selected for audit shall be evaluated against specified requirements including a review of corrective actions taken on deficiencies in the area being audited that were identified during previous audits. (50)Objective evidence shall be examined to the depth necessary to determine if these elements are adequate for effective control and to deter- mine whether or not they are being implemented effectively. (51)The audit results shall be documented by audit personnel and shall be reviewed by manage- ment having responsibility for the area audited. (52)Conditions that require prompt corrective action shall be reported immediately to the management of the audited organization. (53)Audit findings will be reviewed with the audited organizations at a closing meeting.	48 49 50 51 52 53	18.4 18.4 18.4 18.4 18.4 18.4							

N QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>143</u>	of Z	सम
		Reviev	v Results		Drgan	ization's Resolution	Rev De	/iew 500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Acc	Rej
1.5 REPORTING								
(54) The audit report shall be signed by the audit team leader and should 50 be issued within 30 calendar days. (55) This report shall include the following 55 information, as appropriate:	18.5							
o Description of the audit scope.]	ļ	ł	
o Identification of the auditors.						,		
o Identification of persons contacted during audit activities.								
o Summary of audit results, including a statement of the effectiveness of the QA program elements that were audited,								
o Description of each reported adverse audit finding in sufficient detail to enable corrective action to be taken by the audited organization.								•
1.6 RESPONSE								
(56)Hanagement of the audited organization or activity shall investigate 50 adverse audit findings; determine root cause; schedule corrective action, including measures to prevent recurrence; and, within thirty calendar days of 5° receipt of the audit report, notify the appropriate organizations in writing of action taken or planned. (57)The adequacy of audit responses shall be evaluated by or for the auditing organization.	18.6 1 8.7 1 18.6	41 2768 2	ч.					

.

QA	COM	PLIANCE	REVIEW	CHECKLIST
----	-----	---------	--------	-----------

N-QA-030 12/88

							Page <u>144</u>	of 7	244
		Review	Results		c	Organi	ization's Resolution	Rev De	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments		Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı,	Rej
1.7 FOLLOW-UP ACTION (58)Follow-up action shall be taken to determine whether or not corrective 50 Action has been accomplished as acheduled and shall be verified by the audit- ing organization. (59)An analysis of audit results shall be performed by the 50 QA organization to identify quality trends. (60)The results of the analysis 60 shall be reported to responsible management for review, assessment, and appropriate action.	3 18.7 1 18.7 1 8.7 1 8.7			ţ	X				
1.8 RECORDS			•						
1.8.1 AUDITS									
(61)As a minimum, audit records shall include the following:	1 18.8								
 Identification of the organization(s), activities, or items audited and the individual(s) contacted during the audit(s). 									
o Description of any deficiencies, nonconformances, and potential quality problems identified.							1		
o Audit plans, audit reports, written replies, and the record of completion of corrective action, and close-out of the audit.									
1.8.2 PERSONNEL RECORDS									
(62)Records of personnel qualifications for Auditors and Lead Auditors performing audits shall be established and maintained by the employer. Records for each Lead Auditor shall be maintained and updated annually.	Z 18.9								

•

N QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>145</u>	of <u>:</u>	<u>२,५५</u>
			Review	Results		Org	anization's Resolution	Rev De	view SPO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	[Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Ac	c. Re	ej. Reason	Act	Rej
					X				
					, m	1			
2.0 SURVEILLANCES	·								
(63) The NAMESI Project audit program shall be supplemented by independent	63	18.10		•					
observe items or activities to verify conformance to apecified requirements.	64	18.10							
(65) These surveillances shall be conducted by the WEFO, the Participating	15	18.10							1
Organizations and the NTS Support Contractors, and shall be either scheduled or implemented on a random basis.	v ~								
(66)Heasures for the surveillance of site investigation activities shall be established and executed in providers with comprising surveyed by the	46	18,10							
organization performing the activity. (67) Surveillances shall be scheduled and	67	18.10							
conducted based on the activity's relative impact or importance, or both, to	68	18.10							
quality problems identified during surveillances are to be documented and	i				- 11				
monitored until verification of effective corrective action is made. Specific									
Indritements abbitcable to surveillance activities are as follows:									
2.1 PLANNING									
(69) Surveillances are to be performed to written checklists or	69	18,10.1			ŀ				
surveillance plans whenever practical. (70)The documentation shall identify characteristics, methods, and acceptance criteria, shall provide for recording	70	18.10.1							
objective evidence of results, and accuracy of the equipment necessary to	Ż	18.10.1						Í	
perform surveillance. (71) The specification of acceptance criteria related to									
procedures" or "to verify conformance to requirements".									
						Λ		1	
					•. I V		1	I	1 1

						Page 146	ol <u>z</u>	44
		Review	Results	C	rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act.	Rei
					,			
				Jur				
2.2 REPORTING INDEPENDENCE								
(72)Surveillance personnel shall not report directly to the immediate 72 supervisors who are responsible for the work being surveilled.	18,10,2							
2.3 RECORDS								
(73) As a mininum, surveillance records shall identify the following: 73	18, 10.3							
o Item or activity.								
o _ Date of surveillance.								
o Name of individual performing the surveillance.								
o Identification of the organization(s), activities, or items surveilled, including the name or names of personnel contacted.								
o Description of any deficiencies, nonconformances, and potential								•
shall be handled in accordance with the requirements of Section XV or XV requirements of Section XV or							ļ	
 Emiment used during the surgeillance 								
· Lagerdanent used torrang the surversamed.								
O MESUITS.			н. н					
o Acceptance statement								

N-QA-030 12/88

						P 1/17	- 1 -	
		Review F	Results		Drgan	rage <u>14 L</u>	Rev Dis	44 iew po.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
<section-header><section-header><section-header><text><text><text></text></text></text></section-header></section-header></section-header>	Appéndix A o F GhPP-coz	These Ti Definiti in corpe Append GA PP-	erms and ions have been brated into lix A of FtS 002 Revision 6	× µµ				

12/88 Page 148 of 244 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsal -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para. No. | Para. No. -Acc. Rej. Comments Reason Acr. Rei Х level assignment. However, activities related to natural barriers important See page 147 to waste isolation shall be identified and listed on a Q-list. These activities include: performance assessments, site characterization testing, and activities that may impact the waste isolation capability of the natural barrier. Examples are site characterization activities such as exploratory shaft construction, borehole drilling, and other activities that could physically or chemically alter properties of the natural barriers in an adverse way. ACTIVITY: Any time consuming effort (operation, task, function, or service) which influences or affects the achievement or verification of the objectives of the NNNSI Project as depicted in the NBS Dictionary. AP - NNWSI Administrative Procedure: An implementing procedure which identifies the interface control methods which govern Project-wide systems and are implemented by all Project participants. Administrative procedures that implement QA requirements are identified with a "Q" suffix (i.e., AP 1.10). A planned and documented activity performed to determine by AUDIT: investigation, examination, or evaluation of objective evidence the adequacy of and compliance with established procedures, codes, standards, instructions, drawings, and other applicable requirements, and the effectiveness of implementation. An audit should not be confused with surveillance or inspection activities performed for the sole purpose of process control or product acceptance.

QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST

ω.

N-QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>149</u>	of 2	244
			Review I	Results	0)rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev De	view spo.
	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act.	Rej
					X	/			
	AUTHENTICATION (QA RECORDS): Authentication is the act of attesting that the information contained within a document is accurate, complete, and appropriate to the work accomplished. Authentication is accomplished by one of the following methods: (1) a stamped, initialed, or signed, and dated document; (2) a statement by the responsible individual or organization; or (3) issuing a document which is clearly identified as a statement by the reporting individual or organization. A document cannot become a Quality Assurance (QA) record until it has been authenticated.	· ·	See Paye	_ 147					
•	AUXILLIARY SOFTWARE: (1) Software that may be easily and exactly verified, and that performs a simple function such as conversion of units, change in data format, or plotting of data is support of primary analysis software. (2) A stream of commands or sequence of streams of commands executed to utilize system maintained software in which the system maintained software generates reportable results. Auxiliary software does not generate primary data.								
	BARRIER: Any material or structure that prevents or substantially delays the movements of water or radionuclides.								
	BASELINE: As used for computer software: (1) The stage of computer software at a completed and reviewed phase of the software lifecycle; (2) Approved documentation generated within or as a result of completing a phase of the software life cycle.								
	CERTIFICATE OF CONFORMANCE: A document signed by an authorized individual that certifies the degree to which items or services meet specified requirements.								
					V				

.

N QA 030 12/88

				Page <u>150</u>	of 2	<u>777</u>
·		Review Results	Organization	n's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	AGI	Rej
CERTIFICATION: The act of determining, verifying, and attesting is writing to the qualifications of personnel, processes, procedures, or items in accordance with specified requirements. CHARACTERISTIC: Any property or attribute of an item, process, or service that is distinct, describable, and measurable. COMMERCIAL GRADE ITEM: An item satisfying all of the following requirements: 1) The item is not subject to design or specification requirements that are unique to Mined Geologic Disposal Systems; 2) The item is to be ordered from the menufacturer/supplier on the basis of specifications set forth in the manufacturer's published product description, i.e., catalog. 3) The item is used in applications other than Mined Geologic Disposal Systems.	Para No.	See page 147	Acc. Rej	Reason	Acı	Rej
COMPUTER HODEL VALIDATION: Assurance that a model as embodied in a computer code is a correct representation of the process or system for which it is intended (NUREG-0056). Usually accomplished by comparing code results to (1) physical data, or (2) a verified or validated code designed to perform the same type of analysis (e.g., benchmarking with a validated code). Peer review may be used for code validation if it is the only available means for validating a code.						

N QA 030 12/88

		Review	Results	0	rgani	zation's Resolution	Re ⁻ Di	ispo
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sal Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	1. R
COMPUTER CODE VERIFICATION: Assurance that a computer code correctly performs the operations specified in a numerical model (NUREG-0056). Usually accomplished by comparing code results to (1) a hand calculation, (2) an analytical solution or approximation, or (3) a verified code designed to perform the same type of analysis (benchmarking).		See Pa	ge 147	· /				
CONDITION ADVERSE TO QUALITY: An all-inclusive term used in reference to any of the following: failures, melfunctions, deficiencies, defective items, and nonconformances. A significant condition adverse to quality is one which, if not corrected, could have a serious effect on safety or operability.								
CONFIGURATION HANGEMENT: As used for computer software: (1) A system for orderly control of software, including methods used for labeling, changing, and storing software and its associated documentation. (2) The systematic evaluation, coordination, approval or disapproval, and implementation of all approved changes in an item of software after establishment of its configuration.			, -					
CONSEQUENCE ANALYSIS: A method by which the consequence of an event are calculated and expressed in some quantitative way, e.g., money loss, deaths, or quantities of radionuclides released to the accessible environment.								
CONTAINMENT: The confinement of radioactive waste within a designated boundary.				ŀ				
CONTAINMENT, PERIOD OF: Known as the period during the first several bundred years following permanent closure of the geologic repository in which radia- tion and thermal levels are high and the uncertainties of ensuring repository performance are great. During this time, special emphasis is placed upon the ability to contain the wastes by waste packages within an engineered barrier system.								

N-QA-030 12/88

		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			Page 154	01 4	<u>ш</u>
		Review	Results	Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev Dr	100.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsal - Para, No, -	Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	liej
CONTRACTOR: An organization under contract to provide supplies, construction, or services. CONTROLLED AREA: The surface location, which is to be marked by suitable monuments, that extend horizontally no more than 5 kilometers in any direction from the outer boundary of the underground facility and the underlying subsurface, which is an area that has been committed to use as a geologic tronsitory and from which incompatible activities would be restricted following permanent closure. The controlled area is also known as the site. CONVERSION REPORT: A written description of all modifications made to the original code or an externally available existing code after it is acquired. CORRECTIVE ACTION: Measures taken to rectify conditions that are adverse to quality and, where necessary, to preclude repetition. CORRECTIVE ACTION: Existing data used to support or substantiate other existing data. CORRECTIVE DATA: Existing data used to support or substantiate other existing data. CORRECTIVE DATA: Existing designs for construction or of analyzing the performance of repository enginesced structures, system, components, and natural barriers. Design documentation includes, but is not limited to, drawings, specifications, test plans, design report, test reports, system onucle describing computer programs used for design or performance analyzing.		See Pag	3e 147	XIII V			

N QA 030 **QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST** 12/88 Page 153 of 244 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsal -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para No. -Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Acr Rep 111 See Page 147 DESIGN INPUT: Those criteria, parameters, bases, or other design requirements upon which the detailed final design is based. DESIGN OUTPUT: Documents, such as drawings, specifications, and others that define technical requirements of structures, systems, and components. DESIGN PROCESS: Technical and management processes that commence with identification of design input and that lead to and include the issuance of design output documents. DEVIATION: A departure from specified requirements. DISPOSITION: The action taken to resolve a nonconforming condition and to restore acceptable conditions. DOCUMENT: Any written or pictorial information describing, defining, specifying, reporting, or certifying activities, requirements, procedures, or results. A document is not considered to be a Quality Assurance Record until it satisfies the definition of a Quality Assurance Record as defined in this Arpendix. DOE: The U.S. Department of Energy or its duly authorized representatives. ENGINEERED BARRIER SYSTEM: The waste package and the underground facility. FNGINEERED ITEH: Any structure, system, or component identified in design documents as being a functional part of the completed facility.

.

		Roview I	Posulie		kaan	ration's Resolution	I Ne	30183 30183
	Sat -	Unsat -	nesuns	<u> </u>	rgani	Zation's Resolution		450
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Para. No.	Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	<u>.</u>
HISTING DATA: Data developed prior to the implementation of a 10 CFR 60, shpart G GA program by DOE and its contractors, or data developed outside the K repository program, such as by oil companies, national laboratories. How are a set a published in technical or scientific publications. How are a set and indeveloped by the scientific of engineering community as established facts (e.g., engineering handbooks, naity tables, gravitational laws, etc.). THENAL AUDIT: An audit of those portions of another organization's GA organs that is neither under the direct control nor within the organizational ructure for the auditing organization. NAL DESIGN: Approved design output documents and approved changes thereto. NCTIONAL CHARACTERISTICS: Those attributes of a repository or its ructures, systems, and components that determine its performance with spect to safety, reliability, operability, and other design criteria tabilished in the GCR Program or other Federal regulatory documents. NCOCIC REPOSITORY: A system that is either intended to be used for or may or used for the delopository includes the geologic repository operations area and the specific repository includes the geologic repository operations area and the specific repository operations area and subsurface eas, in which waste handling activities are conducted.		See Pag	e 147					

		Review	v Results	Organiza	ition's Resolution	Rev	'iev ipo
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc. Rej	Reason	Acı.	R
INFORTANT TO SAFETY: Those engineered structures, systems, and components that are essential to the prevention or mitigation of an accident that could result in a radiation dose to the whole body, or any organ, of 0.5 rea or		See Pa	ge 147	X			
reater at or beyond the nearest boundary of the unrestricted area at any time ntil the completion of perminent closure.							
MPORTANT TO WASTE ISOLATION: The barriers that must meet the criteria that ddress long-term performance of the engineered and natural barriers to pre- which release of radionuclides from the site to the accessible environment i.e. for achieving the postclosure performance objectives in 10CFR60, Subpart).			•				
DOCTRINATION: Instruction provided to personnel for familiarization with rogrammatic and work-oriented documents applicable to the assigned activity.							
ISPECTOR: A person who performs inapection activities to verify whether or ot an item or activity conforms to specified requirements.							
ISPECTION: Examination or measurement to verify whether an item or activity wnforms to specified requirements.							
TTERNAL AUDIT: An audit of those portions of an organization's GA program hat is retained under its direct control and within its organizational cructure.							
SOLATION: Inhibiting the transport of redicective materials so that amounts nd concentrations of this material entering the accessible environment will a kept within prescribed limits.			4.4				
				V			

N-QA-030 12/88

N QA 030 12/88

		Review	Results	c	Irgania	ration's Resolution	Rev Dr
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	A.,
TEM: An all-inclusive term that is used in place of any of the following: purtemance, assembly, component, equipment, material, module, part, ructure, subassembly, subsystem, system, unit, and prototype hardware. This rm includes magnetic media, and other materials that retain or support data. FETIME RECORDS: Quality Assurance Records that furnish evidence of the elity and completeness of data, items, and activities affecting quality. I NMMSI Project QA Records are classified as Lifetime Records. TERIAL: A term that includes items plus any hardware or geologic samples ther used in or resulting from research and development or site vestigations on the NAMESI Project. Hardware and geologic specimens include t are not limited to test apparatus or equipment, special nuclear material, res, geologic samples, water and gas samples, etc. ASURING AND TEST EQUIPMENT: Devices or systems used to calibrate, measure, ge, test, or inspect, in order to control or to acquire data to verify aformance to a a corrified resultance or to be the other set of the othe	rara_ NO.	See Page		X	Rej	Reason	A (, 1)
MSI PROJECT PARTICIPANTS: An all inclusive term used to describe menerically) the various organizations involved in the NAMSI Project. This rum includes the NAMPO, Participating Organizations, and NTS Support intractors. These organizations are required to have a NAMPO approved Quality surance Program Plan (QAPP) for the conduct of their activities. MSI PROJECT PERSONNEL: All U.S. Department of Energy Participating ganizations, and NTS Support Contractor personnel involved in NAMSI Project tivities.							

٠

.

N-QA-030 12/88

		Review	Results		Organi	ization's Resolution	Re Di	ivn HSC
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 113v. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Aci	
SI PROJECT QUALITY ASSURANCE PLAN (QAP): The document that describes the nned, systematic quality assurance requirements that are applicable to the SI Project.		See Pag	ge 147	× yw				
SI PROJECT WORK BREAKDOWN STRUCTURE (WBS) DIGTIONARY: A controlled nument which establishes a product oriented framework for organizing and ining work to be accomplished. CONFORMANCE: A deficiency in characteristics, documentation, or procedure it renders the quality of an item or activity unacceptable or indeterminate. -HECHANISTIC FAILURES: Postulated failures which are not based on viously observed models or mechanisms but which are assumed to provide servatism in safety assessments.								
ECTIVE EVIDENCE: Any documented statement of fact, other information, or ord, either quantitative or qualitative, that pertains to the quality of an m or activity, based on observations, measurements, or tests that can be ified.								
RATIONS, PERIOD OF: Includes the time during which explacement of wastes urs; any subsequent period before permanent closure during which the laced wastes are retrievable; and permanent closure, which includes sealing shafts.			.	N/				

N QA 030 12/88

					Page <u>158</u>	of Z	तम
		Review Results	6		zation's Resolution	on Disp	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sal - Para No.	Unsat – Para. No. – Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	ileı
×.			× 1111				
OVERVIEM: An analysis and assessment by management of the scope, status, adequacy and effectiveness of Program quality achievement and assurance activities. Overview encompasses effectiveness assessments, technical reviews, readiness reviews, audits, and surveillances, as appropriate.		See Page 147					
have title to the repository. PARTICIPATING ORGANIZATION: This term applies to the following: (1) the covernment agentics external to the DOE. (2) actional laboratories and							
(3) organizations participating directly in NAMSI Project activities.							
PEER: A peer is a person having technical expertise in the subject matter to be reviewed (or a critical subset of the subject matter to be reviewed) to a degree at least equivalent to that needed for the original work.							
PFER REVIEW: A documented critical review performed by personnel who are independent of those who performed the work but who have technical expertise at least equivalent to those who performed the original work. Peer reviews are in-depth, critical reviews and evaluations of documents, material or data that require interpretation or judgment to verify or validate assumptions, plans, results or conclusions or when the conclusions, material or data con- tained in a report go beyond the existing state of the art.							
A peer review is an in-depth critique of assumptions, calculations, extrapolations, alternate interpretations, methodology, and acceptance criteria employed, and of conclusions drawn in the original work. Peer reviews confirm the adequacy of work. In contrast to peer review, the term "technical review" refers to a review to varify compliance to predetermined requirements; industry standards; or common scientific, engineering, and industry practice.			V				

QA COMPLIANCI	E REVIEW CHI	ECKLIST		N-QA-030 12/88
		Review Results	Pag Organization's Reso	e <u>159</u> of <u>244</u> Review Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsat - Para No Comment	ts Acc. Rej. Reaso	on <u>Aci</u> . Bej
FEER REVIEW GROUP: A poor review group is an assembly of poors representing an appropriate spectrum of knowledge and experience in the subject matter to be reviewed and should wary in size based on the subject matter and importance of the subject matter to safety or waste isolation. FEER REVIEW REPORT: A documented in-depth report of the proceedings and findings of a peer review. FERPONHANCE ALLOCATION: This term applies to the process of deriving subsystem and component performance goals from performance objectives. A systematic process of assigning confidence levels with their desired, associated performance goals for the mined geologic disposal systems, subsystem, and components. FERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT: The process of quantitatively evaluating component and system behavior, relative to containment and isolation of radioactive waste, to determine compliance with the numerical criteria associated with 10 CTR Part 60. FERFORMANCE CONFIRMATION: The program of tests, experiments, and analyses that is conducted to evaluate the accuracy and adequecy of the information ward to determine with reasonable assurance that the performance objectives tor the period after permanent closure will be met.		See Page 147		

1

	Review Results					Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	1	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	ι.
INCIPAL INVESTIGATOR (PI): The individual who has the technical sponsibility for a particular technical task. This responsibility includes, t is not limited to, planning and cost control, the day-to-day technical rection and control of the item or activity, and the assembly of a support ma to accomplish the item or activity. This term may be synonymous with ak leader or project engineer depending upon the NHMSI Project Participant. CCEDURE: A document that specifies or describes the way in which an tivity is to be performed. HARY DATA: Information that can be shown to have been acquired and throlled in a manner consistent with all applicable Quality Assurance real I requirements and is necessary for the resolution of the NHC Compance objectives of IOCER60 in accordance with the NHMSI Project Issues holution Strategy. This includes information that has been qualified and repted in accordance with NHMSI Project AP 5.9Q, "Acceptance of Data and is interpretations not Developed Under the NHMSI Project QA Program."		See Pa	ge 147		X III	rie).	reason		
OCUREMENT DOCUMENT: Purchase requisitions, purchase orders, letters of intent, work authorization letters, drawings, contracts, specifications, istructions, or any document that provides a means by which to acquire issession or ownership of items, or right to the use of services by payment. MRCHASER: The organization responsible for the establishment of procurement equirements and for the issuance or administration, or both, of procurement cuments.					-		:		
LIST: A list of geologic repository engineered structures, systems, and mponents that have been determined to be important to safety, and engineered arriers important to waste isolation that must be covered under the QA equirements of 10 CFR 60, Subpart G.							1 - I		

		Page 161	of <u>2.44</u>
	Review Results	Organization's Resolution	Review Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat. – Unsat. – Para. No. – Comments	Acc. Rej Reason	Aci Rej
QUALIFICATION (OF DATA): A formal process intended to provide a desired level of confidence that data are suitable for their intended use. QUALIFICATION (PERSONNEL): The characteristics or abilities that are gained through ~Aucation, training, or experience, which are measured against established requirements, such as standards or tests, that qualify an individual to perform a required function. QUALIFICATION TESTING: Demonstration that an item meets design requirements. QUALIFIED DATA: Data initially collected under a 10 CFR 60, Subpart G quality assurance program or existing data qualified in accordance with Appendix G of this QA Plan. QUALIFIED PROCEDURE: An approved procedure that has been demonstrated to meet the specified requirements for its intended purpose.	Para No. Para No Comments See Page 147	Acc. Rej Reason	Aci Bej
QUALITY ACTIVITIES LIST: A list of those major activities conducted during site characterization, construction, operation, or closure that relate to natural barriers important to waste isolation. These activities, which must he covered under the 10 CFR 60, Subpart G Quality Assurance program, include data gathering, per- formance assessments, and those activities that could affect a natural barrier's ability to isolate waste. QUALITY ASSURANCE: All those planned and systematic actions that are neces- sary to provide adequate confidence that the geologic repository and its subsystems or subcomponents will perform satisfactorily in service.			

٠

Page <u>/6 건</u> of						of 3	<u>८५५</u>
·		Review Results)rgan	ization's Resolution	Re: Di	view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Acı	Rej
			X				
			ju	1			
QUALITY ASSURANCE RECORD: An individual document or other item that has been executed, completed, and approved and that furnishes evidence of (1) the quality and completeness of data (including raw data), items, and activities affecting quality; (2) documents prepared and maintained to demonstrate implementation of Quality Assurance programs (e.g., audit, surveillance, and inspection reports); (3) procurement documents; (4) other documents such as plans, correspondence, documentation of telecons, specification, technical data, books, maps, papers, photographs, and data sheets; (5) items such as magnetic media; and (6) other materials that provide data and document quality regardless of the physical form or characteristic. A completed record is a document or item (and documentation) that will receive no more entries, whose revisions would normally consist of a reissue of the document (or documentation), and that is signed and dated by the originator and, as		See Page 147					
applicable, by approval personnel. QHALITY ASSURANCE LEVEL I: those radiological health and safety related items and activities that are important to either safety or waste isolation and that are associated with the ability of a geologic nuclear waste repository to function in a manner that prevents or mitigates the consequences of a process or event that could cause undue risk to the radiological health and safety of the public. Items and activities important to safety are those engineered structures, systems, components, and related activities essential to the prevention or mitigation of an accident that could result in a radiation dose either to the whole body or to any organ of 0.5 rem or greater either at or beyond the mearest boundary of the unrestricted area at any time until the completion of the permanent closure of the repository. Items and activities important to waste isolation are those barriers and related activities which must meet the criteria that address post-closure performance of the engineered and natural barriers to inhibit the release of radionuclides. The criteria for items or activities important to safety and waste isolation are found in 1007860, and 4007R191.							

.

.

		Review	/ Results		rganiz	ation's Resolution	D	isp
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	
				\overline{X}				
				1 juli	ĺ			
			•					
ALITY ASSURANCE LEVEL II: those activities and items related to the systems,	1	See Pa	ge 147				ļ	
ficient to provide for reliability, maintainability, public and repository)					
rker nonradiological health and safety, repository worker radiological								
alth and safety and other operational factors that would have an impact on E and WMPO concerns, and the environment								
ALITY ASSURANCE LEVEL III: those activities and items not classified as QA							1	
LITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM PLAN (OAPP): The document that describes the				11				
anization's Quality Assurance Program, the applicable QA requirements, and ines how compliance with the QA criteria will be accomplished.				- 11				
DIONCTIVE MASTE: High-Level Waste (HLM) and other radioactive materials at are received for emplacement in a geologic repository.					1 1			
DINESS REVIEW: An independent, systematic documented review to determine								
ivity into another. Readiness Reviews are used to coordinate many elements								
provide attention to detail, to assure that the project is ready to proceed								
the comprehensive review of a total project or a particular segment of the				.				
EIVING: Taking delivery of an item at a designated location.							Í	
IABILITY ANALYSIS: An analysis that estimates the reliability of a system	1							
component.								
			••••					
							1	

N QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>164</u>	01	ट्रमप
		Review	Results		Organi	ization's Resolution	Rev Dr	view
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act	Re
REPAIR: The process of restoring a nonconforming characteristic to a con- dition such that the capability of an item to function reliably and safely is unimpaired, even though that item still does not conform to the original requirement.		See Pa	ige 147					
PETRIEVAL: The act of intentionally removing radioactive waste from the underground location at which the waste had been emplaced previously for disposal.								
RENORK: The process by which a nonconforming item or activity is made to conform to the original requirements by completion or correction utilizing existing approved procedures.								
RIGHT OF ACCESS: The right of a purchaser or designated representative to enter the premises of a Supplier for the purpose of inspection, surveillance, or Quality Assurance audit.								
SCENARIO: An account or sequence of a projected course of action or event.								ŀ
SCIENTIFIC INVESTIGATION: Any research, experiment, test, study, or activity that is performed for the purpose of investigating the natural barriers or the man-made aspects of the geologic repository, including the overall design of the facilities and the waste package. This will include, but will not be restricted to, all geologic, tectonic, seismologic, hydrologic, climatologic, geochemical, chemical, geophysical, physical, geomechanical, mechanical, meteorological, metallurgical, environmental, socioeconomic, and transpor- tation studies of activities which are performed for, or in support of, the investigation.								
investigation, exploration, site characterization, development of design bases, licensing, construction, operation, monitoring, performance evaluation and/or closure of the geologic repository.			~ 	W				

1

N QA 030 12/88

		Review	v Results	Organization's Resolution			D	ispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act	Re
SCIENTIFIC NOTEBOOK: A document which may be used to provide a written record of the results of scientific investigations and experiments when the work involves a high degree of professional judgment or trial and error methods, or both. These notebooks may be used in lieu of a technical procedure. SERVICE: The performance of activities that include but are not limited to site characterization, design, fabrication, investigation inspection.		See Pa	ige 147	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i				
nondestructive examination, repair, or installation.								
SITE CHARACTERIZATION: The program of exploration and research both in the laboratory and in the field that is undertaken to establish the geologic conditions and the ranges of parameters of a particular site that are relevant to the procedures under 10 CFR Part 60. Site characterization includes borings, surface excavations, excavation or exploratory shafts, limited subsurface lateral excavations and borings, and in site testing at depth as uneeded to determine the suitability of the site for a geologic repository. It thes not include preliminary borings and geophysical testing needed to decide whether or not site characterization should be undertaken.			•					
SPECIAL PROCESS: A process, the results of which are highly dependent on the control of the process or the skill of the operators, or both, and in which the specified quality cannot be readily determined by inspection or test of the product.								
SIPVEILLANCE: The act of monitoring or observing to verify whether or not an item or activity conforms to specified requirements.								

				Page <u>166</u>	of 2.4		
		Review Results	Organiz	Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Aci Re		
TECHNICAL REVIEW: A documented traceable review performed by qualified personnel who are independent of those who performed the work but who have rechnical expertise at least equivalent to those who performed the original work. Technical reviews are in-depth, critical reviews, analyses and evaluation of documents, material or data that require technical varification and/or validation for applicability, correctness, adequacy and completeness. TESTING: An element of verification that is used to determine the capability of an item to meet specified requirements by subjecting the item to a set of physical, chemical, environmental, or operating conditions. TRACEABILITY: The ability to trace the history, application, or location of an item and like items or activities by means of recorded identification.		See Page 147					
TRAINING: In-depth instruction provided to personnel to develop and demonstrate initial proficiency in the application of selected requirements, methods, and procedures, and to adapt to changes in technology, methods, or job responsibilities.							
<pre>HEDERGROUND FACILITY: The underground structure, including openings and backfill materials, but excluding shafts, boreholes, and their seals.</pre>					·		
HSE-AS-IS: A disposition that is permitted for a nonconforming item or service when it can be established that the item is satisfactory for its intended use.							
VERIFICATION: The act of reviewing, inspecting, testing, checking, auditing, or otherwise determining and documenting whether or not items, processes, services, or documents conform to specified requirements.							
WAIVER: Documented authorization to depart from specified requirements.							
		1	<u> </u>		- I		

Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para	at - ra. No.	Review Re Unsat - Para. No	suits	С	Irnani	Page <u>167</u>	of _	<u>2.44</u>
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Sal Para	at - ra. No.	Review Re Unsal - Para. No	sults	c	rnani		1	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para	al - ra. No.	Unsal - Para No				zation's Resolution	n Dispo	
			Comments	Acc.	Rej	Reason	Ara	Rej
MASTE MANAGRENT PROJECT OFFICE (MMFO): The organization to which the U.S. Department of Energy, Newada Operations Office (DOE/NV), has assigned the responsibility of administering and coordinating the activities of various Participating Organizations and MTS Support Contractors associated with the NMMSI Project. MASTE PACKAGE: The waste form and any containers, shielding, packing, and other absorbent materials immediately surrounding an individual waste container. VALIDATION (QA RECORDS): Validation is the act of reviewing a document or document package to ensure it is complete, authenticated, reproducible, and microfilmable.		Sec Paga	. 147	in I				

•

N-QA	030
12/88	

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						Page <u>168</u>	of _	<u>244</u>
		Rev	view Res	ults		rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dr	view Spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No.	- C	omments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
APPENDIX B DESIGN INFUTS Design inputs include many characteristics and functions of an item or mystem. These inputs wary depending on the application; however, it is desirable to consider at least the following listed inputs as they apply to specific items or systems of the repository: 1. Basic functions of each structure, system, and component. 2. Performance requirements such as capacity rating and system output. 3. Codes, standards, and requistory requirements including the applicable issue, agenda, or both. 4. Loads such as seismic, wind, thermal, and dynamic. 5. Environments! conditions ancicipated during storage, construction, and operation such as pressues, temperature, fluid chemistry, and seismic, wind direction, nuclear radiation, electromagnetic adviation, and duration of exposues. 5. Interface requirements including definition of the functional and physical interfaces involving structures, system, and components.		The have into FtS	Desig been GAPP-	n Inputs incorporated adix B of 002 Rejision 6					
.

.

N-QA 030 12/88

					Page <u>169</u>	of	244	
		Review R	esults	0	Irgani	zation's Resolution	Rev De	view Spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	. Rej
 Material requirements including such items as compatibility, electrical insulation properties, protective costing, and corrosion resistance. Mechanical requirements such as vibration, stress, shock, and reaction forces. Structural requirements covering such items as equipment foundations and pipe supports. Hydraulic requirements such as pump net positive suction heads (NFSH), allowable pressure drops, and allowable fluid velocities. Chemistry requirements such as provisions for sampling and limitations on water chemistry. Electrical requirements such as source of power, voltage, recenses requirements, electrical insulation, and motor requirements. Layout and arrangement requirements. Operational requirements under various conditions such as repository startup, normal repository operation, system abnormal or emergency operation, repository decontamination, decommissioning, and dismantling. 		See Page	. 168					

N-QA-030 12/88

Page <u>/ 70</u> of									
		Review Results		Organiz	ration's Resolution	De	spo.		
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat Para. No Comm	ents Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Act	Rej		
16. Instrumentation and control requirements including indicating		See Page 16	58						
instruments, controls, and alarms required for operation, testing, and maintenance. Other requirements such as the type of instrument, installed spares, range of measurement, and location of indication are included.									
17. Access and administrative control requirements for repository socurity.					· ·				
18. Redundancy, diversity, and separation requirements of structures, systems, and components.									
19. Failure effects requirements of structures, systems, and components including a definition of those events and accidents that they must be designed to withstand.									
20. Test requirements including pre-operational and subsequent periodic in-service tests and the conditions under which they will be performed.									
21. Accessibility, maintenance, repair, and in-service inspection requirements for the repository including the conditions under which these will be performed.									
22. Personnel requirements and limitations including the qualification and number of personnel available for repository operation, maintenance, testing, and inspection, and radiation exposures to the public and repository personnel.									
23. Transportability requirements such as size and shipping weight, limitation, and Interstate Commerce Commission regulations.			N/						

.

12/88 Page 171 of 244 Review **Review Results** Organization's Resolution Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para. No. Para. No. --Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Aci. Rej X ILA See Page 168 24. Fire protection or resistance requirements. 25. Handling, storage, cleaning, and shipping requirements. 26. Other requirements to prevent undue risk to the health and safety of the public. 27. Materials, processes, parts, and equipment suitable for application. 28. Safety requirements for preventing injury to personnel including such items as radiation safety that restrict the use of dangerous materials, escape provisions from enclosures, and grounding of electrical systems. 29. Quality control and Quality Assurance requirements. 30. Reliability requirements of structures, systems, and components, including their interactions, which may impair functions that are important to safety. 31. Interface requirements between repository equipment and operation and maintenance personnel. 32. Requirements for criticality control and accountability of nuclear materials.

GA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST

N QA 030 **GA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST** 12/88 Page 172 of 244 Review **Review Results** Organization's Resolution Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para. No. -Rep Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Acı. X 111 APPENDIX C REQUIREMENTS FOR THE QUALIFICATION OF INSPECTION AND TEST PERSONNEL 1.0 GENERAL The following are the requirements for the qualification of personnel who perform inspection and testing to verify conformance to specified requirements for the purpose of acceptability. The requirements for the qualification of personnel performing nondestructive examination are specified in Appendix D. 2.0 FUNCTIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (1) Three levels of qualification shall be utilized depending on the 2.0 1 complexity of the functions involved. (2) The requirements for each level are Ż z.0 not limiting with regard to organizational position or professional status but, rather, are limiting with regard to functional activities. 2.1 LEVEL I PERSONNEL CAPABILITIES (3)A Level I person shall be capable of performing and documenting the 3 z.1 results of inspections or tests that are required to be performed in accordance with documented procedures, acceptance standards, and/or industry practices as defined in user's written procedures.

N QA 030 12/88

		Page <u>[73</u>]						of 2	<u>२५५</u>
		Review Results			C	Irgani	zation's Resolution	Rev	new HDO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Act	Rei
					X				
					<i>fa</i>				
2.2 LEVEL 11 PERSONNEL CAPABILITIES									
(4)A Level II person shall have all of the capabilities of a Level I person for the inspection or test category or class in question. (5) Addi- tionally, a Level II person shall have demonstrated capabilities in planning inspections and tests; in setting up tests, including preparation and setup of related equipment, as appropriate; in supervising and certifying lower level personnel; and in evaluating the validity and acceptability of inspection and test results.	4 5	2,2 2,2							
2.3 LEVEL III PERSCHAREL CAPABILITIES (6)A Level III person shall have all of the capabilities of a Level II person for the inspection, test category or class in question. (7) in addition, the individual shall also be capable of evaluating the adequacy of specific programs used to train and certify inspection and test personnel whose qualifications are covered by this section.	6 7	2.3 2.3							
3.0 EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE QUALIFICATIONS (8) These education and experience requirements shall be considered with recognition that other factors commensurate with the scope, complexity, or special nature of the inspection or test activity may provide reasonable assurance that a person can competently perform a particular task. (9) Other factors which may demonstrate capability in a given job are previous performance or satisfactory completion of capability testing. (10) These factors and the basis for their equivalence shall be documented.	8 9 10	3.0 3.0 3.0							•

.

-

•

6

N-QA-030 12/88

			Page <u>/ 74</u>							
				Review	Results		Irgani	zation's Resolution	Hev Dis	new SDO
Í., .,	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
•	 (11) 3.1 LEVEL I EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS Two years of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or High school graduation and six months of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or Completion of college level work leading to an associate degree in a 	1	3.)			X jui				
	 related discipline plus three months of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities. (12) 3.2 LEVEL II EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS One year of satisfactory performance as a Level I in the corresponding inspection or test category or class; or High school graduation plus three years of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or 	IZ	3,2							
	o Completion of college work leading to an associate degree in a related discipline plus one year of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or								2 1 1	
	o Graduation from a four-year college plus six months of related experience in equivalent inspection activities or testing activities.									

,

.

QA COMPLIANCE REV	iew che	CKLIST				N QA 12/88	030
		Review	Results	Ora	Page <u>75</u>	of 2 Rev	2.44 /iew
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc. R	ej Reason	AGt.	Rej
				ical			
(13) 3.3 LEVEL III EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS 13	± 3.3						
 Six years satisfactory performance as a Level II in the corresponding inspection or test category or class; or 							
o High school graduation plus ten years of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities; or high school graduation plus eight years of experience in equivalent inspection of testing activities with at least two years associated with nuclear facilities; or, if not, at least sufficient training to be acquainted with relevant Quality Assurance aspects of a nuclear facility; or							
o Completion of college level work leading to an associate degree and seven years of related experience in equivalent inspection or testing activities with at least two years of this experience associated with nuclear facilities or, if not, at least sufficient training to be acquainted with the relevant quality assurance aspects of a nuclear facility; or							
o Graduation from a four-year college plus five years related expe- rience in equivalent inspection or testing activities with a least two years of this experience associated with nuclear facilities or, if not, at least sufficient training to be acquainted with the relevant quality assurance aspects of a nuclear facility.							

Page 176 of 744 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Unsat -Sat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para. No. -Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Acc: Rej X 111 4.0 CERTIFICATION 4.1 QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS (14) The responsible organization shall designate those inspection and test 14 4.1 activities that require qualified inspection and test personnel and the 15 4.1 minimum qualification requirements for such personnel. (15)Further, the responsible organization shall establish written procedures for the 16 4.1 qualification of inspection and test personnel and for the assurance that only those personnel who meet the established requirements are permitted to perform inspection and test activities. (16)If a single inspection or test requires implementation by a team or a group, then personnel who do not meet the requirements of this section may be used in data-taking assignments or in repository or equipment operation, provided they are supervised or overseen by a qualified individual. 4.2 PERSONNEL SELECTION (17)Personnel selected to perform inspection and test activities shall 17 4.2 have the experience or training commensurate with the scope, complexity, or special nature of the activities. 4.3 INDOCTRINATION (18)Provisions shall be made for the indoctrination of personnel as to the 18 4.3 technical objectives and requirements of the applicable codes and standards, elements of the Quality Assurance Program Plan, and procedures that are to be employed.

GA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST

N QA 030 12/88

.

N QA 030 12/88

							Page 177_	of a	त्मम
			Review	Results	c	rganiz	ation's Resolution	Rev Dr	110W 1400.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
					X 1111 1				
4.4 TRAINING									
(19) The need for a formal training program shall be determined, and such training activities shall be conducted as required to qualify personnel who perform inspection and tests. (20)On-the-job training shall be included also in the program, with emphasis on first-hand experience gained through actual performance of inspections and tests. (21) Training shall also be provided with regard to those changes to the QAPP and implementing procedures that affect previous training.	19 20 21	4.4 4.4 4.4							
4.5 DETERMINATION OF INITIAL CAPABILITY									
(22) The capabilities of a candidate for certification shall be initially determined by a suitable evaluation of the candidate's education, experience, training, and either test results or capability demonstration in accordance with the organization's personnel qualification procedure.	22	4.5		·					
4.6 EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE									
(23) The job performance of inspection and test personnel shall be revaluated at periodic intervals not to exceed three years. (24) Reevaluation shall be by evidence of continued satisfactory performance or redetermination of capability. (25) If during this evaluation, or at any other time, it is determined by the responsible organization that the capabilities of an individual are not in accordance with qualification requirements specified for the job, then that person shall be removed from that activity until such time as the required capability has been demonstrated. (26) Any person who has not performed inspection or testing activities in his qualified area for a period of one year shall be reevaluated and a redetermination of their capability made in accordance with the organization qualification procedure.	23 24 2 <i>5</i> 26	4.6 4.6 4.6 4.6							

N-QA-030 12/88

•

		Page 178	78 of 244					
		Review Results	c	Irgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	new spo.	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsal Para. No Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej	
			X					
			w					
							ĺ	
							1	
4.7 CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION								
(27) The qualification of personnel shall be certified in writing in an 27 appropriate form, including the following information:	4.7							
o Employer's name.								
o Identification of person being certified.								
p Activities certified to perform.								
 Basis used for certification that includes such factors as: 				Ì			1	
- Education, experience, and training (when necessary).				1				
- Test results (where applicable). - Results of capability demonstration.								
o Results of periodic evaluation.				ļ			.	
o Results of physical examinations (when required).								
o Signature of employer's designated representative who is responsible for such certification.								
o Dates of certification and certification expiration.								
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· ·		1				
		·	,					
			W/					
		I	<u>ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ</u>	·		•	•	

Period 122 of 2921 Review Requirements per MWSI/BB-9 Rev. 2 Review Requirements per MWSI/BB-9 Rev. 2 Revie					•		12/88	
Review Results Organization's Resolution Browners Set - Pra No Comments Acc Rel Resolution Acc Hey 1.6 Prisical (20)The responsible organization shall identify any special physical characteristics esseed in the performance of each activity, including the used for initial and subsequent physical essentiations. 28 4.6						Page 179	of Z	मन
Sat - Para No. Unsat - Para No. Comments Acc. Rei Reason Acc. Rei Reason 4.8 PHISICAL (20)The responsible organization shall identify any special physical characteristics needed in the performance of such activity, including the seed for initial and subsequent physical examinations. 28 4.8			Review	/ Results	Organia	ation's Resolution	Rev	iew 100
4.9 FITSICAL (20)The responsible organisation shall identify any special physical characteristics needed in the performance of each activity, including the seed for initial and subsequent physical examinations. 28 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0		Sat -	Unsat -					
1.8 FFETOL [20]The responsible expension of each activity, including the eard for initial and subsequent physical examinations. 28 4.8	neview requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Para No.	Para No	Comments	Acc. Rej	Reason	Act	Rei
1.0 FFTSTCAL 78 (20)The responsible cognitation shall identify any special physical physical consistence of such activity, including the asset for initial and subsequent physical examinations. 78								
1.0 FWTSICAL 128 The responsible organisation shall identify any special physical physical physical seased in the performance of auch activity, including the assed for initial and subsequent physical examinations. 28 4.8					leu			
4.8 PHISICAL 12807bre responsible organization shall identify any special physical 78 4.9 for initial and subsequent physical examinations.								
1.0 PWTSICA (20)The responsible organisation shall identify any special physical 28 that according the performance of each activity, including the need for initial and subsequent physical examinations. 4.8								
(20)The responsible organization shall identify any special physical 728 4.6	4.8 PHYSICAL							
Characteristics meeded in the performance of each activity, including the seed for initial and subsequent physical examinations.	(28) The responsible organization shall identify any special physical Z	3 4.0						
	characteristics needed in the performance of each activity, including the peed for initial and subsequent physical examinations.							
							{	[
							ł	
							1	
				•				

N-QA 030

QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST 12/88 Page 180 of 244 Heview **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsal -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para. No. Para, No. -Comments Rej Acc. Reason Act. Rej X APPENDIX D REQUIREMENTS FOR THE QUALIFICATIONS OF NON-DESTRUCTIVE EXAMINATION PERSONNEL Appendix (1) This Appendix provides amplified requirements for the qualification of personnel who perform radiographic (RT), magnetic particle (HT), ultrasonic Introdu (UT), liquid penetrant (PT), eddy current (ET), neutron radiographic (NRT), and leak-testing (LT), which is hereinafter referred to as nondestructive examination (NDE), to verify conformance to specified requirements. 1.0 CERTIFICATION 1.1 APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS (2) The American Society of Nondestructive Testing Recommended Practice No. Ζ 1.1 SWT-TC-1A, June 1980 edition, and its applicable supplements shall apply as requirements to NDE personnel covered by this section. 1.2 PROGRAM (3) The responsible organization shall establish written procedures for the 3 control and administration of NDE personnel training, examination, and 1.2 certification.

N QA 030

QA COMPLIANCE	REVIEW CHE	ECKLIST				N QA 12/88	03 0
		Review	/ Results	Organiza	Page <u>181</u> Ition's Resolution	of Z	244 /iew 500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X			
1.3 CERTIFICATE OF QUALIFICATION							
The multification of personnel shall be mostified to switch to the							
Appropriate form, including the following information:							
o Employer's name.							
o Identification of person being certified.							
o Activities certified to perform.	ļ						
o Basis used for certification that includes such factors as;							
- Education, experience, and training (when necessary).							
- Test results (where applicable). - Results of capability demonstration.							Ì
o Results of periodic evaluation.							
 Results of physical examinations (when required). 							
o Signature of employer's designated representative who is responsible							
for such certification.							
o Dates of certification and certification expiration.							
		[NG 44				
			· · · · · ·	<u> </u>			

Page 182 of 244 Review **Review Results** Organization's Resolution Dispo Sat -Unsal -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para. No. -Para. No. Comments Acc. Rei Reason Aci. Rej $\overline{\mathcal{X}}$ 1.4 PHYSICAL (4) The responsible organization shall identify any special physical 4 1.4 characteristics needed in the performance of each activity, including the need for initial and subsequent physical examinations. .

QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST

GA COMPLIANCE	E REVIEW CHE	CKLIST					V-QA 12/88	030
						Page <u>183</u>	of 2	<u>44</u>
		Review	Results	C	Irganiza	ition's Resolution	Dis	120.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev, 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsal. – Para. No. –	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Phason	Act	Rej
				X				
				11u				
				1				
APPENDIX E								
LIST OF TYPICAL OA RECORDS								
The following is a list of typical QA records. The nomenclature of these	A and i							
may vary for each Participating Organization and MTS Support Contractor. The NMMSI Project retention period is defined as lifetime. (1) QA records will be	Inprenaix							
submitted to the Project Records Center by the originating organization of the	Introduct	Юл						
			-					
1.0 SITE CHARACTERIZATION								
o Surveys of the underground facility excavations, shafts, and bore-								.
holes referenced to readily identifiable surface features.								
o Description of the materials encountered.								
o Geologic maps and geologic cross section.								·
 Locations and amounts of seepage. 				·				
o Instrument locations, reacings, analysis, and reports for in site								
testing.								
o Technical specifications.								
o Sample extraction location maps.								1
o Si'e Characterization Report.			··		Y I			
				I.V	1			

				Page 184 of 2
	1	Review Results	Organizatio	n's Resolution Disp
-	Sat -	Unsat -		·····
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Para. No.	Para No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason Aci.
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
a Paulananatal Anna A				1
o Environmental Assessment.				
a Peer periou desurrentet in	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i			
· Feet review documentarion.				
o Test plans and procedures, and results thereof	I .			
the providence, and results thereof.				
o Data reduction, evaluations, analyses, and reports for:	1			
- Geomotphology.				
- Stratigraphy.				
- Tectonics.				
- Seismicity.				
- Geoengineering.				
- Hydrology.				
- Geochemistry.	1			
- Climatology and Meteorology.		1		
a Faultaneoustal Image that and				
J ENVIENTENTAL INPACT SCACEMENT.				
a Environmental Report				
2.0 DESTON RECORDS				
				[]
Applicable codes and standards used in design,				
Design drawings.				
	1			
Design calculations and records of checks.				
Numerical dealers above associate				
Approved design change requests.				
, ·		1	1 N/1 I	[[
	i	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	1 1 / 1 1	i i

.....

N QA 030 12/88

	QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST N GA 12/88									
							Page 18.5	of Z	.44	
			Review	Results	0	Organization's Resolution			iew apo	
	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej	
					X					
	•									
	o Design deviations.									
	o Design reports.									
	o Design verification data.									
	o Design specifications and amendments.									
•	o Safety analysis report.									
	o Stress reports for code items.						•			
	o Systems descriptions.									
	o Systems process and instrumentation diagrams.									
	o Technical analysis, evaluations, and reports.									
	3.0 PROTERING RECORDS									
	o Procurement specifications.									
	o Folchase order including emergency.									
	4.0 HANUFACTURING RECORDS									
	o Applicable code data reports.								1	
				-						
		1			₩/		1		1	

.

.

QA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST 12/88 Page 186 of 244 Review **Review Results Organization's Resolution** Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para, No. -Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Acr Rej X As-built drawings and records (Note: As-built drawings and records • shall correctly identify the installed condition of the item. The type of as-built drawings and records to be maintained shall be specified). Certificate of compliance. 0 Eddy-current examination final results. • Electrical control verification tests results. 0 Ferrite test results. • Heat treatment records. 0. Liquid penetrant examination final results. Location of weld filler material. 0 Hagnetic particle examination final results. o Major defect repair records. o Haterial properties records. 0 Nonconformance reports. o Performance test procedure and results records. 0 Pipe and fitting location report. ø

QA COMPLIANCE I	REVIEW CHECKLIST		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1-QA-0; 12/88	30	
			Page <u>187</u>	01 24	म	
	Review Resu	Ails Orga	nization's Resolution	Disto.		
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Unsat - Para No. Para No Co	omments Acc. Re	i Reason	Act. I	łej	
		au				
					i	
o Pressure test (hydrostatic or pneumatic).						
o Radiographs (for in-service inspection applications).						
o Radiograph review records.					ļ	
o Ultrasonic examination final results.					1	
o Welding procedures.						
5.0 INSTALLATION AND CONSTRUCTION RECORDS						
5.1 RECEIVING AND STORAGE ~ NONCONFORMANCE REPORTS						
5.2 CIVIL			1			
o Concrete cylinder test reports and charts.						
o Concrete design mix reports.					•	
o Concrete placement records.						
o Inspection reports for channel pressure tests.						
o Material property reports on containment liner and accessories.						
o Haterial property reports on metal containment shell and accessories.						
o Haterial property reports on reinforcing steel.						
				1 1		
	i I	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1 1		

•

•

N-QA-030 12/88

	•					Page 188	of Z	44
		ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew po.				
Review Requirements per NWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X				
				l'h				
				$\left \right $				
o Material property reports on reinforcing steel splice sleave material.								
 Procedure for waste package wassel pressure proof test and leak rate tests and results. 								
 Reports of high strength bolt torque testing. 								
o Soil compaction test reports.								
o Location and description of structural support systems.								
o Details, methods of emplacement, and location of seals used.			•					·
5.3 WELDING								
o Ferrite test results.								
o Heat treatment records.		· · · ·	•					
o Liquid penetrant test final results.						ĺ		
o Haterial property records.								
o Magnetic particle test final results.								
o Pajor weig repair procedures and results.								
 wadlographs (for in-service inspection application). 								
o Radiograph review records.			.,					
						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

•

.

)

					Page <u>1</u>	89 of 3	रमम
		Review	/ Results	Or	ganization's Resoluti	on Dr	view SDO
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev 2	Sat -	Unsat -					<u> </u>
	Para no.	Para. No	Comments		Kej. Keason	AC(Rej
				X			
				a			
• Weld location diagrams.				}			
o Weld procedures.							
					· ·	Í	
5.4 HECHANICAL							
o Cleaning procedures and results.							
o Code data reporta.							
			-				
 Installed lifting and bandling equipment procedures, inspection, and test data. 							
o Lubrication procedures.							
o Material properties records.							
• Pipe and fitting location reports.							
o Pip o hanger and restraint data.							
o Pressure test results (hydrostatic or pneumatic).							
o Safety valve response test procentures.							
						[
			.				
					I		1 1

.-

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>190</u>	of <u>7</u>	<u>.44</u>
	Review Results					ization's Resolution	Rev Dr	iew 500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X				
				un				
•								
5.5 ELECTRICAL AND INSTRUMENTATION AND CONTROL								
o Cable pulling tension data.							'	'
o Cable separation data.								
o Cable splicing procedures.					'	1	1	!
 Cable terminating procedures, 								
o Certified cable test reports.						1 '		
o Relay test procedures.								
 Voltage breakdown test results on liquid insulation. 					'		1	
5.6 GENERAL								
• As-built drawings and records.						1		
o Final inspection reports and releases.								
o Nonconformance reports.								
o Specifications and drawings.						1	'	
o Details of equipment, methods, progress, and sequence of work.							['	
o Construction problems.			هه ي		Í	1	1	
				IV/	i '		'	

•

.

.

N QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>/9/</u>	of Z	<u>44</u>
			Review	Results	C	rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew spo.
flevi	ew Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Hej
					X	[
					per	1			
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								
o Anomelous	conditions encountered.								
6.	0 PRE-OPERATIONAL AND START-UP TEST RECORDS					, ,			
o Autometic	amergency power source transfer procedures and results.								
• Final sys	tem adjustment data.								
o Pressure	test results (hydrostatic or pneumatic).							1	
o Instrumen procedure	t alternating current (AC) systems and inverters test s and reports.								
o Offsite p	ower source energizing procedures and test reports.							1	
o Onsite em	ergency power source energizing procedure and test reports.								
o Pre-opera	tional test procedures and results.					Į			ŀ
					.				
	7.0 OPERATION RÉCORDS							1	
o Records modificat Safety An	and drawing changes that identify repository design ions made to systems and equipment described in the Final slysis Report.								
o Radioactiv records.	ve waste inventory, emplacement location, and transfer			. <u>.</u> 18					

.

QA COMPLIANC	E REVIEW CHECKLIST	,	N-QA-030 12/88
		Page <u>/92</u>	of <u>Z.44</u> Review
	Review Results	Organization's Resolution	Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Unsat - Para No. Para No Comments	Acc. Rej. Reason	Act. Re
o Offsite environmental monitoring survey records. o Maste shipment records.		m.	
o Repository radiation and contamination survey results.			
 Radiation exposure records for individuals entering radiation control areas. 			
 Records of gaseous and liquid radioactive material released to the environment. 			
o Records of transient or operational cycles for those repository components designed for a limited number of transients or cycles.			
o Training and qualification records for numbers of the repository operating staff.			
o In-service inspection records.			
o Records of reviews performed for changes made to procedures or equipment, or reviews of tests and experiments.			
o Meeting minutes of the Repository Muclear Safety Committee and licensee nuclear review board.			
 Surveillance activities, inspections, and calibrations required by the technical documents. 			
o Records of repository tests and experiments.	· · ·	V	

						1	2/88	
						Page <u>193</u>	of Z	: तत
		Review	Results	6	Irgani	zation's Resolution	Rev Dis	100.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sal - Para No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc	Rei	Reason	Aci	Rei
	1			$-\overline{X}$				<u> </u>
				Ille	ľ			
o Changes made to Operating Procedures.								Ì
o Sealed source leak-test results.								
o Records of annual physical inventory of all sealed source material.	-							
o logs of repository operation.								
 Records and logs of maintenance activities, inspection, repair, and replacement of principal items of structures, systems, and components 								
o 'Operational, shift supervisor, and control-room logs.								
o Licensee event reports.								
o Fire protection records.								
o Nonconformance reports.	ł							
o Repository equipment operations instructions.	:							·
o Security plan and procedures.					·			
o Emergency plan and procedures.						,		
o Quality Assurance and Quality Control Manuals.					ľ			
o Records of activities required by the security plan and procedures.								
					}			
		1			1			

N-QA-030

						Page <u>19.4</u>	of 2	44
		Review	· Results	0	rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev	18W
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rei
				X				
 Applicable records noted in other section of this appendix for any modification or new construction applicable to structures, systems, or components. 								
 Evaluation of results of reportable safety concerns as required by regulations. 								
n Annual environmental operating report.								
 Annual repository operating report. 								
o Location and description of dewatering systems.								
							Ì	
						1	Í –	
· ·								
							ļ	
					,			
			.e .e]	
				- N/			ł	1

.

GA COMPLIANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST

N-QA 030 12/88

N QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>5</u>	of 7	तत
		Review	v Results	Organization's Resolution				new SDO.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X				
				100				
APPENDIX F								
REQUIREMENTS FOR THE QUALIFICATION OF QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM MUDIT PERSONNEL								
1.0 GENERAL								
This Appendix provide requirements for the qualification of Lead Audit- ors. A Lead Auditor organizes and directs audits, reports audit findings, and evaluates corrective action. This Appendix also provides amplified requirements for the qualifications of individuals, henceforth referred to as Auditors, who participate in an audit, such as technical specialists, management representatives, and auditors-in-training.								
1.1 QUALIFICATION OF AUDITORS								
(1) The responsible auditing organization shall establish the audit per- sonnel qualifications and the requirements for the use of technical special- ists to accomplish the auditing of Quality Assurance programs. (2) Personnel selected for Quality Assurance auditing assignments shall have experience or training commensurate with the acope, complexity, or special nature of the activities to be audited. (3) Auditors either shall have or shall be given appropriate training or orientation to develop their competence to perform required audits. The competence of personnel to perform the various auditing functions shall be developed by one or more of the methods listed below.	1 1.1 2 1.1 3 1.1							•
			. .					

.

.

									2/80	
								Page <u>196</u>	ol z	પપ.
				Review	Results	c)rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew 1x0
. <u></u>	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para, No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rei	Reason	Acı.	Hei
					<u></u>	X				
1.1	.1 ORIENTATION									
doc and	(4)Orientation to provide a working knowledge and understanding of this unent and the auditing organization's procedures for implementing audits reporting results.	4	1.1.1							
1.1	.2 TRAINING PROGRAMS						[1	1
per cha (7): eva fin	(5) Training programs to provide general and specialized training in audit formance. (6) General training shall include fundamentals, objectives, racteristics, organization, performance, and results of quality auditing. Specialized training shall include methods of examining, questioning, luating, and documenting specific audit items and methods of closing audit dings.	567	1.1.2 1.1.2 1.1.2							
1.1	.3 ON-THE-JOB-TRAINING									
vis Tep	(0)On-the-job training, guidance, and counseling under the direct super- ion of a Leed Auditor. (9)Such training shall include planning, performing, orting, and follow-up action involved in conducting audits.	89	1.1.3 1.1.3							
	1.2 QUALIFICATION OF LEAD AUDITORS									[
des	(10)An individual shall meet the requirements listed below before being ignated a Lead Auditor:	10	1.2							
1.2	1 COMMUNICATION SKILLS		}				Į	}		
effe in s	(11) The prospective Lead Auditor shall have the capability to communicate actively, both orally and in writing. (12) These skills shall be attested to writing by the Lead Auditor's employer.	11 12	.2. .2.							

. .

N-QA-030

N-QA 030 12/88

	<u> </u>					Page <u>197</u>	of 2	रतते ।
	Review Results Or)rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	view Spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 1.2.2 TRAINING (13)Prospective Lead Auditors shall have training to the extent necessary to ensure their competence in auditing skills. (14)Training in the following areas shall be given based upon management evaluation of the particular needs of each prospective Lead Auditor: 13 • Knowledge and understanding of this document, 10 CFR Part 60, and other nuclear and/or DOE related codes, standards, regulations, and regulatory guides, as applicable to the NMMSI Project. 13 • General structure of Quality Assurance programs and applicable elements as defined in this document. • Auditing techniques of examining, questioning, evaluating, and reporting: methods of identifying and following up on corrective action items; and closing out audit findings. • Audit planning in the functions related to quality for the following activities: site characteriration (scientific investigations), design, purchasing, fabrication, handling, shipping, storage,	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc. X Jun	<u>Rei</u>	Reason	Act	<u>Rej</u>
 cleaning, erection, installation, inspection, testing, statistics, nondestructive examination, maintenance, repair, operation, modification of nuclear facilities or associated components, and safety aspects of the nuclear facility. On-the-job training to include applicable elements of the audit program. 								
program.			<u></u>					

						Page <u>198</u>	01	244
		Review	Results		Organization's Resolution			new po.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No	Unsal Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rei
1.2.3 AUDIT PARTICIPATION (15)The prospective Lead Auditor shall have participated in a minimum of five Quality Assurance audits within a period of time not to exceed three years prior to the date of qualification. (16)One of the audits shall be a	5 1.2,3 6 1.2.3							
<pre>nuclear Quality Assurance audit that shall be made within the year prior to qualification. 1.2.4 EXAMINATION (17)The prospective Lead Auditor shall pass an examination that shall eval- uate his comprehension of and ability to apply the body of knowledge identi- fied in Restructed 1.2.2 sharm (19)The beach man be over interpretent of the share of the start of the</pre>	7 1.2.4							
or any combination of the three types. (19) If any portion of the examination is oral, written documentation of the oral examination questions/content shall by maintained. (20) The development and administration of the examination shall be in accordance with Paragraph 1.4 of this section.	9 1.2.4 0 1.2.4							
1.3 HAINTENANCE OF PROFICIENCY								
(21)Lead Auditors shall maintain their proficiency through regular and active participation in the audit process; review and study of codes, standards, procedures, instructions, and other documents related to quality assurance program and program aud ¹ ting; and participation in training programs. Based on annual assessment, management may extend the qualifica- tion, require retraining, or require requalification. (22)These evaluations shall be documented.	21 1.3.1 22 1.3.1							

N QA 03() 12/88

			·····			Page 199	of 3	<u>244</u>
		Review	Results	c)rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev Dr	/iew Spo
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
				X]			
				a a			1	
1.3.2 REQUALIFICATION						•		
(23) Lead Auditors who fail to maintain their proficiency for a period of								
two years or more shall require requalification. (24) Requalification shall	23 1.3.2							
include retraining in accordance with the requirements of Paragraph 1.2.2 of this section retrainstics is presented as with because 1.4.2, and work it is	24 1.3.2							
tion as an Auditor in at least one nuclear Quality Assurance sudit.								
	ļ	}					1	
1.4 Apple15iration								
1.4.1 ORGANIZATIONAL RESPONSIBILITY								
(25) Training of auditors shall be the responsibility of the employer.	25 1.4.1							
(26) the responsible auditing organization shall select and assign personnel who are independent of any direct responsibility for the performance of the	26 1 41							
activities that they will audit. (27) The Lead Auditor shall, prior to	~7 1 1 1							
commencing the audit, concur that assigned personnel collectively have	21 1.7.1				1		1	
experience or training commensurate with the scope, complexity, or special nature of the activities to be audited.								
1.4.2 QUALIFICATION EXMINATION								
(28) The development and administration of the examination for a Lead	70 1115			.				
Auditor required by Paragraph 1.2.4 is the responsibility of the employer.	<0 1.9.2							
(29) The employer may delegate this activity to an independent certifying	27 1.4.2							
the examination and its administration. (30) Integrity of the examination shall	30 1.4.2							
be maintained by the amployer or certifying agency through appropriate	31 1.4.2]		1	
confidentiality of files and, where applicable, proctoring of examinations.							1	
of the examination or examinations shall be retained by the employer.								
				<u>. 197</u>		l		

.

_

-

N QA 030 12/88

						Page <u>200</u>	of 🧕	2.44
		Review	Results	C	Organi	zation's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X]			
				Jue 1				
•								
(32)Each Lead Auditor shall be certified by his employer as being 32, qualified to lead audits. As a minimum, this certification shall document the 32, following:	1.5							
o Employer's name.								
o Lead Auditor's name.								
o Date of certification or recertification.								
o Basis of qualification (i.e., education, experience, communication skills, training, examination, etc.).								
o Signature of employer's designated representative who is responsible for such certification.								
								ŀ
							1	
				11				
				11,	ľ			
				W				
				L <u>Ý</u>	1	I	I	

.

						Page <u>201</u>	of	<u> </u>
· ·	Review Results			C	Irgani	zation's Resolution	Re D	iview hspo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Ac	a. Re
				X 1100	,			
MPRODIX G								
REQUIREMENTS FOR QUALIFICATION OF EXISTING DATA NOT GENERATED UNDER & QA PROGRAM MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF 10 CFR 60, SUBPART G	N/A	F4S is for quali	not responsible ification of					
1.0 GENERAL		data' noi under a	t generated a GA program					
This Appendix provides the requirements for the qualification of existing data, that will be needed to support a license application, which have not been initially generated under a QA Program meeting the requirements of lOCFR60, Subpart G.								
2.0 HETHODS FOR QUALIFICATION OF EXISTING DATA								
2.1 (1)Four methods or combinations of methods are acceptable for the process of qualifying existing data:								
a. (2)The execution of the peer review process in accordance with the requirements of Appendix J of this GA Plan.								
 b. (3) The use of corroborating data which is defined as existing data used to support or substantiate other existing data. Inferences drawn to corroborate the existing data shall be clearly identified, justified, and documented. (4) The level of confidence associated with corroborating data is related to the quality of the program under which it was developed and the number of independent data sets. (5) The amount of corroborating data needed shall be dealt with on a case-by-case basis in the documented reviews for qualification. 			4					

•

.

•

N-QA 030 12/08

					Reviev			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Review	0	rganizal	ion's Resolution	Dispr		
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	
 c. (6) The use of confirmatory testing which is defined as testing conducted under a 10CFR60, Subpart G QA program which investigates the properties of interest (e.g., physical, chamical, geologic mechanical) of an existing data base. (7) One example of confirmatory testing is testing conducted under the same environmental conditions and with similar or the same procedures, test material, and equipment as the original test which generated the existing data. (8) Another type of confirmatory testing is testing is testing conducted by different test methods and equipment but which still investigates the same parameter of interest. (9) The amount of confirmatory testing required shall be dealt with on a case-by-case basis in the documented reviews for qualification. d. (10) Demonstrating that the existing data was collected under a QA program which is equivalent to a 10 CFR 60, Subpart G QA program. 		See F	Page Z01					
3.0 SELECTION AND DOCUMENTATION OF QUALIFICATION METHODOLOGY 3.1(11)When the methods indicated in Sections 2.1b, 2.1c, and 2.1d are utilized to qualify existing data, a technical review shall be conducted to support the quality of the data. (12)Additional confidence/credibility can be achieved when a combination of methods is used.								
3.2 (13)Documentation of the decision process shall provide an auditable trail of all factors used in arriving at the choice of the qualification method(s), and the decision as to the qualification of the existing data. (14)The level of confidence in the existing data shall be commensurate with the intended use of the data. (15)Attributes which shall be considered in the qualification process are:								

L

N-QA 030 12/88

								Page <u>203</u>	of 2	244
			F	leview R	lesuits	(Organ	ization's Resolution	Rev Dr	/iew spo.
	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para I	40	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
	<u>.</u>					X lia				
•.	Qualifications of personnel or organizations generating the data are comparable to qualification requirements of personnel generating similar data under the approved 10 CFR 60, Subpart G program.		See	Page	e 201					
ь.	The technical adequacy of equipment and procedures used to collect and analyze the data.		1							
с.	The extent to which the data demonstrate the properties of interest (e.g., physical, chemical, geologic, mechanical).									
· d.	The environmental conditions under which the data were obtained if germane to the quality of data.									
• •	The quality and reliability of the measurament control program under which the data were generated.									
f.	The extent to which conditions under which the data were generated may partially meet Subpart G.									
g.	Prior uses of the data and associated varification processes.								ļ	i I
h.	Prior peer or other professional reviews of the data and their results.									
i.	Extent and reliability of the documentation associated with the data.									
j .	Extent and quality of corroborating data, or confirmatory testing results.									
k.	The degree to which independent audits of the process that generated the data were conducted.					V				

N QA 030 12/88

	Page <u>204</u>					of 2	<u>.44</u>	
		Review f	Results		Organi	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	riew spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X				
		See Pag	e 201					
1. The importance of the data to showing that the proposed repository design meets the performance objectives of 10 CFR 60, Subpart E.		J			Ē			
m. Replication of test results.								
Note: Additional guidance related to this subject can be found in MUREG-1298 "QUALIFICATION OF EXISTING DATA FOR HIGH-LEVEL NUCLEAR WASTE REPOSITORIES" (February, 1988).								
			•					.
	н. 							
					•			
					/			
N-QA 030 12/88

······································						Page 205	of 2	.4.4
	Review Results			c	rgan	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	'IEW 400.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rei
				X				-
				lu	Ì			
APPENDIX N								
REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPUTER SOFTWARE USED TO SUPPORT A								
HIGH-LEVEL NUCLEAR WASTE REPOSITORY LICENSE APPLICATION		1						
This appendix provides detailed requirements for the development,								
maintenance, and security of computer software. It supplements Section III of this QA plan and shall be used in conjunction with that section.								
1.0 OBJECTIVES							1	1
(1) The purpose of this appendix is to establish requirements for the	1.0							
development, management, control, and documentation of software used to Z	1.0							1
dependent on the control of the entire software development process, and is 3	1.0							
not assured solely by inspection and test of the end product. (3) This appendix prescribes expropriate systematic practices that shall:							ļ	
Frances affection clocked beneficed cust summer.								1.
 Reduce the likelihood of defects entering executable code during development. 								
								1
 Ensure that the end product answers the requirements of its intended application. 								
o Reduce the likelihood that defects will be introduced into eventable.								
code during later maintenance and modification.								
			u "		1			
				\mathbb{N}				
	J				L	L	L	

1

							Page <u>706</u>	of 2	44
		Review Results		C	rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev	new po.	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
2.0 APPLICABILITY (4) The detailed requirements set forth in this appendix apply to computer software used to produce or manipulate data which is used directly in site characterisation, and the design, analysis, performance assessment, and operation of repository structures, systems, and components. (5) the extent to which these requirements apply is related to the nature, complexity, and importance of the software application. (6) The application of apecific requirements shall be prescribed in plan(s) for software quality assurance and in written policies and procedures.	4 5 6	2.0 2.0 2.0			ian 1				
3.0 TERMS AND DEFINITIONS Terms and definitions for MMMSI Project software are contained in Appendix A to this QA Plan.					V				
4.0 SOFTWARE LIFE CYCLE									
(7)Organizations implementing software development activities shall adhere to a software life cycle model that requires that software development or acquisition proceed in a traceable, planned, and orderly manner. (8)The relative amphasis placed on each phase of the software development cycle will depend on the nature and complexity of the software being developed.	7 8	4,0 4.0							•
(9)Each phase of the software development cycle shall provide specific attributes that shall be incorporated into verification and validation activities. (10)The documentation for each phase of the software development cycle shall be reviewed and approved as specified in each organization's software QA Plan. (11)An example of one such model is described below:	9 10 11	4.0 4.0 4.0							

.

L

		*****		_	Page <u>207</u>	of Z	44.
		Review	Results	Org	anization's Resolution	Rev	iew ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sal Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc. R	ej. Reason	Aci.	Rei
				X			
Requirements							
Design							
<u>Implementation</u>							
Test							
Installation and Checkout							
- Operation and <u>Heintenance</u>							
4.1 SOFTWARE QA PLAN							
(12)The application of the software life cycle to the development and/or use of the software shall be as described in the Software Quality Assurance Plan.	12 4.1						
			*				

N-QA 030 12/80

		·····					Page <u>208</u>	of 7	न्तत
			Review	Results		Organization's Resolution			/iew 500.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Aci.	Rej
 4.1.1 (13)A software QA plan shall be prepared for each software development/ application effort at the start of the software life cycle. (14)This plan may be prepared individually for each piece of software or may exist as a generic document to be applied to all software prepared within an organization. (15) The software QA plan shall identify: o The software products to which it applies. o The organizations responsible for software quality and their tasks prepared billing. 	13 14 15	4.1.1 4.1.1 4.1.1							
 Required documentation. The required software reviews. 									
(16)The software QA Plan should reference any standards, conventions, techniques, or methodologies which guide the software development, and describe methods to assure compliance to the same.	16	4,1.1							
4.1.2 (17)Within the software QA plan, software lifecycle management shall be described. (10)Each participant shall present the specific software lifecycle controls for their organization in their software QA Plan. (19)The following lifecycle elements shall apply, as appropriate, for the specific lifecycle model defined, interpreted, and described in each organizations software QA plan.	17 18 19	4,1,2 4,1,2 4,1,2							•
4.1.2.1 Requirements Phase									
(20)During this phase requirements that pertain to functionality, performance, design constraints, attributes, and external interfaces of the	20	4.1.2.1		- .					
			ļ		. IV	1	1	1	1

N QA 030 12/88

			·				Page <u>209</u>	<u>of 7</u>	244
			Review Results			Organization's Resolution			
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	11
 npleted software shall be specified, documented, and reviewed. (21)These quirements shall possess the following characteristics: A format and language that is understood by the programming organization and the user. Enough detail to allow for objective verification. Adequate definition to provide for the response of the software to the identified input data. 	21	4.1.2.1							
 The information necessary to design the software without prescribing the software design itself. .2.2 Design Phase 									
(22)During the design phase a software design based on the requirements all be specified, documented, and systematically reviewed. (23)The design all specify the overall structure (control and data flow), and the reduction the overall structure into physical solutions (algorithms, equations, ntrol logic, and data structures). (24)The design may necessitate the dification of the requirements documentation.	22 23 24	4,1,2,2 4,1,2,2 4,1,2,2							
(25)Design phase `verification and validation activities during this phase all consist of:	25	4,1,2,2							
o The generation of design-based test cases.									
o The review and analysis of the software design.									
o The verification of the software design.				· _					

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page 210	of 7	777
-	Review Results				Organ	ization's Resolution	Res	/IRW 5(20).
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc	. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X	1			
				fle	1			
· ·								
4.1.2.3 Implementation Phase								
(26)During this phase the design shall be translated into a programming language and the implemented software shall be debugged. (27)Only minor, if	26 4.1.2.	3						
any, design issues shall be resolved at this phase.	27 9 .1.2.							
(28)Verification and validation activities during this phase shall consist of:	28 4,1,2,3	5						
• The possible modification of test cases necessary due to design changes made during coding.								
 The examination of source code listings to assure adherence to coding standards and conventions. 			-					
4.1.2.4 Testing Phase								
(29)During the testing phase the design as implemented in code shall be exercised by executing the test cases. (30)Failure to successfully execute the test cases may require the modification of the requirements, the design, the implementation, or the test plans and test cases.	29 4.1.2,4 30 4.1.2,9	1						
(31)Verification and validation activities during this phase shall consist of:	31 4.1.2.	4						
o The evaluation of the completed software to assure adherence to the requirements.								
o The preparation of a report on the results of software verification and validation.			۰ <u>.</u>					
				. ∛				

4

÷

							Page <u>211</u>	of]	244
			Review	Results)rgani	ganization's Resolution		spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej	Reason	Aci	Rej
4.1.2.5 Installation and Checkout Phase									
(32)During this phase the software becomes part of a system incorporating other software components, the hardware, and production data. (33)The process of integrating the software with other components may consist of installing hardware, installing the program, reformatting or creating databases, and verifying that all components have been included.	32 33	4.1.2 <i>.5</i> 4.1.2.5							
(34)Testing activities during this phase shall consist of the execution of test cases for installation and integration. (35)Test cases from earlier phases shall be enhanced and used for installation testing.	34 35	4.1.2,5 4.1.2,5							
4.1.2.6 Operations and Maintenance Phase									
(36)During the operations and maintenance phase the software has been approved for operational use. (37)Further activity shall consist of maintenance of the software to remove latent errors (corrective maintenance), to respond to new or revised requirements (perfective maintenance), or to adapt the software to changes in the software environment (adaptive maintenance). (30)Software modifications shall be approved, documented, tested (including regression testing as appropriate), and controlled in accordance with Paragraph 5.0.	36 37 38	4,1.2.6 4.1.2.6 4.1.2.6							
5.0 SOFTWARE VERIFICATION AND VALIDATION									
(39) Verification and validation plans by the responsible project organization shall employ methods such as inspection, analysis, demonstration, and test to assure that the software adequately and correctly performs all intended functions, and that the software does not perform any function that either by itself or in combination with other functions can degrade the entire system.	39	5.0							

N-QA 030 12/88

							Page 212	of	इ.स.स
		Review Results			Irgani	zation's Resolution	Rev De	view spo.	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
(40)Verification and validation activities shall be planned and performed relative to specific hardware configurations. (41)The amount of verification and validation activity shall be determined by the type and complexity of the software. (42)Prior to use for a licensing activity,	40 41 47	5.0 5.0 5.0			X				
verification and validation of the final version of the software product shall be accomplished by an independent individual or organization, one who did not work on the original software. (43)The results of all verification and validation activities shall be documented.	43	5.0							
 (44)Verification and/or validation of computer software should be performed in two stages: 1. By the individual generating or modifying the software 	44	5.0							
 By an independent individual or organization, one who did not work on the original software. 									
(45) The first stage should involve activities (i.e., iterations of tests and runs) to arrive at a final product. (46) It is not required to document all of the activities performed to satisfy the software developer.	45 46	5.0 5.0							
5.1 VERIFICATION					·				
(47) Verification activities shall be integrated into all applicable phases of the software life cycle and shall be performed to an extent proportional to the critical importance of the software. (48) Software verification shall be performed to assure that the software requirements are implemented in the software design, and the software design is implemented in code. (49) Appropriate methods such as inspection, analysis, test, or demonstration shall be applied to accomplish verification objectives.	47 48 49	5.1 5.1 5.1		-					

N QA 030 12/88

							Page <u>213.</u>	of Z	सन
		Review Results		C)rgani	ization's Resolution	Rev Dis	iew ino.	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
					X				
					HU	[
						[ŀ	11
·						ł		Į	{
5.2 VALIDATION									
(50) Validation activities are performed to demonstrate that the model as	50	57							
embodied in the computer software is a correct representation of the process or system for which it is intended (Silthis is some listed by generalize	51	5.2							
software results against verified and traceable data obtained from laboratory	52	5.2							
experiments, field experiments or observations, or in situ testing.	• -	•••							
(52)Specific sets of data used in the validation process shall be identified and justification shall be made for their use.									
	 _								
(53) when call are not available from the sources mentioned above, alternative approaches used shall be documented. (54) Alternative approaches	53	5.2							
may include peer review and comparisons with the results of similar analysis	57	5.2							
performed with verified soltware. (55)The results of software validation shall be documented.	55	5.2							
6 0 CONTRADE CONSTICUENTION MANAGEMET								İ .	
								1	
(55)A software configuration management system shall be established to	56	6.0				1			.
baseline changes.									
6.1 CONFIGURATION IDENTIFICATION								ļ	
(57)A configuration baseline shall be identified at the completion of each	E7								
major phase of the software development cycle. (58) Approved changes to a	57								
baseline shall be added periodically to the baseline as updates. (59)A baseline olus updates shall specify the most recent softwars configuration	50	1.1	•						
(60) (printes shall be incorporated into subsequent baselines, (61) Both	20	6.1				}	ļ		
	61	6.1				1			
						1	I	<u> </u>	

.

							Page <u>214</u>	of	244
	ł	Review Results Organizatio			zation's Resolution	Re Di	view ispo.		
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para. No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Re
					X				
configuration items.									
(62)A labeling system for configuration items shall be implemented that:	62	6.1							
 Uniquely identifies each configuration item or version number. Identifies changes to configuration items by revision. 									
O Places the configuration item in a relationship with other configuration items. 6.2 CONFIGURATION CHANGE CONTROL									
(63)Changes to baseline software configuration items shall be formally documented. (64)This documentation shall contain a description of the change, the identification of the originating organization, the rationale for the change, and the identification of affected baselines and software configuration items. (65)The change should be formally evaluated by a qualified individual or organization with the ability to approve or disapprove the proposed change. (66)Assurance shall be provided that only authorized changes are made to software baselines and software configuration items.	63 64 65 66	6.2 6.2 6.2							
6.3 CONFIGURATION STATUS ACCOUNTING									
(67) The information that is needed to manage software configuration items shall be recorded and reported. (68) This information shall include a listing of the approved configuration identification, the status of proposed changes to the configuration, the implementation status of approved changes, and all information to support the functions of configuration identification, and configuration control.	67 68	6.3 6.3							

ł

-

······································							Page 215	of 3	तत
		Review Results Organizati			zation's Resolution	Rev	view 170.		
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rei
7.0 DOCUMENTATION (69)Minimum acceptable lifecycle documentation of computer software developed or modified for use on the Yucca Mountain Project shall be specified in each participants software QA plan(s). (70)The documentation provided shall describe the following, as applicable. (71)Arditional documentation may also be identified in the software quality assurance plan for each Yucca Hountain Project participant's software project.	69 70 71	7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0							
7.1 SOFTWARE REQUIREDENTS SPECIFICATION (72)A specific capability of software can be called a requirement only if its achievement can be verified by a prescribed method. (73)Software requirements documentation shall outline the requirements that the proposed software must fulfill. (74)The requirements shall address the following:	72 73 74	7.] 7.1 7.1							
 Functionality - the functions the software are to perform. Performance - The time-related issues of software operation such as speed, recovery time, response time, etc. Design constraints imposed on implementation - any elements that will restrict design options. Attributes - constinue-related issues of software operation such as 									
 Attributes - non-time-related issues of sortware operation such as portability, correctness, security, meintainability, etc. External Interfaces - interactions with other participants, hardware, and other software. 				•		/			

N-QA	030
12/88	

.

								Page 216	of 2	44
			Review	Results		. 0	- Irgani	zalion's Resolution	Rev	iew no.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	P	Sat ara. No.	Unsat - Para. No	Comments		Acc.	Rej	Reason	Açı.	Rej
						X				
7.2 SOFTWARE DESIGN DOCUMENTATION										
(75)Software design documentation is a document or series of documents that shall contain:	ר 5	7,2								
 A description of the major components of the software design as they relate to the requirements of the software requirements specification. 					•					
 A technical description of the software with respect to control flow, data flow, control logic, and data structure. 										
 A description of the allowable and tolerable ranges for inputs and outputs. 				•						
o The design described in a manner that is easily traceable to the software requirements.										
o Code Assessment and support documentation and descriptions of mathematical models and numerical methods as required by NRC publication NUREG-0856.										
o Continuing documentation, code listings, and software summary forms as required by MUREG-0856.										
7.3 SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION DOCUMENTATION						[[.		1	ł	
(75) Any design changes made to the requirement and design phase documents shall be assessed as to the impact on the design. (77) The revised requirement and design phase documents shall be reviewed to the same level of review as the original documents. (78) The results of this phase should be the basis for the software verification and validation plan(s).	76 77 78 -	7.3 7.3 7.3				N)				
						111	I	I		1

QA COMPLIANCE	REVIEW CH	ECKLIST					N-QA 12/88	030
		Review	Results		Organiza	Page <u>2/7</u> ation's Resolution	of Z	<u>.44</u> //ew #20.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc	Rej	Reason	A	Bej
1.1 SOTIMME VERIFICATION AND VALIDATION DOCIMENTATION (TEST) (79) Software verification and validation documentation shall include a plan that describes the tasks and criteria for accomplishing the verification of the software in each phase, and the validation of the software. (80) The documentation shall also specify the hardware and system software (80) The documentation pertinent to the software. (81) The documentation shall also include a report on the results of the securitor of the software verification and the validation of the software verification and the software design. (82) This documentation will also include a report on the results of the securitor of the software verification and validation activities. (83) This report shall include the results of all reviews, andits, and tests, and a summary of the status of the software. 1.5 USER DOCUMENTATION (64) User documentation shall be prepared in accordance with MUREG-0056 and shall include a description of: Program considerations, options, and initialization procedures. Internel and externel data files, their input sequence, structures, units, and canges. Input and output options, defaults, and formats. 	79 80 7.4 81 7.4 82 7.4 83 7.4 83 7.4							
n System interface features and limitations.			~	$ \rangle$				

i -

•

		Review Results				Organi	ization's Resolution	0
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci
	-				$\neg \chi$]		
					111	1		
 Information for obtaining user and maintenance support. 								
o Sample problems								
· · ··································	l							
0.0 REVIENS								
(S) Reviews of coffusion development activity shall be newformed as each	00	<u>a</u> a						
Te cycle phase is completed to assure the completeness and integrity of each	85	0.8]		
ase of development. (06)The procedures used for reviews shall identify the rticipants and their specific responsibilities during the review and in the eparation and distribution of the review report.	00	8.0						
(87) The documentation for all reviews shall contain a record of review	87	8.0					1	
mments, a plan, and timetable for the resolution of the review comments, and me personnel responsible for this resolution.	- •,							
(89)After review comments are resolved, the approved documents shall be dated and placed under configuration management.	88	8.0						
0.1 SOFTWARE REQUIREMENTS REVIEW								
(89)The review of software requirements shall be performed at the	89	8.1			ŀ			
mpletion of the software requirements documentation. (90)This review shall more that the requirements are complete, verifiable and consistent. (91)The	90	8.1						
view shall also assure that there is sufficient detail available to complete a software design.	91	8.1						
					11.			1
					N/			

. .

. _ ..

N-QA-030 12/88

						Page 219	of 🤉	44
		Review	Results	C	Irgani	zation's Resolution	Rev	NON
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rej
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				X Juli	,			
0.2 SOFTWARE DESIGN REVIEW								
(92) The software design review will be held at the completion of the 92 software design documentation. (93) This review shall evaluate the technical adequacy of the design approach, and assure that the design answers all the 93 requirements in the requirements documentation. (94) The complexity of the 94 software design may require the performance of two design reviews; one at the completion of the overall software architecture, and the second at the completion of the total design.	8.2 8.2 8.2		·					
6.3 SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW (95) The software implementation review is an evaluation of the completed 95 requirements, design, and implementation process prior to independent worification and validation.	8.3	- - - - - -						
8.4 SOFTWARE VERIFICATION AND VALIDATION REVIEW (96) The software verification and validation review is an evaluation of 96 the adequacy of verification and validation plans or procedures and completed 97 software verification and validation activities. (97) The review results in an approval of verification and validation documentation.	୫. ୳ ୫. ୳							
9.0 DISCREPANCY REPORTING NAD CORRECTIVE ACTION (98)A formal procedure of software discrepancy reporting and corrective 98 sction shall be established. (99)This discrepancy reporting system shall be 99 integrated with the configuration management system to assure formal 99 processing of discrepancy resolutions.	9.0 9.0		u **					

						Page <u>220</u>	of	244
		Review Results				zation's Resolution	Rey	/iew
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
				X Ju				
(100) Software discrepancy reporting and corrective action procedures shall 100	9.0							
o Defects are documented and corrected.								
o Defects are assessed for criticality and impacted as previous applications.								
? Corrections are reviewed and approved before changes to the software configuration are made.								
o Preventive and corrective actions provide for appropriate notification of affected organizations.								
10.0 HEDIA CONTROL AND SECURITY								
(101)Physical modia containing the images of software shall be physically [0] protected to prevent their insdvertent damage or degradation.	10.0							
11.0 ACQUIRED SOFTWARE				$\left \cdot \right $				
(102)Procedures shall be established for controlling the transfer of 102, computer software from an outside source to a user organization and from a user organization to an outside requesting organization. (103)Software transfer requests of the organization (or purchases) from an outside source shall include appropriate criteria to enable the software received to comply, as much as possible, with the requirements of this QA Plan and the needs of	11.0 11.0		*	V				

N 030 QA COMPLIANCE RE CHECKLIST 38 Page 221 of 244 Review **Review Results** Organization's Resolution Dispo. Sat -Unsat -**Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2** Para, No. Para, No. ~ Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Aci Rei \overline{X} llta) the organization's computer system. (104) Those requirements not not by the 104 11.0 software received shall be completed by the organization in the relative phase of the software life cycle that is incomplete or, if that is not possible, the reason shall be documented and maintained with the software and distributed to the users. 105 11.0 (105) Configuration management change controls shall be established for documenting the conversion of software to be used on a computer system, and/or 106 11.0 peripheral hardware, other than that for which it was designed. (106) 11.0 107 Conversion includes all modifications and tests made to input/output or the 108 11.0 source code or additional software written to run the original software on the new system. (107) Software conversion shall be documented and maintained for the specific version of the software and the computer system on which it is installed. (108)Software conversion changes shall be evaluated and activities performed in accordance with the appropriate configuration management system elements. 12.0 COMPUTER SOFTWARE APPLICATIONS 109 IZ.0 (109)Organizations shall establish procedures for controlling the application of worified and/or validated computer software to technical calculations in support of site-characterization or design, analysis, reformance assessment, and operation of repository structures, systems, and components. 12.0 110 (110)Organizations shall establish procedures for documenting and reviewing software application and analyses and assuring that all results are 12.0 111 accurate and reproducible. (111)Requirements shall be established for identifying or otherwise working record copies of all analyses and supporting Supporting documentation includes computer output (results), documentation.

QA COMPLIA		CHE	CKLIST				()A 38	030
			Review	Results	6)rgani	Page 222 zation's Resolution	of Re- Dr	Spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat - Para, No.	Unsat. – Para. No. –	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Aci	Rei
 code input data including data bases and original sources/references of and assumptions used to obtain such data, code design, user's and/or operation manuals, verification/validation test results and/or hand calculations. (112)Technical calculations using software shall be performed with applicable computer codes and with software operating procedures defined sufficiently to allow independent repetition of the entire computation. (113)Controls shall be established for generating and documenting software used to perform technical calculations. (114)All sumiliary software used should be included in documentation of technical calculations performed and should be included in independent review as part of the calculation. (113)All applications of computer software shall be independently reviewed and approved to assure that the software selected is applicable to the problem being molecular and that all input data and assurptions are valued. 	117 113 114 115	12,0 12,0 12,0 12,0		-					
being solved and that all input data and assumptions are valid and traceable.				• -					

QA COMPLIANCE	REV 2HE	ECKLIST				. (
	· - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Review	Results	0	rganiza	Page <u>223</u> ation's Resolution	of Re D
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsal Para. No	Comments	Acc.	R e j.	Reason	Aci
APPENDIX I REQUIREMENTS FOR THE IDENTIFICATION OF ITEMS AND ACTIVITIES SUBJECT TO QUALITY ASSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 1.0 GENERAL his Appendix provides requirements for identification of structures, systems and components important to safety in the pre-closure phase and for identif- fication of the barriers important to waste isolation in the post closure hase' which are to be listed on the "Q-List"; and for identification of those alongeness closure that relate to natural barriers important to waste isolation and which are to be listed on the Quality Activities List.	N/A	F&S is for the of item activiti to Qui	not responsible identification is and es subject ality Assorance	X			
2.0 QUALITY ASSUMME CRITERIA FOR LICENSING The purpose of the geologic repository program is to permanently dispose high-level nuclear waste. In order to obtain a license for receipt and assession of radinactive meterial at the geologic repository, it must be nonstrated that the repository system will function as required to protect with and safety of the public and the environment. Requirements for censing a repository to meet this goal are specified in 10 CFR Part 60, asse requirements describe the performance objectives and other technical literia to assure safe operation during waste emplacement and retrieval (if ressary), as well as effective containment and long-term isolation of waste litering permanent closure of the geologic repository. The QA Level I pirements of this QA Plan specify the QA program for these items and lated activities important to safety end/or waste isolation to assure that		Keguire	ements	·			

•

•••

QA COMPLIANCE R	V CHE	ECKLIST				QA 88	030
		Review	R es ults	Organ	Page 224 ization's Resolution	of 2 Rev Dr	244 VIRW SIXO
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Act	Rej
beir characteristion, design, construction, and operation couply with the requirements of 10 CFR part 60. JOURTH ASSUMME CRITERIA FOR THE Q-LIST AND QUALITY ACTIVITIES LIST The QA level 1 requirements of this QA Plan apply to iteme and activities is portant to asfety and/or wasta isolation. As desived from 10 CFR Part 60 (60.152), this QA program is based on the 18 criteria of 10 CFR Part 60 (70,100,100,100,100,100,100,100,100,100,1		See Pa	ge ZZ3				

QA COMPLIANCE R 34 030 CHECKLIST . АЛ Page 225 of 244 Review **Review Results** Organization's Resolution Dispo Sat -Imsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para No -Comments Acc. Rei Reason Act. Rep 2.3 DATA NOT COLLECTED UNDER A 10 CFR 60 SUBPART & DA PROGRAM See Page 223 All data collection, interpretations, analyses, and other work to be used to support findings related to important to safety and/or waste isolation in the licensing process shall be technically and procedurally defensible. "Existing data" shall be qualified in accordance with the requirements of Ampendix G of this QA Plan. In addition to existing data, some exterials that may be important to safety and/or waste isolation may already have been purchased prior to implementation of a 10 CFR 60 Subpart 6 QA Program. Supporting documentation on those materials (e.g. the technical specifications and QA records) shall be reviewed to determine whether they must the technical and QA requirements for their designated function. If not, they shall be "qualified" for use to assure they will perform their intended function. 3.0 IDENTIFICATION OF ITEMS INFORTANT TO SAFETY Items important to safety are those items essential to the prevention or mitigation of an accident that could result in a radiation dose to the whole body, or any organ, of 0.5 rem or greater at or beyond the nearest boundary of unrestricted area at any time until the completion of permanent closure (10 CTR 60.21. The 0.5 rem value is, therefore, the threshold for determining what structures, systems, and components shall be on the Q-List as items important to safety. The rationale for placing a system, structure, or component on the Q-list is to provide added assurance, via application of rigorous QA/QC and design requirements, that they should perform their designated function.

GA COMPLIANCE	REV H	ECKLIST		(03
				Page 226	of 344
		Review Results	Organizat	ion's Resolution	Review Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsat - Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Act: Re
 Probabilistic Risk Analysis (PRA) may be used to the extent practicable, to support the identification of structures, systems, and components important to safety in the license application. Use of this approach for the operations phase of the RLM program is consistent with the approach prescribed by the EPA standard (40 CFR Part 191) for the ownall system containemnt following emplacement of uses in a geologic repository. In cases where data are limited, engineering judgment and conservative bounding assumptions shall be used. Conservative assumptions shall include non-machanistic failures where information and/or experience are not adequate to reliably determine failure ones and accident scenarios. Revewer, non-machanistic failures and be considered where failure mades and machanisms are understood and failure rates can be determined. Operator actions or errors which could initiate accidents shall be identified in PRAs or other analyses. These shall be controlled to minimise the probability of occurrence. Other activities which are subject to OA Level I requirements, such as designing, inspecting, and purchasing will not be identified in PRAs but shall be controlled in accordance with QA Level I requirements. 1 PPAS shall utilize the following techniques: 1 System modeling to depict the combination of safety function and system successes or failures which constitute accident scenarios. The makeness of calibres which may be used are event true analysis, which determines how failures in affective potential and fault true analysis, which determines how failures in affective potential accident and scutture, which constitutes and characterize potential accidents in a methodical maner. 		See Page 223	Xen I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I		

-

QA COMPLIANCE REY

• •

......

CHECKLIST

1 030

Pa						Page <u>227</u>	of 2	<u>.44</u>
			Review	Results	Organiza	tion's Resolution	Rev Dis	new spo.
**	Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acc	Rej
	An event-tree defines a comprehensive set of accident sequences that encompasses the effects of all realistic and physically possible potential accidents. By definition, an initiating event is the beginning point in the sequence. Hence, a comprehensive list of accident-initiating events shall be compiled to ensure that the event trees properly depict all important sequences.		See Pag	je 223	new 1			
	A fault tree examines the various ways in which a system designed to rerform a safety function can fail. Each safety system identified in the event tree as involved in an accident shall be examined to determine how failures of components within that system could cause the failure of the entire system.							
	If failurs of a mitigating system could contribute to an off-site dose, individual components within the mitigating system shall be reviewed, using fault tree analysis, to determine the effect of their failure on performance of the overall system. For example, individual components in the ventilation system which may need to be analyzed include dampers, motors, and filters.							
	3.3.2 Consequence analysis of accident scenarios identified in event/fault tree analyses to determine the amount and kind of radionuclides which may reach the unrestricted area and contribute to an off-site dose. Consequence analysis includes identification of a source term for radioactive releases and evaluation of mechanisms for movement and deposition of radioactive materials released from the NLM facility. The energy, magnitude, and timing of radiological releases resulting form various accidents shall be considered in this analysis.							

QA COMPLIANC					- · ·	030
		Review Results	Organizati	Page 228	of 2	. <u>44</u>
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı.	Rej
 3.3.3 Analysis to assess the effect of uncertainties in the data base and uncertainties arising from modeling assumptions on the PRA findings. The insights gained in the analysis about features that are significant contributors to risk can provide qualitative understanding into system performance. Additional guidance related to the assessment of pre-closure accidents can be found in MUREG 1318, (April, 1988), paragraph 5.2(a). 3.4 PEDUNDANCY The use of redundant structures, systems, and components is a method of previding additional assurance that necessary safety functions will be exceeded. In a redundant system, the failure of one train of the system shall and comprise or prevent the associated safety function from being performed. For the high-lavel waste repository, 10 CFR 60 [60.131(b)(5)(ii)) addresses requirements for redundancy. The items needed to provide redundancy of items important to safety shall also be on the Q-List. 		See Page 223	X Internet			
3.5 USE OF PREVIOUSLY ESTABLISHED GUIDELINES AND STANDARDS						·
Many guidelines and standards have been developed in the nuclear power reactor program and other nuclear programs which may be applicable for the geologic repository program. For example, there are regulatory guides covering design basis earthquakes, floods, and tornado wind velocities which may be used in the design of the RLM facility and developing the Q-List. While some of these guidelines and standards may not be directly applicable to a geologic repository, they shall be considered to the extent practicable, to eliminate the need to develop new approaches.						

OA COMPLIANCE I		ECKLIST					QA 88	030
`.	· · ·			<u>-</u>		Page 229	of 2	44
		Review	Results	0	ganiza	ation's Resolution	Dis	5100.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sal - Para No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acc	Re
				X	, [ł
				10			ł	
					ļ			
.6 RETRIEVAL							Ì	
The option for retrieval of waste is addressed as a carformance objective		C. D.	. 72.3				1	
10 CFR 60.111(b). If retrieval is found to be necessary, analyses of		see rug	e			•		
trieval operations shall be conducted at that time, to identify Q-List items.								İ
4.0 IDENTIFICATION OF ITEMS AND ACTIVITIES IMPORTANT TO WASTE ISOLATION								
The term "important to waste isolation" refers to engineered and natural								
rriers that will be relied on to meet the containment and isolation								
bjectives for waste isolation after permonent closure are stated in 10 CFR								
1.1/2 and 60.113 and include:					- {			
ground water travel time								
waste package containment period								
maximum yearly release rate from the engineered berrier system					ł			·
the overall system performance objective in 10 CFR 60.112 for release of	ł						1	
radioactive materials to the accessible environment (the EPA standard in 40 CPR Part 191).		ļ						
e items and activities important to waste isolation shall include:								
Components of the engineered barrier system relied on to meet the								
performance objectives.	1						1	ł
	I			N/			1	

QA COMPLIANCE		ECKLIST				1.QA 788	030
······	<u> </u>	Review	Results	Or	ganization's Resolution	Rev Dr	11 iew ;p0.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc. r	Reason	Act	Rej
 Elements of the natural barrier system (e.g., host rock, and geochemical retardation characteristics) relied on to must the performance objectives. Activities necessary to demonstrate that the performance objectives will be met, including collection of data to characterize the site or performance of engineered barriers. Activities in the preclosure phase that could effect post-closure performance. The broad performance objectives for waste isolation provide some flexibility in allocating credit among the various components of the natural and engineered barrier systems to meet each objective. For example, a 300 to 1000 year lifetime for the waste package might be achieved by a combination of performance from each of the components in the waste package or by a single component, such as the canister. The allocation of performance among the various components of the natural and engineered bill provide the basis for determining which barriers are important to waste isolation. Performance assessments shall be conducted on these barriers to ascertain that those relied on will meet the waste isolation of underted on these barriers to ascertain that those relied on will meet the waste isolation of the order of the component of the starter of the conducted on these barriers to ascertain that those relied on will meet the waste isolation of the conducted on these barriers to ascertain that those relied on will meet the waste isolation of the conducted on these barriers to ascertain the various of 10 CTR Part 60. The 		See Page	223		P. Heason	Acc	
initial allocations of performance will provide a basis for determining what site characterization testing will be needed. The initial allocations of performance among the barriers is likely to change based on the results of performance assessments using data collected during site characterization.							
It is expected that most of the data collected during the site characterization phase can potentially be used in the license application performance assessments. During the early phase of characterization in particular, when little is known about the site and the importance of data characterizing it, data collection activities shall be controlled in							

.

.

• •

\ 030 QA COMPLIANCE REP CHECKLIST Page 231 of 244 Review **Review Results** Organization's Resolution Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para, No. -Comments Acc. Rej. Reason Act: Rej X See Page 223 accordance with the QA Level I requirements of this QA Plan. However, there may be cases where it is known that data are not needed for performance assessments, or will be duplicated later in accordance with QA Level I requirements of this QA Plan and therefore would not have to be performed in accordance with the QA Level I requirements at this time. For example, scoping tests or tests to examine the feasibility and appropriateness of a data collection technique may not need to be performed in accordance with the OA Level I requirements of this QA Plan. 5.0 SUPHITTAL REQUIRPHENTS 5.1 LICENSE APPLICATION A description of the QA program to be applied to items important to safety and/or waste isolation shall be submitted with the license application. The subwittal shall identify the structures, systems, and components important to safety and describe the analyses used in this identification. It should also identify the barriers important to waste isolation falling under the QA program and describe the evaluations used to identify these berriers [10 CFR 60.21(-) (1)(ii)(C)]. A Quality Activities List, as defined in Section 1.0, should also be provided listing major site characterization, isolation, operation, and performance confirmation activities under the QA program. 5.2 SITE CHARACTERIZATION PLANS The following information related to the Q-List should be submitted in the Site Characterization Plan: A description of the QA program to be applied to items and activities n during the site characterization phase.

. .

QA COMPLIANCE		
	Review Results	Page 232, of Organization's Resolution
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Unsat Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej. Reason Ac
A preliminary Q-List identifying <u>major structures</u> , <u>systems</u> , and <u>components</u> important to safety, engineered barriers important to waste isolation and the methodology used to develop the list. A list of major site characterization <u>activities</u> (Quality Activities List) and the QA requirements which apply to them. A general description of the process by which the preliminary Q-List will be revised as the design advances. Vans for development and implementation of a QA program to demonstrate that on-Q-List licensing requirements are met should also be described in the Site haracterization Plan.	See Page 223	
6.0 GRADED APPLICATION OF QA MEASURES he 10 CFR 60 Subpart G requirements can be not using graded QA measures and hould be applied to items and activities important to safety and/or waste molation based on considerations such as the following: The impact of mulfunction or failure of the item, or the impact of erroneous data associated with data collection activities, on safety or waste isolation. The complexity of design or fabrication of an item, or design and implement tation of a test, or the uniqueness of an item of test. The special controls and surveillance medded over processes, tests, and employment.		

GA COMPLIANCE R	С	ECKLIST				(۸۲ ۵L	030
						Page 2.33	of Z	<u>44.</u>
		Review	Results	d)rgani	zation's Resolution	Rev Dis	new ipo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsat - Para, No, -	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acc	Rej
 The degree to which functional compliance can be demonstrated by inspection or test. The quility history and degree of standardization of the item or test. Hota: Additional quidance related to this subject can be found in NUREG-1318, "TECHNICAL POSITION ON ITTES AND ACTIVITIES IN THE MICH-LEVEL WASTE GEOLOGIC PEPOSITORY PROGRAM SUBJECT TO QUALITY ASSURANCE REQUIRED DATE: (APRIL, 1989). 		See Pag	e 223					

. QA COMPLIANCE RE	,CHE	ECKLIST					אר 8	030
	<u>`.</u>	Review	Results		Taani	Page 234	of Z Rev Dr	144 //ew
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para. No.	Unsat Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Ace	Rej
				X Jui				
REQUIREMENTS FOR PEER REVIEW								
1.0 General					1 .			
This appendix provides the requirements regarding the applicability of peer reviews, the structure of peer review groups, acceptability of peers, and the conduct and documentation of peer reviews.								
2.0 APPLICABILITY OF PEER REVIEW			•					
7.1 (1)A peer review shall be used when the adequacy of information (e.g., data, interpretations, test results, design assumptions, etc.) or the suitability of procedures and methods essential to showing that the repository system ments or exceeds its performance requirements with respect to safety and waste isolation cannot otherwise be established through testing, alternate calculations or reference to previously established standards and practices.	2,1							
2.2 (2) In general, the following conditions are indicative of situations in Z. which a peer review shall be considered:	2,2							
a. Critical interpretations or decisions will be made in the face of significant uncertainty, including the planning for data collection, research, or exploratory testing.								
b. Decisions or interpretations having significant impact on performance assessment conclusions will be made.				V				

х

		CKLIST			(1-QA /88	030
	T	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Page 235	of Z	<u> ५५</u>
		Review	Results	Organi	zation's Resolution	ion Dis	
Review Requirements per MWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No.	Unsal - Para No	Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Acı;	Rej
 c. Novel or beyond the state-of-the-art testing, plans and procedures, or analyses are or will be utilized. d. Detailed technical criteria or standard industry procedures do not exist or are being developed. e. Results of tests are not reproducible or repeatable. 				X			<u> </u>
f. Data or interpretations are ambiguous							
 g. Data admquacy is questionablesuch as, data may not have been collected in conformance with an established QA program. 2.3 (3)A peer review shall be used when the adequacy of a critical body of 3 inferention can be established by alternate means, but there is disagreement within the cognizant technical community regarding the applicability or appropriateness of the alternate means. 	2.3						
3.0 STRUCTURE OF PEER REVIEW GROUP		1					
(4) The number of peers comprising a peer review group shall vary commensurate with the following:	3.1						
 A. The complexity of the work to be reviewed. B. Its importance to establishing that safety or waste isolation performance goals are met. C. The number of technical disciplines involved. 							

.

,

 QA COMPLIAN	CE	W CHE	CKLIST	·····				V-QA 2/88	030
		1					Page 236	of 7	रमम
		Sat	Review	Results	c)rgan I	ization's Resolution	Dr	<u>spo.</u>
 Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Para. No.	Para. No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acc	Rej
 D. The degree to which uncertainties in the data or technical approach exist. E. The extent to which differing viewpoints are strongly held within the applicable technical and scientific community concerning the issues under review. 3.2 (5)The collective technical expertise and qualifications of peer review group members shall spen the technical issues and areas involved in the work to be reviewed, including any differing bodies of scientific thought. (6)The potential for technical or organizational partiality shall be minimized by selecting peers to provide a balanced peer review group. (7)Technical areas more central to the work to be reviewed shall receive proportionally more representation in the per review group. 	567	3.2 3.2 3.2							
4.0 ACCEPTABILITY OF PERS		ļ							
4.1 (8) The technical qualification of the peer reviewers, in their review areas, shall be at least equivalent to that needed for the original work under review and shall be the primary consideration in the selection of peer reviewers. (9) Each peer shall have recognized and verifiable technical credentials in the technical area that the peer has been selected to review.	8 9	4.1 4.1							
4.2 (10)Members of the peer review group shall be independent of the original work to be reviewed. (11)Independence in this case means that the peer was not involved as a participant, supervisor, technical reviewer, or advisor in the work being reviewed, and to the extent practical, has sufficient freedom from funding considerations to assure the work is impartially reviewed. (12)In some cases (i.e. funding considerations) it way be difficult to meet the independence criteria without reducing the technical quality of the peer review. (13)When the independence criteria cannot be met, a documented rationale shall be included in the peer review report.	10 11 12 13	4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2							

.

•

QA COMPLIANCE	W CH	ECKLIST				'-QA :/88	030
	<u>``</u>	Review Pr		0.000	Page 237	of 2	<u>भू</u>
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para No	Unsat Para, No	Comments	Acc. Rej	Reason	Acc	Rej
5.0 PEER REVIEW PROCESS				in			
5.1 (14)Since the peer review process may vary from case to case, a peer review plan shall be prepared prior to initisting a peer review. (15)The peer review plan shall describe the work to be reviewed, the size and spectrum of the peer review group, and the suggested method and schedule necessary to produce a peer review report. 5.2 (16)The peer review group shall evaluate and report on:	1 5.1 5 5.1 5 5.2						
 a. Validity of assumptions. b. Alternate interpretations. c. Uncertainty of results and consequences if incorrect. d. Appropriateness and limitations of methodology and procedures. e. Adequacy of application. f. Accuracy of calculations. 							
 h. Adequicy of requirements and criteria. q. Validity of conclusions. (17)Documentation shall be prepared to indicate the results of meetings, for deliberations, and activities of the peer review process. 	5.2						

QA COMPLIAN	CF	TEW CHE	CKLIST					N-QA 12/08	030
			Review	· Results)rgani	Page <u>238</u> zation's Resolution	of <u>2</u> Rev	44 19.00
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Sat Para. No.	Unsat - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej	Reason	Act	Rei
 6.0 PER PEVIEN PEPOE 9.1 (18)A report docummning the results of the peer review shall be prepared and issued under the direction of the peer review group chairparson and shall be signed by each peer review group awher. (19)The peer review report shall include the following: 0. A clear description of the wort or issue that was peer review shall. 0. Conclusions reached by the peer review group awhers reflecting dissenting views or additional comments, as appropriate. 1. Listing of the peers and the technical qualification and avidence of is-represendence for each peer, including potential technical and/or cramitational partiality. Wret: Additional guidence related to this subject can be found in MMRED-1297, PEER REVIEW FOR HIGH LEVEL MULLEAR MASTE REPOSITORIES* (FERMURAT, 1999). 	18	6.1 6.1							

2A 030 **QA COMPLIANCE RE** ' CHECKLIST 38 Page 239 of 7.44 Review **Review Results** Organization's Resolution Dispo. Sat -Unsat -Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 Para, No. Para, No. -Rej. Aci: Rej Comments Acc. Reason X APPENDIX R Not F45 does not generate Applicable Study Plans FORMAT AND CONTENT REQUIREMENTS FOR SCP STUDY PLAN 1.0 Purpose and Objectives of Studies: 1.1 (1)Describe the information that will be obtained in the study. Briefly discuss how this information will be used; and 1.2 (2) Provide the rationals and justification for the information to be obtained by the study.. (3) It can be justified by: 1) a performance goal and a confidence level in that goal (developed via the performance allocation process and results that will be described elsewhere in the SCP); 2) a design goal and a confidence level in that goal (design goals beyond those related to performance issues); 3) direct Federal, State, and other regulatory remainments for specific studies. (4) Where relevant performance or design goals actually apply at a higher level than the study (e.g., where the goals amply to a group of studies), describe the relationship between this study and that higher level goal. 2.0 Rational for Selected Study: 2.1 (5)Provide the rationale and justification for the selected tests and analyses (including standard tests). (6) Indicate the alternative test and analytical methods from which they were selected, including options for type of test, instrumentation, data collection and recording, and alternative analytical approaches. (7)Describe the advantages and limitations of the various options; and

QA COMPLIANCE R	/ CHE	ECKLIST	<u> </u>		QA 030 /88
		Review Results	Org	Page <u>250</u> ganization's Resolution	of <u>2.44</u> Review Dispo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No Comments	Acc. R	Reason	Acc Rei
 2.2 (8)Provide the rationale for the selected number, location, duration, and timing of tests with consideration to various sources of uncertainty (e.g., test method, interference with other tests, and estimated parameter variability). (9)This rationals should also identify reasonable alternatives; summarize reasons for not selecting these alternatives, and reference if available, reports which evaluate alternatives considered. 2.3 (10)Describe the constraints that exist for the study, and explain how these constraints affect selection of test methods and analytical approaches. (11)Fectors to be considered include: a) Potential impacts on the site from testing; b) Whether the study meeds to simulate repository conditions; c) Required accuracy and precision of parameters to be measured with test instrumentation; 	Para, No.	Para No Comments See Page 239		lej. Reason	Acc Rej
d) Limits of snalytical methods that will use the information from the tests;					
e), Capability of analytical methods to support the study;					
 Time required versus time available to complete the study; 					
g) The scale of the phenomena, especially the limitations of the equipment relative to the scale of the phenomena to be measured and the applicability of studies conducted in the laboratory to the scale of the phenomena in the field;					

• •

.

ı

.

,
			Page Zeri of 2						
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2		Review Results		Organizat	ion's Resolution	Revier			
		Sat Para. No.	UnsaL - Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	fleason	Act: R			
	•			in					
 h) Interrelationships of tests involving significant interference with other tests and how plans have been designed or sequenced to address such interference; and 			See Page 239						
i) Interrelationships involving significant interference among tests and ESF design and construction, as appropriate (refer to Section 0.4 of the SCP or its references for "pecific ESF dusign informa- tion)/		•							
Description of Tests and Analyses:									
(12)Since studies are comprised of tests and analyses, provide for each ne of test:									
a) Describe the general approach that will be used in the test, Describe key parameters that will be measured in the test and the experimental conditions under which the test will be conducted, Indicate the number of tests and their locations (e.g., spatial location relative to the site, EST elements, repository layout, stratigraphic units, depth, and test location);	•	•							
b) Summrize the test methods. Reference any standard procedures (e.g., ASTM, API) to be used. If any of the procedures to be used are not standard, or if a standard procedure will be modified, summarize the steps of the test, how it will be modified, and reference the technical procedures that will be followed during the test. If procedures are not yet available, indicate when they									
will be available. Indicate the level of quality assurance and, provide a rationale for any tests which are not judged to be QA level 1. Reference the applicable specific QA requirements that will be applied to the test;				M					

•

. .

• • •

.

.

.

٠.

				Raview Resulte	Page 242		
		t.	Sat -	Unsat -	Urganization's Hesolution		
	neview nequinements per intrastion-3 nev. 2		Para, NO.	Para, No Comments	Acc. ffej.	Reason	
				· · ·			
					per l		
		•		See Page 239			
c) 5	occify the tolerance, accuracy, and precision required in the						
t	est, where appropriate;						
d) P	ndirate the range of emerted results of the test and the basis	· ·					1
c, f	or those expected results;						
- •	lab the continuest construct for the back and dependent betaffer and			· ·			
47 L 31	uch equipment that is special;						
. .							
- EJ -	Describe techniques to be used for data reduction and analysis of		•				
g) D I	esuits are considered representative of future conditions or the						
	patial variability of existing conditions. Also indicate limit-						
2	tions and uncertainties that will apply to the use of the results;			· · · · ·			
h) P	rovide illustrations such as maps, cross sections, and facility						
d.	esign drawings to show the locations of tasts and schematic						
14	AVOILS OF LESTS, AND						
11) P	elationship of the test to the set performance goals and						1
C	onfidence levels.						}
3.2 (13)	For each type of analysis:						
-1 -	tate the surpose of the analysis, indicating the testing or						
-, s de	esign activity being supported. Indicate what conditions or						
•	nvironments will be evaluated and any sensitivity or uncertainty						
	nalyses that will be performed. Discuss the relationship of the nalysis to the set performance goals and confidence levels;	,					

•

		Review Results	Organizat	Review	
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat - Para, No.	Unsat - Para. No Comments	Acc. Rej.	Reason	Act:
			la		
b) Describe the methods of analysis including any analytical		See Page 239			
expressions and numerical models that will be employed;		0			
c) Reference the technical procedures document that will be followed					
during the analysis. If procedures are not yet available, indicate when they will be available. Indicate the level of					
quality assurance that will be applied to the analysis and provide					
Reference the applicable QA requirements.					
d) Identify the data input requirements of the analysis;					
e) Describe the expected output and accuracy of this analysis; and					
f) Describe the representativeness of the analytical spproach (e.g.,					
with respect to spatial variability of existing conditions and future conditions) and indicate limitations and uncertainties that					
will apply to the results.					
.0 Application of Results:					
4.1 (14)Briefly discuss where the results from the study will be used for					
he support of other studies (performance assessment, design, and charact-					
LITACION ACOUTEA)					
4.2 (15)For performance assessment uses, refer to specific performance sessment analyses (described in Section 8.3.5 of the SCP) that will use the					
nformation produced from the studies described above, and refer to any use of					
, A SANTER FOR MODAL ANTIGACTOM:					

.

•

、

,

OA COMPLIANCE

- -

1

EW CHECKLIST

N-QA 030 12/88

						Page 244	of 3	244
	Review Results			0	Organization's Resolution			view spo.
Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2	Sat Para, No.	Unsal - Para, No	Comments	Acc.	Rej.	Reason	Acr:	Rej
 Review Requirements per NNWSI/88-9 Rev. 2 4.3 (16) For design uses, refer to , or describe, where the information from the study described above will be used in construction equipment design and development, and engineering system design and development (e.g., waste package, repository engineered barriers, and shafts and borehole seals); and 4.4 (17) For characterization uses, refer to, or describe, where the information from the study described above will be used in plenning other characterization activities. Schedule and Hilestones: 5.1 (18) Provide the derations of and interrelationships among the principal activities associated with conducting the study (e.g., preparation of test procedures, test est-ups, testing data analyses, preparation of test procedures, test will affect, or will be affected by, the schedule for completion of the subject study; and 	Sat Para. No.	Unsal - Para No Sce F	Comments Page 239	Acc	Rej.	Reason	Act	<u>Rej</u>
5.3 (20)Dates for activities or milestones including durations and inter-relationships, for the study plans will be provided. These should reference the master schedules provided in Section 8.5 of the SCP.								